
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

Agenda 
 

 

MONDAY 
3 SEPTEMBER 2012 
7.00 pm 
 
ASSEMBLY HALL 
HAMMERSMITH 
TOWN HALL 
KING STREET  
LONDON W6 9JU 

Membership 
 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill, Leader (+ Regeneration, Asset 
Management and IT) 
Councillor Greg Smith, Deputy Leader (+ Residents Services) 
Councillor Helen Binmore, Cabinet Member for Children's Services 
Councillor Mark Loveday, Cabinet Member for Communications (+ Chief 
Whip) 
Councillor Marcus Ginn, Cabinet Member for Community Care 
Councillor Andrew Johnson, Cabinet Member for Housing 
Councillor Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler, Cabinet Member for Transport 
and Technical Services 
 

Date Issued 
22 August 2012 

If you require further information relating to this agenda please contact: 
David Viles, Committee Co-ordinator, Governance and Scrutiny,  tel: 
020 8753 2063 or email: David.Viles@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Reports on the open Cabinet agenda are available on the Council’s 
website: http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 

 

DEPUTATIONS 
Members of the public may submit a request for a deputation to the Cabinet on non-exempt 
item numbers 4-8 on this agenda using the Council’s Deputation Request Form.  The 
completed Form, to be sent to David Viles at the above address, must be signed by at least ten 
registered electors of the Borough and will be subject to the Council’s procedures on the 
receipt of deputations. Deadline for receipt of deputation requests: Wednesday 29 
August 2012. 

COUNCILLORS’ CALL-IN TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
A decision list regarding items on this agenda will be published by Wednesday 5 September 
2012.  Items on the agenda may be called in to the relevant Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The deadline for receipt of call-in requests is:  Monday 10 September 2012 at 3.00pm. 
Decisions not called in by this date will then be deemed approved and may be implemented. 
 
A confirmed decision list will be published after 3:00pm on Monday 10 September 2012. 

 
Members of the Public are welcome to attend. 

A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, together with disabled  
access to the building 

 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Cabinet 
Agenda 

 
3 September 2012 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1. MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 23 JULY 2012  1 - 8 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.   
 

 

4. THE GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2012/2013 - MONTH 2 
AMENDMENTS  

9 - 11 

5. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT  12 - 19 

6. EARL'S COURT REDEVELOPMENT AND STATUTORY AND WIDER 
CONSULTATION  

20 - 424 



7. MAYOR OF LONDON'S CYCLE HIRE SCHEME  425 - 431 

8. STRATEGY FOR THE PROVISION OF CARER SERVICES ACROSS 
THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER, THE LONDON BOROUGH OF 
HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM, AND THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF 
KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA  

432 - 446 

9. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS  447 - 460 

10. SUMMARY OF OPEN DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER AND 
CABINET MEMBERS, AND REPORTED TO CABINET FOR 
INFORMATION  

461 - 462 

11. SUMMARY OF URGENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, 
REPORTED TO THE CABINET FOR INFORMATION  

463 - 464 

12. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 The Cabinet is invited to resolve, under Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, that the public and press be excluded from the 
meeting during the consideration of the following items of business, on 
the grounds that they contain the likely disclosure of exempt information, 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the said Act, and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption currently outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

 

13. EARLS COURT DEVELOPMENT : EXEMPT ASPECTS (E)   

14. PROJECT: RELEASE OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AT 70-72 
HAMMERSMITH BRIDGE ROAD (E)  

 

15. STRATEGY REPORT FOR THE PROVISION OF CARER SERVICES 
ACROSS THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER, THE LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM AND THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF 
KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA : EXEMPT ASPECTS (E)  

 

16. SUMMARY OF EXEMPT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER AND 
CABINET MEMBERS, AND REPORTED TO CABINET FOR 
INFORMATION (E)  

 

17. SUMMARY OF EXEMPT URGENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE 
LEADER, AND REPORTED TO THE CABINET FOR INFORMATION 
(E)  

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
Minutes 

 
Monday 23 July 2012 

 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor Greg Smith, Deputy Leader (+ Residents Services) 
Councillor Helen Binmore, Cabinet Member for Children's Services 
Councillor Mark Loveday, Cabinet Member for Communications (+ Chief Whip) 
Councillor Marcus Ginn, Cabinet Member for Community Care 
Councillor Andrew Johnson, Cabinet Member for Housing 
Councillor Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler, Cabinet Member for Transport and Technical 
Services 
 
  
 

 
14. MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 18 JUNE 2012  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 18 June 2012 be 
confirmed and signed as an accurate record of the proceedings, and that the 
outstanding actions be noted. 
 
 

15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Nicholas Botterill. 
 
 

16. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

17. EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO THE "H & F MEANS BUSINESS" SCRUTINY 
REPORT  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the Executive Response to the H&F Means Business Scrutiny 

Report recommendations, as set out at Appendix 1 of the report, be 
approved. 

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

2. That Councillor Robert Iggulden be appointed as Borough Business 
Champion. 

 
3. That the Business Champion considers how best to take forward the 

agreed Scrutiny recommendations and reports back thereon to the 
Cabinet. 

 
 

18. ASSET DISPOSALS 2012/2013  
 
Cabinet noted the content of a letter submitted by Prof Haydon-Baillie and the 
officers’ legal advice before making the decision. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That officers be authorised to dispose of the properties listed below for the best 
price reasonably obtainable and otherwise on such terms and conditions as the 
Director for Legal and Democratic Services and the Director of Building and 
Property Management consider appropriate:- 
 
• William Thompson Memorial Hall 1-5 Burnthwaite Road 

 
• Metro Building, Butterwick  

 
• Bumpsa Daisies Nursery Site, Broomhouse Lane 

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

19. TROUBLED FAMILIES - DEVELOPING AND IMPLEMENTING A TRI-
BOROUGH APPROACH  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That that the proposed delivery option be approved. 
 
2. That authority be delegated to the Executive Director of Children’s 

Services to establish the Tri-Borough intelligence and monitoring desk. 
 

3. That a further report be presented for decision in September 2012 on 
procuring or developing the ‘wrap around’ service package. 

 

Page 2



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

20. COMMISSIONING OF YOUTH PROVISION 2013-15  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the commissioning budget as set out in section 6 of the report be 

approved. 
 

2. That approval be given for a two year funding and commissioning cycle 
from April 2013 to March 2015.  

 
3. That authority be delegated  to the Cabinet Member for Children’s 

Services, in conjunction with the Tri-borough Executive Director of 
Children’s Services, to award the contracts within the agreed budget, as 
set out in section 6 of the report. 

  
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

21. OUTSOURCING OF THE PROVISION OF A MEALS SERVICE FOR 
VULNERABLE ADULTS  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That authority be given to outsource the provision of a Meals Service for 
vulnerable adults by setting up a Framework Agreement using the       
Restricted Procedure.  

 
2. That, following evaluation of the Pre Qualification Questionnaires and in 

accordance with Council Contract Standing Orders, the shortlist of 

 

Page 3



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

tenderers who will be invited to tender be approved by the Cabinet 
Member for Community Care.  

  
3. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Community Care, 

in conjunction with the Tri Borough Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care, to award the contract for the Meals Service for vulnerable adults.  

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

22. PROCUREMENT OF THE PROVISION OF AN OUT OF HOSPITAL STROKE 
SUPPORT SERVICE FOR LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & 
FULHAM AND ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON & CHELSEA AND A 
STROKE SUPPORT AND INFORMATION SERVICE FOR LONDON 
BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM ONLY  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That approval be given to procurement using Restricted Procedure of a 

framework for an Out of Hospital Stroke Support Service for London 
Borough of  Hammersmith & Fulham and Royal Borough of Kensington 
& Chelsea, and a Stroke Support and Information Service for London 
Borough of  Hammersmith & Fulham only. 

 
2. That following evaluation of the Pre Qualification Questionnaires and in 

accordance with Council Contract Standing Orders, the short list of 
tenderers who will be invited to tender be approved by the Leader and 
the Cabinet Member for Community Care.   

 
3. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Community Care, 

in conjunction with the  Tri-Borough Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care, to award the contract for an Out of Hospital Stroke Support 
Service for London Borough of  Hammersmith & Fulham and Royal 
Borough of Kensington & Chelsea and a Stroke Support and Information 
Service for London Borough of  Hammersmith & Fulham only.   

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 

Page 4



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

23. PROPOSAL FOR GRADUATED PARKING SUSPENSION CHARGES 2012  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That all applicants for parking suspensions be charged on a graduated 

basis, with £40 per space per day (for those lasting between 1 and 5 days), 
£60 per space per day (for those lasting between 6 and 42 days), and  £80 
per space per day (for those lasting for 43 days or more).  

 
2.  That utilities companies be charged the full cost for suspensions that they 

request for traffic management/flow reasons, that is, where works on one 
side of the street means that there is not enough space for traffic to pass 
safely so that bays on both sides of the street are suspended.  

 
3.  That suspensions requested by utility companies for road works be charged 

only for the first day, in order to reserve the space. 
 
4.  That the Council charges utility companies for the full cost of traffic flow 

suspensions (for those bays suspended not directly for road works) from 5 
November 2012. 

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

24. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Forward Plan was noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

25. SUMMARY OF OPEN DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER AND CABINET 
MEMBERS, AND REPORTED TO CABINET FOR INFORMATION  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The summary was noted. 
 
 

26. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
remaining items of business on the grounds that they contain information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of a person (including the authority) 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption currently outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

27. EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 18 JUNE 2012 
(E)  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on  18 June 2012 
be confirmed and signed as an accurate record of the proceedings, and that the 
outstanding actions be noted. 
 
 

28. ASSET DISPOSALS 2012/13 : EXEMPT ASPECTS (E)  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
29. OUTSOURCING OF THE PROVISION OF A MEALS SERVICE TO 

VULNERABLE ADULTS : EXEMPT ASPECTS (E)  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

30. PROCUREMENT OF THE PROVISION OF AN OUT OF HOSPITAL STROKE 
SUPPORT SERVICE FOR LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND 
FULHAM AND ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA AND 
A STROKE SUPPORT AND INFORMATION SERVICE FOR LONDON 
BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM ONLY : EXEMPT ASPECTS 
(E)  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

31. SUMMARY OF EXEMPT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER AND 
CABINET MEMBERS, AND REPORTED TO CABINET FOR INFORMATION 
(E)  
 
The summary was noted. 
 
 

Page 7



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.01 pm 
Meeting ended: 7.04 pm 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 

Page 8



    
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

3 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 

 
LEADER 
Councillor Nicholas 
botterill 

THE GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 
2012/2013 – MONTH 2 AMENDMENTS. 
 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for 
changes to the 2012/13 Revenue Budget.   
 
 
 
 

Wards: 
All 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
All Departments 
 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
That the changes to the General Fund revenue 
budgets as set out in Appendix 1 be approved. 
 

 
 
 
   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

HAS A EIA BEEN 
COMPLETED? 
N/A 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 

 

1. SUMMARY  
 
1.1 This report sets out proposed amendments to the 2012-13 Revenue Budgets as at 

month 2.  
 

    
2.     REVENUE BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS  
 
2.1 The total adjustments to revenue budgets is £8.307m (Appendix 1).   
2.2 There are virements totalling £8.307m to general fund budgets. The largest 

virement £6.545m is required to realign budgets to reflect the centralisation of the 
pension costs for the past service deficit. 

2.3 There are  no virements required to the HRA budgets. 
 
3.    EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS  
3.1 The Revenue Budget was set on 29 February 2012 at a meeting of Full Council 

and was informed by an Equality Impact Assessment (‘EIA’), which assessed the 
reduction in Council Tax on the relevant protected groups.  

3.2 The report of 29 February and the accompanying EIA noted that where particular 
policy proposals would have an impact on protected groups, further work would be 
undertaken.  

3.3 It is not considered that the adjustments to the revenue budget would have any 
impact on one or more protected group(s) and so there are no equality 
implications arising as a result of this report and an EIA is not required.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 

No. Brief Description of 
Background Papers  

Name/Ext. of 
holder of file/copy 

Department 
1. Revenue Monitoring 

Documents 
Gary Ironmonger  
Ext. 2109 

Corporate Finance 
Room 38 , Town Hall 

    
 

Page 10



 

 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 - VIREMENT REQUEST FORM 
 

BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING – PERIOD 2 
 
 
Details of Virement 
 

Amount 
(£000) 

Department 
Centralisation of Past Service costs to fund past 
service deficit contribution into Pension Fund 6,545/(6,545) CMB/All 

departments 
Centralisation of Maternity budgets 2012/13 
 

359/(359) 
 

CMB/All 
departments 

Removal of Fulham Palace Insurance and 
Motor Insurance budgetary provision from the 
Service Level Agreement model 
 

185/(185) CMB/ ELRS 

In accordance with the Cabinet Decision on 9th 
January, the parking staffing expenditure budget 
has been increased by £783k, and the income 
budget for receipts from moving traffic offence 
fines has been increased by the same amount. 

783/(783) 
 
 

CPA 
Income and Borrowing Costs adjustment due to 
sale of Novotel Hotel and Car Park 235.6/(235.6) TTS/CMB 
Removal of Staff Car Parking Charges MTFS 
saving proposal.  200/ (200) CMB/TTS 
 
Total of Requested Virements (Debits) 8,307.6 

 

 
 
 

Page 11



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

3 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 

 
LEADER 
Councillor Nicholas 
Botterill 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 
REPORT 
 
This report provides information on the Council’s 
debt, borrowing and investment activity for the 
financial year ending 31March 2012 
 
 
 
 

Wards: 
All 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
EDFCG 
DLDS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1. To note that the Council has not 

undertaken any borrowing for the period 1 
April 2011 to 31 March 2012. 

 
2. To note the investment activity for the 

period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

HAS THE REPORT 
CONTENT BEEN RISK 
ASSESSED? 
N/A 

HAS AN EIA BEEN 
COMPLETED? 
N/A 

Agenda Item 5

Page 12



 
 
1.       INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
 
1.1 This report presents the Council’s Annual Treasury Report for 2011/12 in 

accordance with the Council’s treasury management practices.  It is a 
regulatory requirement for this outturn report to be presented to the Cabinet 
by 30 September each year. 

 
1.2 There are two aspects of Treasury performance – debt management and 

cash investments.  Debt management relates to the Council’s borrowing and 
cash investments to the investment of surplus cash balances.  This report 
covers: 

 
• The treasury position as at 31March 2012 
• The UK economy and interest rates 
• Investment strategy and outturn for 2011/12 
• The borrowing strategy and outturn for 2011/12 
• Compliance with treasury limits and prudential indicators 
 

1.3 The borrowing amounts outstanding and cash investment for the relevant 
periods are as follows: 

 
Table 1 – Balances 
 31/03/12 31/03/11 31/03/10 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Total borrowing 262,166 475,520 475,520 
Total  cash balances 109,300          70,000 137,000 
 

 
2.   TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2012 

         
 2.1     Investments 
           The table below provides a breakdown of the cash deposits, together with 

comparisons from the previous year. 
  

  Table 2 – Investments 
Investment Type 31 March 2012 31 March 2011 
 £000’s £000’s 
Call Account 18,800 30,000 
Term Deposits 69,500 10,400 
Money Market Funds 21,000 30,000 
Total  109,300 70,400 

 
2.2     The Council had invested in four money markets funds during 2011-12 Prime 

Rate, Goldman Sachs, Insight and Blackrock producing returns ranging from 
0.55 to 0.96%, all are AAA rated. 

 
2.3 The term deposits ranged from overnight to 1 year. The weighted average 

interest rate of return on the investments over the year was 1.18%. 
 
 

Page 13



 
3. BORROWING 

 
3.1     Treasury Borrowing 
  
 No new borrowing was undertaken during the year.  PWLB debt maturing 

during the year, which was not refinanced, totalled £16 million, with an 
average nominal interest rate of 9.84%.  This resulted in a reduction in the 
average PWLB borrowing rate from 5.70% to 5.61%.  

 
3.2    An analysis of movements on loans during the period is shown below: 
 
 Table 3 – Movement on loans 

 Balance 
31.03.11 
£000s 

Loans/Invs 
Raised 
£000s 

Loans/Invs 
Repaid 
£000s 

Balance 
31.03.12 
£000s 

PWLB  
 

475,520 0 (16,000) 
 

 
PWLB  
HRA 
settlement      

  (197,354)  

Total debt 
 

475,520 
 

 0 
 

(213,354) 
 

262,166 
 
        
 

    Table 4 – Outstanding Debt 
 31 March 

2011 
 31 March 

2012 
 

 Principal Average 
Rate 

Principal Average 
Rate 

 £000’s  £000’s  
PWLB General 
Fund 

 60,993    44,785   
PWLB HRA 414,527  217,381  
Total  475,520 5.70% 262,166 5.61% 

 
 
3.3     The implementation of housing finance reform at the end of the year 

abolished the housing subsidy system financed by central government and 
consequently all housing debt has been reallocated nationally between 
housing authorities.  The result of this reallocation is that this Council 
received, at the end of the year, a repayment of debt by the Department of 
Communities and Local Government of £197.35 million (which resulted in a 
corresponding decrease in its HRA CFR). The CLG has also paid the 
premium (breakage costs) of £53.99 million.   

     
  
        

Page 14



            Table 5 – Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 31 March 2011 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 2012 
Budget 
£’000 

31 March 2012 
Actual 
£’000 

CFR General 
Fund  

121,768 111,679    99,684 
CFR HRA  414,527 217,427   217,381 
Total CFR 536,295 329,106 317,065 

 
3.4     The CFR represents the underlying borrowing need of the HRA and General 

Fund. The reason why actual borrowing is lower than the CFR is because 
the Council has effectively borrowed from its internal resources.   

 
 

4.      THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES  
4.1  Sovereign debt crisis. 2011-12 was the year when financial markets were 

apprehensive, fearful of the potential of another Lehman’s type financial crisis, 
prompted by a precipitous Greek Government debt default.  At almost the last 
hour, the European Central Bank (ECB) calmed market concerns of a liquidity 
crisis among European Union (EU) banks by making available two huge three 
year credit lines, totalling close to €1 trillion at 1%.  This also provided a major 
incentive for those same banks to then use this new liquidity to buy EU 
sovereign debt yielding considerably more than 1%.   

4.2  A secondary benefit of this initiative was the bringing down of sovereign debt  
yields, for the likes of Italy and Spain, below unsustainable levels.  The final 
aspects in the calming of the EU sovereign debt crisis were two eleventh hour 
agreements: one by the Greek Government of another major austerity 
package and the second, by private creditors, of a “haircut” (discount) on the 
value of Greek debt that they held, resulting in a major reduction in the total 
outstanding level of Greek debt.  These agreements were a prerequisite for a 
second EU / IMF bailout package for Greece which was signed off in March.   

4.3   Despite this second bailout, major concerns remain that these measures were 
merely a postponement of the debt crisis, rather than a solution, as they did 
not address the problem of low growth and loss of competitiveness in not only 
Greece but also in other EU countries with major debt imbalances.  These 
problems will, in turn, also affect the financial strength of many already 
weakened EU banks during the expected economic downturn in the EU.  
There are also major questions as to whether the new Greek Government will 
be able to deliver on its promises of cuts in expenditure and increasing tax 
collection rates, given the hostility of much of the population.   

4.4 The UK coalition Government maintained its tight fiscal policy stance against a 
background of warnings from two credit rating agencies that the UK could lose 
its AAA credit rating. Key to retaining this rating will be a return to strong 
economic growth in order to reduce the national debt burden to a sustainable 
level, within the austerity plan timeframe.  The USA and France lost their AAA 
ratings from one rating agency during the year. 

Page 15



4.5     UK growth proved mixed over the year. In quarter 2, GDP growth was zero, 
from the major western central banks: the US economy was flat but then 
quarter 3 surprised with a return to robust growth of 0.6% q/q before moving 
back into negative territory (-0.3%) in quarter 4.  The year finished with 
prospects for the UK economy being decidedly downbeat due to a return to 
negative growth in the EU in quarter 4, our largest trading partner, and a sharp 
increase in world oil prices caused by Middle East concerns.  However, there 
was also a return of some economic optimism for growth outside the EU and a 
third dose of quantitative easing to boost growth. 

4.6    UK CPI inflation started the year at 4.5% and peaked at 5.2% in September.  
The fall out of the January 2011 VAT increase from the annual CPI figure in 
January 2012 helped to bring inflation down to 3.6%, finishing at 3.5% in 
March. Inflation is forecast to be on a downward trend to below 2% over the 
next year.   

4.7  The Monetary Policy Committee agreed an increase in quantitative easing 
(QE) of £75bn in October on concerns of a downturn in growth and a forecast 
for inflation to fall below the 2% target. QE was targeted at further gilt 
purchases.  The MPC then agreed another round of £50bn of QE in February   
2012 to counter the negative impact of the EU debt and growth crisis on the     
UK.  

4.8    Gilt yields fell with the Bank Rate unchanged at 0.5% throughout the year. 
Expectations of when the first increase would occur were steadily pushed 
back until the second half of 2013 at the earliest.  Deposit rates picked up in 
the second half of the year as competition for cash increased among banks.   

4.9    Risk premiums were also a constant factor in raising money market deposit 
rates for periods longer than 1 month.  Widespread and multiple downgrades 
of the credit ratings of many banks and sovereigns, continued Euro zone 
concerns, and the significant funding issues still faced by many financial 
institutions, meant that investors remained cautious of longer-term 
commitment.  

 
5.      INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND OUTTURN FOR 2011/12 
 
5.1   The investment strategy for 2011/12 was to place cash investments with 

certain institutions as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy, to focus 
on the security and liquidity of the investments rather than to seek yield.  
Where security and liquidity criteria could be satisfied, investments would then 
be placed taking yield into account. 

 
5.2 The investments outstanding at 31st March 2012 amounted to £109.3 million: 

£18.8 million was invested in NatWest Call Account, £21 million invested in 3 
money Market Funds, £10 million with a Local Authority and £59.5 million 
invested in short term deposits. 

 
 

 

Page 16



Table 3 – Investment Portfolio as at 31st March 2012 
Deposit Counterparty £’000 
Call Account  NatWest 18,800 
Money Market Funds Goldman Sachs   1,000 

Insight 10,000 
Primerate 10,000 

Term Deposits DMADF   4,500 
LloydsTSB 35,000 
NatWest 15,000 
Birmingham City Council 10,000 
Barclays Bank   5,000 

 
 
5.3 Interest earnings for 2011/12 were £1.20 million compared to £1.19 million 

for  2010/11.  
 
5.4      An analysis of movements on investments during 2011/12 is shown below. 
 
 Table 6 – Movement on Investments 
 

  Balance Loans/Invs Loans/Invs Balance 
31.03.11 Raised Repaid 31.03.12 
£000s £000s £000s £000s 

      
     
Investments  70,400 1,021,600 (982,700)    109,300 
 
 
 

6. BORROWING STRATEGY AND OUTTURN 2011/12 
 
6.1 The treasury strategy for 2011-12, approved by the Council on 28 February 

2011, was based on the expectation that base rate, whilst remaining low, 
would rise gradually from the fourth quarter of 2011 with similar gradual rises 
in medium and longer term fixed interest rates over 2011-12.  Continued 
uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis led to a continuation 
of a cautious approach for investments with low counterparty risk the main 
consideration, resulting in relatively low returns compared to borrowing rates. 

 
6.2 Due to the level of cash balances held by the Council of £70.4 million at 31st 

March 2011, it was anticipated that there would not be any need to borrow 
during 2011/12. 

 
6.3      An analysis of the Council’s long term (PWLB) borrowings by maturity (i.e.    

date of repayment) is as follows:  
 
 
 
  

Page 17



          Table 7 – PWLB Debt by maturity 
      31 March     31 March 
PWLB    2011            2012 
      £000s           £000s 
Up to One year           16,000              100 
One to two years  175 11,556 
Between two and five years        52,881       18,614 
Between five and ten years  70,400 40,164 
More than ten years  336,064 191,732 
Total  475,520 262,166 

 
 
7. COMPLIANCE WITH TREASURY LIMITS AND PRUDENTIAL 

INDICATORS 
 
           During the financial year the Council operated within its treasury limits and 

Prudential Indicators as set out in the Council’s Treasury Strategy Report.  
 
  Table 8 – Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary 11/12 

External debt 
indicator 

Approved limit 
(£m) 

Actual 
borrowing 

Days exceeded 

Authorised limit1 364   
Operational 
boundary2 

303 262 None 

  
 

Table 9 – Maturity Structure of Borrowing  
Maturity structure of 
borrowing 

Lower Limits 
(%) 

Upper Limits 
(%) 

Actual at 31st 
March 2012 (%) 

Under 12 months 0 15 0.04 
1-2 years 0 15 4.41 
2-5 years 0 60 9.80 
5-10 years 0 75 12.62 
10 years and over 0 100 73.13 

 
 Table 10 – Limits on interest rate exposure 

Upper limits on interest 
rate exposure 

Approved 
maximum limit 

Actuals as at 31st 
March 2012 

Debt   
Fixed interest rate exposures 330,000 262,166 
Variable interest rate 
exposures 

  66,000                        0 
 
                                            
         1 Authorised limit for external debt is the limit above which external debt must not go without changing Council Policy 
         2 Operational boundary for external debt is the limit against which external debt will be constantly monitored. 

Page 18



 
 
8.        COMMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 

CORPORATE  GOVERNANCE 
 
8.1 These are contained within this report. 
 
 
9.       COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR FOR LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES 
 
9.1 There are no direct legal implications for the purpose of this report. 
 
 
10.      RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
           To note the borrowing and investment activity for the period 1 April  
           2011 to 31March 2012. 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 
No. 
 

 
Brief Description of 

Background 
Papers 

 
Name/Ext.  of holder of 

file/copy 
 

 
Department/Location 

 
1. 
 
 

Loans and Investments 
Ledger 

Rosie Watson 
Ext:  2563 

Westminster City Hall, 
Treasury and Pensions 
Team 
16th Floor,  

 
2. 
 

CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of 
Practice  
 

Rosie Watson 
Ext: 2563 

Westminster City Hall, 
Treasury and Pensions 
Team 
16th Floor, 

 
 

Page 19



 

Page 1 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

1

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

3 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 

 

 

LEADER 
Councillor Nicholas 
Botterill 
 
 

EARLS COURT REDEVELOPMENT AND 
STATUTORY AND WIDER CONSULTATION 

 
This report sets out the structure of the  
Conditional Land Sale Agreement (CLSA), an 
agreement which would grant an option to the  
Capital and Counties Properties plc group of 
Companies (Capco) to include Council owned 
land including the West Kensington and Gibbs 
Green Estates (the Estates) in a comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme.  
 
The report also includes an analysis of the 
statutory and wider consultation on the Council’s 
proposal to enter into the CLSA with Capco.  
 

Wards:  
North End 
Fulham 
Broadway 
 
 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
Executive Director of 
Housing and 
Regeneration 
DLDS 
EDFCG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations: 
 
1.  That the Cabinet note and consider the 
Analysis of Consultation Responses 
(Appendix 5) regarding the recent 
statutory and wider consultation.   

 
2.  That the Cabinet note and consider the 
Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix 
12) prepared in respect of the proposed 
decisions which are the subject of this 
report. 

 
3.  In light of the Analysis of Consultation 
Responses and the Equalities Impact 
Assessment and having regard to the 
regeneration benefits summarised in this 
report, that the Cabinet should agree that 
it is willing to  enter into a Conditional 
Land Sale Agreement (CLSA) and relevant 
associated documents as set out in 
paragraph 6.12 of this report, with EC 
Properties LP, part of the Capital and 
Counties Properties plc group of 
companies (referred to as Capco within 

 

HAS AN EIA BEEN 
COMPLETED? 
YES 
 

HAS THE REPORT 
CONTENT BEEN 
RISK ASSESSED? 
YES  

Agenda Item 6

Page 20



 

Page 2 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

2

the report) to include  the West 
Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates (the 
Estates) in the proposed comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme.  
 

4. That approval is given to include the 
Tenant and Leaseholder/Freeholder 
Assurances within the agreed CLSA. 

 
5. That the Council approve the disposal to 
EC Properties LP (Capco) of land formerly 
occupied by Gibbs Green School within 
the overall CLSA on terms set out in this 
report, with the disposal proceeds to be 
applied to a replacement educational 
facility. 

 
6. To approve the disposal to EC Properties 
LP  (Capco) of land at 11 Farm Lane within 
the overall CLSA, as set out in the report.  

 
7. To authorise the Executive Director of 
Housing and Regeneration to prepare an 
application for the Secretary of State’s 
consent for the necessary disposal of 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) land, for 
submission to Full Council and appoint  
supporting advisors necessary to help 
secure such consent.   

 
8. To give delegated authority to the 
Executive Director of Housing and 
Regeneration in consultation with the 
Executive Director of Finance and 
Corporate Governance to purchase 
leasehold and freehold interests situated 
on the land (Estates), included within the 
CLSA, by agreement up to a cumulative 
value of £15m funded from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Fund and appoint  
advisors to support these acquisitions. 

 
9. To approve the 4 year budget as set out in 
section 9 funded from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Fund and provide the 
Executive Director of Housing and 
Regeneration with delegated approval to 
finalise the allocation of resources within 
this budget envelope. 

 

Page 21



 

Page 3 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

3

10. That capital receipts arising from the 
CLSA are used to cover costs of disposal 
and those incurred in delivering the 
project and that the portion received in 
respect of land and properties currently 
held within the Housing Revenue Account 
is reinvested (so far as lawfully possible) 
in housing and regeneration, including:  

 
• To fund capital expenditure on area-

based improvements that help the 
Council achieve its corporate 
objectives; 

• To develop or acquire new affordable 
housing to meet identified housing 
needs, including where appropriate by 
the extension of properties; 

• To fund tenant incentive initiatives 
(qualifying as capital expenditure) that 
free up council housing which is in 
demand for those in housing need 
(e.g. for larger family accommodation); 

• Subject to the Council ensuring that 
its statutory housing responsibilities 
to meet housing needs are performed, 
to use receipts to reduce HRA or 
General Fund debt where this is 
identified as a priority, and where 
repayment of the debt is of net 
financial benefit to the Council’s HRA 
or General Fund; 

• To invest in capital expenditure on 
planned maintenance of the Council’s 
current housing stock until this is fully 
funded by the HRA revenue account.    

 
11. To authorise the Executive Director of 

Housing and Regeneration to consult on 
the draft Earl’s Court Local Lettings Plan 
and Re-housing policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

Page 4 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

4

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The proposed development of the Earls Court Exhibition Centre and 

Lillie Bridge Depot presents an opportunity for the Council to include 
the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates within the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme, as identified in Appendix 1. 

 
1.2      The Estates could be included through a CLSA between the Council 

and EC properties LP (referred throughout the report as Capco). 
Broadly speaking, land would be transferred to Capco in phases, but 
only when new replacement homes are built in advance, (meeting 
residents’ needs), to replace the current 760 properties on the Estates. 
The Council would receive a 995 year leasehold, (a virtual freehold), in 
respect of the replacement homes. 

 
1.3       The Cabinet considered and endorsed a report on 23rd April 2012, 

which outlined the provisional terms negotiated for the CLSA. Officers 
confirmed that those provisional terms could be recommended for 
acceptance, providing no new material issues arose in the final phase 
of the detailed negotiations.  Officers have now concluded detailed 
negotiations and confirm that the terms of the CLSA remain ones which 
can be recommended.         

 
1.4      This report:  
 

• Explains the vision, policy context and background to the possible 
comprehensive redevelopment of the Earls Court area.  

• Reviews the timetabling of the scheme and the planning process. 
• Summarises the history of discussions and engagement with estate 

residents. 
• Analyses the consultation responses received during  the recent 

Section 105, Housing Act 1985 and wider consultation  (building on 
the interim findings included within the 23rd April 2012 report).  

• Outlines the terms of the CLSA 
• Explains officers’ reasons for recommending that the Council 

should enter into the CLSA with Capco. 
 
 
 
 
 
2.0     VISION AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1 Vision 
 
2.1.1 Officers recognise that any major regeneration scheme of this sort 

involves uncertainty, anxiety and disruption for current occupiers. 
Residents in North Fulham and West Kensington have a strong sense 

Page 23



 

Page 5 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

5

of community and pride in their neighbourhood. Current social housing 
on the Estates adequately meets the needs of most residents. 

 
2.1.2 Officers believe that the redevelopment of the Earls Court area 

provides a chance to build on these solid foundations by attracting a 
substantial amount of new investment to the neighbourhood and the 
Borough more generally. 

 
2.1.3 That investment has the potential to increase and improve housing 

provision (including affordable housing) and to give rise to new 
shopping, leisure, educational and healthcare facilities. If planned 
properly, the redevelopment would create a better neighbourhood 
environment, and would provide local residents with new open spaces 
and parkland. It could bring many new job and training opportunities to 
help ensure that everybody living in the area has the chance to get on 
in life. It could ensure that the neighbourhoods around Earls Court are 
better connected so that people feel part of a shared community. 
Overall, the redevelopment provides a once-in-a-generation 
opportunity for residents to benefit from new housing and facilities, and 
for housing and employment growth. 

 
2.1.4 The Council is committed to delivering a Borough of Opportunity and 

wants all residents in the Borough to have the same opportunities: the 
same opportunity to send their child to a good school, to live in a safe 
and pleasant neighbourhood with access to good quality healthcare 
and leisure facilities; the same opportunity to get on in life by taking up 
new or better job and training opportunities. The redevelopment offers 
a vital chance to advance these aims. 
 

2.2 Policy Context 
 
2.2.1 The Mayor of London’s London Plan sets out the planning 

requirements for an integrated economic, environmental, transport and 
social framework. The London Plan has 33 ‘Opportunity Areas’ of 
which three are in the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham.  
Along with White City and Old Oak, the Earls Court West Kensington 
Opportunity Area is one of these Opportunity Areas. As such, it 
represents a key opportunity for London to accommodate new housing, 
commercial and other development. 

 
2.2.2 The Council’s vision for the Earls Court West Kensington Opportunity 

Area to regenerate the local economy and provide new housing is 
identified in the Council’s Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy. The Earls Court West Kensington Opportunity Area is one of 
the Council’s five key regeneration opportunity areas for growth in the 
Borough. The Council have also identified the Earls Court West 
Kensington Opportunity Area as a key theme within its Corporate Plan 
(October 2009) to regenerate the Borough. 

 

Page 24



 

Page 6 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

6

2.2.3 In addition, the scheme is identified in the Council’s Borough 
Investment Plan (December 2011) and Draft Housing Strategy (May 
2012). The Council’s comprehensive approach to regeneration is 
aimed at tackling the physical fabric of neighbourhoods, making them 
better places to live and work; and addressing high levels of 
deprivation.  

 
3.0 BACKGROUND AND HISTORY 
 
3.1 The proposed comprehensive redevelopment scheme covers an area 

of approximately 73 acres1  within only three principal land-holdings 
(shown at Appendix 1). The principal landowners are: 

 
• Capco, leaseholders of Earls Court 1 and 2 and freehold owners of 

the Seagrave Road car park site. 
• Transport for London (TfL), freeholder of the Lillie Bridge Depot and 

Earls Court 1 and 2.  
• The Council, freehold owners of the West Kensington and Gibbs 

Green Housing Estates, including the site of the former Gibbs Green 
School.  
 

3.2 The proposed comprehensive redevelopment scheme sits across the 
boundary of the Borough’s of Hammersmith and Fulham (LBHF) and 
Kensington and Chelsea (RBKC). 

 
3.3 Capco and TfL have been discussing the possibility of a redevelopment 

of their land holdings for some considerable time and the Council has 
the opportunity to sell its land to Capco creating a larger and more 
comprehensive development opportunity.  

 
3.4 The West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates 
 
3.4.1 The Estates occupy an area of approximately 21 acres along the 

western length of the Earls Court buildings and the Lillie Bridge Depot. 
The Estates comprise 760 homes, the two tenant halls, an empty 
nursery building, the former Gibbs Green School and highway at Mund 
Street. 

 
3.4.2 531 of the homes on the Estates are owned and rented by the Council 

and there are 171 properties owned by leaseholders/freeholders which 
were originally purchased from the Council under Right to Buy. There 
are also 58 social rented Housing Association (HA), properties on the 
estate, which have been developed piecemeal over the past 30 years, 
with the sites sold by the Council to the  three HAs on long leases. 
These three HAs are Family Mosaic HA, London and Quadrant HA and 
Shepherds Bush HA. 

 

                                                 
1 Includes Seagrave Road Car Park Site and excluding Farm Lane 

Page 25



 

Page 7 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

7

3.4.3 A breakdown of the tenure and property type of the residential 
properties on the Estates can be found in table 1 below:  

 
Table 1 – Tenure and property type table as at 23rd April 2012 
 

  1 Bed 
Flat 

1 Bed 
House 

2 Bed 
Flat 

2 Bed 
House 

3 Bed 
Flat 

3 Bed 
House 

4 Bed 
Flat 

4 Bed 
House TOTAL 

Council 163 0 212 0 46 75 8 27 531 
Leasehold/
Freehold 21 0 85 0 24 29 2 10 171 
Housing 
Association 4 3 6 13 0 25 0 7 58 
Total 188 3 303 13 70 128 10 45 760 
 
 
3.4.4 The Estates are now between 40 and 50 years old and lie within the 

North Fulham area. In 2010, the area fell within the 20% most deprived 
areas in England, as defined by the Index of Multiple Deprivation.  

 
Table 2 – Table of Deprivation 
  
Deprivation indicator The 

Estates 
Borough 
Average 

% of working age population on Jobs Seekers 
Allowance, Income Support, Incapacity Benefit OR 
Employment and Support Allowance 

24.9 13.3 

% of all tenants (Council and private) on Housing 
Benefit 

63.2 27.5 
Average household income of a household with a 
dependent child 

£16,905 £22,105 
Rate of ASB per 100 residents 6.6 3.5 
% of tenants classified as overcrowded (based on 
Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit claimants only) 

14.9 12.8 
 
 
3.5 Transport for London and Network Rail land ownerships 
 
3.5.1 Officers understand that, in order to deliver the comprehensive 

redevelopment scheme, Capco have to reach agreement with TfL for 
the treatment of their land ownerships and or TFL agree to bring 
forward their sites for redevelopment in line with the masterplan. In 
respect of Capco reaching agreement with TfL the Council believe that 
the following points will need to be addressed: 

 
• Capco needs to agree a renegotiation of the term of their 

existing leases from TfL on Earls Court 1 and 2, identified 
in Appendix 1 in order to make the land capable of 
redevelopment.   

• The Lillie Bridge depot currently contains an engineering 
depot and a train stabling facility. The engineering depot 

Page 26



 

Page 8 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

8

will need to be re-located to enable the development to 
proceed. The train stabling facility could remain but would 
require a design solution. 

• Officers understand that negotiations are ongoing between 
Capco and TfL.  

 
3.5.2 It would also be desirable for Capco to reach agreement with 

Network Rail for developing over the West London Railway Line. 
Officers understand that negotiations are also ongoing in this 
regard.  

 
3.6 The Planning and Masterplanning processes 
 
3.6.1 London Plan and Core Strategy 
 
3.6.1.1 The potential comprehensive development area including the 

Earls Court buildings, Lillie Bridge Depot, the Estates and 
Seagrave Road car park, was identified as an Opportunity Area 
in the London Mayor’s Replacement London Plan in 2009. The 
London Plan, including the Opportunity Area, was adopted by 
the Mayor early 2012.  

 
3.6.1.2 As has been noted, the Council’s Core Strategy also recognises 

the development site and includes policies encouraging its 
comprehensive development.  The Core Strategy was adopted 
in October 2011.  

 
3.6.2 Supplementary Planning Document 
 
3.6.2.1 The Council, RBKC and the Greater London Authority 

commenced work on a Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) in September 2010 for the Opportunity Area. The purpose 
of the SPD is to explore development options for the site and 
produce a framework for acceptable development interpreting 
existing planning policy. Consultation on the SPD has been  
undertaken  and the SPD was adopted by the Council on 19th 
March 2012, by RBKC  on 22nd March 2012 and is with the GLA 
currently for consideration. 

 
3.6.2.2 Capco have provided the Council with an indemnity against any 

claims for statutory blight, which might arise from the adoption of 
the SPD. 

 
3.6.2.3 On or about 19th June 2012, the Council received an application 

for permission to apply for judicial review of the decision to 
adopt the SPD, brought by the tenants and residents’ 
associations of the two Estates (the TRAs).  This is being 
opposed and is the subject of privileged confidential legal 
advice; the judicial review is therefore not discussed further 
here. 

Page 27



 

Page 9 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

9

 
3.6.3 Masterplan and Planning Applications 
 
3.6.3.1 Capco employed Terry Farrell & Partners to prepare a 

masterplan for the comprehensive development site, including 
the Estates, in June 2010. The masterplan proposal is for a 
residential mixed-use scheme of 10.1m square feet above 
ground (excluding the Seagrave Road site). The masterplan is 
centred on the concept of building four new ‘villages’ and a new 
high street linking North End Road and Earls Court tube station.  

   
3.6.3.2 The masterplan proposes approximately 7,5832 new homes 

including 760 replacement homes and an estimated further 740 
additional affordable homes, new offices and commercial 
activities, new education and health facilities including a new 
primary school, new play and recreational facilities, (including a 
new linear park) and a new high street with shops, cultural and 
community activities.  

 
3.6.3.3 Capco submitted three planning applications in June 2011, 

based on the Farrell masterplan.  
 

• Two outline applications were submitted: one to RBKC 
(Application 1) and one to the Council (Application 2) for 
the main development site, excluding the Seagrave Road 
site.  

• A detailed planning application was also submitted to the 
Council for the Seagrave Road car park site. That 
application  was recommended for approval by PAC on 
16th February 2012, subject to finalising Section 106 
provision and there being no contrary direction from the 
Mayor of London.  The Section 106 agreement was 
completed on 30th March 2012 and planning permission 
issued on the same day. The judicial review period for 
this decision has now expired.  

• It is proposed that Application 2 will be taken to LBHF’s 
Planning Committee on 12th September and Application 1 
will be taken to RBKC’s Planning Committee in the near 
future. 

 
  
4. CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS   
 
4.1 Since early 2009 the Council, Capco and local residents have been 

considering the possible inclusion of the Estates within the wider 
comprehensive development. This has included assessing the benefits 
that could be created from such inclusion, the safeguards that would 

                                                 
2 The current planning application is for 5,845 homes in LBHF and 930 homes in RBKC,( i.e. 6,775 homes in total), 
plus separate planning application for 808 homes in Seagrave road car park (i.e. 7583) 

Page 28



 

Page 10 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

10

need to be secured for residents and the terms under which the 
Council’s land and properties could be included.  

    
4.2 Collaboration Agreement 
 
4.2.1 In October 2009, the Council signed a Collaboration Agreement with 

Capco and TfL to provide a framework, within which the three parties 
could explore the full potential of the scheme and negotiate terms, 
under which land agreements might be entered into. TfL is of the view 
that the Collaboration Agreement expired in December 2011. Although 
the Council accepts that the Agreement has expired, it has not needed 
to determine the precise date of expiry, as discussions are on-going 
between the parties through the Landowners Board. 

 
4.3 Exclusivity Agreement 
 
4.3.1 In July 2011, the Council signed an Exclusivity Agreement with Capco. 

Capco paid £15m to the Council in return for the right to negotiate 
exclusively with the Council, to ascertain whether final terms of a CLSA 
could be concluded. £5m of this is non-refundable and £10m is 
refundable if the Council does not enter into the CLSA3. The original 
term of the agreement was for one year from 29th July 2011 and in view 
of the progress made with negotiations, the parties have entered into 
an agreement to extend this until the end of January 2013. 

      
4.4 Estate Regeneration Options Analysis   
 
4.4.1 In order to explore fully the rationale for the redevelopment of the 

Estates and understand whether inclusion of the Estates offers the 
optimum way forward, the Council instructed Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) 
and Amion Consulting to prepare an options appraisal (the Economic 
Appraisal). 

 
4.4.3  The Economic Appraisal (attached at Appendix 2) considered 4 options 

for the Estates. These are set out in the table below 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 3 – Options explored in the Economic Appraisal  
 
Option Detail 
Option 1 Maintain the Estates as they are. This could include a 

transfer to a housing association, or a resident-
                                                 
3 If the Council does enter into the CLSA, this money will also be refundable if the Council does not comply with it’s 
obligations under this agreement. 

Page 29



 

Page 11 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

11

controlled private registered provider.  
Option 2 Continue to maintain the Estates and develop plots of 

land within the Estates. 
Option 3 Redevelopment of the Estates only (not as part of the 

comprehensive redevelopment plans). The existing 
properties on the estate would be demolished 
and replaced with new housing and other supporting 
uses. 

Option 4 Inclusion of the Estates within the Earls Court 
redevelopment scheme. 

 
4.4.4 The Economic Appraisal concludes that the inclusion of the Estates 

within the wider redevelopment scheme is the best option in terms of 
benefits for residents of the Estates and for the wider area, and that it 
offers the prospect of bringing, among other things, the following 
benefits to the area:   

 
• 7,583 new homes 
• 36,033 construction jobs4 
• 9,528 permanent jobs5 
• £99.5m per annum of additional local expenditure    

 
4.4.5 On 7th November 2011 the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet 

Member for Housing made the decision to accept provisionally and 
endorse the conclusions contained within the Economic Appraisal 
subject to the outcome of further consultation. 

 
4.4.6  Members should read the Economic Appraisal in full.  
 
4.4.7 In its analysis, the Economic Appraisal makes the assumption that the 

comprehensive redevelopment scheme would be realised in full. This 
assumption is considered in more detail in section 6.7.2. below. 

 
4.5.  Housing Stock Transfer 
 
4.5.1 On 8th December 2009, the TRAs served notice on the Council 

proposing that the Estates be sold to a resident-controlled private 
registered provider. On the same date, the TRAs wrote to the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government inviting him 
to make regulations for this purpose under section 34A of the Housing 
Act 1985. The Council met with the TRAs in January 2010 to discuss 
their proposal. (As yet, no regulations have been made under section 
34A.) 
 

4.5.2 The Council decided that it could not support the TRAs’ proposal at 
that time. The Council wrote to the TRAs to explain this on 11th January 
2010. The Council wrote in similar terms to the Secretary of State. In 
the letters the proposed stock transfer was described as ‘premature’. 

                                                 
4 Defined as person years of construction employment in Appendix 2 
5 Defined as new gross direct jobs in Appendix 2 

Page 30



 

Page 12 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

12

This was because the ‘potential opportunity’ to which the 
redevelopment scheme gave rise had not been fully explored and 
evaluated by the Council. The Council took the view that it could not 
decide to support the disposal of the Estates to a resident-controlled 
private registered provider without first obtaining a proper 
understanding of the potential benefits and advantages of the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme.    

 
4.5.3  The TRAs have since established West Kensington & Gibbs Green 

Community Homes (WKGGCH) and are lobbying for the ownership of 
the Estates to be transferred to this community organisation.  

 
 
4.6 Past Consultation with Residents 
 
4.6.1 Over the past three years the Council has been engaging and 

consulting with residents of the Estates through numerous newsletters, 
drop-in sessions, surgeries and exhibitions about the potential inclusion 
of the Estates within the redevelopment scheme.  

 
4.6.2 Consultation and discussion have centred around the concerns raised 

by residents about the impact of the proposed redevelopment scheme 
on them. These concerns have been addressed through the 
development of Tenant and Leaseholder / Freeholder guarantees. 
These guarantees are included within the proposed  CLSA and are 
intended to provide clarification and assurances for local residents.  

 
4.6.3 The West Kensington and Gibbs Green Steering Group was set up in 

order to negotiate with the Council and Capco and to secure effective 
safeguards and benefits for residents. The Council has funded 
independent legal advice for this group over the past two years to 
ensure that residents had proper representation and advice during the 
consultation process and were able to discuss issues effectively.  

 
4.6.4 A chronology of the consultation process (up until the recent 

consultation addressed immediately below) is attached at Appendix 3.  
 
4.6.5 During this time there have also been separate consultations by the 

Local Planning Authority with residents about the proposed 
development.    

 
5.0 SECTION 105 AND WIDER CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 From 6th January 2012 to 12th March 2012, the Council undertook a 

formal consultation with residents on whether the Estates should be 
included in the proposed comprehensive redevelopment scheme. This 
formal consultation also satisfied the requirements of section 105 of the 
Housing Act 1985 in relation to the secure tenants on the Estates. 

 

Page 31



 

Page 13 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

13

5.2 A total of approximately 30,000 consultation packs were distributed to 
the Estates and across the wider area (defined by Hammersmith Road 
to the North, Fulham Palace Road, New Kings Road to the South and 
Warwick Road and Finborough Road to the East). The consultation 
pack is included at Appendix 4.  

 
5.3 A progress report on the consultation and on the responses received 

was considered by Cabinet on 23rd April 2012. Officers have now 
completed a full analysis of the consultation responses, together with 
comments received after the 23rd April Cabinet. Officers have also 
commented on and responded to concerns raised where appropriate. 
The analysis is not summarised here. Rather, Members are directed 
to Appendix 5, which Members should read in full.    

 
5.4 The housing stock transfer option 
 
5.4.1 During the consultation on the future of the Estates, the TRAs and 

WKGGCH submitted their ‘vision’ for a housing stock transfer (first 
published on 8th December 2009), together with representations on the 
alleged advantages of this option as compared with the Council’s 
proposal (see Section 5 of TRAs’ response of 12 March 2012, attached 
as Annex 5 to Appendix 5, the Analysis of Consultation Responses). 

 
5.4.2  In addition, 86% of those who objected to the Council’s proposal in the 

recent consultation (575 individual consultees) supported a transfer of 
the housing stock to WKGGH. 

 
5.4.3   Officers support some of the elements of the ‘vision’ and are in general 

supportive of the localism principles that underpin stock transfers. 
However, despite the support for a housing stock transfer, officers 
believe that the inclusion of the Estates in the redevelopment scheme 
is the better option overall. There are two principal reasons for this. 
First, officers consider that a number of the claims made in the 
WKGGCH ‘vision’ are unrealistic. Secondly, and more importantly, the 
Stock Transfer Option would prevent the Estates from being included in 
the redevelopment scheme, and officers consider that this would in turn 
significantly reduce the benefits that the redevelopment scheme would 
be likely to deliver. These two reasons are addressed in more detail 
below. 

 
5.4.4   Overall, officers believes that the issue of a stock transfer to a body 

such as WKGGCH should be a consideration for the future, once the 
comprehensive redevelopment has been undertaken and the 
regeneration benefits realised. In particular, if the Estates are included 
in the redevelopment scheme, the Council would receive 995-year 
head leases for the replacement homes. The Council could transfer 
this interest to a body such as a WKGGCH once all of the new homes 
had been provided, thus allowing residents and the local area to gain 
the benefits of the comprehensive redevelopment scheme whilst also 
enabling local resident-led ownership of homes in the long term.  

Page 32



 

Page 14 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

14

 
5.5     The WKGGCH ‘vision’ 
 
5.5.1     WKGGCH make strong statements within their ‘vision’ about what the 

stock transfer option ‘would’ achieve. There would be ‘an estate-
based management and maintenance service tailored to meet 
individual needs’ and staff ‘would be out on the streets and patrolling 
the corridors’ and ‘things would be dealt with straightaway’. In 
addition, it is claimed that over time ‘we would transform the corridors 
stairwells and outside spaces into safe and welcoming entrances; ... 
We would keep the concierge staff and give the big blocks on West 
Ken a facelift’ and that the TRAs / WKGGCH ‘would offer secure lift 
access for the blocks on Gibbs Green, using transparent lifts and 
shafts’.  

 
5.5.2     As against this, the only reference to funding is the statement that 

‘[t]here are ways of funding these and other estate-wide 
improvements that would avoid costs falling on leaseholders’. Officers 
do not agree. Officers consider that it would be very difficult to 
undertake such improvements without an increase to rents to service 
the necessary borrowing and/ or increases to service charges to 
tenants and leaseholders. 

 
5.5.3   The Council has determined that the cost to simply to maintain these  

properties to the Decent Homes Standard over the next 30 years is 
likely to be approximately £60m. Any additional physical improvements 
would incur significant additional costs. For example, the cost of the 
type of lift, promised for the Gibbs Green estate could be in the region 
of £450, 000- £460, 0006, and cladding the larger blocks on the West 
Kensington estate would have significant cost implications.  

 
5.6.4    In the past, housing stock transfers have typically been progressed by 

the local authority making an offer to the tenants and by the provision 
of a ‘dowry’. However, Officers understand that in the currently 
constrained public sector funding climate there is unlikely to be a 
‘dowry’ or other grant regime to support stock transfers where 
additional resources are required to support stock repair and 
improvement. Indeed it is worth noting that under the 2012 Housing 
Revenue Account Self Financing Determination the average debt per 
property across the Council was £19,988.  In broad terms applying 
this average debt per property figure to the 531 council secure 
tenancies on the estates produces an indicative debt figure of circa 
£10 million.  In the current economic climate, and with the current 
budgetary pressures that it is facing, it would not be feasible for the 
Council to provide the necessary funds and /or write off debt of this 

                                                 
6 This approximate costs range is taken from a feasibility study that was undertaken to understand the cost of 
installing a glass lift in a 5 story housing block on another estate in the Borough. Whilst the cost would of course be 
subject to all sorts of variables based upon the specific circumstances of the block this gives an indication of the cost 
range.  

Page 33



 

Page 15 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

15

size, which would be needed to allow for the WKGGCH vision to be 
realised. 

 
5.6.5    Further, Officers believe that to fund the costs of managing the 

Estates, WKGGCH would in all likelihood need to bring in an existing 
larger Registered Provider so as to allow economies of scale. This 
would in itself hinder the local element that WKGGCH is promoting in 
their ‘vision’. 

 
5.6.6    It is also stated in the ‘vision’ that WKGGCH ‘would sort out 

overcrowding by moving existing tenants to bigger homes and by 
housing their grown up children – before taking in new tenants. And 
we would provide better choice and help for moving off the estates.’ 

 
5.6.7    Again, officers believe that this would be very difficult to deliver. It is 

not clear whether residents in larger homes that are under-occupied 
would be forced to move to smaller properties to allow overcrowded 
families to move into their homes. If this is not the case, and if 
WKGGCH are assuming that overcrowding can be tackled as and 
when void properties become available, tackling the overcrowding on 
the Estates (currently, 16%) may take a long time.  

 
5.6.8    It is also premature for WKGGCH to state that they will be able to 

house the grown-up children of existing estate residents before taking 
in new tenants. This will depend on the ‘offer’ negotiated with the 
Council. The Council might well retain nomination rights and use void 
properties on the Estates to re-house priority residents on the 
Council’s Housing Register. Officers also consider that WKGGCH 
cannot realistically claim that it will be able to provide better ‘choice 
and help’ for residents who are wanting to move away from the 
Estates when they own no other housing stock. (WKGGCH might in 
principle partner with a larger existing Registered Provider which 
might facilitate this, but as already noted this would undermine the 
claimed local element in the ‘vision’).  

 
5.7       The benefits of comprehensive redevelopment  
 
5.7.1     If the Council pursued the Stock Transfer Option then the Estates 

would not be able to be included in the redevelopment scheme.  
 
5.7.2    This would mean that there would not be the provision of 760 

privately-funded replacement new homes, nor would the Borough 
obtain all the other benefits that would flow from the comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme. As regards the former, the lifecycle costs of 
maintaining new homes would be lower than that of the (current) 
aging homes on the Estates. 

 
5.7.3   On the assumption that the stock transfer did not give rise to any 

subsequent infill development on the Estates (which possibility is 
addressed below), and using the results of the Economic Appraisal, the 

Page 34



 

Page 16 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

16

differences between the stock transfer option and the Council’s 
proposal in terms of residential units, jobs, and employment floor space 
can be estimated as follows. 

 
Table 4 – Loss of Gross Benefits   

 Option 1   
Do minimum – either 
with or without Estate 

Stock Transfer 

Option 4 
Comprehensive 
redevelopment of 
Earl’s Court Area 

Difference – lost 
opportunity 

Gross direct residential units 2,868 7,583 -4,715 
Gross direct construction jobs* 20,642 36,033 -15,391 
Employment floor space (sq m) 30,063 201,397 -171,334 
Gross direct permanent employment 1,287 9,528 -8,241 

*Persons years of employment 
 
 

5.7.4  The Economic Appraisal estimates that, as compared with the option 1 
(do minimum –either with or without Estate Stock Transfer),Option 4 
(the comprehensive redevelopment scheme), would give rise to 
£99.5m additional local expenditure per annum (of which £40.9m would 
be retained in the local area). The overall net present value of a 
redevelopment without the Estates (Option 1) is estimated in the 
Economic Appraisal to be £20m, whilst the overall net present value of 
the comprehensive redevelopment scheme (Option 4) is estimated to 
be £3.8bn. 

 
5.7.5 The TRAs / WKGGCH argue in table 1 in Section 5 of their response 

that the Stock Transfer Option would lead to an increase in the supply of 
housing because there would be infill development. Even if there were 
infill development, this would not address the poor layout of the Estates. 
More significantly, officers consider that there would be few 
opportunities for infill development should the estates be transferred, 

 
5.7.6     Option 2 of the Estates Regeneration Economic Appraisal assessed the  

opportunities for in-fill development to create additional housing and it 
was believed that 341 new homes could be built. This however,  
included larger land parcels, such as Gibbs Green School, Farm Lane 
and Lillie Road, which would not be transferred if a housing stock 
transfer were to occur. 

 
5.7.7    Within Option 2, 9 smaller sites were identified, within the Estates 

boundary, as being capable of infill development. On the basis of 750 
habitable rooms per hectare, it was determined that 57 additional units 
could be provided across these 9 sites. These infill sites were  identified 
on the basis of their suitability for development by ‘walking’ the estate, 
liaison with Housing Authority and reference to the existing quality of the 
stock and likely planning constraints on change of use and 
intensification of land use. 

 

Page 35



 

Page 17 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

17

5.7.8    The appraisal work conducted by Jones Lang LaSalle has determined 
that income from land disposal (capital receipt) of these infill sites could 
achieve circa £4m of income. The small scale of these opportunities and 
their in-fill nature within the existing estate does, however, mean that 
maybe a limited opportunity market for these sites. Outside of the 
financial viability issues, the small scale of this intervention means that 
there will be limited added value to the environment within the estates 
for existing residents and considerably less than the comprehensive 
redevelopment - it could be argued that an infill approach will reduce the 
living environment in the estates via increased density and reduced 
access to open space.    

 
 

6. CONDITIONAL LAND SALE AGREEMENT (CLSA) 
 
6.1 If the Council’s land is to be included within the wider comprehensive 

redevelopment scheme then the proposal is that the terms regulating 
the arrangements between Capco and the Council would be set out in 
the CLSA. The CLSA will set out in detail the steps that need to be 
undertaken in order for the land to be transferred to Capco.  The 
Council would receive a 995 year head lease, a virtual freehold, in the 
properties provided as replacement homes.   

 
6.2 The terms of the CLSA have been agreed between officers, supported 

by expert professional advice. Legal advice has been obtained from  
SNR Denton (Dentons) and Counsel, commercial advice has been 
obtained from Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) and financial advice, best 
consideration and due diligence advice has been obtained from 
PriceWaterHouseCoopers. A summary of the CLSA can be found at 
Appendix 6. The core terms of the CLSA are detailed below.   

 
6.3 The Offer to Tenants and Leaseholders/Freeholders – Estate  
          Residents 
 
6.3.1 Re-provision of existing homes 
 
6.3.1.1 The impact and implications of the process on local residents will be 

regulated by the Tenant and Leaseholder / Freeholder Guarantees, 
which are within the terms of the CLSA.  It is proposed in the CLSA 
that all homes currently within the Estates will be re-provided to the 
Council, as part of any redevelopment scheme. This enables the 
Council to promise that existing residents of the Estates will be 
offered new accommodation within the new development.   

 
6.3.1.2 Furthermore, the Council, from the outset, has required that existing 

residents should not be moved away temporarily while new 
replacement homes are built and that they will only incur one move. 
Although the process will be disruptive for local residents, this 
condition will help to safeguard existing communities and minimise 
community break-up. Consequently, land phases can only be 

Page 36



 

Page 18 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

18

vacated and passed over to Capco, once new homes for residents 
in the affected phase have been re-provided elsewhere in the 
development area.   

 
6.3.1.3 The Seagrave Road Car Park site is important and the only realistic 

option in achieving the one move promise. It provides a site for the 
re-provision of approximately 200 existing estate properties, without 
the need for any demolition of existing homes. This will allow the 
remainder of the re-provision to take place – in phases - without 
residents having to move away to temporary accommodation. 

 
6.3.1.4 Re-provision in this manner is time-consuming and, given the scale 

of the project, the full re-provision of council properties is likely to 
take 10-15 years. 

 
6.3.1.5 All of the new homes will be allocated through the Earl’s Court/West 

Kensington Local Lettings Policy, which will be overseen by Director 
of Housing Options, Economic Development & Skills. The first draft 
of this policy is attached at Appendix 7 – Earl’s Court/West 
Kensington Local Lettings Plan interim statement. It is anticipated 
the Council will be consulting with residents  later in  the year on 
this first draft and the final re-housing policy will be brought back to 
Cabinet for approval following consultation.   

 
6.3.2  Benefits for Tenants 
 
6.3.2.1 The Guarantees within the CLSA for Tenants are as follows:  
 

• All secure tenants will remain secure council tenants and 
have the offer of a new home within the development, 
matched to their housing need.7 

• Under-occupying tenants will be offered a new home with 
one additional bedroom above their need.  

• Rents will continue to be set in line with other existing council 
rents.  

• A home loss payment of £4,700 per household will be made 
by the Council to all secure tenants who have been in their 
home for more than one year. This amount is set by the 
government. 

• There will be no need for temporary accommodation – 
tenants will have one move only to their new home.  

• New white goods, carpets and curtains will be provided in 
their new homes. 

• The Council will fund all reasonable costs of moving. 
• Tenants will have a dedicated re-housing Officer to help 

them through the process. 

                                                 
7 Please note If a residents need exceeds 5 bedrooms then other re-housing options will be considered.   

Page 37



 

Page 19 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

19

• An occupational therapist will be provided if requested and 
necessary identified adaptations will be undertaken to the 
new home. 

• Compensation will be offered for loss of a garden or private 
parking space, if the new home does not have these. 

• The Guarantees will be extended to existing Housing 
Association Assured Tenants, should they wish to become  

     Council tenants.  
 

6.3.2.2 Benefits for Leaseholders and Freeholders 
 
6.3.2.2.1   The Guarantees within the CLSA for Leaseholders /  
                  Freeholders are as follows:  
 

• Qualifying resident homeowners will be offered a new 
property in the development at a discount of 10%. Resident 
homeowners will be offered market value, plus 10%, (subject 
to a maximum of £47,000 set by statute) for their existing 
home. 

• If after receiving a discount resident homeowners still cannot 
afford to purchase a home in the new development then the 
Council will meet the difference and hold this outstanding 
equity, but charge no rent or interest.. Resident homeowners 
will not be expected to increase borrowing on their mortgage 
to afford a home in the new development.  

• Service charges for the new leasehold properties will be 
capped at their existing level for 5 years. Existing freeholders 
will have their service charge capped at £1,000 pa for the 
first five years.  

• Resident homeowners who wish to be bought out and leave 
the area will be offered the market value plus 10%, subject to 
a maximum of £47,000 (unless they move under the Early 
Purchase arrangement). 

• Homeowners will be able to choose the time when they wish 
to be bought out and move away up until the time when their 
property is required for development. 

• Reasonable costs of moving, valuation and legal advice will 
be funded by the Council. 

• Compensation will be provided for Decent Homes work 
which had been paid for and for which the full benefit had not 
been enjoyed by the time the property is required for 
development.  

• Owners who have a demonstrable need to move away 
before the purchase contracts are released (as per 6.5.2)  
can be bought out for the market value under the Early 
Purchase arrangement.   

 
 

   

Page 38



 

Page 20 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

20

6.4 The Structure of the Agreement 
 
6.4.1 The Land 
 
6.4.1.1 The land to be transferred under the CLSA is as follows (please see  
             Appendix 1): 
  

• The West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates 
• The former Gibbs Green School 
• 11 Farm Lane  

 
6.4.1.2     Capco have also indicated that they may wish to include Council-

owned properties on Seagrave Road and Rickett Street within the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme. At present, the Council has 
not received any plans to include these properties. However, should 
Capco come forward with detailed proposals for their inclusion, the 
Council will undertake a statutory consultation process with the 
affected properties. Following consultation the Council will make a 
decision on whether to include these properties8. 

 
6.4.1.3 Should these additional properties be included, the Council will 

receive additional replacement properties within the development 
area and the tenants of these properties will be entitled to the 
tenant contract, i.e. the Guarantees described above in 6.3.2.1.  

 
6.4.2 Trigger Date  
 
6.4.2.1 The agreement is a conditional agreement for the sale of the 

Council’s land. From the date of the agreement Capco will have a 
five year option window in which to decide whether they are able to 
and want to go ahead. This is to give Capco the opportunity to put 
in place required permissions and funding to proceed with the 
development. Once Capco decide to proceed, they serve a Trigger 
Notice on the Council. The land will transfer to Capco (or its 
subsidiary) in phases to be agreed with the Council, over time.  

 
6.4.2.2 It is intended that the current momentum in the project and the 

financial outlays that Capco will have made on signing will mean 
they would be in a position to proceed well before the final Trigger 
date. However, the five year option window described above means 
there could be a delay in the commencement of the project up to 5 
years from signing, up to 31.12.2017, as per illustration 1 in 6.4.4.3. 

 
6.4.2.3 On signing of the agreement, and irrespective as to whether the 

Trigger Notice is eventually served, Capco will be required to 
purchase the Gibbs Green School site (subject to the council 
securing appropriate consents) and 11 Farm Lane, for a combined 
figure of £15m.  

                                                 
8 The occupiers of these properties have been informed about this possibility.  

Page 39



 

Page 21 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

21

 
6.4.2.4 The Gibbs Green School Site is currently being used as a 

temporary site for Queensmill School secondary provision. 
Queensmill School moved to this site on a temporary basis whilst 
proposals for a purpose built school in White City are being 
pursued. Capco’s early purchase of the Gibbs Green School will 
provide much-needed funds to provide secondary provision in 
White City. 11 Farm Lane is the site of a closed supported hostel. 
The decision to close the hostel was taken in February 2011.    

 
6.4.3 Early Termination provisions 
 
6.4.3.1 Provisions have been negotiated in the Agreement to secure project 

momentum.  
• Capco must serve the Trigger Notice within 5 years of 

signing the CLSA or no later than 9 months after 150 new 
affordable units (out of the total of 200 required under the 
terms of the Seagrave Road section 106 Agreement) are 
completed on the Seagrave Road site. If this is not done, the 
Council can terminate the agreement. 

• If within 10 years of signing the agreement Capco have not 
provided the Council with 50% of the required replacement of 
social rent housing, then the Council can terminate the 
agreement. This is conditional upon any delay not being 
caused by a lack of performance by the Council.  There is 
provision allowing Capco some additional time to make this 
hurdle if they have nearly done so by this date.  

 
6.4.4 Payment for Council Land 
 
6.4.4.1 There are two elements to the Council’s consideration for the land. 

These are new replacement housing9 for the housing currently 
occupying the Estates and a monetary consideration of £105m10.  
Taken together, the cash receipt and the replacement homes are 
considered to have a value of between £220m and £289m 
depending on the valuation approach used and officers, relying 
upon the specialist external advice of JLL and PWC, are of the view 
that the deal under the terms of the proposed CLSA currently 
represents best consideration 

 
6.4.4.2 Replacement Housing 
 
6.4.4.2.1 It is a condition precedent to the Council delivering vacant 

possession of the whole of the Estates that the Council will receive 
760 homes in phases in replacement for the homes currently on the 
Estates. The Council would receive a 995 year Head lease, a virtual 
freehold, in the properties provided as replacement homes.  These 
new homes will be tailored to existing residents’ housing needs. 

                                                 
9 This is anticipated to form part of the planning obligations to be contained within the S106 agreement 
10 Including  £0.5m for the Seagrave Road and Ricketts Street  properties 

Page 40



 

Page 22 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

22

Currently there are 589 social rent properties and 171 private 
homes. This will ensure that there will be no loss of social rented 
homes from the number, which currently exists. As land may be 
transferred in phases, it is not a requirement that all Replacement 
Homes are provided before any land is transferred.  

 
6.4.4.2.2 Qualifying resident Freeholders and Leaseholders will be offered an 

affordable replacement home on an equity share basis.   
 
6.4.4.2.3 The replacement housing should be provided on land within the 

redevelopment area that is within the Council’s boundary. Any other 
sites can only be used with the agreement of both parties and with 
the agreement of any residents being offered property.   

 
6.4.4.2.4 The new housing will be built to the following standards: 

• Space standards within the London Mayor’s Design 
Guidelines 

• Code for Sustainable Homes 4 
• 100% Lifetime Homes 
• Secured by Design certification 
• HQI score of upper mid-quartile 
• At least Silver Standard Building for Life. 

 
6.4.4.2.5 During consultation and at the Cabinet Meeting of the 23rd April 

2012, residents raised concerns about the size of the replacement 
properties being provided. Residents wanted an understanding of 
how the replacement homes would compare with the Parker Morris 
Standards, to which most Local Authority Housing adhered to 
between 1961-80, as the benchmark. To demonstrate these 
comparable standards, a comparison table has been produced and 
can be found at Appendix 8.  

 
6.4.4.2.6 The re-provision must include 75 houses, 66 house equivalent 

homes (ground floor duplexes). The Council has also negotiated the 
same ratio of parking spaces for the replacement homes that may 
be granted to the developer, should they receive outline planning 
consent. Officers believe that this will mean that the number of car 
parking spaces provided for the 760 replacement homes should be 
approximately 456 spaces.   

  
6.4.4.3 Cash Receipt 
 
6.4.4.3.1 The cash payment will be received as follows: 
 
6.4.4.3.2 Exclusivity - £15m has been received in advance of signing the 

CLSA under the exclusivity agreement, of which £5m is non-
refundable. Once Trigger is served this represents part of the cash 
consideration. 

 

Page 41



 

Page 23 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

23

6.4.4.3.3 Other Sites -  £15m for Gibbs Green School and 11 Farm Lane 
on the signing of the CLSA on the basis that the Council has 
complied with its disposal obligations. £12m of this will be used to 
construct a new educational facility at White City to which the 
current temporary use of the former school site will relocate. 

 
6.4.4.3.4 Payment Schedule – Provided the Trigger Notice is exercised by 

Capco, the balance of the remaining £75m11 is payable in 5 annual 
installments of £15m.  If the Trigger is exercised after 31st 
December 2015 payments will be made and indexed by RPI from 
that date to ensure values are in line with that date. See illustration 
1 below.  

 
6.4.4.3.5  Overage - Overage will be payable to the Council for any 

consented floor space that is over 10.1m square feet. 
 
 
Illustration1- Payment Schedule 
 

  
 
 
6.5 Capco funding assistance 
 
6.5.1 The Council will be required to buy back or otherwise determine 

existing leases and freehold interests across its own land in order to 
secure vacant possession.  

 
6.5.2 The Council has agreed to buy back owners who wish to leave in 

the following ways:  
                                                 
11 £74.5 million excluding the  “Seagrave Houses” 

£5M 

£10
M 

£15
M 

£2M 

£25
M 

£30
M 

2012 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Latest Trigger 
Date 

Indexed at RPI if the Trigger is served after 31.12.2015 

Page 42



 

Page 24 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

24

 
• From the date of the submission of Capco’s main application 

(June 2011) to buy back owners who have a demonstrable 
need to leave, for open market value.  

 
• From the later of (i) an unchallengeable implementable 

planning permission on the main scheme, and (ii) satisfactory 
consent from the Secretary of State, to buy back all resident-
owners, who wish to leave for open market value (in a ‘no 
scheme world’) plus 10% and all non-resident owners for open 
market value plus 7.5%. 

 
6.5.3 Capco have agreed to make available funding for these buy backs 

on the following terms: 
 

• A £7.5m facility will be made available by Capco from signing of 
the CLSA (to fund Early Purchase Agreements); this sum 
increases to £15m following the issue of secure Secretary of 
State consent for the sale and a secure satisfactory main 
scheme planning permission. 

 
• From serving of the Trigger Notice Capco will be responsible for 

funding all buybacks required, if so required by the Council.  
 
6.5.4 If these facilities are used the Council will have to refund Capco at a 

later date from the annual payment instalments for these purchases, 
as they are part of the cost of achieving vacant possession. The 
detailed risk analysis of these cash flows is being considered by the 
Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Governance and 
further commentary is included in the Executive Director of Finance 
and Corporate Governance’s comments.  
  

6.6 Long Stop Date 
 
6.6.1 The final end date for the agreement is 2035. The Council will have 

received the cash consideration by 2020 (or 5 years after the trigger 
date) at the latest. If the agreement is to be terminated, then the 
parties will retain the properties that have been purchased.  

 
6.6.2 There is a detailed termination procedure included within the CLSA. 

Where there is termination and not all the Option Land has been 
transferred to Capco, an overage regime will apply should the 
Council sell this land to a third party for more than it would have 
obtained from Capco (having regard to both the cash consideration 
and the value of the Replacement Homes).  If this is the case, the 
Council will pay 25% of the additional consideration received.  If at 
termination the Council owes damages to Capco for breach of its 
key commitments (largely relating to the process of securing vacant 
possession) this overage is increased to 75% until the damages are 
paid off.     

Page 43



 

Page 25 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

25

.    
 
6.7 Key Obligation on the Council – Securing Vacant Possession 
 
6.7.1 Once the Trigger Notice is served Capco is entitled to serve notices 

on the Council requiring phases of land on the Estates to be 
vacated. The Council will only be expected to vacate and handover 
any phase of land after the replacement housing has been built to 
meet the needs (subject to limits based on the needs, as predicted 
at the date the CLSA is signed) of secure social rented existing 
residents, and to meet the entitlement of the resident leaseholders 
and freeholders in that phase.  

 
6.7.2 Phasing Process 
 
6.7.2.1 The draft CLSA explains in detail the process to secure vacant 

possession and transfer title in phases. As explained previously, it 
is anticipated that Capco will use the Seagrave Road site to enable 
the first phased re-provision. An indicative phasing plan has been 
included within the CLSA and is attached at Appendix 9. This plan 
is only indicative and the Council will be engaging with residents as 
the phasing plan develops. Capco are not restricted as to which 
phases are brought forward in what order, although a reasoned 
explanation for changes is required. Any proposal must always 
provide replacement housing in advance for the residents of a 
phase, before any land is transferred.   

 
6.7.2.2   Capco will propose the phases on the Estates that they wish to 

acquire. When Capco propose a phase for development, they will 
have to produce a Phase Impact Assessment. This assessment will 
include a number of strategies that outline how the estate will 
continue to function as a place to live while that phase is developed. 
This will include how services will be maintained and how vehicular 
and pedestrian access will be maintained. The Council will not 
agree to the proposed transfer phase, unless they have agreed to 
the Phase Impact Assessment.  

 
6.7.2.3 The CLSA does not require Capco to proceed with each phase. As 

already noted, the Economic Appraisal proceeded on the basis that 
Capco would in fact proceed with all the phases of the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme.  Opponents of the scheme 
have correctly pointed out that this is an assumption in the 
Economic Appraisal. 

 
6.7.2.4   In deciding whether to enter into the CLSA, Cabinet members will 

need to evaluate carefully the risk of Capco being unable or 
unwilling to proceed with the comprehensive redevelopment 
scheme to its conclusion, e.g. because of financial difficulties, or a 
collapse in property values.  Officers recognise that in a changing 
economy there is no such thing as absolute certainty and that the 

Page 44



 

Page 26 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

26

risk of the project being jeopardised by a major change in the 
economic landscape in the coming years cannot be ruled out. 

 
6.7.2.5   However, whilst the Council cannot require Capco to proceed with 

each phase, Capco’s financial model is based on the 
comprehensive redevelopment being completed in full.  Further, 
once Capco serves the Trigger Notice, it will be required under the 
CLSA to pay all the cash consideration (totalling £105m) in line with 
the profile outlined above.  

 
6.7.2.6    If Capco does not proceed with each phase it will in all likelihood 

forego significant future profit from the delivery of the full 
masterplan and it would only in limited circumstances be entitled to 
a proportional refund of the consideration for the land. The cost to 
Capco in delivering the new homes is also likely to remain relatively 
small in comparison to the anticipated long-term development 
returns that Capco should achieve from delivery of the full 
masterplan. 

  
6.7.2.7   The Council is also protected in that a phase of land cannot be 

transferred to Capco unless Capco has first provided the 
replacement homes for residents in that phase.  

  
6.7.2.8     In addition to these commercial incentives the Council has 

negotiated non-performance termination clauses to protect 
residents and encourage Capco to develop all phases. These are 
detailed above in paragraph 6.4.3. Additionally, the CLSA gives the 
Council redress in the event that Capco does not achieve the 
halfway point condition, as per 6.4.3.1 in the relation to the 
development and phase drawdowns.  

 
6.7.2.9  The risk of Capco being unable to complete the development cannot 

be entirely discounted. However, overall, and given the above, it is 
thought highly likely that once the building works on the Estates are 
commenced, Capco will have a considerable financial incentive to 
complete the comprehensive development in full.  

 
 
6.7.3      Floor space Ceiling 
 
6.7.3.1 The overall development needs to return 760 homes to the Council. 

The Council has agreed with Capco a ceiling floor space that 
reasonably represents 760 properties built to the size standards in 
the London Mayor’s new Design Guidelines. In terms of agreeing a 
proposed phase the Council may ask for up to ten per cent 
additional replacement floor space within that individual phase to 
meet the identified need, but must stay within the overall allocation 
across the whole development. 

 
 

Page 45



 

Page 27 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

27

6.7.4       Provision of Houses  
 
6.7.4.1 The re-provided dwellings in each new proposed phase must 

contain at least 60% of the number of council for rent houses in the 
phase to be decanted. If Capco cannot achieve this and no other 
acceptable solution can be found then the council can veto the 
phase. Additionally each replacement phase should include 40% of 
the number of existing council for rent houses as house equivalent 
homes (ground floor duplexes) with front doors to the street and 
gardens. Both these provisions are subject to the ceiling amounts of 
75 replacement houses and 66 ground floor duplexes.      

 
6.7.5       Buy-back of existing Leasehold and Freehold Interests 
 
6.7.5.1 To achieve vacant possession, the Council would seek to enter into 

contracts with owners under which they can either require the 
Council to buy their homes or to provide them with Replacement 
Homes.  As explained previously, Capco (subject to certain triggers 
and qualifications) can be required to provide the Council with 
funding (at a cost) to meet these acquisition costs. This funding if 
utilised is then deducted from the annual payment instalments (as a 
cost of securing vacant possession).   

 
6.7.6       Registered Provider (Housing Association) Ownerships 
 
6.7.6.1 The Council will need to complete negotiations for relocation of the 

three Housing Associations (HAs) who have long leases and 
properties on the Estates. Assured tenants of the HAs will be 
offered the right to become council tenants and stay within the new 
development, under the terms of the Secure Tenant Contract. The 
Council may agree to provide alternative sites within the Borough or 
to compensate the HAs for their land interests. Potential sites being 
considered include Maclise Road and Fulham Cross. 

 
6.7.7       Compulsory Purchase 
 
6.7.7.1 Ultimately if agreement cannot be reached with existing tenants and 

owners the Council will need to utilise (subject to it being an 
appropriate use of such powers at the time) its compulsory 
purchase powers (CPO) to secure vacant possession. Importantly, 
the agreement does not and cannot impose an obligation to make 
and promote a CPO; it regulates the process by which appropriate 
authority within the Council is sought and (once received) 
progressed.   

 
6.7.7.2 Once a phase has been agreed, Capco can serve the Council with 

a CPO Start Notice. This notice will trigger the Council’s obligation 
to prepare the necessary documentation to take a report to full 
Council seeking a decision as to whether to seek a CPO for that 
phase. 

Page 46



 

Page 28 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

28

 
6.7.7.3 As well as regulating the process for delivering 'clean' land by use 

of CPOs, the CLSA also sets out mechanisms for seeking authority 
to use appropriation and stopping up and closure orders. 

 
6.7.7.4 The use of CPO and related powers will inevitably involve costs, 

both in connection with the costs of the process itself (e.g. legal and 
administrative). Because of the liability for compensation, the 
Council will be entitled to recover these costs from Capco, but 
(except in relation to land not owned by the Council) any recovered 
costs will be deducted from the consideration payable.  

 
6.7.8       Damages and Liabilities 
 
6.7.8.1 The Council will be subject to a performance regime for delivery of 

vacant possession to agreed dates. If the Council can be shown to 
have failed to meet identified key dates, due to matters within its 
control, then the Council will be liable for damages to Capco. The 
amount of damages that the Council will be required to pay is 
capped at £10m. If the damages exceed £10m they are only 
payable out of the overage referred to above. Officers are satisfied 
that the performance dates are reasonable and achievable.  

 
6.8     Best Consideration 
 
6.8.1    Given the complexity of this regeneration scheme, JLL and PWC 

have been appointed to advise the Council in respect of 
negotiations and for the offer to the Council. A residual land value 
model has been used to arrive at a valuation for the land; this is 
based on the Council transferring each phase of the site with vacant 
possession; therefore the Council will have to incur the costs of 
achieving this. This model has been adapted to reflect the potential 
transaction and the scheme as they have evolved. The model has 
been the subject of extensive review by the Council’s advisors.  
This has included: 

 
• Advising on the commercial aspects of the potential 

transaction. 
• Reviewing the financial model prepared by CBRE on behalf 

of Capco. 
• Assessing the potential transaction for Best Consideration 

and value for money. 
• A financial model audit conducted by Mazars. 

 
6.8.2 Letters from JLL and PWC are attached at Appendices 10 and 11. 

Based on these the Executive Director for Finance and Corporate 
Governance is of the view that the CLSA currently offers best 
consideration.  

 
 

Page 47



 

Page 29 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

29

6.9       Indemnity and Covenant 
 
6.9.1 Capco have provided the Council with a separate indemnity against 

any blight claims up to £50m from the date of adoption of the SPD. 
The CLSA provides for the continuation of this indemnity and 
provides the Council with an initial  £50m guarantee, based on a net 
asset value test, an initial £30m of which is secured as a first 
charge against specific assets. These provisions within the CLSA 
are released as payments are made to the Council following the 
trigger date. 

 
6.9.2 The Council has undertaken financial  due diligence on the assets 

in EC Properties LP and Earls Court Ltd to ensure they are 
adequate.  This work has been undertaken by PWC on the 
Council’s behalf.  This work will be reconfirmed just prior to the 
CLSA being signed and will be reassessed every six months. The 
CLSA also allows the Council to do an interim assessment, should 
circumstances arise, which raise  concerns regarding the value of 
the assets, as well as the ability for the Council to terminate, should 
the asset provisions not be complied with. Capco can also trigger 
an intermediate assessment if there has been a beneficial change 
in circumstances.   Capco will provide a first fixed charge over 
£30m of assets to secure its liabilities under the CLSA.  It should be 
noted however that it is only in certain circumstances that there is 
likely to be a material liability owed by Capco to the Council in the 
event of a Termination. 

 
6.9.3 The delivery of Seagrave Road car park site assists in the early 

implementation of the scheme.  Capco currently own 100% of the 
Seagrave Road car park site, they have entered into a conditional 
joint venture contract to sell a 50% share to private interests of 
family trusts related to the Kwok Family.  Officers are aware that 
Thomas Kwok and Raymond Kwok were arrested by the Hong 
Kong authorities in March 2012 in relation to Sun Hung Kai 
properties, a Hong Kong public listed company in which the Kwok 
family are shareholders. The Council have sought assurances from 
CapCo as to their ability to redevelop the Seagrave Road car park 
site.  CapCo have advised that their conditional joint venture 
agreement remains in place and that they have been assured by 
the Kwok Family trust that the above matters will have no bearing 
on the Family Trust’s involvement in the Seagrave Road car park 
redevelopment. However, in the event that the arrangements 
between CapCo and the Kwok Family Trust do not complete, then 
CapCo will undertake the development directly.     

 
 6.10         Project Delivery Group 
 
6.10.1 It is a requirement within the CLSA that the Council and Capco will 

establish a joint Project Delivery Group. The functions of the Project 
Delivery Group will be to act as a co-operative body between the 

Page 48



 

Page 30 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

30

Council and Capco, to monitor and assist with the delivery of the 
Project in line with the CLSA and as the initial body for resolving any 
disagreements. 

 
6. 11       Right to Buy applications 
 
6.11.1 The Council's 'offer' to resident homeowners within the 

redevelopment area applies to those who were resident and 
submitted a Right to Buy application prior to June 2011, the date of 
Capco’s three planning applications based on the Farrell masterplan. 
Those residents who submitted a RTB application after this date are 
currently not eligible for the full resident homeowner 'offer', which 
includes an offer of a new home in the development area. 

 
6.11.2    The Government increased the Right to Buy discount for secure 

tenants to a maximum of £75,000 in April 2012, and the Council has 
seen an increase in RTB applications since this date. The Council 
has noted a significant increase in RTB applications from the West 
Kensington Estate since the change in the maximum discount level. 
The Council will be monitoring this situation and will be developing a 
policy for dealing with RTB applications. The Council may consider 
serving a Demolition Notice (under the Housing Act 1985), which 
suspends the RTB obligations during a regeneration scheme, should 
the Cabinet decide to proceed with the comprehensive 
redevelopment.  

 
6.12      Associated documents 
 
6.12.1 In order to facilitate the operation of the CLSA, the Council has 

agreed with Capco to enter into a number of supporting documents. 
These include the releasing by the Council at the appropriate time of 
rights currently held in relation to firstly the Seagrave Road site and 
later the Estates.  

 
6.12.2    The Council has also agreed with Capco to enter into a Compulsory 

Purchase and Closure Order Costs and Compensation Agreement 
and part of the effect of this document will be to supersede the terms 
of the blight indemnity agreement dated the 16th March 2012. 

 
 
7.      SECRETARY OF STATE CONSENT 
 
7.1 If and when a decision is made to sign the CLSA, the Council would 

need to apply for Secretary of State’s Consent to dispose of the 
housing land it intends to sell within 5 months of signing the CLSA. 
The decision to apply for consent needs to be confirmed by a Full 
Council meeting. If consent cannot be obtained (either without 
conditions or to both parties’ satisfaction) or if deadlines are not 
adhered to by the Council then the agreement will be terminated. In 

Page 49



 

Page 31 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

31

this case the Council will need to re-pay £10m of the £15m received 
under the Exclusivity Agreement. 

 
7.2 Assuming a satisfactory Secretary of State Consent is secured, 

then should the Trigger Notice not be served in the five year period, 
the agreement will be terminated. In that event the Council will 
retain £15m paid to it under the Exclusivity Agreement and the 
£15m payments made for Gibbs Green School and 11 Farm Lane, 
provided the Council has satisfied its disposal obligations under the 
terms of the CLSA. 

 
7.3 Gibbs Green School and 11 Farm Lane are subject to an overage 

agreement, to ensure that the Council still receives best value for 
the sale if the development does not proceed. 

  
7.4         In the event that the Trigger Notice has been served, Gibbs Green 

School will form part of the Overage Land (for the purposes of 
Scheme Overage) and no overage will be payable other than 
Scheme Overage.  If Termination occurs before service of the 
Trigger Notice then the Council will be entitled to buy back Gibbs 
Green School and Farm Lane at the price for which they were 
acquired, plus indexation and some agreed costs. If the Council 
rejects this opportunity, the entitlement to overage falls away.  If 
material development has taken place then overage will be payable 
(at the rate of 25% of profit over a 20% IRR).    

 
7.5 It is not necessary for the Council to obtain formal consent from the 

Secretary of State for the disposal of land, because a “self award” 
has been made under the general consents to dispose of the site 
(which does constitute a school playing area) under paragraph 8 of 
the schedule to the school Playing Fields General Disposal and 
Change of use Consent (no 3) 2004. This self award was 
acknowledged by the Partnership for Schools (Department for 
Education) in September 2011. It is the officer’s opinion that the 
Council has the necessary consent to dispose, but should any 
additional consent be required, this will be obtained. 

 
7.6 Furthermore, the Council has self awarded itself consent under the 

Academies Act 2010 since the land is wholly or mainly used as a 
school and its area is less than 8,000 square metres. This is 
following advice provided by the Department for Education and is in 
accordance with paragraph 4 of the schedule to the Academies 
General Disposal and Appropriation Consent (no.1) 2003 Order. 

 
 
8.0 DECISION MAKING PROCESS 
 
8.1 If the Council enters into the CLSA, a number of key decisions will or 

may follow. These are detailed in the table below. 
 

Page 50



 

Page 32 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

32

 
 
 
Table 6 – Decision making timetable  

 
Decision Governance Timing 
To apply to the 
Secretary of State for 
Consent to dispose of 
Housing Land 

Full Council March 2013 
This needs to take 
place within 5 months 
from signing the CLSA. 

To seek approval to 
commence a 
Compulsory Purchase 
Order if appropriate. 

Cabinet This will be on a 
phased basis over the 
duration of the project. 
It is not anticipated that 
this process will 
commence until 2013. 

 
 
9. RESOURCES AND PROFESSIONAL ADVICE 
 
9.1      In addition to work on the project carried out by Officers who form part 

of the currently budgeted establishment Cabinet have to date 
approved the following additional resources for the project prior to the 
agreement of the CLSA: 

 
Table 7 – Cabinet approvals and professional fees to date 
 
Cabinet 
Approvals 
for external 
advisors JLL Denton Ashford12 PWC D Johnson13 Total 

Jul-09 150,000 150,000    300,000 
Jun-10   20,000   20,000 
Jul-11 60,000 120,000 50,000 110,000  340,000 
Apr-12 150,000 750,000 20,000 150,000  1,070,000 
Nov-11     71,71014 71,710 

Total 360,000 1,020,000 90,000 
           
260,000  71,710 1,801,710 

 
 
9.2 This is a complex project and officers have undertaken a review of the 

resources that will be required after the agreement has been 
approved by Cabinet. The level of resources required will vary 
throughout the project, with the exact timing of detailed resource 
requirements depending on a large number of factors including the 

                                                 
12 Ashfords have been providing the Residents Steering Group with legal advice to develop 
the tenant and leaseholder/freeholder assurances and subsequent contracts.  
13 Davies Johnson Ltd worked exclusively on negotiating the CLSA. Prior to this, Davies 
Johnson Ltd advised the Council on other matters and his time/costs spent negotiating the 
CLSA can not be differentiated. 
14 £71,710 was approved in November 2011, but actual payments made were £67,450 

Page 51



 

Page 33 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

33

service of the trigger notice by Capco and the number of 
Leaseholders / Freeholders who opt to be bought out.   

 
9.3 Following formal agreement of the CLSA officers will require 

additional resources to ensure a full project team can be put in place 
to enable successful delivery of the project. Officers have therefore 
set out below a proposed budget to 31st March 2013 (excluding the 
already approved costs of negotiating  the CLSA prior  to Cabinet 
approval) and for the subsequent three years. These projected 
resources have been factored into the indicative cash flows forecasts 
summarised in paragraph 12.11.3 of this report. The council will 
undertake a regular review of the resources in order to ensure they 
reflect the needs of the project throughout its lifetime and are fit for 
purpose. Expenditure will be reported on and budgets updated via the 
quarterly capital monitor, the corporate revenue monitor and via the 
Councils annual estimates process. The initial proposed costs are all 
expected to be of a capital nature and will be funded from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Fund. 

 
Table 8 - Proposed capital budget for to 31st March 201315  and for the subsequent 
three years. 
 

Costs 
2013 2014 2015 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Project Team Costs (includes 
staff already approved in previous 
reports and transfer of relevant 
establishment posts – see 
analysis below) 627,648 643,339 659,423 675,908 
Additional costs not covered by 
existing approvals of CLSA to 
signing post cabinet approval 99,000       
Ongoing project costs, including; 
- Local Office set-up and running    
  costs 
- Communications, engagement,    
   publicity, printing etc 
- Internal recharges 
- external advisors 300,000 205,000 210,125 215,378 
Occupational Therapist 
Assessments 20,394 41,808 21,426   
Legal Fees post signing of the 
CLSA; includes allowance for 
defending challenges 120,000 1,160,813 1,189,833 1,219,579 
CPO Costs 0 704,688 722,305 740,362 
Stopping Up Inquiries   51,250 52,531 53,845 
Financial Advice 25,000 25,625 26,266 26,922 
Total 2,993,042 2,832,522 2,881,909 2,931,994 
 
 
9.4 It should be noted that this budget excludes the direct costs of 

leaseholder buybacks. As noted these are hard to predict and a 
                                                 
15 Excludes costs of CLSA to date as these are covered by existing approvals 

Page 52



 

Page 34 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

34

separate recommendation has been included in this report to 
authorise an initial £15m tranche of funds from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Fund for this purpose. This is commented on further 
in paragraph 12.10.7.  

 
9.5 Cabinet has already approved £284,000 p.a for the current project 

team. As follows: 
 
 18th July 2011 - £168, 000 
 23rd April 2012 - £116, 000 
 
9.6 To ensure the successful delivery of the project and meet the 

Council’s obligations under the CLSA, additional project team 
members  will be required as identified in table 9 below, these costs 
are included in Table 8 above.  

 
Table 9 – Project Team costs 
 

Posts Employment Status Date of approval 

Head of Area Regeneration/Project Director Full Time 
Part of Current Budget 

Establishment 

Project Manager Full Time 
 

Re- housing Officer Full Time 
18th July 2011 

Housing Officer Full Time 
18th July 2011 

Principal Finance Officer Full Time 
 

Buy Backs Officer Full Time 
18th July 2011 

Re-housing Officer Full Time 
23rd April 2012 

Principal Legal Officer Full Time  
23rd April 201216 

Communications Officer Full Time 
23rd April 2012 

Regeneration Officer Full Time  
Community Engagement Officer Full Time  

Project Officer Full Time  
Total: 627,648    

 
 
9.7      Due to the complexity of the project and obligations under the CLSA, 

external professional advice will be required to support delivery of the 
project, such as but not exclusively, specialist legal and property CPO 
advice, the initial costs of which are included in the above budget at 
Table 8. Such appointments will be commissioned in line with the 

                                                 
16 The approval in April 2012 was for a Principal Legal Officer on a part time basis. 

Page 53



 

Page 35 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

35

Council’s procurement standing orders and will be specific 
appointments to meet key delivery requirements. These will be 
managed by the project team and reviewed to reflect the needs of the 
project throughout the project lifetime to ensure fit for purpose.  

 
 
10.   EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 As part of the recent consultation process the council invited 
 residents to comment on the draft Equalities Impact Assessment 

(EqIA). The Council has updated the EqIA to reflect the comments 
received as part of this consultation process. 

 
10.2 The EqIA is attached as Appendix 12 to this report.  Section 149 of 

the Equalities Act 2010 requires the decision maker, i.e. the Council 
acting through its Cabinet, to have due regard to the goals in the Act 
as set out in section 149.  Members will therefore need to consider 
carefully and evaluate the points made in the EqIA before deciding 
whether to proceed with the CLSA. 

 
 
10.3 The EqIA describes the proposals; identifies the impacts on the 

“protected groups”, i.e. those with protected characteristics under the 
legislation (age, sex, ethnic origin, sexual orientation, disability, etc); 
and explains how those impacts which are negative (for example, the 
need for disabled and old people to move home) can be mitigated, 
where this is possible. 

 
10.4 To the extent that it is not possible for negative impacts on the 

protected groups to be mitigated, members must weigh the negative 
impacts against the positive ones, and must weigh in the overall 
balance those impacts which are negative against the benefits 
(‘countervailing factors’) sought to be obtained from proceeding with 
the CLSA.  Subject to the decision being rational and lawful overall, it 
is for Cabinet members to decide what weight should be given to the 
countervailing factors. 

 
10.5 In this case, the EqIA is quite a lengthy and complex document.  

Officers have devoted considerable time and attention to compiling it, 
and in doing so have addressed the points made by consultees during 
the consultation exercise on the impact of the Council’s proposals on 
those with the protected characteristics under the 2010 Act. 

 
10.6 The countervailing factors which members will need to weigh in the 

balance against the negative impacts identified in the EqIA are those 
identified in this report, namely the anticipated beneficial effects on 
the community as a whole of proceeding with the CLSA: the creation 
of new jobs, the benefit to the local economy, the construction of 
better quality housing with lower maintenance costs, and so forth.  
Those countervailing factors have already been discussed. 

Page 54



 

Page 36 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

36

 
11.      SUMMARY 
 
11.1 As set out above in Section 5 above, the Council has consulted with 

local residents to seek their views on the Council’s proposal to include 
the Estates within the redevelopment scheme. For secure council 
tenants on the Estates, this consultation also satisfied the 
requirements of section 105 of the Housing Act 1985.  In reaching 
their conclusions on the recommendations within this report Members 
must carefully consider the Analysis of Consultation Responses 
(Appendix 5) that officers have prepared.  

 
11.2 The consultation revealed that, on the Estates, a significant majority of 

consultees are opposed to the Council’s proposal. When all Estates 
residents’ views are considered there was a ratio of opposition to 
support of 4:1; when just secure tenants views are considered the 
ratio falls to 2:1.  

 
11.3 As against this, a significant majority of consultees in the wider area 

supported the scheme (with a 7:1 ratio of support to opposition). 
Residents in the wider area were consulted as they will also be 
affected by the redevelopment, for example in terms of community 
facilities, public space, the potential for new jobs and disruption during 
construction. When the views of all consultees are considered, the 
proportion against the proposal (47%) is not much greater than the 
proportion in favour (45%). 

 
11.4 Members must have careful regard to the views expressed by secure 

tenants when making the decision.  Members should also consider 
the views of the other consultees on the Estates, and residents in the 
wider area. Despite the levels of opposition amongst secure tenants 
and on the Estates more generally, it remains open to Members to 
decide to enter into the CLSA if Members conclude that, overall, this 
is the best option. The Council conducted a consultation rather than a 
referendum. Whilst Members must carefully consider all the views 
expressed, Members are ultimately responsible for deciding what is 
the best overall for residents of the Estates, future secure tenants, 
other residents in the Borough and the Borough more generally. For 
the reasons summarised below officers have concluded that the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme is the best option. 

 
11.5 After the Council’s proposal of including the Estates in the 

redevelopment scheme, the option that received the most support 
from consultees was the housing stock transfer option. As noted 
above Officers do not consider that this is an option that Members 
should consider pursuing at this time, primarily due to the fact that a 
housing stock transfer would significantly reduce the benefits that the 
redevelopment would be able to provide to the local area, the 
Borough and London as a whole. 

 

Page 55



 

Page 37 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

37

11.6 One resident criticised the CLSA on the alleged basis that the Council 
is getting bad value, and indeed should not be treating with Capco at 
all.  The bad value criticism needs to be considered in the light of the 
fact that the Council has used independent advisors of high repute to 
re-assure itself on the price that Capco will be paying.  The criticism 
that the Council should not be dealing with Capco is perhaps more 
fundamental.  Capco do not currently have the land interests that they 
need in order to realise the masterplan.  In theory, an alternative 
masterplan for the area could have been realised by TfL and the 
Council acting in concert and seeking a development partner, with the  
necessary CPO powers available to be used to buy out Capco’s 
interests.  However, this option presupposes that TfL and the Council 
would have been willing to incur the tens of millions of pounds of 
development costs needed to commission their own masterplan and 
cover all other preliminary matters, entirely at their own risk. Officers 
consider that in practice this was unlikely to be a viable approach.  
Officers recommend treating with Capco because this is the most 
effective way of realising comprehensive redevelopment, without the 
Council risking significant public funds and becoming a lead 
developer. 

 
11.7 Officers also believe that many (although not all) of the issues and 

concerns raised by residents on the Estates concerning the tenant 
and leaseholder / freeholder offers, the need to move home, and the 
new housing that will be provided can be addressed through further 
consultation and engagement. The recent consultation has shown a 
lack of understanding amongst individual residents about what will 
happen to them and what will be offered to them if the Estates are 
included in the redevelopment scheme. Officers would aim to tackle 
this through one-to-one meetings with estate residents to address 
individual concerns and ensure that residents fully understand how 
the comprehensive redevelopment will affect them. 

 
11.8 In addition, Members need to bear in mind that the Council is offering 

Capco an option to purchase the Estates. Officers cannot guarantee 
that Capco will take up the option, and also cannot guarantee that 
Capco will build all of the permitted homes, and proceed with all the 
phases of the comprehensive redevelopment. However, as explained 
in section 6.7.2 of this report, officers believe that there is a 
considerable commercial incentive for Capco to proceed with and 
complete the comprehensive redevelopment scheme in full. The 
CLSA also gives the Council redress in the event that Capco does not 
proceed expeditiously with redevelopment phases. 

 
11.9     Against this background, officers consider that Members can 

reasonably proceed on the basis that the comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme will in all likelihood be realised in full. The 
Economic Appraisal at Appendix 2 has assessed the benefits of this, 
and the amount of new housing (including affordable housing), jobs 
and economic development that would be likely to follow. Although the 

Page 56



 

Page 38 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

38

TRAs criticised the Economic Appraisal during the consultation, 
officers consider that the Economic Appraisal can properly be used to 
assess the potential economic benefits of the comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme. Overall, the significant benefits identified in 
the Economic Appraisal provide powerful reasons to proceed with the 
CLSA. The current economic climate only serves to heighten the 
importance of measures that will stimulate the local economy and 
promote job growth. 

 
11.10    In addition to the significant benefits identified in the Economic 

Appraisal, the consideration paid by Capco will provide much-needed 
funds to be reinvested into the Borough. Again, the current economic 
climate makes the receipt of such additional public funds particularly 
valuable. Whilst the exact net amount of cash available for 
reinvestment will depend on a number of factors, (including: the value 
and volume of leaseholder buybacks; the volume and value of sales 
of replacement "buyback" properties; and the final level of costs 
associated with the transaction), the current modelling gives an 
indicative range of net cash receipts after costs between £34million 
and £88million, assuming the trigger is served and no termination 
events occur. This provides a benefit of circa £5 to £13 million17 to the 
general fund and circa £29million to £75million to the Housing 
Revenue Account18.  The net funds received by the Housing Revenue 
Account will be reinvested for Housing and Regeneration purposes 
including the repayment of Housing Revenue Account debt.  It will 
also be used to develop or acquire new affordable housing to meet 
housing need, as outlined in recommendation 10. 

 
11.11    Not least given the above benefits, officers consider that the inclusion 

of the Estates in the redevelopment scheme would help to achieve a 
number of strategic aims for London, the Borough and RBKC. 

 
11.12 Within the Mayor’s London Plan (2011) the Earl’s Court and West 

Kensington Opportunity Area has been identified as one of London’s 
most important development opportunities.  This is due to its potential 
ability to contribute significantly to achieving housing and job growth 
targets over the next 20-30 years. Both the Core Strategies for the 
Council and for RBKC contain planning policies specific to 
development in the Opportunity Area.  

 
11.13 Officers consider that the comprehensive redevelopment of the 

Opportunity Area would contribute significantly towards meeting the 
over-arching vision of the Council’s Community Strategy Creating a 
borough of opportunity for all, enabling local people to have a real 
stake in the area and share in its growing prosperity.  

 

                                                 
17 This is net of costs of £12m built into the model for funding a replacement school 
18 It should be noted that these are indicative figures produced as a result of a forecasting exercise and should not be 
taken as final confirmation of the value or timing of receipts 

Page 57



 

Page 39 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

39

11.14 Officers also believe that the comprehensive redevelopment of the 
Opportunity Area significantly contributes towards meeting the vision 
and objectives detailed in the Draft Housing Strategy (2012). These 
include: 

• Building a Housing Ladder of Opportunity 
• Deliver Major Economic and Housing Growth within our 

Opportunity Areas 
• Tackle Economic and Social Polarisation through the 

creation of more mixed and balanced communities where 
no one tenure predominates. 

 
11.15 Members must also consider whether the terms of the CLSA are 

acceptable.  The terms of the CLSA were reviewed at the 23rd April 
2012 Cabinet Meeting. They are essentially unchanged. Members 
should nevertheless ensure that they fully understand the terms of the 
CLSA and the obligations on the Council as outlined in sections 6 and 
7 of this report. 

 
11.16       Finally, and as stated in section 10 of this report, Members will need 

to carefully consider and evaluate the points made in the EqIA before 
deciding whether to proceed with the CLSA. To the extent that the 
EqIA identifies negative impacts on protected groups that cannot be 
fully mitigated, members must weigh the negative impacts against the 
positive ones that the EqIA also identifies, and must weigh in the 
overall balance those impacts which are negative against the benefits 
(‘countervailing factors’) sought to be obtained from proceeding with 
the CLSA.  Subject to the decision being rational and lawful overall, it 
is for Cabinet members to decide what weight should be given to the 
countervailing factors. 

 
11.17    The ultimate responsibility for this weighing exercise lies with 

Members. For their part, officers consider that the benefits of 
proceeding with the CLSA outweigh the negative impacts, and that 
overall this represents the best option. On this basis, officers make 
the recommendations set out in this report. 

 
 
12. COMMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 
 CORPORATE  GOVERNANCE  
 
12.1   Valuation of Earls Court Consideration and Valuation of site 
  
12.1.1 JLL and PWC have been involved, as the Council’s advisors, in 

considering and negotiating the terms of this transaction. Signed 
letters from the Council’s advisors are attached to this cabinet report 
in Appendixes 10 and 11.19 Based on the figures, the Executive 
Director for Finance and Corporate Governance is currently of the 
view that the terms offer best consideration. The letters include a 

                                                 
19 The JLL letter is a “final draft”, a further final letter will be issued when the CLSA is actually signed. 

Page 58



 

Page 40 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

40

number of caveats / issues, the key ones are listed below in table 
10, together with the actions that have been taken: 

 
Table 10 - caveats 
 
Caveat / Issue Action taken 
Duty of care letters over all input 
costs and revenues within the 
residual land value that have been 
provided by Capco’s technical 
consultants including the valuation 
of the replacement properties for 
leaseholders (the intermediate 
units).  

Letter received from CBRE and EC 
Harris 
 
Lambert Smith Hampton have  
provided indicative open market 
sales values for the Councils 
replacement properties, a prudent 
approach has been taken and the 
lower, older Savills values as 
provided via Capco have been used 
where open market value is 
appropriate for valuing 
consideration20.  JLL as part of their 
work on best consideration have 
also confirmed that the private 
housing sales rates used in the 
residual land value model are fair 
and reasonable. 

Detailed model audit Mazars have completed this work  
and concluded that the model meets 
its objectives and is capable of 
running the required sensitivities 

Valuation of equity held in 
replacement leaseholder properties 

The valuation of the equity held in the 
Leaseholder properties has been 
discounted in the indicative 
consideration figures below based on 
sales turnover on the Gibbs Green 
and West Kensington Estates over 
the last ten years. 

                                                 
20 For the 171 replacement leaseholder / freeholder properties 

Page 59



 

Page 41 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

41

Caveat / Issue Action taken 
Clarify if any legal restrictions may be 
placed upon the re-sale of the 
intermediate homes, such as whether 
they can be sold as private homes on 
the open market. 
 

There are no current restraints that 
would prevent this from happening. It 
should be noted that for properties 
held within the Housing Revenue 
Account the Council would require the 
receipt to be reinvested for Housing 
and Regeneration purposes or used 
for the repayment of HRA debt to 
prevent the monies having to be paid 
over to Central Government. 
 

Capco should confirm that they will 
bear the risk on the completeness of 
the planning, site clearance costs and 
the costs associated with the 
continuity of occupation. The residual 
land value determined should not 
subsequently be revised to 
compensate. 
 
The parties accept that further design 
and cost plan development will 
continue until and beyond the 
submission of detailed planning 
applications for development phases 
and this will affect the programme, 
costs and values currently reflected in 
the financial model. 
 
Negotiations are still ongoing 
regarding the Section 106 obligations 
required by the scheme 
 

There is no ability within the CLSA for 
Capco to transfer these risks or 
subsequently revise the consideration 
as a result of changes to these costs.  
 
It should be noted however that the 
CLSA does contain overage payable 
to the Council should the final 
consented gross internal area exceed 
that agreed as part of the master plan 
proposal. 
 
Likewise, there is an overage clause 
in place for Gibbs Green and Farm 
Lane, should the Trigger Notice not 
be served. 

Notes 3,4 and 6 in PWC’s letter refer 
to adjustments required to the 
residual land value as generated by 
the model 

 
See paragraph 12.7.2 below, JLL 
have specified the cumulative impact 
of these amendments to the model in 
their letter. PWC have also 
considered the changes they have 
recommended when arriving at their 
opinion. 

 
 
12.1.3 It is important that the Council receives best consideration via the 

CLSA and there are a number of different approaches which can be 
taken to valuing the consideration we are receiving. Having given 
due consideration to the complexity of this regeneration scheme 
and following a workshop run by our advisors, JLL and PWC, 

Page 60



 

Page 42 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

42

exploring the range of possible methods of valuing both the site and 
the consideration payable we have arrived - based on their advice - 
at the approach set out below. 

 
12.1.4 It must be remembered throughout that the land valuation against 

which the consideration is being compared is based on the land 
being transferred to Capco with vacant possession. It should be 
noted that the figures detailed below are the result of a forecasting 
exercise and therefore should not be taken as confirmation of the 
final value or timing of the receipts. 

 
12.2      Approach used to assess the Consideration 
 
12.2.1 Cash consideration received under the Conditional Land Sale 

Agreement of £105m  
 
12.2.1.1 £15m has already been received on the signing of the exclusivity 

agreement, on signing of the Conditional Land Sale Agreement this 
becomes part of the consideration for the land. A further £15m for 
Gibbs Green School and 11 Farm Lane will be received on signing 
of the Conditional Land Sale Agreement. The balance of the cash 
consideration is received in 5 equal annual instalments, the first 
being received on 31st December 2015 if the Trigger Notice is 
served on or before this date.  

 
12.2.1.2 If the Trigger Notice is served after 31st December 2015 the first 

payment is due on service of the Trigger Notice with the four 
subsequent payments due on the anniversaries of the trigger date. 
If this happens the payments are indexed using RPI for the period 
between the month of December in the year in which the relevant 
advance payment would have been received as per paragraph 
12.2.1.1 above and the index figure for the calendar month before 
the calendar month in which the payment is actually due as a result 
of the later service of the Trigger Notice.  

 
12.2.1.3 The cash consideration received should therefore be discounted to 

allow for the time value of money between now and the projected 
date of receipts. A 6.6%21 discount rate yields a discounted value 
for the cash consideration of £82m. A 9% discount rate would yield 
a value of £77m, this more prudent assumption has been used in 
the core scenario illustrated below. 

 
12.3 Valuation of replacement social housing provided under the CLSA   
                including replacements for homes belonging to registered   
                providers 
 
12.3.1 In order to obtain vacant possession of the land the Council has an 

obligation to re-provide the social housing.  
                                                 
21 Treasury nominal discount rate (with an allowance for inflation at 3%) based on a risk free return.  

Page 61



 

Page 43 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

43

 
12.3.2 The Council would, in order to be able to provide vacant 

possession, have to meet the cost of building replacement homes. 
 
12.3.3 Therefore the cost of the re-provision of the social housing has 

been used to value this element of the consideration as this is the 
bill the Council would have to pay. 

 
12.3.4 It is important to note that this is different to the income assumed 

from the sale of social housing that has been added to the financial 
model when arriving at the residual land valuation of £226m as 
detailed in paragraph 12.7.2 The income added to the residual land 
value model is based on an “Existing  Use-Social House Valuation” 
as this is what the scheme would make from the social housing if it 
was sold to another buyer due to the Council having re-provided the 
housing elsewhere, say by using the theoretical cash that would be 
paid to the Council instead of the replacement homes should they 
not be being provided on the scheme. 

 
12.4 Valuation of the replacement leaseholder / ex freeholder properties 

in which the Council retains an equity share. 
 
12.4.1 If the leaseholders / freeholders were not taking on a replacement 

property then the Council would have to buy back their current 
properties in order to gain vacant possession of the land. As the 
leaseholder / ex-freeholder has taken a share in a replacement 
property the Council has not had to pay the leaseholder / ex-
freeholder cash for this cost of vacant possession. 

 
12.4.2 This cost would be equivalent to the share of market value the 

leaseholder receives in a new property. Therefore the market value 
of the leaseholder / ex-freeholder share has been used to value this 
element. 

 
12.4.3 The equity share retained by the Council is ultimately tradable at 

market value when the leaseholder chooses to sell the property as 
properties would be sold outright on the open market. This element 
has therefore been valued at market value. However this element is 
not fully liquid, hence the value has been discounted as, although 
properties change hands over time, some will be held by the same 
owner for a very long period of time. A discount of 35.9% has been 
applied to the Council’s equity share based on the turnover of 
properties on the Estates based on an average turnover excluding 
re-sales of 5 properties per annum over a period of 15 years22.  

                                                 
22 The Council’s equity share in the Leasehold properties has been discounted by 35.9%. The annual sales volumes 
have been based on the volume of sales of leaseholder properties in 1999-2011 on the West Kensington and Gibbs 
Green Estates. Average sales as per the Land registry were 5.92 per annum, after excluding properties that sold 
several times in the period the average turnover was 5 properties per annum. There are 117 resident leaseholders 
and freeholders currently on the estate. At the historic sales rate all these properties would be sold at some point in 
23 years. Over 15 years, based on historic data it is likely that 75 of the 117 resident leaseholder and freeholder 
properties would be sold, realising 64.1% of the equity. Given that the development period is anticipated to be at 

Page 62



 

Page 44 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

44

 
12.5        Valuation of replacement “leaseholder” properties which are  owned 

by the Council as the leaseholder / freeholder has opted to be 
  bought out. 
 
12.5.1 These will be 100% owned by the Council. Therefore they have 

been valued at market value. 
 
12.5.2 It should be noted that the Council will provide replacement 

properties for all tenants as per the Guarantees. There is a risk that 
should there be net overcrowding across the Estates, the gross 
internal floor area specified in the agreement would be insufficient 
to provide all the replacement homes. Therefore for the Council to 
keep its promises, there is a risk that some of the replacement 
“leaseholder” properties currently allocated for sale would 
potentially need to be used to house tenants. However the financial 
impact of this could be mitigated by selling other properties as they 
become void whilst maintaining the same volume of social housing. 
Given this mitigation a significant financial impact is unlikely to 
crystallise, the value of the consideration would be protected and 
the promises to tenants that they would receive new homes within 
the development would be kept.  

 

12.6 Summary of consideration received when valued using the above 
methodology: 

 
12.6.1 The approach used above yields a range of valuations for the     

consideration from £275m to £284m, the exact number depends on 
the number of leaseholders / freeholders who opt to be bought out 
as follows in table 11: 

                                                                                                                                            
least 10 years and that transactions will occur throughout this period this is considered by officers to be a reasonable 
assumption. 

Page 63



 

Page 45 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

45

Table 11 – Buy back sensitivities 
 

 Illustrative Gross 
Consideration assuming 
all Leaseholders bought 
back (i.e. before costs) 

Illustrative Gross 
Consideration assuming 

only non resident 
leaseholders are bought 
back (i.e. before costs) 

Cash Consideration: £105m discounted at 9% 
to allow for the phasing of payments23 £77m24 £77m 

Non Cash Consideration:   
589 Replacement Social Homes25: property 

received £103m26 £103m 
Replacement leasehold / Freehold  properties 

for 54  non residents27: property received £32m £32m 
Replacement leasehold / freehold properties: 
all 117 resident: Leaseholders  bought back. 
Note this also impacts on costs as shown in 

section 12.928: property received 
£72m29 N/A 

Leaseholder / freeholder elects to stay: 117 
replacement leasehold / freehold properties: 
resident: Leaseholder share30: see footnote N/A £48m 

Leaseholder / freeholder elects to stay: 117 
replacement leasehold / freehold properties 

for residents: Council Equity Share in 
property 

N/A £24m 

Discount Councils Equity share of 
Leaseholder buy backs31. N/A (£9m) 
Total (Excluding costs) £284m £275m 

 
 
                                                 
23 These figures assume the inclusion of the additional  properties on “Seagrave Road”, see PWC Letter in Appendix 

11 for derivation of number 
24  A 6.6% discount rate would yield a value of £82m, this would increase the range of    
   consideration to between £289m and £280m. Both calculations are based from May 2012 as per the April 2012 

Cabinet report, changing the basis to September 2012 would increase both figures, so the more prudent 
approach has been adopted.  

25 Based on EC Harris costs used in residual land value model. The cost of replacing the social homes has been 
used as there is an obligation on the Council to provide replacement properties in order to be able to provide the 
site with vacant possession. Capco by providing the properties are effectively relieving the council of this obligation 
and are therefore paying the cost of these properties on behalf of the Council. 

26  Comprising £92.61m for the Council’s 531 replacement social rented properties and £10.12m for the 58 
replacement properties provided for the Housing Associations (Registered Providers) as per the Jones Lang 
LaSalle letter in Appendix 10. 

27 Currently valued at market value based on values provided by Savills via Capco,  reviewed by JLL as part of their 
consideration advice and reviewed by Lambert Smith Hampton. 

28 Currently valued at market value based on values provided by Savills via Capco ,  reviewed by JLL as part of their 
consideration advice and reviewed by Lambert Smith Hampton.  

29 These leaseholders / freeholders would have to be bought out at a cost of circa £59m, this has been allowed for in 
the worst case cash flow scenario modelled later on in this note. 

30 Provision of these properties means that the Council does not have to fund the buyback of these leaseholders 
properties from the consideration. Therefore this forms part of the consideration as the land value is based on 
delivering the land with vacant possession and this would otherwise form a cost of achieving vacant possession. 

31 The Council’s equity share in the Leasehold properties has been discounted by 35.9%. The annual sales volumes 
have been based on the volume of sales of leaseholder properties in 1999-2011 on the West Kensington and 
Gibbs Green Estate. Average sales as per the Land registry were 5.92 per annum, after excluding properties that 
sold several times in the period the average turnover was 5 properties per annum. There are 117 resident 
leaseholders and freeholders currently on the estate. At the historic sales rate all these properties would be sold at 
some point in the 23 years. Over 15 years, based on historic data it is likely that 75 of the 117 resident leaseholder 
and freeholder properties would be sold, realising 64.1% of the equity. Given that the development period is 
anticipated to be at least 10 years and that transactions will occur throughout this period this is considered by 
officers to be a reasonable assumption. 

Page 64



 

Page 46 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

46

12.7 Valuing the land with vacant possession 
 
12.7.1 A residual land value model has been used to arrive at a valuation 

for the land; this is based on the Council transferring each phase of 
the site with vacant possession therefore the Council will have to 
incur the costs of achieving this. This model has been adapted to 
reflect the deal and the scheme as they have evolved. The model 
has been subject of extensive review by the Council’s advisors.  
This has included: 

 
- Advising on the commercial aspects of the deal. 
- Reviewing the financial model prepared by Capco. 
- Assessing the deal for Best Consideration and value for money. 
- A detailed model audit by Mazars and who have concluded that 

the model meets its objectives and is capable of running the 
required sensitivities. 

 
12.7.2 The current residual land valuation model generates a valuation of 

£182m. However JLL have identified a number of items which they 
consider require adjustment. 32. These are detailed in JLL’s letter in 
Appendix 10. After adjusting for these items JLL have proposed a 
base valuation of £226m. It is possible to make these adjustments 
in a number of different ways taking into account sensitivity analysis 
and variables, which again yield a range of values up to a maximum 
of circa £247m based on a 20% developers profit on the private for 
sale units in the model.  

 
12.7.3 Farm Lane is not included within the residual land value model. 

Farm Lane enables the Council to meet its promises regarding 
replacement houses as well as enabling the main site to be 
decanted and built out over a shorter time frame. It can be argued 
that without this site the residual land value of the main site would 
decrease by more than the difference between the highest possible 
open market value of Farm Lane and the £5.7 million being 
received for Farm Lane as part of the overall consideration. Should 
the trigger not be served then the overage clause contained within 
both the Farm Lane and Gibbs Green former school site sale 
agreements is designed to ensure best consideration is in any 
event achieved, this includes an option for the Council to 
repurchase the sites from Capco at par33. Commentary on the 
consideration paid for Farm Lane is contained within Appendix 1 of 
the JLL letter contained in Appendix 10 of this report. 

 
12.7.4 Additionally, Capco is also seeking to reach agreement on TfL’s 

land holding in the development area. The Council understands that 
the commercial terms and risk transfer inherent in the proposed 
deal are different to the Council’s proposed transaction. The 

                                                 
32 These are also referred to in notes 3, 4 and 6  in PWC’s letter 
33 The Council would also be liable for Stamp Duty Land Tax if either Farm Land or Gibbs Green School was 
repurchased under the CLSA 

Page 65



 

Page 47 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

47

Council’s current understanding is that the terms of the TfL 
transaction are now not comparable to the Council’s deal.  It should 
be noted that it is likely that the CLSA will be signed before the TfL 
deal is concluded. 

 
12.8 Range of values generated by other methods of valuing 

consideration 
 
12.8.1 Taking into account sensitivity analysis and variables the 

consideration can be valued in a number of different ways giving a 
range of available values. We believe we have used the most 
appropriate method but other possible methods are expanded on 
here to illustrate sensitivities.  

 
12.8.2 In addition to the approach used above it is possible to:  
 

a. value all the properties at existing use34. 
 

 b. to value both the replacement social homes and the leaseholder 
equity in the resident leaseholder / freeholder replacement homes 
at cost.  
 

12.8.3 These alternative approaches give a range of values as set out on 
the next page. All examples shown assume all current resident 
leaseholders choose to remain on the estate as this gives the 
lowest possible range for consideration. 

                                                 
34 Replacement homes for non resident leaseholders are valued at market value in both scenarios as the council 
would in either example be able to sell these properties on the open market as there is no commitment to provide 
replacement properties for non resident leaseholders and the intention is to buy back all such properties. 

Page 66



 

Page 48 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

48

 
Table 12 –range of values 

 
 
12.8.4 This gives a maximum indicative range of values for consideration 

between £220 million and £289 million36, compared to land values 
ranging from £188.2million to £253.2 million37. 

 
12.9 Costs 
 
12.9.1 As noted above the consideration under the possible CLSA is paid 

on the basis that the Council transfer the land with vacant 
possession. The amount and the timing of costs will vary depending 
on the volume of resident leaseholders who opt to leave the Estates, 

                                                 
35 Uses the lowest valuation provided by JLL to take a prudent approach, 427 of these properties are valued in the 
current residual land value model at £41.9m – equating to a value of £58m for the 589 properties. 
36 Assuming all leaseholders opt to be bought out and using the 6.6% treasury discount rate to value the cash 
element of the consideration 
37 £247m as per paragraph 12.7,2 above plus £5.7m for Farm Lane and £0.5m (and additional replacement 
properties) for the “Seagrave houses” 

 Alternative methods of valuing 
consideration 

Base Illustrative 
Gross 

Consideration 
assuming only 
non resident 

leaseholders are 
bought back (i.e. 
before costs) as 
per paragraph 
12.6.1 above 

Using valuation 
throughout (a. in 
paragraph 12.8.2) 

Valuing 
replacement 

leaseholder equity 
at cost of 

provision. (b. in 
paragraph 12.8.2) 

Cash Consideration: 
£105m discounted at 9% 
to allow for the phasing of 

payments 
£77m £77m £77m 

Non Cash Consideration:    
589 Replacement Social 

Homes: property received £48m35 £103m £103m 
Replacement leasehold / 

Freehold  properties for 54  
non residents: property 

received 
£32m £32m £32m 

Leaseholder / freeholder 
elects to stay: 117 

replacement leasehold / 
freehold properties: 

resident: Leaseholder 
share:  

£48m £22m £48m 

Leaseholder / freeholder 
elects to stay: 117 

replacement leasehold / 
freehold properties for 

residents: Council Equity 
Share in property 

£24m £24m £24m 

Discount Councils Equity 
share of Leaseholder buy 

backs. 
(£9m) (£9m) (£9m) 

Total (Excluding costs) £220m £249m £275m 

Page 67



 

Page 49 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

49

more details on this, the principal cost, are given in paragraph 12.10 
below. They will also vary according to when the Trigger Notice is 
served and the speed of the development. Appendix 13 shows the 
likely indicative range of costs involved at current values (i.e. with no 
allowance for inflation). Section 9 of this report, comments on the 
initial budgetary requirements, which are anticipated to all be of a 
capital nature and which will be funded from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Fund.  

 
12.10      Buying Back Owners on the Estates 
 
12.10.1 The Council will be required to buy back or otherwise determine 

existing leases and freehold interests across its own land in order to 
secure vacant possession.  

 
12.10.2 The Council has agreed to buy back owners who wish to leave in 

the following ways:  
 

• From the date on which Capco submitted the planning 
application for the main site, 23rd June 2011, buy back owners 
who have an identified need to leave, for open market value.  

• From the later of an unchallengeable planning permission on the 
main scheme; a signed CLSA; and Consent from the Secretary 
of State, to buy back all owners who wish to leave for open 
market value (in a no scheme world) plus 10%38. 

 
12.10.3 There are two ways in which each of the individual buybacks could 

be funded: 
 

1) The Council can buy back the properties directly from the 
leaseholders and freeholders. It can fund this in three ways by 
either:  
- using capital receipts, the most likely source of which is 

those generated by the expensive voids sales programme  
- borrow funds within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

using the £37m of headroom that remains following the 
implementation of self financing subject to the comments in 
the 2012 budget statement. This uses the existing HRA 
asset base to increase gearing within the HRA.  

- borrow if there was the appetite via the general fund.   
 

Income would be received from letting the properties purchased 
which would as a minimum partially, if not wholly, offset the 
borrowing costs. 

 
2) By Capco, subject to the payment of holding costs, as follows: 

 
- Capco have made available a facility of £15m. 

                                                 
38 7.5% for non resident Leaseholders/ Freeholders 

Page 68



 

Page 50 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

50

- From serving of the Trigger Notice (exercise of the option) 
Capco will be responsible for funding all buybacks if 
required to do so by the Council.  

 
12.10.4 It is important to note that, should the Council opt for Capco to buy 

back the Leaseholders / Freeholders, the Council will have to pay 
Capco at a later date for these purchases as they are part of the 
cost of achieving vacant possession unless the agreement is 
terminated. On termination Capco simply retain the properties. This 
means that potentially on termination this could leave a developer 
with a high level of ‘pepper-potted’ ownership on the Estates. 
 

12.10.5 The Council will also have to pay for the net holding costs incurred 
on any properties purchased by Capco until Capco take transfer of 
the land containing the property or until the agreement is terminated. 
These costs have to be paid to Capco as follows: 

 
- Revenue costs to Capco of holding the properties need to 

be re-paid annually from the trigger date. Capco have a 
duty to maximize rent from properties, which will need to be 
deducted from costs.    

- Capital costs will be deducted from the payment 
installments received following the trigger. This can only be 
up to a maximum of 50% of the payment tranche. Capco 
will charge a holding cost on any money advanced to 
contribute to its costs of providing this finance. This has 
been agreed at flat rate of 6.5% over 6 month Libor.   

- Capco can fund the buybacks as above but the Council can 
pay off some or all of the capital debt at any point and gain 
a secure charge over the property. This option reduces or 
eliminates the capital holding cost. Revenue costs would 
still be payable to Capco as set out above. 

 
12.10.6 The Capco funds are a useful facility, however they are available at 

rates substantially greater than the Public Works Loan Board. There 
is also a significant risk attached to them purchasing a large volume 
of properties on the Estates in that should for some reason the 
agreement terminate or the trigger never be served the Council 
would have Estates where potentially a large proportion of 
leaseholds / freeholds were held by the same developer.  This could 
potentially render future regeneration on the estate more difficult 
following any termination event.  

 
12.10.7  The Council can borrow at a lower rate than can be provided by 

Capco, has funds in the Decent Neighbourhoods Fund available and 
has a likely future stream of capital receipts within the HRA which 
could potentially be utilised to fund leaseholder buybacks. Prior to 
the  Localism Act 2011 and HRA reform the Council could only 
easily let a buy back as an Assured Shorthold Tenancy at full 
market rent via the General Fund. It is now possible to utilise the 

Page 69



 

Page 51 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

51

new Fixed Term tenancies created under the Localism Act and let at 
80% of market rents within the HRA subject to obtaining Homes and 
Communities Agency permission and provided the Council can 
easily regain vacant possession at the end of the fixed term 
tenancy. The Director of Housing Options, Skills and Economic 
Development and his team are currently finalising proposals to this 
effect. This means it will be more financially advantageous for the 
Council to buyback properties directly from owners and the cash 
flow presented later in this note assumes this approach is used. This 
report proposes that the ability to buy back properties is delegated 
to the Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration in 
consultation with the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate 
Governance up to an initial cumulative value of £15m funded from 
the decent neighbourhoods pot. It should be appreciated that the 
Decent Neighbourhoods Fund does not currently contain this level 
of capital receipts but projections show that they will be generated 
by the current expensive void sales programme. The viability of 
each buyback and the availability of funds will be formally 
considered as part of each decision approving the buy back of 
properties from Leaseholders / Freeholders.  

 
12.10.8    A regular six monthly assessment of the viability of each method will 

be carried out by officers and a further report will be bought back to 
Cabinet when 80% of the initial £15m funding tranche has been 
utilised or should the level of receipts from expensive void sales not 
be at anticipated levels. 

 
12.11      Cash flows and sensitivities 
 
12.11.1 Summarised below is an indicative cash flow assuming the Trigger 

is served.  This assumes:  
 

• the Council fund all the leaseholder buybacks as this results in 
the highest peak cash out flow. Sensitivities showing the impact 
of using different funding methods for buybacks on the peak 
cash outflow and the cash position at 2030 are shown below. 

• all non resident leaseholders / freeholders are bought back and 
25% of the resident leaseholders / freeholders are bought back. 
Sensitivities showing the impact of differing levels of buybacks 
on the peak cash outflow and the cash position at 2030 are 
shown below. 

• buy backs occur in the first two years, in practice it is likely that 
buybacks will occur over the life of the scheme.  

• the trigger is not served until the end of the 5 year period.  
• it is based on indicative phasing received from Capco and an 
indicative fastest possible development time line has been used. 
Sensitivities showing the impact of a longer development period 
on the peak cash outflow and the cash position at 2030 are 
shown below. 

Page 70



 

Page 52 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

52

• RPI of 2.5% and HRA loans pool borrowing at 5.6%. 
Sensitivities showing the impact of differing levels of RPI and the 
HRA loans pool rate on the peak cash outflow and the cash 
position at 2030 are shown below. 

• that we are unable to protect the Council from Stamp Duty Land 
Tax on the replacement properties via the section 106. We will 
endeavour to use the Section 106 agreements to do this. This 
adds a significant cost of circa £23m39 which is included within 
this cash flow. 

• Property inflation is the same as RPI, the receipts from Capco 
are indexed as per the proposed agreement to allow for late 
payment. Sensitivities showing the impact of differing levels of 
property inflation on the peak cash outflow and the cash position 
at 2030 are shown below. 

• A contingency on non buy back costs of 20% 
 

12.11.2   The table shows the position if none of the replacement Leaseholder 
/Freeholder properties owned by the Council as a result of the buy 
backs are sold / generate a cash receipt, and the position if this 
mitigating action is taken. It also shows the net present value of the 
cash flows to the Council. 

 
12.11.3  The indicative cash flow forecast can be summarised as: 
 
 Table 13 – indicative cash flow  
 

Base Case: Council Funds all buybacks, buybacks let at 80% 
market rent 

Cash in / (out) 
£,000 

Peak Cash requirement excluding receipts from the sale of 
properties received to replace the ex-leasehold / freehold 
properties which the council has bought back and receipts from 
letting of those properties bought back (41,500) 
Peak Cash requirement including receipts from the sale of 
properties received to replace the ex-leasehold / freehold 
properties which the council has bought back and receipts from 
letting of those properties bought back (36,555) 
Cash Requirement at 2030 including receipts from the sale of 
properties received to replace the ex-leasehold / freehold 
properties which the council has bought back and receipts from 
letting of those properties bought back 54,067 
Net present value of cash flows to 2030 at a 6.6% discount rate 
including receipts from the sale of properties received to replace 
the ex-leasehold / freehold properties which the council has 
bought back and receipts from letting of those properties bought 
back 22,597 
Net present value of cash flows to 2030 at a 9% discount rate 
including receipts from the sale of properties received to replace 
the ex-leasehold / freehold properties which the council has 
bought back and receipts from letting of those properties bought 
back 16,020 
 

Year of peak 
cash out flow 

Year of peak cash outflow including buyback sales 2018 
                                                 
39 Including indexation 

Page 71



 

Page 53 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

53

 
12.11.4    Due to the nature of the CLSA ongoing forecasting will be required 

as the exact timing of events becomes clear.  
 
12.11.5     It is important that during the course of the development that 

sufficient funds are held to enable the buying back of properties and 
to manage other risks. It is therefore recommended that until the 
volume of buy back requests on the Estates becomes apparent that 
sufficient funds are ring fenced within projected receipts to enable all 
leaseholders to be bought back if required. 

 
Table 14 – Buyback sensitivities and cashflow 
 

Sensitivity modelled Impact on Peak Cash 
requirement including 
receipts from the sale 
of properties received 
to replace the ex-
leasehold / freehold 
properties which the 
council has bought 
back and income on 
letting them 

Impact on 2030 
Cumulative Cash 
requirement including 
receipts from the sale 
of properties received 
to replace the ex-
leasehold / freehold 
properties which the 
council has bought 
back and income on 
letting them 

Sensitivities which increase peak 
cash requirements 

£’000 £’000 
100% buybacks, Council funds (36,869) 34,044 
Capco fund all buybacks, 100% 
Buybacks , use of Capco Facility 
Maximised (23,766) 18,966 
Plus 10% on all costs (includes 10% 
House Price Inflation in 2012) (8,193) (7,036) 
House Price Inflation: 10% Increase 

      in house prices in 2012, 20%  
 decrease in house prices in 2020 (4,207) (7,909) 
Plus 10% on non buyback costs (3,976) (7,218) 
1% Increase in Stamp Duty (1,338) (6,228) 
Libor: 1% Increase and 1% increase 
in loans pool rate (1,224) (1,781) 
RPI: 1% Increase (1,211) (470) 
Extra £500 increase per property in 
maintenance costs  (58) (404) 
   
Sensitivities which decrease peak 
cash requirements 

£’000 £’000 
Slower development: all later phases 
delayed by 2 years 0 3,316 
Council Terminates as only Seagrave 
Developed and does not manage 
corresponding costs down 1,460 (61,476) 
House Price Inflation 10% decrease 
in house prices in 2012 4,172 (197) 
Trigger not served 7,052 (55,936) 
Maximum Capco funding used for 
buybacks, all non resident and 25% 
of resident leaseholders bought back 12,262 (11,811) 

Page 72



 

Page 54 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

54

   
 

12.12       Impact on 30 year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) business plan 
 

12.12.1 The CLSA will have a significant impact on the 30 year HRA 
 business plan. It should be appreciated that as this is a conditional 
 agreement there is a level of uncertainty at this point in time in 
 terms of the timing of cash flows and officers will continue to work 
 on this on an ongoing basis. 
 
12.12.2    The initial business plan and forecasting will develop as certainty 

increases concerning the serving of the Trigger Notice, the detailed 
phasing and the volume of leaseholder buy backs. The principal 
impacts of the CLSA on the 30 year HRA business plan are: 

 
� Significant stability on maintenance costs as a result of receiving 

high quality new build properties to replace properties which 
currently have a significant long tem maintenance requirement. 

� A short-term contained increase in service costs. 
� Costs arising from holding the properties bought back from 

leaseholders if these are not fully covered by rental income. 
� Potential repayment of a significant amount of HRA debt in the 

longer term and / or additional funds available for investment in 
Housing and Regeneration.  

� A possible short term funding requirement if there is a significant 
demand for leaseholder buybacks if as anticipated the Council 
opts to buy back properties direct from Leaseholders / 
Freeholders ( this depends on the net holding cost, see section 
12.10 above). 

� A short-term call on HRA reserves to fund costs which are not 
capitalisable under CIPFA guidance e.g. security costs. 

� A possible call on HRA reserves if damages arise if vacant 
possession is not achieved in line with the timescales proscribed 
within the HRA. This is capped at £10m. It should be noted that 
this is more than the amount currently held within reserves and 
this potential exposure should be taken into account when 
setting target reserves balances for planning purposes. 

� Costs arising from legal challenges. 
 
12.13 Financial Risks 

 
12.13.1 The principal financial risks and their mitigating factors can be   
                 summarised as: 
 

• Interest rates:  
- If the Council buys back the properties directly this can be 

mitigated by using the receipts from the Decent 
Neighbourhoods Fund (i.e. by not using funds to repay 
existing debt or to invest in new initiatives) and by the 
Council’s ability to borrow fixed rate funds at a competitive 

Page 73



 

Page 55 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

55

rate via the PWLB. There is however an opportunity cost that 
arises as these funds could have potentially been used for 
other purposes. 

- If the Council use the Capco funding facility the Council is 
exposed to a level of interest rate risk as this facility is totally 
variable. This risk could be partially mitigated by paying off 
the capital debt with Capco early using funds as above. As 
noted in paragraph 12.10.7 above it is likely that the Council 
would instead buy back the properties directly from 
leaseholders / freeholders.  

- The sensitivity of cash flows to interest rates is illustrated in 
paragraph 12.11.5 above. 

• Inflation. This would increase costs which would be offset to 
some extent by additional income. The sensitivity to inflation is 
illustrated in paragraph 12.11.5 above. 

• House Price Inflation (HPI): high levels of HPI would increase 
the cost of Leaseholder / Freeholder buy backs. However unless 
there was a later dip in the Housing Market this would be result 
in the replacement properties received by the Council having a 
higher value. Should property prices decrease after the 
leaseholders / freeholders have been bought out but prior to the 
Council receiving the replacement properties the Council would 
have the ability to hold the properties in the longer term until the 
Housing Market cycle reversed subject to careful monitoring of 
the HRA 30 year business plan.   

• Holding costs of properties in the event of a termination 
occurring. 
- Should the Council have opted to use Capco to fund the 

buybacks this could result in a significant cost to the Council 
with no return. Capco 
- Should the Council opt to buy back properties directly from 

the leaseholders / freeholders it is anticipated that following 
the Localism Act 2011 the rental income stream from the 
properties would cover the bulk of the holding costs of the 
properties as well as providing additional affordable 
accommodation. Should the CLSA then terminate the 
Council would be able to sell the properties purchased from 
leaseholders / freeholders if desired, recover the capital 
costs and benefit from any capital gain.  

• Running costs for replacement properties, a sensitivity has been 
modelled for this in paragraph 12.11.5.  

• Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT): if the agreement is incorrectly 
structured or there is a change in legislation there is a risk that 
the transfer of the social rented properties would attract SDLT 
based on their full market value. The cash flows modelled above 
assume this SDLT is payable. However as SDLT would be 
payable on the open market value of the replacement homes 
these figures should be viewed as indicative as the amount will 
depend on the property market at the time the homes are given 

Page 74



 

Page 56 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

56

to the Council and on SDLT rates then in force. A sensitivity has 
been modelled for this in paragraph 12.11.5, a regime which 
places caps on service charges and some maintenance costs 
has been agreed via the Head lease and will be included in s106 
agreements. 

• Replacement properties; The Council will as promised provide 
replacement properties for all tenants. There is a risk that should 
there be net overcrowding across the estate that the gross 
internal floor area specified in the agreement would be 
insufficient to provide all the replacement homes required. This 
would mean that some of the replacement properties currently 
allocated for sale would need to be used to house tenants. 
However other properties could be sold as they became void 
thereby mitigating the financial impact. Given this mitigation this 
risk is unlikely to crystallise. 

• Risk of challenge costs: Allowance has been made for these 
costs within the cash flow forecasts based on estimates 
provided by officers in our legal department however there is a 
risk that additional funds may be required.  

• Damages, especially for failure to give vacant possession. The 
agreement caps these at £10m however it should be noted that 
it also contains an overage clause applicable to the Council that 
allows for additional damages to be paid via this overage clause 
should the agreement be terminated and should the Council sell 
the land to another developer within 5 years of termination 

 
12.14       Indemnity and Capco covenant package 
 
12.14.1 The Council has undertaken financial due diligence on the assets in 

EC Properties LP and Earls Court Ltd to ensure they are adequate.  
This work has been undertaken by PWC on the Council’s behalf.  
Capco have provided the Council with a separate indemnity against 
any blight claims up to £50m from the date of adoption of the SPD. 
The CLSA provides for the continuation of this indemnity and 
provides the council until the trigger date with an initial guaranteed 
amount of £50m.  

 
12.14.2 Following the trigger date the guaranteed amount increases to 

£75m, being the total value of advance payments that are 
outstanding under the agreement, falling to £60m following the 
payment of the first advance payment and £50m after the second. 
These amounts are then further adjusted in accordance with the 
CPO liabilities as specified in the CLSA. Subsequent to the 
payment of the second advance payment the amount guaranteed is 
then reduced as payments are made and CPO liabilities reduce. It 
should be noted however, that it is only in certain circumstances 
that there is likely to be a material liability owed by Capco to the 
Council in the event of a termination. 

 

Page 75



 

Page 57 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

57

12.14.3 £30m of the guaranteed amount is secured as a first charge against 
specific assets with the remainder being covered by a net asset 
value (NAV) test which requires coverage of 120% in EC Properties 
LP and Earls Court Ltd. The NAV test is re-performed at 6 monthly 
intervals following the signing of the CLSA. The security on the 
assets is released following the receipt of the first two advance 
payments with subsequent guaranteed amounts being provided 
using the NAV test. This can be summarised by the following 
diagram 40,41: 

 
 

Pre-signing Sign CLSA From signing 
to trigger date

T rigger date 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2019

Outstanding
Liabilities

15.0m
(exclusivity, paid)

1 5.0m
(Gibbs / Farm)

Nil £7 5m £60m £45m nil

Initial Guaranteed
Amount

n/a £50m £50m £75m £60m £50m £50m

Secured Amount n/a £30m £30m £30m £15m nil nil

The above assumes the trigger date is before 31 December 2015.  If it is later than this the first instalment becomes due on the trigger date, and subsequent instalments are 
due on the four subsequent anniversaries. Each instalment in this case will be adjusted by the retail price index between 31 December 2015 and the trigger date

Total consideration 
(including 
Seagrave Road) = 
£105m

 
12.14.4 If the financial test is failed then Capco is required to undertake 

actions such as acquiring or transferring from elsewhere within the 
Capco group additional assets, reducing liabilities, substituting the 
guarantor, providing additional guarantees or suitable security. If 
these remedial actions are not taken the Council is entitled to 
terminate the CLSA 

 
12.14.5  Initial assessment of the guarantee and compliance with the NAV 

test has been undertaken by PWC.  The CLSA also contains the 
ability for the Council to do an interim assessment should 
circumstances arise which give cause for concern around the 
availability of the assets as well as the ability for the Council to 
terminate should the asset provisions not be complied with.      

 
 
12.15      Accounting Treatment 
  
12.15.1 The land proposed to be sold by the Council is held partly in the  

General Fund and partly in the HRA. The total consideration will 
need to be apportioned between the two funds based on the 
acreage of land. Any receipts apportioned to the HRA will 
potentially be caught by capital pooling regulations. In order to 
avoid pooling the Council will have to ensure that all the monies 
pertaining to the HRA, both those received directly from Capco and 
those from the sale of properties are reinvested in Affordable 
Housing and Regeneration. This includes the repayment of HRA 

                                                 
40 In addition to the amounts shown below there is a blight indemnity agreement in place until the signing of the CLSA 
for £50m. 
41 Note the initial exclusivity payment forms part of the first £15m of consideration on signing of the CLSA. 

Page 76



 

Page 58 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

58

debt and funding the cost of any buybacks. It is anticipated that with 
planning it should be possible to retain the full receipt. 

 
12.15.2   As the cash receipts do not follow the land transfers, the accounting 

treatment is fairly complex.  
 
12.15.3   The accounting treatment for each phase will need to be agreed 

with the external auditors and it should be recognised that the 
precise treatment may deviate from that set out below as the rules 
governing it are likely to change over the life of this project. One key 
issue will be how we hold the replacement properties for 
leaseholders, both those in which we retain an equity share and 
those which we own outright where the leaseholder has opted to be 
bought out. The table of costs set out in Appendix 13 gives an 
indication of the accounting treatment for costs based on current 
rules. 

 
12.15.4 An initial £15m has already been paid to the Council on signing the 

Exclusivity Agreement. £10m of this is refundable if the CLSA is not 
entered into or Secretary of State’s consent is not obtained for the 
overall disposal, £5m is not refundable. The £5m is currently treated 
as a capital receipt in advance and will become a capital receipt on 
the signing of the CLSA. The £10m is retained as a long term 
liability pending the granting of consent by the Secretary of State. 
Following the granting of a satisfactory Secretary of State consent 
the £10m can be retained by the Council in the event of termination 
because Capco have not served the Trigger Notice. Therefore 
following granting of Secretary of State consent this amount will 
become a capital receipt.   

 
12.15.5   The £15m to be received for the sale of 11 Farm Lane and Gibbs 

Green School will form part of the total consideration. Title will 
transfer on receipt of consideration for Farm Lane and this will be 
treated as a general fund capital receipt. Gibbs Green School will 
exchange on transfer with completion occurring when the school 
site is vacated. The proportion of the receipt pertaining to Gibbs 
Green School will therefore be held as a capital receipt in advance 
and the funds will not be able to be used for capital purposes until 
completion occurs. Officers’ initial cash flow forecasting indicates 
that this can be accommodated within the general fund capital 
programme, however it should be noted that if for some reason 
other receipts failed to crystallise there is a risk that a temporary 
general fund borrowing requirement would arise in order to fund 
works on the proposed new off site school. 

 
12.15.6  The £75m cash consideration would, unless attributable to a land 

transfer, be refundable if at the point of termination the Council had 
failed to comply with certain conditions or if the Council served a 
termination notice as a result of the non completion of 50% of the 
social rented properties by the deadline given in the CLSA. 

Page 77



 

Page 59 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

59

Therefore the remaining £75m cash consideration is also retained 
on the balance sheet as a long term liability and is released over 
time as land is transferred.  As each land transfer occurs a 
reconciliation will need to be carried out  

 
12.16      Service Charges 
 
12.16.2 As far as possible the Council wants to minimise service charge 

costs for its own tenants. A detailed service charge agreement 
regime has been agreed which places caps on the level of service 
charges the Council will pay for the tenanted properties as part of 
the Head Lease and will be included in the s106 agreements. 

  
12.17       Taxation 
 
12.17.2   PWC have been appointed to advise on the taxation aspects of this 

scheme and have worked with us to ensure our structure is tax 
efficient. Their report is included in Appendix 14 and the tax 
implications are summarised below. 

 
12.18        Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) 
 
12.18.1 SDLT is the principal area of concern and it will be important to 

ensure that the replacement properties being transferred to the 
Council are seen as affordable housing for SDLT purposes to 
ensure no SDLT charge arises on the transfer. It is understood that 
the easiest way to achieve this is to ensure they are specified as 
such in the S106. Should the S106 not specify this, or the land 
transactions not take place in the 5 years, following the planning 
obligation, then a very large SDLT liability could arise.   

 
12.18.2 There is however a risk that even with the properties recognised as 

affordable within the Section 106 that HMRC will consider that the 
obligation to provide the properties is in the CLSA rather than within 
the Section 106 agreement and will consider that SDLT should be 
payable. The structure of the CLSA offers some protection against 
this but can not offer full protection unless all reference to the 
replacement properties is removed from it, this is not commercially 
practical as it would create other significant risks. Therefore all the 
cash flows presented in this report assume the Council incurs full 
SDLT based on open market value on the replacement properties 
as well as on the acquisition of the leaseholder buy backs, i.e. the 
cash flows include the large potential liability referred to in PWC’s 
report, including those which might arise if Capco acquired 
properties from leaseholders / freeholders on the Council’s behalf. 

 
12.18.3 It should also be noted that if land is acquired under a CPO then, as 

detailed in the report, additional SDLT relief is possible and where 
possible the conditions for this should be satisfied. Again the cash 

Page 78



 

Page 60 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

60

flows included above adopt a prudent position and assume no 
SDLT relief arises for the properties on the estates. 

 
12.19       VAT 
12.19.1     The grant of any interest in land by the Council will be, prima facie, 

exempt from VAT as no option to tax is being made.  As a result, 
there is no VAT to charge on the consideration received from 
Capco.  

12.19.2     Generally speaking, a local authority can recover VAT in full on its 
costs, provided it remains within its partial exemption 5% de 
minimis limit. This is calculated as 5% of the total VAT it incurs 
annually.  A council is required to assess all of the VAT it incurs in 
respect of its exempt activity across the authority and where this is 
less than 5% of all of the VAT it incurs in total, the Council can 
reclaim VAT in full.  However, where the Council exceeds the 5% 
limit, then all of the VAT the Council has incurred which relates to 
exempt activity is irrecoverable.    

12.19.3    Therefore the Council has estimated the level of VAT to be incurred 
in respect of this transaction. Current cash flows indicate that 
amount of exempt input tax can be accommodated in the partial 
exemption de minimis limit with careful management, especially if 
the seven year rolling average is used. This will need to be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis as the CLSA contains a warranty 
which states that the Council will not opt to tax the land transfers.. 

12.20 Corporation tax 
12.20.1 The Council will not incur any corporation tax as a local authority in 

the UK is not liable to corporation tax or income tax. 
 
13. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR FOR LEGAL AND 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

13.1 The Council is exercising a range of powers to participate in the 
scheme and secure the redevelopment and regeneration of the 
area. The principal powers to be exercised by Cabinet are set out 
below. 

 
13.2 Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows the Council 

to dispose of non-housing land on such terms as it considers 
appropriate. Freehold disposals require the Council to obtain the 
best consideration reasonably obtainable (or the Secretary of 
State’s consent to disposal at less than best consideration). The 
Council is entitled to rely on professional valuation advice as to 
whether best consideration (which is money or money’s worth) has 
been achieved.  

Page 79



 

Page 61 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

61

 
13.3 The Council holds the Estates under Part ll of the Housing Act 1985 

and has the power to dispose under section 32 of the Act with the 
consent of the Secretary of State at DCLG. An application for 
consent to dispose of more than 500 or more properties to a person 
under the Leasehold Reform Housing and Urban Development Act 
1993 or the Housing Act must be approved by Full Council under 
Article 4 of the Constitution.   

 
13.4 As stated in paragraph 5 above the Council, as landlord, has 

carried out a formal consultation with tenants of the Estates which 
has satisfied the requirements of section 105 of the Housing Act 
1985.   

 
13.5 Council tenants whose accommodation is required for the 

redevelopment will be offered secure tenancies in the replacement 
accommodation. It is anticipated that this will be acceptable to 
many. Any occupiers who are secure tenants cannot be decanted 
against their will without either a court order under the Housing Act 
1985 or the Council exercising its powers to acquire the secure 
tenancies under section 226 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. If agreement cannot be reached with tenants then the Council 
will consider the use CPO powers under section 226 and that the 
process will be triggered by the service of a CPO Start Notice. A 
rehousing strategy which took into account the needs of the social 
housing tenants would be developed before the Council was asked 
to consider further which power would be more appropriate to 
enable the Council to achieve the objective of a comprehensive 
redevelopment of the area. At that stage, the Council would need to 
consider fully any Human Rights Act issues and might need to 
undertake a further Equalities Impact Assessment or revisit and 
update aspects of the existing one, at Appendix 12. 

 
13.6 Tenants who do not have an interest to sell to the Council may be 

entitled to a fixed home loss payment of (currently) £4,700 per unit. 
Tenants may be entitled to exercise their Right to Buy although 
there is a procedure under schedule 5A to the Housing Act 1985 
where this can be avoided by the service of a demolition notice. 

 
13.8 Existing leaseholders and any freeholders will need to have their 

interest acquired. As well as receiving market value, resident 
owners occupying as their main residence and who have lived in 
the premises for at least one year may be entitled to a home loss 
payment of 10% of market value up to a current maximum of 
£47,000 plus compensation for disturbance and reimbursement of 
legal and other expenses (on both the sale and also on acquiring a 
replacement property). 

 
13.9 Section 120 of the Local Government Act 1972 Act allows the 

Council, for the purposes of any enactment or for the benefit, 

Page 80



 

Page 62 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

62

improvement or development of their area, to acquire by agreement 
any land inside or outside its area. The redeveloped properties will 
be acquired by the Council for the purposes of its housing functions 
under the Housing Act 1985. Should the Council be required to 
exercise its compulsory purchase powers then this will be 
addressed in a further report to Cabinet.  

 
13.10 Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 has been repealed 

and replaced in England by the general power of competence 
enacted in the Localism Act 2011.  Section 1 of the 2011 Act gives 
the Council “power to do anything that individuals generally may 
do”.  This is subject to restrictions but it is not considered that there 
is any vires problem with the proposed project which is the subject 
of this report.   

 
13.11 Finally, section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows the 

Council to do anything (whether or not involving the expenditure, 
borrowing or lending money or the acquisition or disposal of any 
property rights) which is calculated to facilitate or which is 
conducive or incidental to the discharge of any of its functions.  The 
Council has various housing law functions to the discharge of which 
the proposed CLSA is considered conducive and incidental. 

 
13.12 The Council therefore has the necessary powers to adopt the 

recommendations set out in the report. It is noted that the Council 
may seek to acquire land compulsorily at a future stage. The 
Council has the ability to do this provided the tests set out within 
section 226 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are 
satisfied.  

 
13.13       The Public Sector Equality Duty  
 
13.13.1    The public sector equality duty provisions of the Equality Act 2010 

      came into force on 5th April 2011 and widened the general 
      equalities duties with which a local authority has to comply.  Given 
      its importance to the decision, this legal aspect has already given 
      separate consideration in section 10 of this report, above. 

 
13.14 Procurement 
 
13.14.1 The risk of challenge has been mitigated as far as possible in two 

ways.  Advice from leading counsel has been received in this 
regard, the contents of which are protected by legal professional 
privilege.  On the basis of leading counsel’s advice it is considered 
that the CLSA is not a public works contract to which the Public 
Contract Regulations 2006 apply. 

 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

Page 63 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

63

13.15 Blight 
  
13.15.1    The adoption of the Supplementary Planning document might give 

rise to attempted blight claims. An indemnity is in place from CapCo 
concerning this. Blight can also arise in the circumstances outlined 
in schedule 13 to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and one 
of these is the making of a compulsory purchase order. Accordingly, 
it will be necessary to ensure that there is a valid indemnity in force 
from a company which has a sufficient net asset value to cover the 
potential liabilities.  This indemnity has already been addressed in 
this report. 

 
14.0         COMMENTS OF CORPORATE RISK 
 
14.1       The context of risk is attached in the risk log at Appendix 15 which 
              highlight the risks associated with the project. As new risks emerge 
              they will be added to the register as necessary and the corporate risk 
              register will be amended to reflect any changes in the nature of risk. 

 
15.0         Schedule of Appendices  
 
Appendix 1 Land Ownership Plan 
Appendix 2 Estate Regeneration economic appraisal 
Appendix 3 Consultation History 
Appendix 4 Consultation Information Pack 
Appendix 5 Analysis of Responses to Consultation 
Appendix 6 Summary of CLSA terms prepared by SNR Denton  
Appendix 7 Earl’s Court/West Kensington Local Lettings Plan Interim 

Statement  
Appendix 8 London Design Guide Standards Comparison 
Appendix 9 Initial Phasing Plan  
Appendix 10 JLL Best Consideration Letter  
Appendix 11  PWC Best Consideration Letter 
Appendix 12 Equalities Impact Assessment 
Appendix 13 Financial Cost Range  
Appendix 14 PWC Tax Report 
Appendix 15 Risk Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



 

Page 64 of 64 Final Cabinet Report  V21 – 21st  August 2012 
 
. 

64

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of 
holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Cabinet Report - 18th July 2011 
(Open Report) 

Sarah Lovell 
X5571 

Housing and 
Regeneration  
 

2. Cabinet Members Decision – Estate 
Regeneration economic appraisal- 7th 
November 2011 

Sarah Lovell 
X5571  

Housing and 
Regeneration  
 

3. Cabinet Report – 23rd April 2012 
(Open Report) 

Sarah Lovell 
X5571 

Housing and 
Regeneration 

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Lovell & 
Tomasz Kozlowski 
 

EXT: 5571 / 4532 

 
 

Page 83



6
32

1
7

5b

6

5a

8

4
ST THOMAS'S W

AY

M
IR

A
B

E
L R

O
A

D

ESTCOURT ROAD

TOURNAY ROAD

FA
B

IA
N

 R
O

A
D

HALDANE R
OAD

E
P

IR
U

S
 R

O
A

D

R
Y

LS
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

H
A

R
TIS

M
E

R
E

 R
O

A
D

JOHN SMITH AVENUE

COOMER MEWS

CHESSON ROAD

MARCHBANK ROAD

FANE ST

ARCHEL ROAD

STAR ROAD

ROAD

COOMER PLACE

SQUARE

LE
R

R
Y

 C
LO

S
E

COURT

TELEPHONE PLACE

H
U

G
H

 G
A

IT
S

K
E

LL C
LO

S
E

R
Y

LS
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

MENDORA ROAD

LE
N

 FR
E

E
M

A
N

 P
LA

C
E

BRAMBER ROAD

CHESSON ROAD

ARCHEL ROAD

SEDLESCOMBE ROAD

LILLIE ROAD

A
LLE

Y

N
O

R
T

H
 E

N
D

 R
O

A
D

C
H

ESTN
U

T CHESTNUT

M
U

LG
R

A
V

E
 R

O
A

D

BEAUFORT MEWS

GEORGE'S

MARGARET IN
GRAM CLOSE

A
IS

G
ILL A

V
E

THAXTON ROAD

HALDANE

R
O

A
DTURNEVILLE

CROWTHER CLOSE

HUGH DALTON AVENUE

B
A

R
B

A
R

A
 C

A
S

TLE
 C

LO
S

E

JE
R

V
IS

 R
O

A
D

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

P
LA

C
E

STANIER

IV
A

T
T

STAR ROAD

EDITH VILLAS

S
U

N
R

O
A

D

S
U

N
 R

O
A

D

MUND STREET

WEST CROMWELL ROAD

C
H

A
LLO

N
E

R
 S

TR
E

E
T

BEAUMONT

CASTLETOWN ROAD

LANFREY PLACE

PERHAM ROAD

MAY STREET

CLO
SE

FRANKLIN SQUARE

IV
A

T
T

 P
L

A
C

E

BELLAM
Y CLO

SE

A
IS

G
ILL A

V
E

N
U

E

AISG
ILL AVEN

U
E

CHARLEVILLE ROAD

BEAUMONT AVENUE

N
O

R
T

H
 E

N
D

 R
O

A
D

DIEPPE CLOSE

D
IE

P
P

E
 C

LO
S

E

E
N

D

MORNINGTON

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

AVENUE

WEST CROMWELL ROAD

STANWICK ROAD

EPIRUS ROAD

EPIRUS MEWS

EUSTACE R
OAD

W
ALH

AM
 YAR

D

WALHAM G
ROVE

FARM L
ANE

SHORROLDS ROAD

N
O

R
T

H
 E

N
D

 R
O

A
D

VANSTON PLACES
T

 JO
H

N
'S

 C
LO

S
E

TOURNAY ROAD

EXETER M
EW

S

VANSTON PLACE

RICKETT STREET

LANGTRY PLACE

B
R

O
M

P
TO

N
 P

A
R

K
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

WALHAM G
ROVE

LILLIE ROAD

RO
AD

HALFORD ROAD

R
O

X
B

Y
 P

LA
C

E

MARCHBANK

S
E

A
G

R
A

V
E

 R
O

A
D

N
O

R
TH

 E
N

D
 R

O
A

D

FAR
M

 LAN
E

K
N

IV
E

TT R
O

A
D

LILLIE
 Y

A
R

D

TAM
W

O
R

TH
 STR

EET

HILDYARD ROAD

ANSELM ROAD

RACTON ROAD

O
N

G
A

R
 R

O
A

D

ROAD

SEDLESCOMBE ROAD

ARMADALE ROAD

M
IC

K
LE

TH
W

A
ITE

 R
O

A
D

MERRINGTON

THAXTON ROAD

PENYW
ERN R

D

E
A

R
L'S

 C
O

U
R

T
SQ

U
AR

E

W
ARW

ICK

EARL'S COURT SQUARE

ROAD

NEVERN SQ

TR
EBO

VIR
 R

O
AD

PHILBEACH GARDENS

CO
URT 

SQ
UARE

PLAC
E

PHILBEACH GARDENS

PENYW
ERN R

D

NEVERN S
Q

UARE

W
ARW

ICK ROAD

E
A

R
D

LE
Y

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

EARL'S

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

OLD BROMPTON ROAD

EM
PRESS

K
E

M
P

S
F

O
R

D

PENYW
ERN R

D

EARL'S CO
URT RO

AD

O
LD

 M
ANO

R Y
ARD

CLU
NY M

EW
S

PH
IL

BE
AC

H
 G

AR
D

EN
S

W
ARW

ICK ROAD

NEVERN SQUARE

NEVERN SQUARE

NEVERN S
Q

UARE

NEVER
N SQ

U
AR

E

TR
EBO

VIR
 R

O
AD

WEST

KENSINGTON

Avon Trading Estate

Kensington Village

Farm
 Lane T

ra
ding C

entre

Nevern Mansions

Station
Buildings

Nevern Mansions

Dra
in

D
ra

in

playground

Playground

Playground

play area

Sub Sta

Normand Park
Bowling Green

Playground

El

Playground

Playground

WB

Playground

Playground

El Sub Sta

Playground

Car, Coach and Lorry Park

Brompton Park

Car

Brompton Cemetery

Car,Coach and Lorry Park

Sub Sta
El

Park

Brompton Cemetery

Park

Brompton Cemetery

Car

DW

BSI

FS 32265

PROJECT
COUNCIL
HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM

Transport & Technical Services
Town Hall Extension, King Street

Original Sheet Size

Revision

CEP

Not to Scale

63120/3/1
DWG No.

Scale

London W6 9JU
Tel. 020 8748 3020
Drawn

A4
Date

NOTES Init

Nov.'10

Checked Approved

Date Rev

LAND OWNERSHIP IN THE
EARL'S COURT AREA

LEGEND

C

11 Farm Lane area CEPJune '11 A
added.

Devised and created by the Land & Asset
Survey Team using CAD & GIS software.
This drawing is Copyright.2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No. LA100019223

© Crown copyright and database rights

HOR MB

Areas and descriptions CEPJuly '12 B
revised.

Area 8 - Seagrave Road Site
CAPCO Freehold
Planning consent for 808 homes granted 30th March 2012

Area 7 - Empress State Building
Freehold - Joint venture between CAPCO and Land Securities.
Leased until 2019 to Metropolitan Police.

Area 4 - 11 Farm Lane
LBHF Freehold. Vacant.

Area 1 - West Kensington Estate
LBHF Freehold

Area 2 - Gibbs Green Estate
LBHF Freehold

Area 6 - TFL Operational Land
TFL Freehold

Area 5a - Earls Court 1
TFL Freehold.
CAPCO Leasehold.
Lease 1 (Earls Court 1) Expires 2041

Area 5b - Earls Court 2
TFL Freehold.
CAPCO Leasehold.
Lease 2 (Earls Court 2) Expires 2115

Area 3 - Former Gibbs Green School
LBHF Freeehold

Borough Boundary

Numbers added. CEPJuly '12 C

Page 84



AMION Consulting Limited 
Customs House, 7 Union Street, Liverpool L3 9QX 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham 

 
 

Proposed Estates 
Regeneration - Economic 
Appraisal 
 
Report 
 
November 2011  

 
 

Page 85



   London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
   Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal 
   Report 
   November 2011 
 

 

 
 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
 

Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic 

Appraisal 
 
Report 
 
November 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reviewed and approved by: 

 
Signature(s):  
  
Name(s): Graham Russell 
  
Job Title(s): Partner Director 
  
Date: November 2011 
  

AMION Consulting is the trading name of AMION Consulting Limited 
Registered Office: Langtons, The Plaza, 100 Old Hall Street, Liverpool L3 9QJ 
Company No: 3909897 
Tel: 0151 227 5563 
This document including appendices contains 16 pages 
Ref: K:\CLIENTS\JLL\Earls Court\Deliverables\LBHF Estate Regeneration - Economic 
Appraisal 071111 Revised Final.docx 

Page 86



   London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
   Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal 
   Report 
   November 2011 
 

 

Contents 
 

1 Overview 1 

2 Background to regeneration 2 

3 Alternative options 3 

4 Economic benefits 4 

5 Conclusions 16 

 

Page 87



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

1 
 

1 Overview 
AMION Consulting, in conjunction with Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL), has been appointed to prepare 
an Economic Appraisal Report to assist the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham (LBHF 
or the Council) in considering the possible inclusion of the West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
estates within a comprehensive phased scheme of regeneration for the Earl’s Court and West 
Kensington Opportunity Area (see Figure 1.1).  The Opportunity Area comprises circa 36 
hectares (89 acres) of land split between LBHF and the Royal Borough of Kensington and 
Chelsea (RBKC). 

Figure 1.1: Earl’s Court and West Kensington Opportunity Area 

 

The two estates cover 8.9 ha (22 acres) of land primarily owned by LBHF.  There are currently a 
total of 760 properties on the estates, of which 531 are council owned social rented properties, 
132 leasehold properties, 39 freehold properties and 58 Housing Association properties.  The 
two estates suffer from discontinuous internal roads and poor quality open space.  

The Council has set out in the submission Core Strategy of the Local Development Framework 
(LDF) a vision for a borough of decent and aspirational neighbourhoods and has identified the 
principles which should underpin regeneration.  The Housing Strategy also identifies specific 
objectives.  Based on these documents the following objectives have been identified for the 
proposed regeneration of the area:   

 to increase the supply of housing, providing quality homes on sustainable new 
developments; 

Page 88



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

2 
 

 to create clean and safe neighbourhoods in an area rich in opportunity; 

 to provide a mix of housing type, size and tenure to attract people on a range of incomes, 
creating mixed and balanced communities; 

 to allow people to acquire a stake in their home; 

 to ensure development is of a high quality design and provides a mix of local facilities; 

 to improve access to employment and training opportunities; 

 to help to improve educational attainment and health outcomes and secure low levels of 
crime; 

 to improve transport, accessibility and encourage walking through areas; and 

 to increase satisfaction with the townscape, public realm, environment and management. 

The Economic Appraisal Report assesses the potential options that could be pursued by the 
Council in relation to the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates within this context.  This 
analysis takes into account market, socio-economic and policy context.  The report has been 
produced in line with HM Treasury’s Green Book, which indicates that all spending proposals 
should be accompanied by a proportionate and well structured appraisal. 

2 Background to regeneration 
The Earl’s Court and West Kensington Opportunity Area has been identified as one of London’s 
most important development opportunities.  It has been allocated in the Mayor’s London Plan 
(2011) due to its potential ability to contribute significantly to achieving housing and job growth 
targets over the next 20-30 years. The Opportunity Area has also been promoted through the 
Core Strategies of LBHF and RBKC as a key development area.  The phased comprehensive 
regeneration of the area is seen as offering a strong opportunity to bring about the 
regeneration of the estates. 

The West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates are now between 30 and 40 years old and, whilst 
it is understood that they remain relatively popular with a number of residents and are well 
managed and maintained by the LBHF, they will be subject to increasing levels of obsolescence.  
The management and maintenance costs incurred by the Council are expected to increase 
above that for modern Council owned properties in order to sustain both the buildings' fabric 
and address design obsolescence resulting from increasing housing standards.  Already the 
average cost per dwelling of the estates is above the average figure for LBHF housing estates. 

Overcrowding is also an issue with 16% of the properties on the two estates being currently 
overcrowded, compared to a Hammersmith and Fulham average of 13.9%.  However, an 
assessment by the Council has also shown that there is significant under occupancy on the two 
estates, with 29.8% of the properties on the estates being under occupied, compared to a 
borough average of 7.9%. 

The estates lie within the North Fulham area, which remains one of the most polarised in the 
borough in social, economic and physical terms.  In 2010, the area fell within the 20 percent 

Page 89



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

3 
 

most deprived areas in England on the Index of Multiple Deprivation.  The estates are both in 
the 10 per cent most deprived neighbourhoods in LBHF, experiencing the highest levels of 
income and employment deprivation and very significant housing and services deprivation.  The 
estates also suffer from high levels of unemployment, as well as below average educational 
attainment and health outcomes. 

There is considered to be a strong rationale for regeneration and for including the estates within 
the comprehensive regeneration of the Opportunity Area.  In this context, the Council has been 
discussing a proposal to enter a Land Sale Agreement to grant an option to a developer, Capital 
and Countries (CapCo), to include the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates, alongside the 
CapCo owned Earl’s Court Buildings and Seagrave Road car park and the Transport for London 
(TfL) owned Lillie Bridge Depot, in a comprehensive regeneration scheme. CapCo has submitted 
a suite of planning applications to the Council and to RBKC for a comprehensive regeneration 
scheme for the area, including the estates. 

3 Alternative options 
A range of estate regeneration options have been considered in order to understand whether 
the regeneration of the estates as part of the comprehensive regeneration of the Opportunity 
Area should be pursued from an economic perspective.  Five options have been assessed, which 
differ in terms of the nature and scale of intervention and whether the estates are retained or 
redeveloped.  The five options are as follows: 

 Option 1: Do minimum intervention (reference case) – under this option, LBHF would 
continue to own, manage and maintain the estates, as well as retain the West Kensington 
and Gibbs Green halls. 

An alternative scenario under Option 1 would be for the Council to make a stock transfer of 
the estates to a Registered Provider by a competitive process and subject to the tenants’ 
approval.  However, it is considered that the estate would be unlikely to change physically if 
this were to happen.  Moreover, it is unlikely that a package of investment and 
improvement would be forthcoming at a level which would be sufficiently attractive to 
tenants whilst delivering a satisfactory level of capital receipt to the Council; 

 Option 2: Minimal intervention and infill development – under this option, LBHF would again 
continue to own, manage and maintain the estates, as well as retain the West Kensington 
and Gibbs Green halls.  However, opportunities for additional infill development and 
additional disposal of Council land within and adjacent to the estates would also be brought 
forward for development.  Consideration was given to larger scale partial redevelopment of 
the estates.  However, it was concluded that this was likely to be a less attractive 
proposition, since it would be less efficient, disruptive, only address a limited range of issues 
and fail to realise the full scope of benefits; 

  

Page 90



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

4 
 

 Option 3(a): Comprehensive redevelopment: standalone estate redevelopment1 – the estates 
would be comprehensively redeveloped and, in accordance with planning requirements, the 
differentials in levels between the three land ownerships would be addressed. This would 
involve substantial engineering costs; 

 Option 3(b): Comprehensive redevelopment as a standalone estate redevelopment1 – in 
order to test the costs and benefits of the alternative options, a variation of Option 3(a) has 
also been developed, which assumes the existing levels are maintained. This option is based 
on a modest infrastructure budget; and 

 Option 4: Comprehensive redevelopment as part of a wider Earl’s Court redevelopment 
masterplan1 – under this option, redevelopment would be undertaken of the combined 
LBHF, CapCo and TfL land, as part of the comprehensive redevelopment of the Opportunity 
Area.  

Under Options 1, 2, 3(a) and 3(b), the CapCo planning proposals for the separate development 
of the Earl’s Court and Seagrave Road sites are assumed to be implemented, although it is 
uncertain whether these schemes would go ahead as planned if the estates were either not to 
be redeveloped or not brought forward as part of a comprehensive redevelopment of the 
Opportunity Area. 

4 Economic benefits 
4.1 Overview 

Each of the options will result, to a varying extent, in a range of benefits for the local community 
and within the wider economy.  This sub-section highlights the economic benefits of each 
option, focusing on the scale of impact at the local level (within the two boroughs of 
Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea).  The benefits have been assessed in 
relation to the quantum of development that would come forward under each option as part of 
the overall redevelopment of the Opportunity Area.  

The key economic benefits are expected to include: 

 new residential units; 

 temporary construction employment created during the construction phase; 

 permanent employment created through the provision of new employment floorspace; and 

 additional local expenditure. 

In addition to the above economic benefits, the intervention options will lead to a number of 
wider, qualitative impacts, such as the regeneration of deprived communities, improvements to 
the image of the local area and environmental improvements.  These wider benefits have been 
assessed for each option.  Furthermore, the contribution of each option to the scheme 
objectives identified at the start of this report has also been assessed.  

                                                           
1 Note: this amended version of the report includes minor changes to the titles of Options 3 and 4. 

Page 91



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

5 
 

4.2 Residential units 

4.2.1 Gross direct residential units 

Table 4.1 sets out a summary of the total quantum of residential units that will be provided in 
the Opportunity Area under each of the options.  In terms of the comprehensive regeneration / 
wider Earl’s Court redevelopment option (Option 4), it is estimated that a total of 7,583 
residential units would be provided, some 4,282 more than under Option 3(a)/(b) and around 
4,715 more than under Option 1 (the reference case). 

Table 4.1: Residential units by type – Opportunity Area2 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3(a) Option 3(b) Option 4 

Existing/replacement 
Local Authority 

531 531 531 531 531 

Existing/new 
Affordable 

371 428 87 87 798 

Private sector 1,795 1,795 2,512 2,512 6,083 

Existing/replacement 
leasehold/freehold3 

171 171 171 171 171 

Total homes 2,868 2,925 3,301 3,301 7,583 

Overall, Option 4 would provide 6,083 market units, 1,329 affordable units and 171 
leasehold/freehold units.  This compares to 2,512 market units, 618 affordable units and 171 
leasehold/freehold units under Option 3.  Option 1 and Option 2 would both provide 1,795 
market units and 902 and 959 affordable units respectively, together with 171 
leasehold/freehold units. 

4.2.2 Net additional residential units 

In determining the number of net additional residential units created under each option, the 
key issue to be addressed is the additionality of the redevelopment proposals – the extent to 
which activity takes place at all, on a larger scale, earlier or within a specific designated area or 
target group as a result of the intervention.  In order to assess the additionality of the 
alternative intervention options, the following factors will need to be considered: 

 leakage – the proportion of outputs that benefit those outside of the project’s target area or 
group (the two boroughs of Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea).  There 
is not a specific target group in terms of who occupies the new housing provided and all of 

                                                           
2 Note: this amended version of the report includes a new category ‘existing/replacement leasehold/freehold 
homes’ to further clarify the type of units provided under each option. 
3 Leasehold/ Freehold replacement homes reflect those units which have previously been subject to the exercise of 
the ‘Right to Buy’ by Council tenants.  These homes have been identified separately to indicate that in the future 
they could either form part of future affordable or private tenure homes depending on whether the owners elect 
to take a share in the equity of a new replacement home or, alternatively, to receive a payment from the Council 
for the acquisition of their home. 

Page 92



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

6 
 

the housing would be situated within the Opportunity Area.  Therefore the level of leakage 
will be zero across all options; 

 displacement – the proportion of project outputs accounted for by reduced outputs 
elsewhere in the target area.  Displacement may occur in both the factor and product 
markets.  Based on JLL’s market review and the continued imbalance between supply and 
demand within Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea, it is expected that 
displacement will be zero; 

 multiplier effects – further economic activity associated with additional local income and 
local supplier purchases.  This is not relevant to the assessment of net additional housing 
units and, as such, no multiplier effects have been applied; and 

 deadweight – outputs which would have occurred without the project.  This is assessed 
through the reference case (i.e. Option 1, the do minimum option). 

After taking account of the above additionality factors, it is estimated that Option 4 will create 
4,715 net additional residential units.  This compares to 433 net additional residential units 
under Option 3(a)/(b) and 57 net additional residential units under Option 2. 

4.3 Temporary construction jobs 

4.3.1 Gross direct temporary construction jobs 

In order to estimate the number of temporary construction jobs generated by each of the 
alternative options, the total construction spend associated with each option has been 
calculated.  Option 4 is expected to involve around £4.5 billion of construction expenditure, 
whereas Option 3(a) and 3(b) would generate an estimated £3.2 billion and £2.9 billion of 
construction expenditure respectively.  A lower level of construction spend would be generated 
under Option 1 (£2.6 billion) and Option 2 (£2.6 billion).  

On the basis that £125,000 of expenditure equates to one person year of employment4, Option 
4 is expected to generate 36,033 person years of construction employment (see Table 4.6).  
Over a development period of 18 years, this would equate to supporting an average of 2,002 
construction workers per year.  Option 3(a) would support 25,251 person years of construction 
employment and Option 3(b) 23,089 person years, while Option 1 and Option 2 would generate 
20,642 and 20,693 persons of construction employment respectively.  

4.3.2 Net additional temporary construction jobs 

The analysis of the net additional construction employment impact of each option is at the two 
borough level (Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea).  As noted above, the 
calculation of net additionality involves adjusting for leakage, displacement, multiplier effects 
and deadweight.  In order to assess the net additional impact of each intervention option, the 
following adjustments have therefore been made: 

                                                           
4   Source: Annual Business Survey 2009  

Page 93



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

7 
 

 leakage – in terms of leakage, reference has been made to Census UK travel to work flows.  
According to the Census, around 36% of people working in the construction sector in 
Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea also reside in these two boroughs.  
Based on this, a leakage rate of 64% has been assumed; 

 displacement – in order to derive an estimate of the potential level of displacement, 
consideration has been given to the required level of construction employment under each 
of the options and potential available workforce within the two boroughs.  On this basis, the 
following  displacement rates have been applied: 

 Option 1 – 5% displacement; 

 Option 2 – 5% displacement; 

 Option 3(a)/(b) – 5% displacement; and 

 Option 4 – 10% displacement.  

 multiplier effects – the expected multiplier effects have been estimated by reference to 
benchmarks set out within the Department for Business Innovation and Skills’ (BIS) guidance 
on assessing additionality5.  A composite multiplier of 1.38 has been applied, in line with BIS 
guidance for physical regeneration projects; and 

 deadweight – this is the level of additional temporary construction jobs created under 
Option 1, the do minimum intervention option / reference case. 

Overall, it is estimated that Option 4 would create 6,369 net additional person years of 
construction employment for local residents.  The impact under Option 3(a) and Option 3(b) is 
more limited, with an expected 2,175 and 1,155 net additional person years of construction 
employment generated respectively.  In comparison, Option 2 would only create 24 net 
additional person years of construction employment. 

4.4 Permanent employment impact 

4.4.1 Gross direct permanent employment 

The number of gross direct permanent jobs generated under each option has been based on the 
expected quantum of employment floorspace created within the Opportunity Area.  The 
amount of employment floorspace provided under each option is summarised in Table 4.2.  
Option 4 would deliver 201,397 sq m of employment floorspace, while Option 3(a)/(b) would 
provide 59,543 sq m.  Option 1 and Option 2 would both only bring forward 30,063 sq m of new 
employment floorspace, none of which would be on the two estates. 

 

 

 

                                                           
5  BIS (2009), Research to improve the assessment of additionality. 

Page 94



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

8 
 

Table 4.2:  Employment floorspace – Opportunity Area 

Use Option 1 Option 2 Option 
3(a) 

Option 
3(b) 

Option 4 

Office (GEA, sq m) 15,850 15,850 39,840 39,840 120,615 

Retail (GEA, sq m) 3,700 3,700 9,190 9,190 29,429 

Hospitality / hotel / leisure / 
cultural / community (GEA, sq m) 

10,513 10,513 10,513 10,513 51,353 

Total employment floorspace 30,063 30,063 59,543 59,543 201,397 

Employment density ratios consistent with those used within guidance produced for the Homes 
and Communities Agency (HCA)6 and assumptions in relation to the expected occupancy rate 
have been used to calculate the gross direct employment impact for each option.  The 
assumptions adopted are as follows: 

 office – employment density of 14 sq m (GEA) per full-time equivalent (fte) employee and a 
90% occupancy rate; 

 retail – employment density of 22 sq m (GEA) per fte employee and a 90% occupancy rate; 
and 

 hospitality/hotel/leisure – employment density of 90 sq m (GEA) per fte employee and a 
100% occupancy rate. 

Based on the above assumptions, Option 4 would create around 9,528 new gross direct jobs, 
whereas Option 3(a)/(b) would create some 3,054 gross direct jobs.  The number of new 
employment opportunities generated under Option 1 and Option 2 within the Opportunity Area 
would be an estimated 1,287. 

4.4.2 Net additional permanent employment 

In order to calculate the number of net additional permanent jobs created under each option 
adjustments have been made in relation to leakage, displacement, multiplier effects and 
deadweight.  The analysis of the net additional employment impact is again at the two borough 
level (Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea).  The following assumptions have 
been applied in relation to each additionality factor: 

 leakage – according to Census UK travel to work flows, around 30% of people working 
across all sectors in Hammersmith and Fulham and Kensington and Chelsea also reside in 
these two boroughs.  Based on this, a leakage rate of 70% has been assumed; 

 displacement – to determine the appropriate displacement rate, reference has been made 
to, amongst other things, JLL’s property market review and the property market analyses 

                                                           
6  HCA (2010), Employment Densities Guide, 2nd Edition. 

Page 95



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

9 
 

undertaken as part of the Earl’s Court Planning Application7.  On this basis, the following  
displacement rates have been applied: 

 Option 1 – 5% displacement; 

 Option 2 – 5% displacement; 

 Option 3(a)/(b) – 10% displacement; and 

 Option 4 – 20% displacement.  

 multiplier effects – a composite multiplier of 1.38 has been applied, in line with the 
benchmarks set out in the BIS guidance for physical regeneration projects; and 

 deadweight – this is the level of additional permanent jobs created under Option 1, the do 
minimum intervention option / reference case. 

It is estimated that Option 4 would create 2,650 net additional jobs for local residents, whereas 
Option 3(a)/(b) would only generate 632 net additional jobs.  Option 2 would not result in any 
net additional jobs, as the same level of employment floorspace would be provided under this 
option as under Option 1 (the do minimum option). 

4.5 Additional local expenditure 
In order to estimate the additional household expenditure that might be generated under each 
option, reference has been made to the ONS Living Costs and Food Survey (LCF) 2009.  A weekly 
average spend figure has been used to generate an assumed total spend per annum that can be 
attributed to the net additional residential units provided by each intervention option.8  In 
addition, there will be indirect and induced (income) multiplier effects associated with this new 
residential expenditure, due to increase local spending by businesses and employees. 

Table 4.3 sets out the estimated total additional expenditure per annum under each option. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
7  The analysis of displacement has been based on, in particular, the following documents: Roger Tym & Partners 

(2010), Earl’s Court West Kensington OA: Office Market; CB Richard Ellis (2011), Earl’s Court Project: London 
Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Application 2  – Office Market Assessment; DP9 (2011), Earl’s Court 
Project: London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Application 2  – Retail & Leisure Assessment; and Roger 
Tym & Partners (2010), London Boroughs of Ealing, Hounslow and Hammersmith and Fulham: Joint Retail 
Needs Study Update. 

8  This excludes non-consumption expenditure (for example, savings and investments) and expenditure that 
would not be incurred within the local area (for example, holiday expenditure). 

Page 96



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

10 
 

Table 4.3: Total additional expenditure per annum 

 Option 2 Option 3(a)/(b) Option 4 

Average household annual spend £17,436 £17,436 £17,436 

Net additional residential units 57 433 4,715 

Additional direct expenditure p.a. £993,829 £7,549,615 £82,208,854 

Additional indirect and induced 
expenditure p.a. 

£208,704 £1,585,419 £17,263,859 

Total additional expenditure p.a.  £1,202,533 £9,135,034 £99,472,713 

Not all of this additional expenditure would be retained within Hammersmith and Fulham and 
Kensington and Chelsea.  In relation to convenience goods it is assumed that 90% would be 
retained, whereas in terms of comparison goods there would be expected to be a greater level 
of leakage, with only perhaps 30% of spend retained.  This would mean that under Option 4 
around £41 million of additional local expenditure per annum would be retained within the two 
boroughs.  This compares to £4 million under Option 3(a)/(b) and just £0.5 million under         
Option 2.  

4.6 Summary of quantifiable benefits and net present value 
The quantifiable benefits attributable to each option are summarised in Table 4.4.  The Table 
represents a broad assessment at this stage and is subject to consideration of detailed 
proposals.  The net present value for each option is also set out within the table.  This reflects 
the extent to which the benefits under each option outweigh the costs to the public sector.  The 
present value of the costs and benefits of each option have been calculated based on the 
following assumptions: 

 an average GVA per employee figure of £60,000 has been applied to the estimates of net 
additional employment under each option9; 

 the economic benefits housing can generate by addressing labour shortages through the 
attraction of new residents has been reflected for each option, based on the results of 
Department for Communities and Local Government research10; 

 the GVA impact associated with each job created is assumed to persist for 10 years11; and 

 a 3.5% discount rate has been applied, in line with HM Treasury appraisal guidance, to the 
public sector economic costs/receipts and economic benefits. 

 

 

                                                           
9  Annual Business Survey 2009 / ONS sub-regional GVA 2009 
10  DCLG (2010), Valuing the Benefits of Regeneration, Economics Paper 7. 
11  BIS (2009), RDA Evaluation: Practical Guidance on Implementing the Impact Evaluation Framework. 

Page 97



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

11 
 

Table 4.4: Summary of economic benefits 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3(a) Option 3(b) Option 4 

Gross direct residential 
units 

2,868 2,925 3,301 3,301 7,583 

Net additional 
residential units 

- 57 433 433 4,715 

Gross direct 
construction jobs* 

20,642 20,693 25,251 23,089 36,033 

Net additional 
construction jobs* 

- 24 2,175 1,155 6,369 

Employment floorspace 
(sq m) 

30,063 30,063 59,543 59,543 201,397 

Gross direct permanent 
employment 

1,287 1,287 3,054 3,054 9,528 

Net additional 
permanent employment 

- - 632 632 2,650 

Additional local 
expenditure p.a. 

- £1.2m £9.1m £9.1m £99.5m 

Additional expenditure 
retained in local area p.a 

- £0.5m £3.8m £3.8m £40.9m 

Net present value £0.02bn £0.03bn £0.83bn £0.99bn £3.8bn 

*Persons years of employment 

From the figures in Table 4.4, it is clear that Option 4 achieves the greatest positive net present 
value and delivers the largest amount of additional housing and new jobs – it would create over 
four times as many new jobs as Option 3(a)/(b) and provide more than ten times as many 
additional homes.  The net present value of Option 4 would have to be around 78% or 74% 
lower respectively to be worse than Option 3(a) or Option 3(b).  Consequently, for example, a 
very substantially lower quantum of floorspace would need to be approved and developed 
under Option 4 before either Options 3(a) or Option 3(b) was to offer a better economic return. 

4.7 Wider benefits 

4.7.1 Overview 

Many of the benefits of the project are difficult to precisely quantify, let alone value.  The 
approach to assessing these is based upon a multi-criteria scoring and weighting system.  The 
likely effects of each option are appraised and the scores are assessed in relation to the project 
itself and its intended outcomes and objectives. 

 

 

Page 98



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

12 
 

Additional benefits/impacts are expected to include: 

 regeneration catalyst; 

 social and community;  

 image enhancement; and 

 environmental and place improvements.  

Each of these wider impacts is to some extent interdependent and they will also emerge at 
different stages. 

4.7.2 Scoring and weighting framework 

Each option is given a score according to the contribution it is likely to make to each wider 
impact.  They are scored on a scale of 0 to 100, under the five headings, with the scores to be 
interpreted as follows: 

76-100 = an extremely significant positive impact; 

51-75 = a significant positive impact; 

26-50 = a positive impact; 

1-25 = a marginal positive impact; and  

0 = a neutral/no change position. 

A weighting system is used to assign a weight to each impact according to their perceived 
importance in enabling objectives to be met.  AMION Consulting has developed the weights and 
assessed the scores, based upon their experience of similar appraisals, along with research and 
consultations on this project.  The use of such multi-criteria approaches is helpful in relation to 
projects that have multiple outputs and outcomes, many of which are less easily quantified.  
The analysis inevitably involves a degree of subjectivity but attempts to highlight the relative 
contribution of each option to these wider benefits.  It provides further information upon which 
to judge the impact of the options. 
 
The following weights out of ten have been applied: 

 Regeneration catalyst   9 

 Social and community   8 

 Image enhancement   8 

 Environmental impact   7  

4.7.3 Summary of wider benefit weighted scores 

It is considered that Option 4 would achieve the greatest level of wider benefits.  In particular, 
Option 4 is capable of contributing significantly to the regeneration of local deprived 
communities, providing new high quality housing, a range of additional community services and 

Page 99



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

13 
 

facilities and a much improved physical environment.  The scale of impact under the other 
options, particularly Option 1 and Option 2, would be much more limited. 

Table 4.5: Summary of wider benefit weighted scores 

Wider benefit Option 1 Option 2 Option 
3(a) 

Option 
3(b) 

Option 4 

Regeneration catalyst 90 135 630 540 810 

Social and community 80 80 480 480 720 

Image enhancement 120 120 400 480 720 

Environmental impact 70 105 420 420 630 

Total Weighted Score 360 440 1,930 1,920 2,880 

4.8 Contribution to scheme objectives 
In addition to the analysis of economic and wider benefits, the extent to which each option 
would meet the stated policy and scheme objectives has been considered as part of the overall 
assessment of public sector value for money.  Option 4 would contribute very substantially to 
achieving these objectives, as outlined in Table 4.6.  The standalone redevelopment options 
(Option 3(a)/(b)) would make a significant contribution to a number of objectives, but not all. 
However, Option 1 and Option 2 would only make a minimal contribution. 

Page 100



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

14 
 

Table 4.6: Effectiveness – contribution to scheme objectives 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3(a) Option 3(b) Option 4 

To increase supply of 
housing, providing 
quality homes on 
sustainable new 
developments  

Limited increase in new 
housing supply from disposal 
of ancillary land. Further 
housing elsewhere in 
Opportunity Area. 

Modest increase in new 
housing supply from disposal 
of ancillary land. 

Significant increase in new 
housing supply from estates 
redevelopment. 

Significant increase in new 
housing supply from estates 
redevelopment. 

Very substantial increase in 
new housing supply from 
estates redevelopment and 
incorporation of CapCo and 
TfL sites. 

To create clean and 
safe neighbourhoods in 
an area rich in 
opportunity, where 
most people of working 
age work 

Only modest infill 
development would take 
place. The estates would be 
managed and maintained.  
Some new opportunities 
would be created elsewhere 
in the wider area, which 
would increase local 
opportunities to work. 

Only modest infill 
development would take 
place. The estates would be 
managed and maintained.  
Opportunities would be 
created in adjacent areas, 
which would increase local 
opportunities to work. 

Significant positive impact on 
neighbourhood and adjacent 
areas.  The number of local 
opportunities to work would 
increase. 

Significant positive impact on 
neighbourhood and adjacent 
areas. The number of local 
opportunities to work would 
increase. 

Very substantial positive 
impact. Four new 
neighbourhoods and a new 
High Street would be 
created.  A substantial 
number of local employment 
opportunities would be 
created. 

To provide a mix of 
housing type, size and 
tenure to attract 
people on a range of 
incomes, creating 
mixed and balanced 
communities 

Little change in the mix of 
housing and attractiveness of 
the estates. 

Limited change in housing 
mix and the attractiveness of 
the estate. 

Significant positive changes 
in mix and attractiveness.  
More varied mix of housing. 

Significant positive changes 
in mix and attractiveness.  
More varied mix of housing. 

Very substantial impact on 
attractiveness. 

To allow people to 
acquire a stake in their 
home 

A limited number of possible 
opportunities to acquire a 
stake unless stock transfer 
was undertaken. Existing 
Right to Buy would continue. 

A limited number of possible 
opportunities to acquire a 
stake unless stock transfer 
was undertaken. Existing 
Right to Buy would continue. 

The redevelopment would 
provide opportunities to 
allow people to acquire a 
stake in their home and 
would provide more 
affordable housing. However, 
this would need to be 
negotiated with developers. 

The redevelopment would 
provide opportunities to 
allow people to acquire a 
stake in their home and 
would provide more 
affordable housing. However, 
this would need to be 
negotiated with developers. 

The negotiations with CapCo 
mean that there are 
significant opportunities for 
residents to acquire a stake 
in their home.  New 
affordable housing 
opportunities would be 
provided. 

To ensure 
development is of a 
high quality design and 
provides a mix of local 
facilities 

Only relatively limited 
development would take 
place and thus the design 
quality and mix of facilities 
would not change greatly. 

Some further opportunities 
would be created to change 
the design quality of the area 
but again these would be 
relatively limited. In addition, 
the mix of facilities would not 
change greatly. 

There would be much 
greater opportunity to 
ensure high quality design 
and a greater mix of local 
facilities. 

There would be much 
greater opportunity to 
ensure high quality design 
and a greater mix of local 
facilities. However, the levels 
differences would mean that 
there was more limited local 
integration. 

A high quality design and 
broad mix of facilities is 
proposed. 

P
age 101



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

15 
 

To improve access to 
employment and 
training opportunities 

Opportunities would be 
created to employment in 
adjacent areas.  

Again, opportunities would 
be created to employment in 
adjacent areas. 

Significant employment 
opportunities would be 
created. 

Significant employment 
opportunities would be 
created. However, levels 
differences would inhibit 
access to these by estate 
residents, to some extent. 

Very substantial employment 
and training opportunities 
would be created. 

To help to improve 
educational attainment 
and health outcomes 
and secure low levels 
of crime 

There would be little impact 
on social infrastructure or on 
education, health and/or 
crime. 

There would be limited 
impact on social 
infrastructure or on 
education, health and/or 
crime. 

The comprehensive 
redevelopment of the estate 
would provide the 
opportunity to address 
education, health and crime.  

The comprehensive 
redevelopment of the estate 
would provide the 
opportunity to address 
education, health and crime 

Substantial improvements 
could be made to local 
facilities and the scheme 
would help to address 
education, health and crime 
issues through good design 
and the provision of new 
local opportunities. 

To improve transport, 
accessibility and 
encourage walking 
through areas 

No significant improvements 
would be made to transport/ 
accessibility under this 
option. 

No significant improvements 
would be made to transport/ 
accessibility under this 
option. 

The access to transport and 
other facilities and 
permeability through the 
area would be improved 
under this option. 

Due to the levels differences, 
more limited improvements 
would be made to access and 
permeability. 

Substantial improvements 
would be made to transport 
accessibility and permeability 

To increase satisfaction 
with the townscape, 
public realm, 
environment and 
management 

No significant changes would 
be made under his option. 

No significant changes would 
be made under his option. 

Comprehensive development 
of the area would improve 
the public realm and 
environment. 

Comprehensive development 
of the area would improve 
the public realm and 
environment. 

The townscape, public realm 
and environment would be 
improved under this option. 
In addition, CapCo propose 
to retain and manage the 
area. 

P
age 102



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed Estates Regeneration - Economic Appraisal   

Report 
November 2011 

16 
 

5 Conclusions 
The economic analysis of the alternative options has identified that: 

 Options 1 (minimum intervention) and Option 2 (minimum intervention with infill): these 
options would mean that the existing communities are not significantly disrupted.  
However, they would not significantly address the poor layout of the estates nor increase 
housing choice and supply.   The lifecycle costs of maintaining aging homes would be 
greater than it would be for new homes.  Furthermore, the opportunity to comprehensively 
regenerate the Opportunity Area would be missed, with substantially fewer new homes and 
job opportunities being created; 

 Options 3(a) and 3(b): these options would result in replacement homes for existing estate 
residents and an increase in housing supply and choice.  The replacement homes would 
have a lower lifecycle maintenance cost compared with the existing properties.  However, 
option 3(a) would require substantial public sector resources, which are not currently 
available.  Option 3(b) would potentially generate a receipt, but would not be compliant 
with planning policies because it would not address the issue of permeability and would not 
realise many of the other planning objectives. There would be disruption to residents during 
the development process, with smaller phases potentially resulting in multiple moves.  
However, there would be the opportunity to implement a socio-economic regeneration 
programme including, for example, skills development, local labour and jobs brokerage.  
Even under Option 3(a), the lack of integration with the adjacent land would probably lead 
to sub-optimal design and development outcomes.  In the case of Option 3(b), it would not 
improve permeability or the integration of the area.  Significantly fewer homes and jobs 
would be created under Options 3(a) and 3(b) than under Option 4; and 

 Option 4: this option presents the best economic case and enables long term qualitative and 
quantitative objectives of regeneration to be realised.  It is a deliverable and viable option 
and would result in a substantial receipt to the Council and replacement homes for existing 
estate residents.  These new homes would involve lower lifecycle maintenance costs than 
the current stock.  The existing residents would be able to make ‘one move only’ because 
the integration of the sites, allowing larger phases and the use of Seagrave Road as a decant 
site.  There would though be some disruption to resident during the development phase. 
The overall scheme would offer new public open space and a range of social infrastructure, 
along with a significant increase in housing supply and choice, and a substantial number of 
new employment opportunities.  There would be significant opportunities to develop and 
implement a socio-economic regeneration programme to maximise the local benefits. 

Based on the preceding analyses, the comprehensive wider Earl’s Court redevelopment option 
(Option 4) is assessed to be the best option.  The recommendation of this report is that this is 
the option the Council focuses on progressing from an economic perspective. 

Page 103



 

 1 

Appendix 3 
Summary of engagement with the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estate 
Residents 
 
Summary 
 
This report aims to outline the purpose, process and outcome of the engagement 
with residents on the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates that took place prior 
to the recent consultation exercise. 
 
Since 2008, the Council has undertaken extensive consultation with residents of the 
West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates. Consultation has centred around the 
future of the estates and specifically the opportunity that the proposed 
comprehensive development of the Earl’s Court buildings, Lillie Road depot and the 
West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates offers. 
 
From the outset, the council has been committed to meaningful and extensive 
engagement and has placed the residents of the West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
estates at the heart of the engagement process. The Council’s engagement strategy 
has aimed to be as inclusive and transparent as possible and has allowed the 
Council to work with residents to- 
 

- Understand their aspirations for their estates, 
- Understand their concerns and their needs 
- Assess the potential benefits and dis-benefits of the potential comprehensive 

redevelopment scheme, and 
- Agree a detailed set of assurances that will protect and assure residents. 

 
The Council has attempted to engage with as many residents as possible throughout 
the engagement process. Understandably, there is a clear mix of views, opinions and 
aspirations amongst West Kensington and Gibbs Green estate residents about the 
future of their estates, with some residents being supportive of regeneration and the 
possible benefits it could bring, whilst others believing that regeneration of the 
estates is unnecessary.  This report aims to summarise and group the various 
responses together to extract key resident views, concerns and aspirations.  
 
Throughout the engagement process there has been two key strands of consultation 
running in parallel – consultation with residents about the inclusion of the estates in 
the comprehensive redevelopment focusing on the development of assurances for 
Tenant and Leaseholders/ Freeholders, which has been led by the Council, and 
consultation on the Masterplan for the proposed comprehensive regeneration area, 
which has been led by Capital and Counties.  
 
A third strand of consultation has been led by LBHF Planning Authority and has been 
centred around the development of a Supplementary Planning Document for the 
proposed development area. 
 
Engagement with estate residents is ongoing. Should the Council wish to include the 
estates in the proposed comprehensive redevelopment of Earl’s Court, the Council 
will continue to work with residents to ensure that they remain at the heart of any 
engagement and regeneration plans. 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



 

 2 

Background 
 
 
The Council has been keen to fully explore and understand the potential benefits that 
could flow from the inclusion of the estates within a comprehensive regeneration 
scheme and in October 2009 it signed a Collaboration Agreement with Capco and 
TfL. The Collaboration Agreement provided the legal framework for the three 
landowners to establish whether comprehensive redevelopment would bring 
sufficient benefits to justify to resultant change. 
 
Whilst there had been engagement with residents of the West Kensington and Gibbs 
Green estates during 2008 and early 2009, it was after the signing of the 
Collaboration Agreement in October 2009 that the Council launched an extensive 
process of engagement with residents. 
 
Engagement Strategy 
 
Over the past 18 months the Council’s engagement strategy has adapted to meet the 
needs and requirement of residents on the estates. Rather than dictating a timetable 
and process for engagement, the engagement strategy has grown organically and 
has been shaped by the residents of the estates.  
 
To ensure engagement with as many estate residents as possible the council 
engaged through various forms and mediums throughout the process. This included: 
 

• Dedicated Regeneration Officers 
Two Officers have been available at all times to engage with residents. These 
Officers have completed numerous house visits, drop in sessions and 
surgeries with residents on the estate.  
 
The Officers are directly involved in aiding the Council make a decision on 
whether to include the estates. This has allowed issues raised during the 
engagement process with residents to be fed directly into any eventual 
regeneration plans. 
 

• Regular Newsletters 
Regular newsletters have been distributed to the estates to update each 
household with any news with regards to the estates. These newsletters are 
distributed to every door through the Council’s delivery contractor. 
 

• The West Kensington and Gibbs Green Steering Group 
A key method of engagement with estate residents has been through the 
West Kensington and Gibbs Green Steering Group.  
 
The West Kensington and Gibbs Green Steering Group has been established 
by the residents of the estates for residents of the estates. In 2010, a group of 
residents expressed a wish to set up the Steering Group of local residents in 
order to talk to the Council about the potential development proposals, to 
counter rumour and misinformation and to further develop the Tenant and 
Leaseholder/Freeholder assurances. The Group has received independent 
legal advice in order to negotiate with the Council.  

 
Membership of the group is open to all estate residents and the group has 
been advertised extensively by the Council in its publications and at events 

Page 105



 

 3 

on the estates. The group has continued to meet and grow and now has a 
membership of over 100 estate residents. Until recently the Group has acted 
as a consultative group but has recently formalized and has created a Limited 
Company.  The Steering Group have agreed the Company’s objectives.   

 
The Council works with the Steering Group as a part of its communication 
strategy for the Earls Court development as this enables access to a wide 
range of local residents and facilitates the type of engagement the council is 
keen to undertake.  
 

• Dedicated Website 
The Council has a dedicated West Kensington and Gibbs Green website 
which is updated with all recent information and documents relating to the 
potential redevelopment project. 

 
• Surgeries and drop-in sessions 

At key points in the engagement process, the Council has held drop in 
sessions and surgeries at the Holiday Inn Express on North End Road and at 
the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Tenant Halls. At these events Officers 
have been available to engage with residents about regeneration, answer 
questions and determine residents concerns and aspirations for the future of 
the estates. 

 
 
Engagement Timetable 
 
The engagement process has been broken into 9 stages of engagement, which are 
described below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stage Summary of engagement Form of Engagement 

Stage 1 
2008/2009 
 
Estate Regeneration 

• To carry out a major 'listening exercise’ to 
understand if/how residents felt they could 
benefit from major investment from the 
Earls Court and TfL depot redevelopment. 

• To encourage as widespread an 
involvement of residents from the estates 
as possible in the programme, and give 
everyone the opportunity to take part and 
respond. 

• Provide a clear summary of issues and 
feedback to the Council to help them plan 
for the future to ensure that residents 
benefit from the investment opportunities 
around them 

• Newsletter 
• Drop-in Sessions 
• Surgeries 

Stage 2 
Winter 2009/10 
 
Collaboration Agreement 
Introduce Capital & Counties 

• Reassure residents of current position (no 
decisions made)  

• Reassure residents of nature of the long 
term engagement process 

• Introduce Capital and Counties 

• Newsletter 
• Drop-in Sessions 
• Surgeries 

Page 106



 

 4 

• Listen and understand resident concerns 

Stage 3 
Spring – Summer 2010 
 
First Draft of Tenant and 
Leaseholder/Freeholder 
Assurances 
 
Place making Consultation 
 

• Consult on initial safeguards for residents  
• CapCo introduced Terry Farrell & Partners 

as the Project Masterplanner & explained 
the masterplan process 

• Council produced a 
detailed newsletter giving 
assurances to Council 
Tenants, Leaseholders 
and Freeholders. 

• Surgeries  
• Drop-in sessions 

Stage 5 
 
Winter 2010/11 
 
Detailed Tenant and 
Leaseholder Assurances 
 
Initial Masterplan Concepts 

• Consultation on the first detailed Tenant 
and Leaseholder/Freeholder assurance 
documents that had been produced 
collaboratively between the Steering 
Group, the Council and CapCo.  

• First meeting of the wider Steering Group  
• CapCo introduced the concepts informing 

the production of the masterplan for the site 
 

• Drop-in sessions 

Stage 6 
 
Spring 11 
Launch of Masterplan 

• Launch of the masterplan  
• Understanding estate residents views, 

aspirations and concerns with the proposed 
masterplan 

• Continued Consultation on the Detailed 
Tenant and Leaseholder/Freeholder offers 

• Consultation on the design and size of 
proposed replacement homes at Seagrave 
Road 

• 4 day exhibition 

Stage 7 
 
Summer 2011 
 
Pre application Consultation 
 

• Pre planning consultation for the main site 
application 

• Pre planning consultation for the Seagrave 
Road detailed application 

• Understanding estate residents views, 
aspirations and concerns with the proposed 
applications 

• Continued Consultation on the Detailed 
Tenant and Leaseholder/Freeholder offers 

• 4 day exhibition 

Stage 8 
 
Winter 2011/12 

• Consultation on Earls Court Supplementary 
Planning document on the estate and the 
wider area 

 

• Newsletter for the estate 
and wider area promoting 
consultation 

 
 
 
Resident Feedback 
 
The Council’s engagement strategy has been shaped by the residents on the estate. 
It has been a reactive - responding to what residents have wanted. Early into the 
engagement process, it became clear that what residents wanted most from the 
engagement process was to gain a better understanding of how the inclusion of the 
estates in a comprehensive scheme would affect them, and how they would be 
protected. They also wanted to ensure that any promises made to them about the 
redevelopment would be guaranteed by the council.  
 

Page 107



 

 5 

In response, the council has, over the last two years attempted to capture all of these 
concerns and aspirations and ensure, where practicable that they are fed into any 
Land Agreement with Capital and Counties. 
 
The concerns and aspirations that were common amongst residents of both estates 
are summarised below:    
 
 

• Security of tenure 
From the outset, residents made it clear that they wanted to remain secure 
Council tenants. Residents were nervous that any redevelopment on the 
estates would lead to a change in landlord, which was deemed to be 
unacceptable by the majority of residents the Council engaged with.    

 
• Security of rental levels 

Residents were nervous that regeneration would lead to increased rental 
levels. Residents emphasised that they required comfort that any 
regeneration would not cause them to be financially worse off.   

 
• Demolition 

Whilst some residents are extremely supportive of regeneration, specifically 
the potential inclusion of the estates in the comprehensive regeneration 
scheme, other residents are clearly opposed to any regeneration that includes 
the demolition of the current properties on the estate. 

 
• Re-housing 

A key message that residents have iterated throughout the engagement 
process is their strong connection with the West Kensington and North End 
Road area and the strength of their existing community. 

 
Residents emphasised their anxiety that redevelopment would lead to them 
being forced to move from the area or outside the borough. Residents were 
keen that any development should allow them to remain within the area, 
allowing them to continue to use the same schools, services and facilities as 
are currently used. 

 
Residents also wanted to ensure that any redevelopment would allow them to 
maintain their sense of community and that any re-housing would happen in a 
way that allowed support networks to be maintained. 

 
• One move only 

Residents made clear that should they have to move due to any 
redevelopment, they would only want to move once. 

 
• Affordability 

Leaseholders and Freeholders on the estates wanted certainty that should 
they would be fairly compensated and be given the opportunity to purchase 
an affordable property within the same area as they are living. 

 
• Process 

Residents expressed anxiety around any regeneration process. They wanted 
to understand how regeneration would work in practice and how they would 
be supported throughout the process. Residents wanted a clear 
understanding about what was being proposed, how it would affect them and 

Page 108



 

 6 

the likely timescales.  Residents wanted reassurance that they would be 
adequately supported, specifically if any re-housing would be required. 

 
• Jobs and employment 

There is a strong desire amongst residents to increase employment and 
training opportunities for local residents. However, residents made clear that 
they had been disappointed by previous regeneration schemes, failing, in 
their opinion, to bring the employment benefits for local people that had been 
promised. 

 
Residents emphasised that it should be local people who reap the 
employment opportunities that regeneration could bring. They wanted an 
understanding of how this will be achieved and how the necessary skills 
training would be put in place to allow residents to be trained to allow them to 
benefit from any employment opportunities. 

 
• New Homes 

Residents were concerned over the size and type of new properties that 
regeneration may bring. Residents emphasised that it was important that any 
new housing should have comparable room sizes to existing properties on the 
West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates. Residents also raised concerns 
over the types of new homes to be provided. Residents living in houses 
wanted to ensure that any regeneration would provide houses and not only 
flats. 

 
• Parking  

Residents of the estates currently benefit from a high number of parking 
spaces on the estate. Residents raised concerns that regeneration may 
reduce the number of parking spaces available to them and may increase the 
cost of parking within the area. 

 
• Layout of the estates 

Residents had mixed views about the estate. Some residents felt that the 
estate was poorly laid out and lent itself to anti-social behaviour due to its 
closed nature and that the green space was poorly designed and under used. 
Other residents felt that the lay out of the estate resulted in the estate being 
quiet and peaceful. 

 
Tenant and Leaseholder/Freeholder Offers 
 
To ensure that the Council addresses the issues that had been raised and that are 
outlined above, the Council has been working with residents to jointly produce  
Tenant and Leaseholder/Freeholder offer documents which outline what would 
happen to residents should the estates be included in the comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme proposed by Capital and Counties. 
 
The offers have been negotiated with residents of the estates, primarily with the West 
Kensington and Gibbs Green Steering Group. The Steering Group have had legal 
advice throughout the negotiation of these offers. It has been agreed that the 
assurances within the Tenant and Leaseholder/Freeholder offers are developed into 
Individual contracts, for each resident on the estates, setting out their individual 
position. These contracts have now been produced and are currently being agreed 
with the Steering Group. Once agreed they will be issued for information to all 

Page 109



 

 7 

residents. In summary the main assurances to both groups of residents are as 
follows: 

 
Tenants 
� Secure Council tenants will remain as such with rents set by the Council 

in line with other existing Council rents.  

� All tenants will be made an offer to move into a new home on the new 
development which suits their housing needs.  

� Tenants will be entitled to a Homeloss payment to compensate them for 
the move. This is currently set by legislation at £4,700 per household.  

� Tenants will have a dedicated re-housing officer to help them through the 
process and access to free independent housing advice. 

� The development will be phased to allow tenants to be re-housed with 
only one move with no compulsory use of temporary accommodation. 
Existing groups who wish to remain together will be moved together.  

� Tenants who are under-occupying will be offered a new home with one 
additional bedroom above their need. 

� Tenants moving into the new development will be offered new household 
goods included a fridge/freezer, washing machine/dryer, dishwasher, 
oven/hob and new carpets and curtains. They will also be compensated 
for any reasonable costs as a result of moving, such as removal expenses 
and re-routing of mail. 

 
Leaseholders and Freeholders 
� Resident homeowners will receive full market value plus 

compensation of 10% of its value.  

� Resident Homeowners who wish to move into the new development 
will receive a discount of 10% of the value of their new property. 

� If after receiving a discount Resident Homeowners still cannot afford 
to purchase a home in the new development the Council will hold any 
outstanding equity, at no rent, up to the value of the new home that 
should be an equivalent size to their existing home. Homeowners will 
not be expected to increase borrowing on their mortgage to afford a 
home in the new development.  

� Resident Homeowners who wish to be bought out and leave the area 
will be offered the value of their home plus 10% Homeloss 
Compensation unless they move under the Early Purchase 
arrangement.  

� Homeowners will be able to choose the time when they wish to be 
bought out and move away, up until the time when their property is 
required for development.  

� Homeowners will be entitled to free independent valuation and legal 
fees for the conveyance.  

� Reasonable costs of moving will be funded. 

 
 

Page 110



The Council is to decide whether to include the West Kensington and 
Gibbs Green estates within the Earls Court redevelopment scheme. 
The Council wants to consult residents on the estates and residents 
and businesses in the local area before taking this decision. 

For secure tenants on the estates, this consultation process will also 
satisfy the requirements of section 105 of the Housing Act 1985. 

This document summarises the issues involved and sets out what the 
Council is proposing to do.

Tell us what you think
This is your opportunity to make your views known. Please see the feedback 
form in the back of the pack. 

West Kensington  
and Gibbs Green  
Information Pack

Page 111



This pack has been produced to allow you to have your say, 
before the Council makes a final decision on whether to 
include the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates in the 
comprehensive redevelopment plans for the Earls Court area. 

For secure council tenants on the estates, this is in part, what is called a Section 
105 consultation because it potentially involves significant changes. However, it 
is also a consultation for everybody who lives or owns a property on the estates, 
and other residents and businesses in the local area. 

As you will be aware, for some time the Council has been working with residents 
of the estates and EC Properties Ltd (a subsidiary of Capital and Counties 
Properties plc, the owner of the Earls Court buildings) to explore the benefits of 
including the estates in the wider plans and understand and address residents’ 
concerns should the estates be included.

After weighing up all the options, the Council has now reached a provisional 
view that including the estates in the wider plans by entering into a so-called 
‘Conditional Land Sale Agreement’ with EC Properties is in the best interests of 
local people. However we want your views before making any final decision and 
so have produced this pack to ensure that you have the information you need to 
form your views on the Council’s proposal.

Welcome to this information pack Contents

The story so far 2

What are the proposals? 3

EC Properties’ vision for the area 4

The potential land sale agreement 6

How this could affect residents living on the estate 7

 - Secure Tenant summary 7

 - Resident Leaseholder/Freeholder summary 8

 - Other estate residents 8

 - The replacement homes 9

 - When would estate residents need to move? 13

 - Living on the estate during the building process 13

Options for the estates - what is best? 14

The decision making process 16

Further information 16

P
age 112



What are the proposals?

The Council has been considering whether to include the West Kensington 
and Gibbs Green estates within EC Properties’ comprehensive redevelopment 
proposals.

EC Properties’ redevelopment proposals also include the following land 
holdings:

 
EC Properties

The proposal area

Land ownership map

Since 2008: The Council has been talking to residents on the West Kensington 
and Gibbs Green estates about the possibility of including the estates in 
the proposed wider redevelopment of the area, which includes Earl’s Court 

October 2009: The Council signed a Collaboration Agreement with the two 
other landowners, Capital and Counties and Transport for London (TfL), to 
explore the potential benefits of redevelopment.

Early 2010: The Council started to develop assurances for tenants, leaseholders 
and freeholders which sought to protect their interests and address their 
concerns should redevelopment occur. 

Early 2011: A group of residents set up the West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
Steering Group to make sure that these assurances offered the best deal for 
tenants/leaseholder and freeholders. The group, with independent legal advice, 
has helped to turn the assurances into legally-binding contracts that would 
come into force should redevelopment occur. 

Early 2011: Capital and Counties launch their Masterplan for the 
redevelopment area.

June 2011: EC Properties submit an outline planning application for the 
redevelopment area and a detailed planning application to build homes on 
Seagrave Road. 

July 2011: The Council signed an Exclusivity Agreement with EC Properties 
which gave the Council the time and resources needed  to investigate 
the potential benefits of including the estates within the comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme.

November 2011: Second round of consultation on the Supplementary 
 

Opportunity Area.

The story so far

West Kensington

West Brompton

Earls Court

LILL
IE ROAD

A4 - WEST CROMWELL
ROAD

W
ARW

ICK AVENUE

N

ORTH EN
D

 RO
A

D

SEAGRAVE RO
AD

FA
RM

 LA
NE

SEDLESCOMBE RD

FARM
 LANE

N
O

RTH
 EN

D
 RO

A
D

FULHAM ROAD
Fulham Broadway

London Borough of  
Hammersmith & Fulham

TfL

CapCo

P
age 113



NORTH END VILLAGE

EARLS COURT VILLAGE

WEST BROMPTON VILLAGE

WEST KENSINGTON VILLAGE

THE HIGH STREET

EC properties vision for the area

New homes:

 
(including 808 at the Seagrove Road Site)

 - Approx 1,300 affordable homes 

 - Approx  6,200 private homes

Creation of four urban ‘villages’

London with a new commercial hub

restaurants

for families with nearby open spaces and a primary 
school 

 Earl’s Court: the focal point will be Exhibition 

residential area and the eastern edge of the  
High Street

Facilities:

community facilities

facilities

primary health care

Culture and Leisure:

the arts, community learning and entertainment

Transfer and Traffic:

Road

Broadway designed for pedestrians, cyclists and cars 
which link Cromwell Road to Lillie Road

West Kensington stations

Seagrave Road:

The masterplan envisages:

The planning applications submitted by EC Properties in June 2011 were based 
on a masterplan produced by Sir Terry Farrell. The masterplan is centred around 

with Earl’s Court Tube station. Within the masterplan, the Earl’s Court buildings, 

be demolished to allow for the construction of thousands of new homes, new 
open space, new offices, new shops and facilities.

The planning applications are currently going through the planning process and 

www.lbhf.gov.uk/earlscourtapplication or www.myearlscourt.com

P
age 114



…and how this could affect residents living on the estatesThe potential land sale agreement 

comprehensive redevelopment proposals it would enter a land agreement with 
EC Properties. The land agreement would grant EC Properties the right, for up 
to five years, to purchase the land in phases on satisfaction of a number of 
conditions including:

to move straight into their new home and avoid moving into temporary 
accommodation while the new homes are constructed 

resort should negotiations fail

new homes which some residents could move to if they choose (the 
Government’s permission would not be needed for this purchase)

Additionally, EC Properties would purchase the former Gibbs Green School site as 
soon as any land sale agreement was signed (and assuming that the Government 
also gave permission). This would provide the much-needed funds to build a new 
borough-wide secondary autistic facility in White City, the building of which has 
been stalled due to public sector cuts.

comprehensive redevelopment proposals all of the 760 properties on the estates 
would be demolished. All of these homes would then be rebuilt to modern 
standards within the redevelopment.

Each Secure Council Tenant, Leaseholder and Freeholder would receive a contract 
outlining the Council’s assurances to residents and would have a dedicated  
re-housing officer to explain the contract and help residents throughout the 
whole redevelopment process. The terms of this contract have been negotiated 
by a residents’ steering group, using independent legal advice, with the intention 
of securing the best possible deal for people living on the estates. 

The tenant and leaseholder/freeholder contracts are explained in summary below 

the offers are enclosed.

redevelopment matched to your need and will be 
able to stay in the redevelopment area

way as secure council rents across the borough  

well in advance of any move. They will help you 
through the whole process, keeping you up to 
date with progress, understanding your issues and 
ensuring your need is properly assessed  

be offered a new home with one room more than is 

household white goods (fridge/freezer, washing 
machine/dryer, dishwasher, oven/hob) and new 

for any reasonable costs as a result of moving, such 
as removal expenses and re-routing of mail 

 
for more than a year will be entitled to a home  

 
the move 

cover your reasonable costs of moving

adaptations will be completed in your new home

or private parking space if you are allocated a home 
without them 

council officers, representatives of EC Properties 
and the builders working on the site so you can 
contribute to the development and design of homes 
and the wider scheme

Secure tenants offer summary

P
age 115



of your home plus compensation of 10% of its value, 

redevelopment you will also receive a discount if you 
sign up early 

redevelopment outright you will be given the 
opportunity to use your compensation and discount 
towards buying an intermediate affordable home 

increase borrowing on your mortgage to afford a 
home in the redevelopment 

of your property and the Council will provide a 
dedicated housing advisor 

as a result of moving, such as legal fees, removal 
expenses and re-routing of mail 

redevelopment

will be capped at its existing level for five years after 
you first purchase your new property

five years after you first purchase your new property 

Council officers, representatives of EC properties 
and the builders working on the site so you can 
contribute to the development and design of homes 
and the wider scheme 

Resident leaseholder and freeholder summary 

Other estate residents

not owned, or been resident in the property for a year, then the details of how 

answer documents included within this folder. For a fuller explanation of how 
this will affect you please contact Sarah Lovell on 020 8753 5571 or Philip Morris 

then the details of how this redevelopment will affect you are dealt with in the 

explanation of how this will affect you please contact Sarah Lovell on  

you will be offered the opportunity to become a Council tenant and the terms of 
the tenant contract will apply to you. 

be able to do so.

Homeowners

Tenants

Housing association 
tenants

numbers and tenure of homes on the estates.

This is a minimum standard brought in by the Mayor to ensure that all new 
homes are built to a decent size standard.

they would be more easily adapted to meet the needs of residents.

- choosing whether they would like a lounge/diner or a kitchen/diner. They 
would also be able to make colour choices and have a range of appliances to 
choose from. 

own front door and private gardens and many properties would have 
balconies.

The typical layout and size of any replacement homes which may be provided 
can be seen from the following examples of the proposed replacement homes at 
Seagrave Road.

What kind of replacement homes would be built?

P
age 116



Ground Floor Plan 1:50 First Floor Plan 1:50

BUILDING D | 3 BED DUPLEX - 101m2 (1,087 ft2)

Kitchen /Living /Dining

WC

Entrance 
Hall

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

Bathroom

Storage
1.8m2

External Garden
24.4m2

5.10m
16ft 8”

1.95m
6ft 4”

7
.6

0
m

2
4

ft
 9

”

1
.9

5
m

6
ft

 4
”

5.10m
16ft 8”

2
.7

5
m

9
ft

 0
”

1
.9

0
m

6
ft

 2
”

2
.7

5
m

9
ft

 0
”

4.95m
16ft 2“

2
.7

5
m

9
ft

 0
”

2.10m
6ft 9“

3.95m
13ft 0“

1.95m
6ft 4”

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan

BUILDING D | 2 BED APARTMENT - 77m2 (829 ft2) 

3rd - 6th Floor Plan 1:50

Kitchen /Living /Dining

Entrance 
Hall

Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2

Bathroom
Storage
2.4m2

External Balcony
7.6m2

2.80m
9ft 2”

2.80m
9ft 2”

6.05m
19ft 8”

4
.5

0
m

1
4

ft
 8

”
1

.6
0

m
5

ft
 2

”3.10m
10ft 2”

3
.7

0
m

1
2

ft
 1

”
2

.4
0

m
7

ft
 9

”

2.10m
6ft 9”

4
.9

0
m

1
6

ft
 1

”

Two bedroom apartments Three bedroom duplex 

P
age 117



forced to move until a new home has been built for 
them, this avoids people having to move twice

provided in phases over a number of years

development of the phasing plan

-  Residents only have to move once, directly from   
 their old home into their new home

-  Each phase of new-build homes caters  
 for the needs of residents that have to move  
 into them

-  Phases would be large enough to allow residents   
 to move together to ensure support networks are  
 kept intact

Seagrave Road site

beginning of 2015

development process but it is anticipated that the 
final moves to new homes could be completed 
within ten years

When would estate residents need to move?

your life does not stop while the building work is 
happening

disruption is kept to a minimum and that security of 
existing residents is a prority

was not taking place 

the building work, any vacant land that became 
available would be used in a creative way for the 

areas this has seen resident-led temporary cafes and 
cultural facilities emerging

community and neighbourhood continued to 

around it

. 

Living on the estate during the building process

SEAGRAVE ROAD HOUSES | 4 BED HOUSE - 146.4m2 (1,476 ft2) 
4

.4
0

m
1

4
ft

 4
”

4
.0

0
m

1
3

ft
 1

”

4.65m
15ft 1”

6
.7

0
m

2
7

ft
 0

”

4.30m
14ft 1”

Ground Floor Plan 1:100 First Floor Plan 1:100 Second Floor Plan 1:100

3
.1

0
m

1
0

ft
 2

”
2

.0
0

m
6

ft
 6

”
3

.1
0

m
1

0
ft

 2
”

2
.0

0
m

6
ft

 6
”

3
.1

0
m

1
0

ft
 2

”

3
.1

0
m

1
0

ft
 2

”
3

.1
0

m
1

0
ft

 2
”

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

3.10m
10ft 2”

1.45m
4ft 8”

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 4

En Suite

Living

WC

Kitchen/
Dining

Stair

Bathroom

4.65m
15ft 1”

Garden

4.65m
15ft 1”

2.70m
8ft 9”

Four bedroom houses 

P
age 118



Option 4  

Include estates in comprehensive 
redevelopment scheme

 Residents lose their original homes, and suffer 
disruption

 A long-term redevelopment over a number 
of years

 Replacement of all existing homes
 Significant increase in housing choice and supply
 One move only for residents
 Significant job creation
 The Council would receive a substantial 

sum to invest in the Borough
 Lower repairs and maintenance for new homes
 Lower running costs for residents of new homes
 
 
 Better layout and design to improve 

community safety

To help understand what is best for the West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
estates and the Borough more widely, the Council has been exploring the 
potential options for the estates and has commissioned an economic study 
which looked at and compared the benefits of four options:

Option 1 - Keep things as they are. The Council would continue to own, 
manage and maintain the estates. Alternatively, the Council could transfer the 
estates to a housing association (or a resident-controlled private registered 
provider) that would then own, manage and maintain the estates. 

Option 2 - The Council would continue to own, manage and maintain the 
estates but would also seek to develop spare plots of land within the estates.

Option 3 - Redevelopment of the estate only (not as part of the comprehensive 
redevelopment plans). The existing properties on the estate would be demolished 
and replaced with new housing and other supporting uses. 

Option 4 
redevelopment scheme (as explained earlier in this document).

For a copy of the Economic Appraisal, please see  
www.lbhf.gov.uk/westken

Using this study the Council has looked at which option delivers the optimum 
benefits for local people living on the estates and in the wider area including:

Options for the estates - what is best? THE FOUR OPTIONS 
SUMMARISED 
Illustrated below are some of the 
advantages and disadvantages in the 
Council’s provisional view

Option 1  

Maintain the estates as they are
(This could include a transfer to a housing 
association, or a resident-controlled private 
registered provider)

 The estates could not be used, as part of the 
comprehensive redevelopment, to create 
additional housing

 The estates could not be used, as part of the 
comprehensive redevelopment, to create more jobs 

 
existing homes in the estates

 Significant funds needed to maintain the 
ageing estates

 
 Transfer to a housing association (or a resident-

controlled private registered provider) could 
generate increased local responsibility

ent-

Option 3  

Redevelopment of the estates only
(not as part of the comprehensive plans).  
The existing properties on the estate would 
be demolished and replaced with new 
housing and other supporting uses

 Residents lose their original homes, and suffer 
disruption

 Smaller phases may result in multiple moves for 
residents

 This option would be unlikely to generate 
substantial amounts of money for the Council, 
and might end up costing the Council money

 A long-term redevelopment over a number 
of years

ey

 Replacement of all existing homes
 
 Job creation
 Lower repairs and maintenance for new homes
 Lower running costs for residents of new homes
 
 
 Better layout and design to improve 

community safety

Option 2  

Continue to maintain the estates 
and develop plots of land within 
the estates

 Increasing repairs and maintenance costs of existing 
homes in the estates

 Significant funds needed to maintain the ageing 
estates

 Minimal disruption for some estate residents
 Some additional housing (although not as much 

 Creates some jobs (although not as many as 

Advantages

P
age 119



delivers the most benefits overall. The Council is also concerned about the 
affordability of Options 1, 2 and 3, as compared with the financial benefit to 

Whilst some residents are enthusiastic about including the estates in the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme, other residents would like the estates 
transferred to a resident-controlled private registered provider (one of the 
alternatives under Option 1). This would prevent the estates from being 
included in the comprehensive redevelopment scheme. The result would be 
that overall the redevelopment scheme would produce fewer additional homes 
(including fewer additional affordable homes) and would create fewer jobs. The 

above.

For these reasons, the Council’s provisional view is that the option of including 
the estates in the wider redevelopment scheme should be pursued first, and 
a housing stock transfer could be better pursued after the benefits of the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme had been achieved, and residents had 
moved into their new homes.  

The option for 
a housing stock 

transfer

Decision making process

Before making any decision the Council is seeking the views of residents 
and local businesses on whether the estates should be included within the 

The Council hopes to make a final decision in Spring 2012

More information on the scheme can be found by visiting: 

- www.lbhf.gov.uk/westken

- www.lbhf.gov.uk/earlscourtapplication

- www.myearlscourt.com

The Council will be holding a series of drop in sessions to talk to estate residents 
and explain the proposals, the details of which will be advertised on the 
Council’s website.

P
age 120



Published by Hammersmith & Fulham Council 

Produced by Hammerprint 020 8753 2235 

Printed on paper from sustainable sources

Please contact us if you need this 
information in any other language or 
would like any part of this document 
produced in large print or Braille.

Please contact Phil Morris or Sarah Lovell  
at Hammersmith & Fulham Council on  
020 8753 3334 or 020 8753 5571

Page 121



 1 

EARLS COURT REDEVELOPMENT 
 

APPENDIX 5 - ANALYSIS OF CONSULTATION 
RESPONSES 

 
 
 
 
 

September 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



 2 

CONTENTS 
 

1. Introduction 

2. The Responses Received 

3. Views on the Council’s Proposal 

4. Secure Tenants’ Views on the Council’s Proposal: the Section 105 

Consultation 

5.   Analysis of the Responses from Individual Residents 

6.   The TRAs’ Response 

7.   Mr Slaughter’s Letter 

8.  Additional Representations made in light of  23 April 2012 Cabinet Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annex 1 - Feedback Form 

Annex 2 - Pre-typed feedback form produced by the TRAs       

Annex 3 - TRAs’ leaflet with suggested response text 

Annex 4 - Comparison of offers to residents of redevelopment estates across 

London 

Annex 5 - The TRAs’ response to consultation 

Annex 6 - Amion Consulting’s response to the TRAs’ criticisms of the Economic 

Appraisal 

Annex 7 - Mr Slaughter’s letter of 12 March 2012 

Annex 8 - Mr Slaughter’s letter to residents  

Annex 9 - correspondence between the Council and the TRAs  

Annex 10 – letter from Mrs K Bowry 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 123



 3 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 From 6 January 2012 to 12 March 2012, the Council undertook a formal 

consultation with residents on whether the West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
Estates should be included in the proposed comprehensive redevelopment of the 
Earls Court area. This formal consultation also satisfied the requirements of section 
105 of the Housing Act 1985 in relation to the secure tenants on the Estates. 
 

1.2     A total of approximately 30,000 information packs were distributed to the Estates 
and across the wider area (defined by Hammersmith Road to the North, Fulham 
Palace Road to the West, New Kings Road to the South and Warwick Road and 
Finborough Road to the East). At Annex 1 is the feedback form that was provided 
to residents as part of the information pack. 

 
1.3       The economic appraisal looked at 4 options for the Estates: 
 

Table 1 – Economic Appraisal options 
 

Option Detail 
Option 1 Maintain the Estates as they are. This could include a 

transfer to a housing association, or a resident-
controlled private registered provider.  

Option 2 Continue to maintain the Estates and develop plots of 
land within the Estates. 

Option 3 Redevelopment of the Estates only (not as part of the 
comprehensive redevelopment plans). The existing 
properties on the estate would be demolished and 
replaced with new housing and other supporting uses. 

Option 4 Inclusion of the Estates within the Earls Court 
redevelopment scheme. 

 
 
1.4     1,612 responses were received from residents, together with a lengthy response 

from the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Tenants and Residents Associations 
(‘the TRAs’), and a response from Andy Slaughter MP in the form of a letter of 
objection dated 12 March 2012. This Appendix provides an overview and analysis 
of these responses, together with the representations that have been made 
following the Cabinet Report of 23 April 2012. 
 

1.5 There was no support amongst consultees for either Option 2 or Option 3. Overall, 
opinion was sharply polarised between those who supported the Council’s proposal 
(i.e. Option 4) and those who objected to it, many of whom were themselves in 
favour of the Stock Transfer Option (under Option 1). After stripping out e.g. 
duplicate responses (see paragraph 2.2 below), 634 consultees (45%) supported 
the Council’s proposal, whilst 660 (47%) objected to it, 32 (2%) raised concerns 
and the remaining 79 (6%) were neutral. 570 consultees (41%) supported the 
Stock Transfer Option (i.e. 86% of those who objected to the Council’s proposal 
were in favour of the Stock Transfer Option). These results are presented in greater 
detail below. 
 

2. THE RESPONSES RECEIVED 
 

2.1     The feedback form asked residents for their name, address, gender and age. Tick 
boxes allowed people to indicate whether they lived on the Estates or in the wider 
area. Estate residents could indicate whether they were a secure Council tenant, a 

Page 124



 4 

tenant of Family Mosaic, a tenant of Shepherd’s Bush Housing Association, a 
London & Quadrant tenant, a leaseholder, a freeholder, private tenant or “other”. 

 
2.2       1,612 individual responses were received. These were processed as follows: 

 
• Where a resident was found to have submitted more than one identical 

response only one such response was counted.  
 

• A number of residents submitted two or more responses which contained 
conflicting opinions. Where the dates of the responses were clear, the latest 
in time was counted. In some other cases it was possible to tell which was 
supposed to be the final response by the comments made (e.g. some forms 
explicitly stated “I have changed my mind...”). In a very small number of 
cases  it was not possible to gain a clear understanding of the consultee’s 
ultimate view, and these responses were not counted.  
 

• Responses were not counted if no name or address was provided.  
 

• Responses from children under 12 were not counted (see paragraph 2.8 
below). 

 
2.3 This process reduced the total number of responses leaving a total of 1,405, which  
            was then used for the statistical analysis.  

 
2.4 Over the entire consultation area: 

 
• Approximately 30,000 properties were sent the consultation materials 
• 1,405 responses were received, which gives rise to an overall response rate 

of 4.7% 
 

2.5 On the Estates: 
 

• 760 properties were sent the consultation materials 
• 779 responses were received from 516* properties 

 

Table 2; consultation responses from the Estates, broken down by tenure 
 

 

S
ec

u
re

 
co

u
n

ci
l 

te
n

an
t 

F
am

ily
 

M
o

sa
ic

 

S
B

H
A

 

L
&

Q
 

L
ea

se
 

h
o

ld
er

 

F
re

e 
h

o
ld

er
 

A
u

th
o

rs
is

ed
 

o
cc

u
p

an
ts

, 
P

S
L

 &
 T

O
L

 / 
P

ri
va

te
 s

ec
to

r 
 

Properties 531 42 7 9 132 39  

Responses 497** 59 13 12 74 26 98*** 

* Responses were received from 68% of properties across the estates. Many 
properties included responses from a number of members of the household. 
** Not all secure council tenanted properties responded. Many Council tenanted 
properties sent in multiple responses whilst a significant number did not respond at 
all. 
*** Responses include residents who live with Council tenants, private sector 
tenants who are renting from leaseholders and freeholders. 

Page 125



 5 

 
 

2.6 In the wider consultation area (excluding the Estates): 
 

• Approximately 29,240 properties were sent the consultation materials 
• 626 responded, which is a response rate of 2%  

 
2.7 The overall response rate of approximately 5% is average for this type of mass 

mail-out. As the figures above show, there was a very much higher response rate 
from the Estates than from the wider area.  

 
2.8 Responses from children 
 
2.8.1 538 responses were delivered to the Council by a delegation from the TRAs. Of 

these, 98 were from children. All objected to or raised concerns about the Council’s 
proposal. The consultation materials that were sent out did not specify a minimum 
age for consultees, as it was not anticipated that children as young as 4 would fill in 
feedback forms (e.g. by drawing pictures). Officers have decided that, not least 
given the relative complexity of the issues raised in the consultation, it is 
reasonable to set a minimum age of 12 for the purposes of determining whether a 
response should be counted as part of the overall statistical analysis.  

 
Table 3; responses from children 
 
Age Number of 

responses 
Number of 
households at 
issue 

Adult 
responses from 
the same 
households 

4 – 11 (not included in results) 46 31 45 
12 – 17 (included in results) 52 44 73 
 
 
2.8.2 Some households submitted multiple responses. This is especially pronounced in 

households where children completed feedback forms. For instance, the above 
table shows that 44 properties were responsible for 125 of the responses that were 
counted (i.e. almost 9% of the total number of responses). 

 
3.         VIEWS ON THE COUNCIL’S PROPOSAL  
 
3.1 The feedback form asked questions in an unguided way. Officers have therefore 

had to use judgment to divide the responses into sensible categories for the 
purposes of the overall statistical analysis. The following categories have been 
used: 

 
Table 4 - Categories 

 
SUPPORT Where the response clearly stated 

support or was clearly positive about 
the Council’s proposal 

OBJECT Where the response clearly stated 
opposition or was clearly negative 
about the Council’s proposal 

CONCERN Where the response did not state clear 
opposition or clear support, but instead 
merely expressed concern about an 

Page 126



 6 

element of the Council’s proposal 
NOT ENOUGH INFO / NEUTRAL  Where the response did not give 

enough information to be included in 
any of the above categories, or clearly 
stated that the consultee was neither 
for nor against the proposal 

 
3.2  The 1,405 responses break down as follows: 
 

Table 5; Residents’ views on the Council’s proposal 
 

 No of 
responses 

% 
(following 
re-
checking) 

% in 23 
April 
2012 
report 

Support 634 45% 43.7% 
Object 660 47% 48.5% 
Concern 32 2% 4% 
Not enough info / Neutral 79 6% 3.9% 
TOTAL 1,405 100% 100% 
  
 

3.3 An interim analysis was presented to the Cabinet on 23 April 2012. Since that date 
officers have re-checked their analysis and this has resulted in some relatively 
minor variations to the figures. The final column in Table 5 above shows (for 
comparison) the old figures that were presented to the Cabinet in April. The re-
checked and old figures break down as follows. 

 
Table 6: Comparison of April and current figures 

 
Estate  
 
 

Wider Area 

Support  Support  
Actual  23 April 2012 

Cabinet Report  
Actual  23 April 2012 Cabinet 

Report 
171 175 463 448 
Opposed   Opposed  
Actual  23 April 2012 

Cabinet Report 
Actual  23 April 2012 Cabinet 

Report 
592 584 68 108 
Concerned   Concerned   
Actual  23 April 2012 

Cabinet Report 
Actual  23 April 2012 Cabinet 

Report 
4 25 28 32 
Neutral   Neutral   
Actual  23 April 2012 

Cabinet Report 
Actual  23 April 2012 Cabinet 

Report  

 

12 21 67 34 
Total  779 805 

 

626 622 
 
3.4 The above shows that both the support for the comprehensive redevelopment in 

the wider area and the opposition to the comprehensive redevelopment from the 
Estates are somewhat higher than originally presented. 

 
3.5   Overall, marginally more consultees objected to the Council’s proposal than 

Page 127



 7 

supported it, and a modest majority either objected to it or raised a concern about 
it. The majority of the responses from the wider area were supportive, whilst on the 
Estates themselves the majority objected.  

 
3.6 There was an active campaign by the TRAs to encourage residents to respond. As 

part of this campaign a pre-typed feedback form was produced for use by residents 
(see Annex 2), and a similar (although not identical) suggested text for the 
feedback form was also circulated in a leaflet (see Annex 3). Both objected to the 
Council’s proposal (and expressed support for the Stock Transfer Option). 

 
3.7   As has been noted, a delegation from the TRAs delivered 538 responses to the  
             Council. All of these objected to the Council’s proposal (and expressed support for  
             the Stock Transfer Option). The responses fell into two categories: 
 

• Responses where consultees had signed the pre-typed text or copied out 
the suggested text in the leaflet; 

• Responses where consultees had signed the pre-typed text and had in 
addition added in their own hand-written comments. 

 
3.8 Among residents on the Estates, there was less objection to (and greater levels of 

support for) the Council’s proposals from residents of the high-rise blocks as 
compared with residents of the low-rise blocks. 

 
Table 5; Views of residents on the Estates by type of property 
  

High-rise Low-rise Total Response 
nos % nos % Nos % 

Support 99 35% 72 14% 171 22% 
Object 172 61% 420 85% 592 76% 
Concerned 3 1% 1 >1% 4 >1% 
Not enough info given / neutral 8 3% 4 1% 12 2% 
TOTAL 282 100.0 497 100.0 779 100.0 
 

3.9 Based on a desk top analysis of housing need low-rise blocks are more likely to be   
 under-occupied than high-rise blocks, and high-rise blocks are more likely to be 

over-occupied than low-rise blocks. In addition, residents in low-rise blocks are 
more likely to be in houses with gardens and are more likely to have their own off-
street parking. Officers consider that these differences may in part explain the 
difference between the responses for high-rise and low-rise blocks. 
 

3.10 570 consultees supported the Stock Transfer Option. This amounts to 41% of all 
the consultees who submitted responses. 
 
Table 6; Responses that supported the Stock Transfer Option 

 
Tenure Total 
Council Tenant 351 
Family Mosaic 58 
SBHA 13 
L&Q 11 
Leaseholder 28 
Freeholder 18 
PSL, TOL, private 
tenant other 

55 

Page 128



 8 

Wider area 36 
Total 570 
 

3.11 97% of those supporting the Stock Transfer Option did so in an assisted or part-
assisted response (that is, a response that at least incorporated the pre-typed text, 
or made use of the wording in the TRAs’ leaflet). Only 3% of those indicating a 
preference for the Stock Transfer Option did so without using either the pre-typed 
text or the wording in the TRAs’ leaflet. 

 
3.12 The relevant statement in the TRAs’ pre-typed response was, “I want the estates to 

be transferred into the ownership and management of West Ken & Gibbs Green 
Community Homes (WKGGCH).” The suggested text in the TRAs’ leaflet was 
similar. 

 
4.        SECURE TENANTS’ VIEWS ON THE COUNCIL’S PROPOSAL: THE SECTION   
           105 CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 required the Council to inform its secure 

tenants of its proposals and give them an opportunity to make known their views on 
the proposals. The secure tenants are those persons who are parties to the various 
tenancy agreements that have given rise to secure tenancies. In the case of joint 
tenancies, all the persons so named will be secure tenants. Of the 584 secure 
council tenants, 324 responded (equating to a response rate of 55%). Therefore 
45% of the secure tenants who were able to express an opinion did not do so. 

 
          Table 7; Secure tenants’ views on the Council’s proposal 
 

Total 
Response nos % 

Support 103 32% 

Object 213 66% 

Concern 1 0 

Not enough info / Neutral  7 2% 

TOTAL 324 100.0 
 
4.2 For completeness, officers also analysed the responses by all persons who defined 

themselves as secure Council tenants in their feedback form. The results are 
shown in the following table. 

 
Table 8; Responses from people who defined themselves as secure Council tenants  
 

Total 
Response nos % 

Support 111 22 

Object 372 75 

Concern 2 >1% 

Not enough info / Neutral 12 2 

TOTAL 497 100.0 

Page 129



 9 

 
5.  ANALYSIS OF THE RESPONSES FROM INDIVIDUAL RESIDENTS 

5.1 This section addresses the issues raised in the responses by individual consultees. 

The issues have been arranged under 7 ‘themes’: 

Theme 1 - Inclusion of the Estates in wider Earls Court redevelopment 

Theme 2 - Redevelopment opportunities for the wider area 

Theme 3 - The offers to tenants and leaseholders / freeholders 

Theme 4 - Consultation / balloting the Estates  

Theme 5 - Reasons for wanting to stay / move  

Theme 6 - Transport and local facilities 

Theme 7 - New housing  

5.2 After Theme 7, various miscellaneous issues are identified and addressed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 130



 

1
0
 

 Th
em

e 
1:

 In
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

in
 w

id
er

 E
ar

ls
 C

o
u

rt
 r

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

 T
hi

s 
th

em
e 

co
m

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
 fr

om
 Q

ue
st

io
n 

1 
in

 th
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fo
rm

, w
hi

ch
 a

im
ed

 to
 c

ap
tu

re
 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 A

re
a 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 it
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
. 

 
Q

u
es

ti
o

n
 1

: 
“W

h
at

 a
re

 y
o

u
r 

vi
ew

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

co
u

nc
il’

s 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l t
o 

in
cl

u
de

 t
h

e 
es

ta
te

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

re
d

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

sc
h

em
e?

” 
 5.

3.
2 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
w

hi
ch

 m
os

t r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 e
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 a
nd

 it
 g

av
e 

ris
e 

to
 th

e 
cl

ea
re

st
 s

et
 o

f r
es

po
ns

es
. 

 5.
3.

3 
T

hi
s 

w
as

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 m

os
t r

es
po

nd
en

ts
 e

ng
ag

ed
 w

ith
 a

nd
 it

 g
av

e 
ris

e 
to

 th
e 

cl
ea

re
st

 s
et

 o
f r

es
po

ns
es

. 
 5.

3.
4 

T
he

 m
ai

n 
is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

ar
e 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 b
el

ow
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
he

ad
in

gs
:  

 
• 

O
bj

ec
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 

• 
S

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 

• 
O

bj
ec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a 

• 
S

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
w

id
er

 a
re

a 
 

Th
em

e 
1 

- 
 In

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
in

 w
id

er
 E

ar
ls

 C
o

ur
t 

re
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
  

 
O

b
je

ct
io

n
/S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

P
o

in
t 

M
ad

e 
Q

u
o

te
s 

O
ff

ic
er

s’
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 

1.
 

O
b

je
ct

io
n

s 
fr

o
m

 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
 

 59
2 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fr

om
 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 
ob

je
ct

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 
 T

he
se

 o
bj

ec
tio

ns
 

pr
in

ci
pa

lly
 fe

ll 
in

to
 2

 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

 
 

a)
 T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 p

re
se

rv
e 

an
  e

st
ab

lis
h

ed
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
 

“I
 o

bj
ec

t v
er

y 
st

ro
ng

ly
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 s

el
l a

nd
 

de
m

ol
is

h 
th

e 
W

es
t 

 
K

en
si

ng
to

n 
&

 G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 
es

ta
te

s.
 T

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 is
 w

el
l 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

” 
 “I

 o
pp

os
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
sc

he
m

e 
as

 I 
do

 n
ot

 b
el

ie
ve

 it
 is

 
be

ne
fic

ia
l t

o 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 It

's
 n

ot
 fa

ir 
to

 a
sk

 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
be

en
 li

vi
ng

 

It 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 w
er

e 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 th

is
 is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t i
ss

ue
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 a
s 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 k
ey

 c
on

ce
rn

 r
ai

se
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
es

ta
te

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 R
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 th
is

 c
on

ce
rn

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

pr
op

os
al

 w
hi

ch
 a

im
s 

to
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 to

ge
th

er
, a

nd
 h

as
 tr

ie
d 

to
 

m
iti

ga
te

 a
ny

 d
is

ru
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

su
pp

or
t n

et
w

or
ks

 
as

 m
uc

h 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

es
 th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

so
m

e 
di

sr
up

tio
n 

th
at

 it
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 o

r 
av

oi
d.

 
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

os
al

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 h

el
p 

pr
es

er
ve

 th
e 

Page 131



 

1
1
 

 

he
re

 fo
r 

a 
lo

ng
 ti

m
e 

to
 ju

st
 

m
ov

e 
lik

e 
th

at
, k

ic
ki

ng
 th

em
 o

ut
 

of
 th

ei
r 

ho
m

es
” 

 “W
el

l i
t i

s 
no

t g
oo

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 li

ve
 in

 th
is

 e
st

at
e 

to
 

m
ov

e 
be

ca
us

e 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

a 
fla

t 
th

at
 is

 g
oo

d 
fo

r 
th

em
” 

 

co
m

m
un

ity
: 

 � 
E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ep

la
ce

s 
al

l e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 

an
d 

th
at

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

re
 b

ui
lt 

be
fo

re
 r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

e 
to

 m
ov

e,
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

to
 m

ov
e 

ou
t o

f t
he

 a
re

a,
 a

nd
 o

nl
y 

ha
ve

 to
 m

ov
e 

on
ce

. 

� 
E

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 p
ha

se
s 

ar
e 

la
rg

e 
en

ou
gh

 to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l n
um

be
r 

of
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
20

0)
 to

 m
ov

e 
to

ge
th

er
, s

o 
as

 to
 k

ee
p 

lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

 
ne

tw
or

ks
 in

ta
ct

. 

� 
A

tte
m

pt
in

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

, w
he

n 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

ne
w

 h
om

es
, r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 w
an

t t
o 

re
m

ai
n 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
 c

an
 d

o 
so

. 

 

b
) 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
 

 A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t n
um

be
r 

of
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
ha

pp
y 

w
ith

 
th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t h

om
es

 a
nd

 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 
E

st
at

es
.  

 

“B
ot

h 
es

ta
te

s 
ar

e 
in

 g
oo

d 
co

nd
iti

on
. I

 v
al

ue
 m

y 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

th
is

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 a

nd
 I 

w
an

t 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o 

re
sp

ec
t m

y 
w

is
he

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
de

m
ol

is
hi

ng
 o

ur
 h

om
es

, f
or

 
fo

rc
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 m

ov
e,

 o
r 

fo
r 

se
lli

ng
 th

e 
la

nd
 fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.”

 

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ar

e 
gl

ad
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l o

f s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
on

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

, t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 w
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 r
es

id
en

ts
’ s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n.

 
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

su
rv

ey
 a

na
ly

si
s 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
£6

0m
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 3
0 

ye
ar

s.
 T

hi
s 

pl
ac

es
 a

 la
rg

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 s

tr
ai

n 
on

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 
A

cc
ou

nt
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 it

 is
 fa

r 
m

or
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l f
or

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
if 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
ne

w
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 m
od

er
n 

st
an

da
rd

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 c

he
ap

er
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n.
 

 D
at

a 
fr

om
 H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 B

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

s 
in

 2
01

1 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 1
4.

9%
 

of
 h

om
es

 o
n 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
re

 o
ve

rc
ro

w
de

d,
 a

nd
 1

6%
 o

f h
om

es
 o

n 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
 a

re
 

un
de

r-
 o

cc
up

ie
d.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 m
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
w

ro
ng

 s
iz

ed
 h

om
e 

– 
ei

th
er

 
un

de
r 

or
 o

ve
r 

oc
cu

py
in

g.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l a

llo
w

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 ta
ck

le
 th

is
 is

su
e,

 a
nd

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 a

re
 b

ui
lt 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

.  
2.

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
E

st
at

es
 

  17
1 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fr

om
 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

.  
 

a)
  O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
o

ff
er

ed
 

b
y 

th
e 

re
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 

S
om

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
el

co
m

ed
 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 o
ffe

re
d 

by
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
pl

an
. 

“G
oo

d 
pl

an
 –

 o
ne

 th
at

 c
an

 n
ot

 
be

 m
is

se
d.

 G
oo

d 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
fo

r 
ev

er
yo

ne
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

.”
 

 “B
es

t t
hi

ng
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 h
ap

pe
n 

fo
r 

F
ul

ha
m

 a
nd

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s.

” 
 “I

 w
an

t i
t t

o 
ha

pp
en

. I
 th

in
k 

it 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

e 
ar

ea
 g

oo
d,

 m
or

e 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 fr

om
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 s
aw

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
s 

a 
w

ay
 o

f c
re

at
in

g 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

 T
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 A

pp
ra

is
al

 e
st

im
at

es
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 jo

bs
 th

ro
ug

h 
ne

w
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
(o

ve
r 

9,
50

0 
ne

w
 jo

bs
) 

an
d 

fr
om

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
w

or
k 

(3
6,

03
3 

pe
rs

on
 y

ea
rs

).
 It

 is
 a

ls
o 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e 
£9

9m
 p

er
 

an
nu

m
 fo

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y.

 T
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 A

pp
ra

is
al

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

in
 

S
ec

tio
n 

6 
be

lo
w

. 

Page 132



 

1
2
 

 

jo
bs

, h
ap

pi
er

 p
eo

pl
e.

” 
  “

G
oo

d 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
.”

 
b

) 
D

es
ir

e 
fo

r 
n

ew
 h

o
m

es
 

 S
up

po
rt

iv
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

el
co

m
ed

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

to
 m

ov
e 

to
 a

 n
ew

ly
 b

ui
lt 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

di
ss

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 e

st
at

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
al

 
ar

ea
s.

 

“Y
es

 p
le

as
e 

I w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 n

ew
 

ho
m

es
 fo

r 
ou

r 
ki

ds
” 

 “T
he

 p
ro

sp
ec

t o
f s

w
ap

pi
ng

 a
 

on
e-

be
dr

oo
m

 fl
at

 th
at

 is
 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
to

 s
ho

w
 it

s 
ag

e 
w

ith
 

ho
pe

fu
lly

 a
 tw

o-
be

dr
oo

m
 n

ew
 

ap
ar

tm
en

t i
s 

m
os

t w
el

co
m

e.
” 

 “I
 fe

el
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

s 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

th
in

g 
as

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

its
el

f i
s 

no
t i

n 
go

od
 c

on
di

tio
n 

an
d 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 g

en
er

at
io

ns
 to

 c
om

e.
” 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
th

e 
de

si
re

 fo
r 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 fr

om
 r

es
id

en
ts

 li
vi

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

al
 in

vo
lv

es
 th

e 
re

-p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 7
60

 c
ou

nc
il 

ho
m

es
, f

un
de

d 
by

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

74
0 

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
. 

T
hi

s 
of

fe
rs

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 th

at
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

pr
es

en
t n

ee
ds

 
an

d 
- 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

ho
ic

e 
- 

he
lp

s 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

an
 b

e 
m

et
.  

 T
he

 G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
e 

is
 o

ve
r 

50
 y

ea
rs

 o
ld

 a
nd

 th
e 

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

es
ta

te
 is

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

40
 y

ea
rs

 o
ld

. D
es

pi
te

 d
ec

en
t h

om
es

 w
or

k 
ov

er
 r

ec
en

t y
ea

rs
, t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 e
st

at
es

 a
re

 s
ho

w
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ag
e.

 
 

c)
 Im

p
ro

ve
d

 li
vi

n
g

 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

as
 s

o
o

n
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 
 R

es
id

en
ts

 w
er

e 
im

pa
tie

nt
 

to
 h

av
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 li
vi

ng
 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
an

d 
w

an
te

d 
th

em
 a

s 
so

on
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

“I
 h

av
e 

liv
ed

 in
 D

es
bo

ro
ug

h 
H

ou
se

 fo
r 

tw
en

ty
 y

ea
rs

 …
. t

he
 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 v

er
y 

go
od

 th
e 

so
on

er
 th

e 
be

tte
r 

I w
an

t t
o 

ge
t 

ou
t.”

 
 “Y

es
, p

ul
l d

ow
n,

 w
an

t t
o 

go
 

no
w

”.
  

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
s 

th
at

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 im

pa
tie

nt
 to

 s
ee

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 
im

pa
tie

nt
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

de
ci

si
on

 a
s 

to
 w

he
th

er
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
w

an
te

d 
to

 fu
lly

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

in
vo

lv
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
ts

 o
w

n 
pr

op
os

al
, b

ef
or

e 
m

ak
in

g 
a 

fin
al

 d
ec

is
io

n.
  

 S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
ke

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 th
e 

C
LS

A
, t

he
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 c
le

ar
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

im
es

ca
le

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s.

  

R
ea

so
ns

 fo
r 

su
pp

or
t 

pr
in

ci
pa

lly
 fe

ll 
in

to
 

fo
ur

 m
ai

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

  
  

d
) 

T
ac

kl
in

g
 c

ri
m

e 
an

d
 

A
n

ti
 S

o
ci

al
 B

eh
av

io
u

r 
(A

S
B

) 
 R

es
id

en
ts

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 ta

ck
le

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
A

S
B

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
de

si
gn

in
g 

th
e 

en
tir

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d.

 

“N
o 

ot
he

r 
(c

om
m

en
ts

) 
th

an
 

ex
pr

es
s 

m
y 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 b
en

ef
it 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

y 
ha

vi
ng

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
rim

e 
in

 W
es

t 
K

en
si

ng
to

n/
E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 a

re
a”

 

M
an

y 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
s 

th
e 

so
ur

ce
 o

f c
rim

e 
an

d 
A

S
B

. L
oc

al
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

e 
to

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t l
ev

el
s 

of
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

A
S

B
 o

f a
ny

 e
st

at
e 

in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 3
 y

ea
rs

.  
 It 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
pl

an
ni

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

al
l s

ite
s 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ar
ea

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

rim
e 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

D
es

ig
n 

A
dv

is
or

 fr
om

 th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
ol

ic
e.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 C

LS
A

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
al

l r
e-

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
om

es
 to

 b
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ed

 
as

 “
S

ec
ur

e 
by

 D
es

ig
n”

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 C

hi
ef

 P
ol

ic
e 

O
ffi

ce
rs

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 c
ou

nc
il 

of
fic

er
s 

co
ns

id
er

 th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

a 
sa

fe
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

Page 133



 

1
3
 

 

th
an

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

E
st

at
es

 a
nd

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, w

ill
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

 m
in

im
is

in
g 

A
S

B
. 

3.
 

O
b

je
ct

io
n

s 
fr

o
m

 
w

id
er

 a
re

a 
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
68

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 
ob

je
ct

ed
 to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a.

 
 T

he
se

 o
bj

ec
tio

ns
 

fe
ll 

in
to

 tw
o 

m
ai

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

 
  

. 
  

 

a)
 D

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

 M
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ci
tin

g 
co

nc
er

ns
 o

ve
r 

du
st

, 
no

is
e 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

tr
af

fic
. 

 

“I
 a

m
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

…
 fo

r 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 th
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

on
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 o
f t

he
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ar
ea

.”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 d
is

ru
pt

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
us

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

es
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

th
is

 e
nt

ire
ly

, b
ut

 it
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

an
y 

di
sr

up
tio

n.
 

 T
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
is

 m
in

im
is

ed
 fo

r 
es

ta
te

 r
es

id
en

ts
, t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
en

su
re

d 
th

at
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 C

LS
A

 a
nd

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 a
nd

 le
as

eh
ol

de
r/

fr
ee

ho
ld

er
 o

ffe
rs

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

. A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
di

re
ct

 r
es

ul
t o

f e
ar

lie
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 w
ith

 r
es

id
en

ts
. 

 M
iti

ga
tin

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

es
ta

te
 r

es
id

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
 � 

 R
es

id
en

ts
 h

av
in

g 
on

e 
m

ov
e 

on
ly

 fr
om

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

e,
 to

 th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
e.

 

� 
 A

ll 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
m

us
t b

e 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

sc
he

m
e.

 
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
w

ith
 th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 it

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 to

 a
vo

id
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 n

ui
sa

nc
e.

 

� 
 T

he
 p

ha
si

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 w

he
n 

a 
ph

as
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 th

e 
D

ev
el

op
er

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
 

P
ha

se
 Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

th
at

 e
xp

la
in

 h
ow

 th
e 

es
ta

te
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 fu
nc

tio
n 

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 to

 li
ve

 w
hi

ls
t t

ha
t 

ph
as

e 
is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ho
w

 a
ll 

ut
ili

ty
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

ho
w

 s
af

e 
ve

hi
cu

la
r 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ac

ce
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

on
 th

e 
es

ta
te

, 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

ho
w

 s
ec

ur
ity

 o
f t

he
 e

st
at

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 n

ot
 

ag
re

e 
to

 th
e 

ph
as

e 
un

le
ss

 th
ey

 a
re

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

nd
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
es

ta
te

 r
es

id
en

ts
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
in

im
is

ed
. 

� 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 tr

y 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

, d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

w
or

k,
 a

ny
 v

ac
an

t l
an

d 
th

at
 b

ec
om

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

is
 u

se
d 

in
 c

re
at

iv
e 

w
ay

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
go

od
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
. 

� 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 p

ub
lis

h 
re

gu
la

r 
ne

w
sl

et
te

rs
 to

 k
ee

p 
es

ta
te

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

fo
rm

ed
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

cl
ea

r 
po

in
ts

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
 a

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ev

el
op

er
 s

o 
th

at
 a

ny
 is

su
es

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 

Page 134



 

1
4
 

 

ea
si

ly
 r

ai
se

d,
 a

nd
 d

ea
lt 

w
ith

.  

 T
he

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pl
ac

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

is
 m

in
im

is
ed

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
an

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

. 
b

) 
A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

 S
om

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

fe
lt 

th
at

 
lo

w
 in

co
m

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

“p
ric

ed
 o

ut
” 

of
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 

“d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f p
oo

re
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
be

in
g 

pr
ic

ed
 o

ut
” 

76
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
re

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

m
es

 o
n 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

m
ol

is
he

d.
 T

he
 m

ix
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
si

gn
ed

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
d.

 C
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nc
ie

s 
w

ith
 r

en
ts

 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

w
ay

 a
s 

ot
he

r 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
.  

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
74

0 
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
(t

he
 fi

na
l f

ig
ur

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

).
 T

hi
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. I
t w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 w
an

tin
g 

to
 o

w
n 

th
ei

r 
ho

m
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. A

t p
re

se
nt

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 o

ve
r 

4,
00

0 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
ho

m
e 

bu
y 

re
gi

st
er

.  
4.

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
w

id
er

 a
re

a 
 46

3 
re

si
de

nt
s 

fr
om

 
th

e 
w

id
er

 a
re

a 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

al
.  

 R
ea

so
ns

 fo
r 

su
pp

or
t 

fe
ll 

in
to

 th
re

e 
m

ai
n 

ca
te

go
rie

s.
 

 

a)
 T

h
e 

ap
p

ea
ra

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 
 R

es
id

en
ts

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

 
de

si
re

 to
 s

ee
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

tr
an

sf
or

m
ed

 a
nd

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
s 

“a
n 

ey
es

or
e”

 e
tc

.  
 

“W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

es
ta

te
 is

 a
n 

ug
ly

 s
ca

r 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

” 
 “D

ef
in

ite
ly

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

es
ta

te
 –

 
it 

w
ill

 r
ea

lly
 s

m
ar

te
n 

up
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

&
 a

ttr
ac

t n
ew

 b
us

in
es

s 
– 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

le
t t

he
 a

re
a 

do
w

n 
at

 th
e 

m
om

en
t”

 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 it
s 

pr
op

os
al

 w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
br

in
g 

ab
ou

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

hy
si

ca
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a.
 

 

 
 

b
) 

T
ac

kl
in

g
 c

ri
m

e 
an

d
 

A
S

B
 

 R
es

id
en

ts
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 ta
ck

le
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

A
S

B
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

de
si

gn
in

g 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d.
 

“T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 e
st

at
e 

ne
ed

s 
to

 
be

 r
ej

uv
en

at
ed

. I
t’s

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

n 
in

ho
sp

ita
bl

e 
‘n

o 
go

’ a
re

a 
th

at
 is

 
fr

ig
ht

en
in

g 
an

d 
da

ng
er

ou
s 

an
d 

ge
ne

ra
te

s 
a 

lo
t o

f v
an

da
lis

m
, 

th
ef

t a
nd

 d
og

 fa
ec

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
.”

 

S
ee

 th
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 T
he

m
e 

1,
 P

oi
nt

 2
(d

) 
ab

ov
e.

 
     

 
 

c)
 C

re
at

in
g

 a
 n

ew
 

co
h

es
iv

e 
n

ei
g

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
“A

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 r

em
ov

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
no

te
s 

th
is

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 a

 m
or

e 
co

he
si

ve
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

. 
 

Page 135



 

1
5
 

 

 S
om

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a 

em
br

ac
ed

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
co

he
si

ve
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

, 
sa

yi
ng

 th
at

 th
ey

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
 a

s 
“s

ep
ar

at
e”

 a
nd

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
“d

is
jo

in
te

d”
 if

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

as
 th

ey
 w

er
e 

so
ci

al
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

th
at

 m
us

t 
no

t b
e 

w
as

te
d.

” 
 “I

 th
in

k 
th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
a 

m
or

e 
ho

m
og

en
ou

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

. A
t p

re
se

nt
 th

e 
ar

ea
’s

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 in
 

se
pa

ra
te

 p
oc

ke
ts

 th
at

 d
o 

no
t 

in
te

ra
ct

 –
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 h
ea

lth
y”

 
 “I

 th
in

k 
it 

m
ak

es
 s

en
se

 to
 c

re
at

e 
ho

us
in

g 
th

at
 is

 b
et

te
r 

su
ite

d 
to

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
cr

ea
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 th

at
 b

ui
ld

 s
oc

ia
l 

co
he

si
on

.”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
ix

ed
, 

ba
la

nc
ed

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a.

   
 A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
aw

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
th

e 
w

id
er

 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
as

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 w

ay
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 to
 li

ve
 to

ge
th

er
 in

 a
 m

or
e 

so
ci

al
ly

 c
oh

es
iv

e 
w

ay
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
is

 c
an

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

ne
w

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
et

c.
 

Th
em

e 
1 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 
T

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
sh

ow
s 

st
ro

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
w

id
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 (a

t a
 r

at
io

 o
f 7

:1
).

 T
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ha
s 

al
so

 s
ho

w
n 

th
at

 o
n 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 th
e 

ra
tio

 o
f o

pp
os

iti
on

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 c

lo
se

 to
 4

:1
. W

he
n 

on
ly

 s
ec

ur
e 

te
na

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 th
e 

ra
tio

 is
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
2:

1.
 

Page 136



 

1
6
 

 T
h

em
e 

2:
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a  

 T
hi

s 
th

em
e 

ar
is

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
 fr

om
 Q

ue
st

io
n 

2 
in

 th
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fo
rm

, w
hi

ch
 s

ou
gh

t c
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
as

te
r 

pl
an

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 p
ag

es
 4

 –
 5

 o
f t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pa

ck
.  

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 2
: 

“A
re

 t
h

er
e 

an
y 

fu
rt

h
er

 c
o

m
m

en
ts

 y
o

u
 w

an
t 

to
 m

ak
e 

ab
o

u
t 

an
y 

as
p

ec
t 

o
f 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t?

” 

 Is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d 
un

de
r 

th
is

 th
em

e 
fa

ll 
in

to
 1

3 
m

ai
n 

ca
te

go
rie

s.
 T

he
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 th
at

 r
ai

se
d 

th
em

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

. 
 T

h
em

e 
2 

- 
R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a 

  
 

P
o

in
t 

M
ad

e 
Q

u
o

te
s 

O
ff

ic
er

s’
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 

1.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
S

to
ck

 T
ra

n
sf

er
 

O
p

ti
o

n
, i

n
 t

h
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

a 
tr

an
sf

er
 

o
f 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 s
to

ck
 t

o
 W

es
t 

K
en

si
n

g
to

n
 a

n
d

 G
ib

b
s 

G
re

en
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

H
o

m
es

 (
W

K
G

G
C

H
).

 
 57

0 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 1
84

 w
er

e 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
) 

in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 fo

r 
a 

st
oc

k 
tr

an
sf

er
 to

 W
K

G
G

C
H

. 

“I
 w

an
t 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 e

xc
lu

de
 t

he
 W

es
t 

K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
es

 f
ro

m
 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
E

ar
l’s

 
C

ou
rt

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 a
re

a 
al

l t
og

et
he

r.
 I

 w
an

t 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
to

 
be

 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
in

to
 

th
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 W
es

t 
K

en
 

&
 

G
ib

bs
 

G
re

en
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
om

es
 

(W
K

G
G

C
H

)”
. 

A
s 

no
te

d 
in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

 a
bo

ve
, t

hi
s 

w
as

 th
e 

on
ly

 o
th

er
 O

pt
io

n 
th

at
 w

as
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 A
s 

su
ch

, i
t i

s 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

in
 d

et
ai

l i
n 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
C

ab
in

et
 R

ep
or

t. 
 

2.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
cr

ea
ti

o
n

 o
f 

jo
b

s 
/ e

co
n

o
m

ic
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n

 in
 

re
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
ar

ea
  

 A
m

on
gs

t t
ho

se
 w

ho
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

os
al

, t
hi

s 
is

su
e 

w
as

 th
e 

m
os

t f
re

qu
en

tly
 c

ite
d.

 4
3 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ra

is
ed

 it
.  

 

“T
hi

s 
is

 
cl

ea
rly

 
a 

on
ce

-in
-a

-li
fe

tim
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 b
rin

g 
jo

bs
, n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

m
as

si
ve

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

to
 a

 r
un

 d
ow

n 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h”
 

 “M
y 

fe
el

in
gs

 a
re

 o
ve

rw
he

lm
in

gl
y 

po
si

tiv
e.

 
T

hi
s 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 

en
su

re
 

th
e 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

of
 o

ur
 a

re
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

be
tte

r.
 

W
e 

ca
nn

ot
 a

llo
w

 th
is

 n
ot

 to
 h

ap
pe

n”
 

In
 th

e 
lig

ht
 o

f t
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 A

pp
ra

is
al

, o
ffi

ce
rs

 b
el

ie
ve

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ill
 g

en
er

at
e 

ne
w

 jo
bs

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
(s

ee
 a

ls
o 

T
he

m
e 

1,
 P

oi
nt

 2
(a

) 
ab

ov
e)

. T
he

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
in

 
S

ec
tio

n 
6 

be
lo

w
. 

 
 

3.
 

C
o

n
ce

rn
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

“I
 a

m
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

…
 fo

r 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 th
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

on
 

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 T

he
m

e 
1,

 P
oi

nt
 3

(a
) 

ab
ov

e.
 

Page 137



 

1
7
 

 

 33
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 is
su

e.
  

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 o
f t

he
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ar
ea

.”
 

4.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e 

an
d

 im
p

at
ie

n
t 

to
 

se
e 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 

 21
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 is
su

e.
 

T
he

 r
es

po
ns

es
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

an
 im

pa
tie

nc
e 

to
 

se
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

   

“G
et

 o
n 

w
ith

 it
”,

  
 “A

s 
so

on
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
”,

 
  “

G
et

 c
ra

ck
in

g”
  

 “T
he

 q
ui

ck
er

 t
he

 b
et

te
r 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 t

o 
se

e 
it 

in
 m

y 
lif

et
im

e”
 

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

st
at

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a 

w
ho

 a
re

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

of
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

sc
he

m
e 

bu
t a

re
 im

pa
tie

nt
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

.  
 B

ef
or

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

ul
d 

m
ak

e 
a 

de
ci

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

 
in

 th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ch

em
e,

 th
at

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
d 

to
 fu

lly
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
an

d 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
as

se
ss

 
w

he
th

er
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

be
st

 o
pt

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

, e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 r
es

id
en

ts
 to

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
ei

r 
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

ne
go

tia
te

 th
e 

be
st

 p
os

si
bl

e 
de

al
 fo

r 
es

ta
te

 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
, b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
.  

 S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
o 

ah
ea

d 
it 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 p
ro

je
ct

 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 o

ve
r 

a 
20

 y
ea

r 
pe

rio
d,

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

om
es

 fo
r 

es
ta

te
 r

es
id

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 a

 1
0-

15
 y

ea
r 

pe
rio

d.
  

 Li
ke

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 k

ee
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
gr

es
se

s 
qu

ic
kl

y 
so

 th
at

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

re
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
s 

ea
rly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

. I
nd

ee
d,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 th

at
 

sh
ou

ld
 h

el
p 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s 
qu

ic
kl

y 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 th
at

 e
na

bl
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 

te
rm

in
at

e 
th

e 
C

LS
A

 if
 w

ith
in

 1
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 it
 b

ei
ng

 s
ig

ne
d,

 E
C

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

 
ha

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ith
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t s
oc

ia
l 

re
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

. 
5.

 
W

o
u

ld
 li

ke
 t

h
e 

q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 

sh
o

p
s 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

 
R

es
po

ns
es

 o
n 

th
is

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

e 
po

or
 s

ta
te

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 s

ho
ps

 a
nd

 
re

qu
es

te
d 

a 
w

id
er

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
sh

op
s.

 T
he

 a
re

a 
ar

ou
nd

 W
es

t 
K

en
si

ng
to

n 
T

ub
e 

w
as

 c
ite

d 
as

 
be

in
g 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 n
ee

d 
of

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 19

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e.

  

“I
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

gr
ea

t t
o 

ha
ve

 b
et

te
r 

sh
op

s 
w

ith
 m

or
e 

ch
oi

ce
 to

 s
ho

p”
 

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 c
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 r

an
ge

 o
f s

ho
ps

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
.  

 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

 in
 th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
an

d 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 r
an

ge
 o

f s
ho

ps
 th

at
 a

re
 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

Page 138



 

1
8
 

 

6.
 

W
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 p
re

se
rv

e 
N

o
rt

h
 

E
n

d
 R

o
ad

 M
ar

ke
t 

 N
or

th
 E

nd
 R

oa
d 

M
ar

ke
t w

as
 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
al

m
os

t a
s 

of
te

n 
as

 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

nd
 r

et
ai

l g
en

er
al

ly
. T

he
 

m
ar

ke
t a

re
a 

w
as

 c
ite

d 
as

 b
ot

h 
lo

ok
in

g 
ru

n 
do

w
n 

an
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t s
ou

rc
e 

of
 fr

es
h 

fr
ui

t a
nd

 
ve

ge
ta

bl
es

.  
 18

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e.

  

“N
or

th
 E

nd
 M

ar
ke

t :
 th

is
 is

 v
ita

l t
o 

ou
r 

do
m

es
tic

 e
co

no
m

y 
– 

bo
th

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 

th
e 

ch
ea

p 
sh

op
s.

 T
he

y 
m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
pr

ic
ed

 o
ut

 a
nd

 m
us

t (
es

p 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t)
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 &

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
” 

 “P
le

as
e 

en
su

re
 w

e 
st

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
fr

ui
t a

nd
 

ve
g 

m
ar

ke
t!”

 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 c
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
N

or
th

 E
nd

 R
oa

d 
M

ar
ke

t a
nd

 h
as

 p
as

se
d 

th
es

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

to
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

     

7.
 

W
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 s
ee

 g
re

en
 s

p
ac

es
 

p
re

se
rv

ed
 o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
d

  
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
re

qu
es

ts
 to

 r
et

ai
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

gr
ee

n 
sp

ac
es

 a
nd

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

ne
w

 a
re

as
 o

f g
re

en
 s

pa
ce

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

 17
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 is
su

e.
  

 
 

“L
ot

s 
of

 g
re

en
 p

ar
k 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t”
 

 “t
he

 r
ea

so
n 

I w
an

t t
hi

s 
is

 g
re

en
 p

ar
k”

 
 “m

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

nc
er

n 
is

 th
at

 n
ot

 e
no

ug
h 

at
te

nt
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

iv
en

 to
 th

e 
gr

ee
n 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y.

” 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 c
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 h

as
 

pa
ss

ed
 th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 If 
th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t g

oe
s 

ah
ea

d 
th

en
 e

xi
st

in
g 

gr
ee

n 
sp

ac
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

. H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

ew
 g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s.

 
 T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ill

 b
e 

di
ct

at
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pr

oc
es

s.
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

pr
op

os
es

 : 
� 

2.
97

 h
ec

ta
re

s 
of

 p
ub

lic
ly

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

gr
ee

n 
sp

ac
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

pa
rk

 
an

d 
3 

ga
rd

en
 s

qu
ar

es
) 

� 
2.

43
 h

ec
ta

re
s 

of
 p

ub
lic

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ci

vi
c 

sp
ac

e 
(s

qu
ar

es
 a

t W
es

t 
K

en
si

ng
to

n,
 W

es
t B

ro
m

pt
on

, E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

E
m

pr
es

s 
S

ta
te

 b
ui

ld
in

g)
 

� 
2.

17
5 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f p

la
y 

sp
ac

e 

8.
 

C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

ab
o

u
t 

cr
im

e 
/ A

S
B

 
 R

es
po

ns
es

 in
 th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
cu

rr
en

t i
ss

ue
s 

w
ith

 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

A
S

B
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

re
du

ce
 

“I
 ju

st
 h

op
e 

th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
he

re
 

I’m
 p

ro
ud

 to
 s

ho
w

 m
y 

fr
ie

nd
s 

w
ith

 n
o 

lo
ud

 
m

us
ic

 o
r 

an
ti 

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

” 
 

S
ee

 th
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 T
he

m
e 

1,
 P

oi
nt

 2
(d

) 
ab

ov
e.

 
 

Page 139



 

1
9
 

 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
A

S
B

. 
 16

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e.

  
9.

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

n
ew

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

R
es

po
ns

es
 in

 th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
fo

r 
yo

ut
h 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 a

 g
ym

 a
nd

 a
 m

ul
ti-

fa
ith

 
ce

nt
re

. 
 16

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e.

  

“t
he

y 
ne

ed
s 

sc
ho

ol
s 

&
 p

la
ce

s 
to

 p
la

y”
 

 “A
 g

oo
d 

id
ea

 to
 s

m
ar

te
n 

up
 a

re
a 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 c
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t n
ew

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 h
ea

lth
 

hu
b,

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
, c

ul
tu

ra
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

ne
w

 p
ub

lic
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
. T

he
 p

re
ci

se
 n

at
ur

e 
an

d 
m

ak
e-

up
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

in
 p

ar
t o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. R

es
id

en
ts

’ c
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

is
 

po
in

t h
av

e 
be

en
 p

as
se

d 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
10

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 la

yo
u

t 
an

d
 a

cc
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
re

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

sc
h

em
e 

 12
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 is
su

e.
  

“L
oo

ks
 li

ke
 b

ig
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t f
or

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
ra

ilw
ay

 tr
ac

ks
 -

 s
af

e 
an

d 
pl

ea
sa

nt
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 L

ill
ie

 &
 T

al
ga

rt
h.

 N
ee

d 
a 

lo
t 

of
 th

ou
gh

t a
s 

to
 w

he
re

 b
ik

es
 a

nd
 c

ar
s 

go
 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 r

ea
ch

 W
ar

w
ic

k 
A

ve
nu

e”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 p

as
se

d 
th

em
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
 S

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ed
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 m

ee
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
cc

es
s 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 

11
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
re

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

as
 a

 m
ea

n
s 

o
f 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 t
h

e 
p

er
ce

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

ar
ea

  
 12

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e.

  

“V
er

y 
go

od
 id

ea
, p

la
ns

 lo
ok

 w
el

l t
ho

ug
ht

 
ou

t a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
gr

ea
t a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

” 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

pa
ss

ed
 th

em
 o

n 
to

 
th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

  

12
. 

D
es

ir
e 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 lo
ca

l 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
ea

lt
h

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
 

m
ee

t 
d

em
an

d
 

 16
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 is
su

e.
  

 

“E
xt

ra
 s

tr
ai

n 
on

 lo
ca

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

(G
P

s,
 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
, e

tc
).

 I 
ca

n 
se

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
al

l t
he

 c
ha

ng
es

.”
 

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 p

as
se

d 
th

em
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
 S

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ed
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
13

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
to

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 r

ea
lm

 
 8 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ra

is
ed

 th
is

 is
su

e.
  

 

“W
e 

ar
e 

de
lig

ht
ed

 to
 s

ee
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

no
rt

h/
so

ut
h 

'b
on

dw
ay

' +
 'g

re
en

' g
ro

un
d 

le
ve

l p
as

sa
ge

” 
 “T

he
 r

ea
so

n 
I w

an
t t

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
gr

ee
n 

pa
rk

 / 
w

at
er

w
ay

. (
T

hi
s)

 is
 a

 fa
nt

as
tic

 id
ea

” 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

no
te

d 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 p

as
se

d 
th

em
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
  

T
h

em
e 

2 
C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

A
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

st
at

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
S

to
ck

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
O

pt
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

C
ab

in
et

 R
ep

or
t. 

 

Page 140



 

2
0
 

 S
om

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 b

en
ef

its
 th

at
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 b

rin
g 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 b

ot
h 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 fo

r 
th

e 
ar

ea
. S

om
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

im
pa

tie
nt

 to
 s

ee
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, a

sk
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 ‘g
et

 o
n 

w
ith

 it
’. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 w

er
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 r
ai

se
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l d
is

ru
pt

io
n 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.
 

 T
he

re
 w

er
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
om

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, o

n 
to

pi
cs

 s
uc

h 
as

 g
re

en
 s

pa
ce

s,
 s

ho
pp

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 p

ub
lic

 r
ea

lm
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. T
he

se
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 p
rim

ar
ily

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

, s
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ed

.  
 

                           

Page 141



 

2
1
 

 Th
em

e 
3:

 T
h

e 
o

ff
er

s 
to

 t
en

an
ts

 a
n

d
 le

as
eh

o
ld

er
s 

/ f
re

eh
o

ld
er

s 
 T

hi
s 

th
em

e 
w

as
 m

ai
nl

y 
dr

aw
n 

fr
om

 r
es

po
ns

es
 to

 Q
ue

st
io

n 
3 

in
 th

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fo

rm
, w

hi
ch

 s
ou

gh
t c

om
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

of
fe

rs
 to

 te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 / 
fr

ee
ho

ld
er

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pa
ck

 (
‘th

e 
of

fe
rs

’).
  

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 3
: 

“A
re

 t
h

er
e 

an
y 

co
m

m
en

ts
 y

o
u

 w
an

t 
to

 m
ak

e 
o

n 
th

e 
te

n
an

t 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
d

er
 / 

fr
ee

h
o

ld
er

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

is
su

ed
 w

it
h 

th
is

 
d

o
cu

m
en

t?
” 

 Is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d 
un

de
r 

th
is

 th
em

e 
fa

ll 
in

to
 5

 m
ai

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

 T
he

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 th

at
 r

ai
se

d 
th

em
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
al

so
 d

ra
fte

d 
an

 ‘I
nt

er
im

 S
ta

te
m

en
t’ 

on
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l L

et
tin

gs
 P

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 u

nd
er

pi
ns

 th
e 

ke
y 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

m
ad

e 
to

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 le
tti

ng
s 

an
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 T

he
 ‘I

nt
er

im
 S

ta
te

m
en

t’ 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

an
 a

pp
en

di
x 

to
 th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 r

ep
or

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
P

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 r
es

id
en

ts
. 

  T
h

em
e 

3 
– 

T
h

e 
o

ff
er

s 
to

 t
en

an
ts

 a
n

d
 le

as
eh

o
ld

er
s 

/ f
re

eh
o

ld
er

s 
 

 
P

o
in

t 
M

ad
e 

Q
u

o
te

s 
O

ff
ic

er
s’

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 

1.
 

N
ew

 H
o

m
es

 
 T

he
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 w

er
e 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
by

 
34

4 
re

si
de

nt
s.

  
 11

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

sp
ec

t o
f n

ew
 

ho
m

es
, 1

1 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
er

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
an

d 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 3
22

 
w

er
e 

ne
ut

ra
l o

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 
of

fe
r.

 

“G
oo

d 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
” 

 “T
he

 o
nl

y 
co

nc
er

n 
I h

av
e 

is
 th

at
 w

he
n 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
-h

ou
se

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 r
en

ts
 is

 g
oi

ng
 

to
 b

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

as
 

th
ey

 a
re

 n
ow

” 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

al
 o

ffe
rs

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

7,
50

0 
ne

w
 

ho
m

es
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

, o
f w

hi
ch

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

74
0 

w
ill

 b
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
m

es
. A

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

4,
00

0 
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
H

om
e 

B
uy

 r
eg

is
te

r,
 w

ai
tin

g 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
an

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
, t

he
  

C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 th
es

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
ho

us
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 

ch
oi

ce
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

al
so

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
th

at
 th

e 
re

-p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 fo
r 

es
ta

te
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

fe
rs

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 b
ui

ld
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 to
 m

ee
t r

es
id

en
ts

’ n
ee

ds
, 

ta
ck

lin
g 

is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 o

ve
rc

ro
w

di
ng

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
-o

cc
up

an
cy

 o
n 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

. 
 

 
2.

 
C

la
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
o

ff
er

s 
 39

0 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 1
07

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

an
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
 b

y 
re

fe
rr

in
g 

to
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
m

 in
 

“A
s 

te
na

nt
s 

w
e 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

th
ou

gh
 m

os
t 

of
 u

s 
ar

e 
co

nf
us

ed
 b

y 
w

ha
t t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

h 
to

 o
ffe

r 
us

. T
hi

s 
m

is
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

rig
ht

 a
s 

a 
fir

st
 p

rio
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

pl
an

s”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

at
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

um
be

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

pl
ea

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

cl
ar

ity
 o

f t
he

 o
ffe

rs
, b

ut
 th

at
 s

om
e 

w
an

te
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

cl
ar

ity
.  

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 b
el

ie
ve

 th
at

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
 th

at
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pa

ck
 a

re
 

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 c

le
ar

. H
ow

ev
er

, s
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

de
ci

de
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 b
e 

en
ga

gi
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

w
ith

 r
es

id
en

ts
. S

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
, R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ill
 h

ol
d 

on
e-

to
-o

ne
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

ny
 

Page 142



 

2
2
 

 

th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

se
s.

 
 53

 r
es

id
en

ts
 (

of
 w

ho
m

 2
2 

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 th

ou
gh

t t
ha

t t
he

 o
ffe

rs
 

w
er

e 
cl

ea
r.

 
 26

 r
es

id
en

ts
 (

of
 w

ho
m

 3
  

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 

te
na

nt
s)

 w
er

e 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
cl

ar
ity

 o
f t

he
 o

ffe
rs

. 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
es

id
en

ts
 fu

lly
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

os
al

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
 to

 b
e 

an
sw

er
ed

. 
 

3.
 

A
d

eq
u

ac
y 

o
f 

th
e 

o
ff

er
s 

 T
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
 w

as
 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
by

 b
ot

h 
re

si
de

nt
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a.

 
 79

3 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 2
27

  
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 th

e 
of

fe
r.

 
 82

 r
es

id
en

ts
 (

of
 w

ho
m

 2
0 

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 w

er
e 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

le
ve

l t
he

 o
ffe

r.
 

 62
9 

(o
f w

ho
m

 1
92

  i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s)

 
ob

je
ct

ed
 to

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f t

he
 

of
fe

r.
 O

f t
he

 o
bj

ec
tio

ns
, 5

07
 

(8
0.

6%
) 

w
er

e 
 a

ss
is

te
d 

or
 p

ar
t-

as
si

st
ed

 r
es

po
ns

es
. 

 

“I
 th

in
k 

th
e 

te
na

nt
 o

ffe
r 

is
 g

oo
d”

 
 “T

he
 te

na
nt

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 
se

em
s 

re
as

on
ab

le
 if

 p
ra

ct
is

ed
 a

s 
st

at
ed

” 
 T

he
 T

R
A

s 
pr

e-
ty

pe
d 

re
sp

on
se

 s
ai

d;
  

“G
iv

en
 th

e 
£1

00
 m

ill
io

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ho

pe
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

by
 s

el
lin

g 
of

f t
he

 la
nd

 
w

he
re

 I 
liv

e,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

‘o
ffe

r’ 
is

 
ve

ry
 p

oo
r.

 M
os

t o
f t

he
 ‘a

ss
ur

an
ce

s’
 

ar
e 

on
ly

 w
ha

t t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

is
 o

bl
ig

ed
 to

 
do

 b
y 

la
w

, a
nd

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
so

 m
an

y 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 it

’s
 im

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 s

ay
 

ho
w

 m
uc

h 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
id

 
fo

r 
lo

ss
 o

f g
ar

de
ns

, p
ar

ki
ng

, e
tc

” 
 

T
he

 o
ffe

r 
to

 te
na

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ith

 th
e 

as
si

st
an

ce
 o

f e
st

at
e 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 th

e 
of

fe
r 

is
 fa

ir 
an

d 
go

es
 

be
yo

nd
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

m
in

im
um

.  
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
th

e 
of

fe
rs

 to
 th

os
e 

of
 o

th
er

 L
on

do
n 

es
ta

te
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

sc
he

m
es

. O
ve

ra
ll,

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

os
e 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

to
 r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
Lo

nd
on

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
by

 s
om

e 
m

ar
gi

n.
 (

S
ee

 A
nn

ex
 4

 –
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 o
f o

ffe
rs

 to
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t e

st
at

es
 a

cr
os

s 
Lo

nd
on

.)
 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
, o

f c
ou

rs
e,

 a
 n

ot
-f

or
-p

ro
fit

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
 T

he
 b

ul
k 

of
 th

e 
£1

05
m

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 p

ric
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

re
in

ve
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

, f
or

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
al

l l
oc

al
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
no

te
d 

th
at

 te
na

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

la
rg

el
y 

un
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
of

fe
r 

th
at

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

em
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 ta
lk

s 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

of
fe

r 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

cl
ea

r 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

te
na

nt
s.

 

4.
 

W
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l w

ill
 

d
el

iv
er

 t
h

e 
p

ro
m

is
es

 m
ad

e 
in

 
th

e 
o

ff
er

s 

“T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ne
ve

r 
ke

ep
s 

its
 

pr
om

is
es

” 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

at
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

um
be

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t t
ru

st
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 
de

liv
er

 it
s 

pr
om

is
es

 a
nd

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

w
or

k 
to

 b
ui

ld
 a

 tr
us

tin
g 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 a
nd

 

Page 143



 

2
3
 

 

 45
2 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(o

f w
ho

m
 1

41
  

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 

te
na

nt
s)

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
of

fe
rs

. 
 26

0 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 6
5 

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 w

er
e 

ne
ut

ra
l, 

ha
d 

no
 

op
in

io
n 

or
 d

id
 n

ot
 g

iv
e 

en
ou

gh
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

of
fic

er
s 

to
 

as
se

ss
 w

ha
t t

he
ir 

op
in

io
n 

w
as

. 
 18

2 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 7
4 

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 o

bj
ec

te
d 

as
 th

ey
 

do
ub

te
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

de
liv

er
 th

e 
of

fe
rs

, o
r 

do
ub

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

de
liv

er
 th

e 
of

fe
rs

. 

“I
 d

on
’t 

th
in

k 
th

e 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 a
re

 tr
ue

. 
T

he
y 

m
us

t b
e 

fa
ls

e”
 

 “A
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

ar
e 

m
er

e 
pu

ffs
 in

 th
e 

w
in

d”
 

 “t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

om
is

es
 a

re
 li

ke
 a

 p
ie

 
cr

us
t, 

ea
si

ly
 b

ro
ke

n”
 

 “I
 d

on
’t 

be
lie

ve
 y

ou
r 

pr
om

is
es

” 
 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
of

fe
rs

.  
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

re
 n

ev
er

th
el

es
s 

co
nf

id
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
al

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 s

te
ps

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
 le

ga
l c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 e

ac
h 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

, a
nd

 e
ac

h 
le

as
eh

ol
de

r/
fr

ee
ho

ld
er

 o
n 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

, t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 o

n 
its

 
pr

om
is

es
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

al
so

 e
ns

ur
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 is

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
d 

so
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

om
is

es
 to

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

. M
os

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

, l
an

d 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 p

as
se

d 
to

 E
C

 
P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
(in

 p
ha

se
s)

, o
nc

e 
E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
ha

s 
bu

ilt
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 (
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a)
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 m

ov
e 

in
to

.  
 

5.
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
ili

ty
 

 R
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 

ab
ou

t f
ut

ur
e 

re
nt

 le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 h
om

es
.  

 33
8 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(o

f w
ho

m
 9

0 
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 

te
na

nt
s)

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
fu

tu
re

 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 

 
26

0 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 6
5 

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 w

er
e 

ne
ut

ra
l, 

ha
d 

no
 

op
in

io
n 

or
 d

id
 n

ot
 g

iv
e 

en
ou

gh
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

of
fic

er
s 

to
 

as
se

ss
 w

ha
t t

he
ir 

op
in

io
n 

w
as

. 

“I
 a

m
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 b
ec

au
se

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f 

re
nt

s 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
” 

 “H
ou

si
ng

 fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
t a

n 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 r
at

e 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 a
 

pu
rc

ha
se

” 

T
he

 o
ffe

r 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

te
na

nt
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
ha

t r
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
w

ay
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 c
ou

nc
il 

re
nt

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. 
 R

es
id

en
t h

om
eo

w
ne

rs
 r

ai
se

d 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

, s
ay

in
g 

th
ey

 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ffo
rd

 to
 b

uy
 a

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 

of
fe

r 
to

 r
es

id
en

t h
om

eo
w

ne
rs

 m
ak

es
 c

le
ar

 th
at

 th
ey

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

bo
rr

ow
in

g 
on

 th
ei

r 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ffo
rd

 a
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

of
fe

r 
of

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
ei

r 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

lu
s 

10
%

 (
up

 to
 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f £
47

,0
00

) 
re

si
de

nt
 h

om
eo

w
ne

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 1

0%
 

di
sc

ou
nt

 o
n 

a 
ne

w
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ite
. F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
ei

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
ch

ar
ge

s 
ca

pp
ed

 a
t a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f £

1,
00

0 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 fo
r 

5 
ye

ar
s.

  
 

Page 144



 

2
4
 

 

 
18

2 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(o
f w

ho
m

 7
4 

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 
te

na
nt

s)
 w

er
e 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t 

fu
tu

re
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
.  

 
T

h
em

e 
3 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

T
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
of

fe
rs

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
ar

ea
 o

f f
ee

db
ac

k.
 R

es
id

en
ts

 c
om

m
en

te
d 

on
 th

e 
cl

ar
ity

 a
nd

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 th
e 

of
fe

rs
, a

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 
de

liv
er

 th
em

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

on
 fu

tu
re

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

. R
es

id
en

ts
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

es
te

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
  

Page 145



 

2
5
 

 T
h

em
e 

4:
 C

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 / 

b
al

lo
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
E

st
at

es
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
 T

he
 a

ss
is

te
d 

or
 p

ar
t-

as
si

st
ed

 r
es

po
ns

es
 fr

om
 5

34
 r

es
id

en
ts

 (
of

 w
ho

m
 1

84
 w

er
e 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s)
 r

ai
se

d 
va

rio
us

 is
su

es
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 o
f t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n.
 T

he
 is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

w
er

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s 

 
 

“T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

br
ea

ch
ed

 it
s 

ow
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

by
 n

ot
 c

on
su

lti
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
.”

 
 “T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
el

ec
te

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

, t
he

 T
R

A
s 

an
d 

W
K

G
G

C
H

.”
 

 “I
 w

an
t t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
to

 a
gr

ee
 to

 b
e 

bo
un

d 
by

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t b

al
lo

t o
f t

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
as

 to
 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

m
ol

is
he

d.
 I 

w
an

t t
he

 r
ig

ht
 to

 v
ot

e 
on

 m
y 

fu
tu

re
.”

 
 T

he
 fi

rs
t a

nd
 th

ird
 is

su
es

 w
er

e 
al

so
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 th
e 

T
R

A
s’

 r
es

po
ns

e,
 a

nd
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
6 

be
lo

w
. O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 is
su

e.
 It

 w
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 c

or
re

sp
on

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

 (
bo

th
 in

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
nd

 in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 a
re

a)
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 

Page 146



 

2
6
 

 T
h

em
e 

5:
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

w
an

ti
n

g
 t

o
 s

ta
y 

/ m
o

ve
 f

o
r 

w
an

ti
n

g
 m

o
ve

/f
o

r 
n

o
t 

w
an

ti
n

g
 t

o
 m

o
ve

 
 M

an
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

a 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 s

ta
y 

in
 th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t h

om
e.

 O
th

er
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
a 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 m
ov

e 
to

 a
 n

ew
ly

 b
ui

lt 
ho

m
e.

 
 Is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

un
de

r 
th

is
 th

em
e 

fa
ll 

in
to

 1
6 

m
ai

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

 T
he

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 th

at
 r

ai
se

d 
th

em
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
. 

 T
h

em
e 

5 
– 

R
ea

so
n

s 
fo

r 
w

an
ti

n
g

 t
o

 s
ta

y 
/ m

o
ve

 
  

 
P

o
in

t 
M

ad
e 

Q
u

o
te

s 
O

ff
ic

er
s’

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 

1.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

le
n

g
th

 o
f 

ti
m

e 
I h

av
e 

liv
ed

 t
h

er
e 

 86
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 is
su

e.
 6

2 
of

 th
es

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s.
 

“I
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
er

e 
fo

r 
ov

er
 3

0 
ye

ar
s”

 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
s 

th
at

 m
ov

in
g 

to
 a

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
fo

r 
so

m
e 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 th
os

e 
th

at
 h

av
e 

liv
ed

 in
 th

ei
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 fo
r 

a 
lo

ng
 ti

m
e.

  
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
tr

ie
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

is
 

m
in

im
is

ed
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 s
ec

ur
e 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

 le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
nd

 
fr

ee
ho

ld
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a 
an

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

ha
ve

 to
 m

ov
e 

on
ce

.  
 

2.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

m
y 

g
ar

d
en

 
 77

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e.

 
 

“I
 th

in
k 

it 
is

 v
er

y 
ba

d 
to

 ta
ke

 th
es

e 
(g

ar
de

n 
&

 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g)
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 m
e”

 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ec
ia

te
s 

th
at

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 lo

si
ng

 th
ei

r 
ga

rd
en

s.
  

 If 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t g

oe
s 

ah
ea

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 r

ec
ei

ve
 7

5 
ho

us
es

 a
nd

 
66

 d
up

le
x 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 a
ll 

ha
ve

 g
ar

de
ns

. R
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 h
av

e 
ga

rd
en

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 o
ve

ra
ll 

be
 a

 lo
ss

 o
f a

ro
un

d 
48

 g
ar

de
ns

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 o

ffe
r 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
to

 th
os

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ha
ve

 a
 g

ar
de

n 
bu

t w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
on

e 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

  
3.

 
I w

an
t 

to
 s

ta
y 

in
 m

y 
cu

rr
en

t 
h

o
m

e 
b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
m

y 
p

ar
ki

n
g

 
sp

ac
e 

“I
 h

av
e 

a 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

ve
ry

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

m
e”

 
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
, e

st
at

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

en
jo

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ar

ki
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
on

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 p

ar
ki

ng
 is

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
s 

in
 a

ll 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
fo

r 
es

ta
te

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 

Page 147



 

2
7
 

 

 66
 r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

e 
st

at
ed

 th
at

 th
ey

 
do

 n
ot

 w
is

h 
to

 m
ov

e 
be

ca
us

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 lo

si
ng

 
th

ei
r 

ca
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

e.
  

 97
%

 o
f t

ho
se

 w
ho

 r
ai

se
d 

th
is

 
is

su
e 

ar
e 

fr
om

 lo
w

-r
is

e 
bl

oc
ks

. 
(R

es
id

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
lo

w
-r

is
e 

bl
oc

ks
 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
pr

iv
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e.

) 

“w
e 

w
ill

 lo
se

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
riv

ile
ge

s”
 

 
re

du
ce

d 
if 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
oe

s 
ah

ea
d.

 
 P

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
st

at
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 r

e-
ho

us
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

T
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s,

 b
ut

 it
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
45

6 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
T

ea
m

 w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
po

lic
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 th
at

 a
re

 r
e-

pr
ov

id
ed

 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
 fa

ir 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

t w
ay

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
pr

io
rit

is
es

 b
lu

e 
ba

dg
e 

ho
ld

er
s,

 a
nd

 r
es

id
en

ts
 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
a 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

or
 h

ea
lth

 r
ea

so
ns

.  
 

4.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

m
y 

n
ei

g
h

b
o

u
rs

 
 15

9 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 

no
t w

an
tin

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 
th

ei
r 

go
od

 r
el

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

. 

“D
on

’t 
de

st
ro

y 
ou

r 
w

el
l e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

” 
 “I

 d
on

’t 
w

an
t t

o 
m

is
s 

al
l m

y 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rs

” 

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 T

he
m

e 
1,

 p
oi

nt
 1

(a
) 

ab
ov

e.
 

5.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

g
o

o
d

 
sp

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

/ c
o

n
ce

rn
 o

ve
r 

sp
ac

e 
st

an
d

ar
d

s 
in

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 

h
o

m
es

 
 18

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
st

at
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t t

he
 s

iz
e 

of
 

ro
om

s 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

 b
ig

 a
s 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

es
. 

 

“I
 h

av
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
si

ze
 o

f 
pr

op
er

tie
s”

 
 “W

e 
w

an
t t

he
 n

ew
 h

om
e 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

sp
ac

e”
 

 “I
 a

m
 v

er
y 

w
or

rie
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 s
iz

e 
of

 m
y 

ne
w

 
ho

m
e”

 

T
he

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 w

er
e 

bu
ilt

 to
 P

ar
ke

r-
M

or
ris

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
an

d 
ar

e 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

sp
ac

io
us

. A
ll 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

om
es

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 to

 th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 s

pa
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

th
is

 is
 a

 m
in

im
um

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
bo

ug
ht

 in
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ay
or

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
re

 b
ui

lt 
to

 a
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 s
iz

e 
st

an
da

rd
).

 
 T

he
 M

ay
or

’s
 D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
de

 s
pa

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
re

 r
ou

gh
ly

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t t

o 
P

ar
ke

r-
M

or
ris

 s
pa

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. I
n 

so
m

e 
ca

se
s,

 th
ey

 a
re

 s
up

er
io

r.
 F

or
 

ex
am

pl
e,

 th
e 

fig
ur

es
 fo

r 
fla

ts
 a

re
: 

 
H

o
m

e 
T

yp
e 

P
ar

ke
r 

M
o

rr
is

 
 M

ay
o

r’
s 

D
es

ig
n

 G
u

id
e 

1 
b

ed
 2

 p
er

so
n

 
44

.6
 m

2 
50

 m
2 

2 
b

ed
 4

 p
er

so
n

 
69

.7
 m

2 
70

 m
2 

3 
b

ed
 5

 p
er

so
n

 
79

.0
 m

2 
86

m
2 

4 
b

ed
 6

 p
er

so
n

 
86

.4
 m

2 
99

 m
2 

 

Page 148



 

2
8
 

 

6.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 it
 is

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

n
ew

 
 T

hi
s 

is
su

e 
w

as
 r

ai
se

d 
by

 1
9 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 1

4 
of

 th
es

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

liv
e 

in
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
. 

“c
an

’t 
se

e 
w

hy
 th

es
e 

ho
us

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
de

m
ol

is
he

d 
as

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
bu

ilt
 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

ag
o.

 
I t

hi
nk

 it
 is

 a
 w

as
te

 o
f m

on
ey

” 
 “I

 lo
ve

 m
y 

ho
m

e.
 It

 d
oe

sn
’t 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
kn

oc
ke

d 
do

w
n.

 M
y 

ho
us

e 
is

 o
nl

y 
11

 y
ea

rs
 

ol
d”

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 m

ea
n 

th
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 h

om
es

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 b
ui

lt 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 1
5 

ye
ar

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, a
n 

un
av

oi
da

bl
e 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

76
0 

ne
w

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t h
om

es
, t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g.
  

7.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 I 
d

o
 n

o
t 

w
an

t 
th

e 
in

co
n

ve
n

ie
n

ce
 o

f 
m

o
vi

n
g

 
 6 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ra

is
ed

 th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 n
ot

 
w

an
tin

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
ho

m
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
in

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

it 
w

ill
 c

au
se

. 

“I
 c

an
’t 

co
pe

 w
ith

 m
ov

in
g 

at
 m

y 
ag

e.
” 

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ec

ia
te

s 
th

at
 m

ov
in

g 
ho

m
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
in

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

fo
r 

m
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

tr
ie

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
re

-h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 m
ov

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
is

 a
s 

sm
oo

th
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 a

nd
 th

at
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
. E

ac
h 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ho

 c
an

 h
el

p 
th

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
-h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 r

es
id

en
ts

’ h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, i
nf

or
m

in
g 

th
em

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
re

-h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 m
ov

e 
pr

oc
es

s,
 k

ee
pi

ng
 th

em
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 m

ov
e 

tim
es

ca
le

s.
 

T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 a
ss

is
t r

es
id

en
ts

. T
he

 E
IA

 in
cl

ud
es

 fu
rt

he
r 

de
ta

ils
 o

f h
ow

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

os
es

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
is

 ty
pe

. 
8.

 
I w

an
t 

to
 s

ta
y 

in
 m

y 
cu

rr
en

t 
h

o
m

e 
b

ec
au

se
 I 

am
 w

o
rr

ie
d

 
ab

o
u

t 
b

ei
n

g
 h

o
m

el
es

s 
 18

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
ho

m
el

es
s.

 1
3 

of
 th

es
e 

w
er

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s.
 

 

“I
 th

in
k 

it 
is

 w
ro

ng
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

ou
r 

es
ta

te
 to

 b
e 

de
m

ol
is

he
d 

be
ca

us
e 

m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ill

 g
o 

ho
m

el
es

s”
 

A
ll 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 
so

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
ho

m
el

es
s.

 R
es

id
en

t l
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
fr

ee
ho

ld
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

a 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a.

  
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
no

 le
ga

l o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 to
 p

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 a

ll 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
vi

si
te

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
ei

r 
ne

ed
s.

 P
riv

at
e 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ith

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

lin
ks

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 m
ay

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

re
-

ho
us

in
g 

in
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

lo
ca

l l
et

tin
gs

 p
la

n.
 

9.
 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

u
se

 a
n

d
 I 

d
o

 n
o

t 
w

an
t 

to
 

m
o

ve
 t

o
 a

 f
la

t 
 30

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 

no
t w

an
tin

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
in

to
 a

 fl
at

. 

“W
e 

do
n’

t w
an

t t
o 

liv
e 

in
 a

 b
lo

ck
 o

f f
la

ts
” 

T
he

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
m

ix
 o

f h
ou

se
s,

 fl
at

s 
an

d 
m

ai
so

ne
tte

s.
 T

he
re

 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

um
be

r 
of

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
fr

on
t 

do
or

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

ga
rd

en
s 

an
d 

m
an

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
ba

lc
on

ie
s.

 
 C

ur
re

nt
ly

, i
t i

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

14
1 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

ou
se

s 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

 fl
oo

r 
du

pl
ex

es
 (

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 to

 a
 h

ou
se

) 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
as

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

19
0 

ho
us

es
 in

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

. T
he

re
fo

re
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
50

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 m
ov

e 
fr

om
 a

 h
ou

se
 to

 a
 fl

at
. 

Page 149



 

2
9
 

 

10
. 

I w
an

t 
to

 s
ta

y 
in

 m
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

h
o

m
e 

b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 w

e 
h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 
it

 
 20

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 is

su
e 

  

“W
e 

sp
en

t a
 lo

t o
f t

im
e 

&
 m

on
ey

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r 
ho

m
e 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
th

e 
w

ay
 w

e 
lik

e”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 s

om
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
ei

r 
ho

m
es

, a
nd

 u
nd

er
st

an
ds

 th
at

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

so
m

e 
ar

e 
re

lu
ct

an
t t

o 
le

av
e 

th
em

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 p
ol

ic
y 

(in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

) 
to

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

e 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 th

ei
r 

ho
m

es
, p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 e
ith

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
(a

s 
la

nd
lo

rd
) 

co
ns

en
te

d 
to

, o
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 d

id
 n

ot
 n

ee
d 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
co

ns
en

t, 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 h
av

e 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f a

s 
a 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e 

of
 h

av
in

g 
to

 m
ov

e.
  

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

po
lic

y 
(in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s)

 to
 c

om
pe

ns
at

e 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 / 

fr
ee

ho
ld

er
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 th

ei
r 

ho
m

es
, p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 e
ith

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
ns

en
te

d 
to

, o
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 d

id
 n

ot
 n

ee
d 

to
 

ob
ta

in
 c

on
se

nt
, a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 a

re
 n

ot
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
ho

m
es

. 
11

. 
I w

an
t 

to
 m

o
ve

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 
 10

 r
es

id
en

ts
 (

w
ho

 w
er

e 
al

l s
ec

ur
e 

te
na

nt
s)

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 

lik
e 

to
 m

ov
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
. 

“t
he

 s
ta

te
 o

f t
he

 e
st

at
es

 is
 v

er
y 

po
or

” 
T

he
se

 c
om

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
ed

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 c
re

at
e 

a 
be

tte
r 

liv
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 r
es

id
en

ts
. 

12
. 

I w
an

t 
to

 m
o

ve
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
st

at
e 

o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
al

 
ar

ea
s 

 9 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(w
ho

 a
ll 

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s)
 

st
at

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 

m
ov

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
al

 a
re

as
 

in
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
.  

 

“ 
It 

gi
ve

s 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 w
an

t t
o 

le
av

e 
a 

be
tte

r 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t t
o 

liv
e 

in
 a

nd
 a

pp
re

ci
at

e 
a 

cl
ea

ne
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t”

 
  

T
he

se
 c

om
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 c

re
at

e 
a 

be
tte

r 
liv

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 

13
. 

I w
an

t 
to

 m
o

ve
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
st

at
e 

o
f 

m
y 

h
o

m
e 

 

“m
y 

fla
t i

s 
on

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 fl

oo
r,

 it
’s

 c
ol

d 
an

d 
da

m
p,

 I’
m

 n
ot

 h
ap

py
 w

ith
 it

 a
t a

ll”
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 n
ot

e 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

os
al

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

 
ho

m
es

 fo
r 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
 le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
/fr

ee
ho

ld
er

s.
 T

he
 

ne
w

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 to
 m

od
er

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 

Page 150



 

3
0
 

 

7 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(w
ho

 a
ll 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s)
 

st
at

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 

m
ov

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
te

 
of

 th
ei

r 
ho

m
e.

 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 

 

14
. 

I w
an

t 
to

 m
o

ve
 b

ec
au

se
 m

y 
cu

rr
en

t 
h

o
m

e 
is

 u
n

su
it

ab
le

 / 
d

o
es

 n
o

t 
m

ee
t 

m
y 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 
n

ee
d

 
 7 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(w

ho
 a

ll 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s)

  
st

at
ed

 th
at

 th
ey

 w
an

te
d 

to
 m

ov
e 

be
ca

us
e 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

e 
di

d 
no

t m
ee

t t
he

ir 
ne

ed
s.

 
6 

of
 th

e 
7 

re
si

de
nt

s 
liv

ed
 in

 h
ig

h-
ris

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 

“ 
I a

m
 o

ve
rc

ro
w

de
d 

&
 h

av
e 

no
 c

ha
nc

e 
of

 
m

ov
in

g 
on

 L
oc

at
or

 in
 m

y 
cu

rr
en

t b
an

di
ng

” 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
at

 s
om

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 a

re
 li

vi
ng

 in
 

ho
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 d
o 

no
t s

ui
t t

he
ir 

ne
ed

s,
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

is
 is

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
ca

se
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 in

 th
e 

hi
gh

-r
is

e 
fla

ts
. 

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
op

os
al

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

re
-h

ou
se

d 
in

 h
om

es
 w

hi
ch

 b
et

te
r 

m
ee

t t
he

ir 
ne

ed
s.

 

15
. 

I w
an

t 
to

 m
o

ve
 b

ec
au

se
 I 

w
an

t 
a 

n
ew

 h
o

m
e 

 44
 r

es
id

en
ts

 (
of

 w
ho

m
 3

4 
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 

te
na

nt
s)

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
an

te
d 

to
 m

ov
e 

as
 th

ey
 w

an
te

d 
a 

ne
w

 
ho

m
e.

 
 

“t
he

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 lo

ok
 fa

nt
as

tic
” 

T
he

se
 c

om
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

ed
. 

16
. 

I w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 m
o

ve
 a

s 
I w

o
u

ld
 

w
el

co
m

e 
a 

n
ew

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y.

 
 16

 r
es

id
en

ts
 h

av
e 

st
at

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 m
ov

e 
/ s

ee
 a

 n
ew

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d.

 

“n
ew

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 n

ew
 p

eo
pl

e”
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 s

om
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 s

ee
 a

 n
ew

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
 o

ffe
rs

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
, a

nd
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ne
w

, b
al

an
ce

d 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.  
 

Th
em

e 
5 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 
M

an
y 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
 w

is
h 

to
 s

ta
y 

in
 th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t h

om
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
liv

ed
 th

er
e 

or
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

ir 
st

ro
ng

 ti
es

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. T
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
l s

ee
ks

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 o
f t

he
se

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
by

 k
ee

pi
ng

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 to
ge

th
er

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 p

ha
se

d 
re

-
ho

us
in

g 
pl

an
. T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l l
et

tin
gs

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 h

av
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 in
pu

t. 

Page 151



 

3
1
 

                              R
es

id
en

ts
 in

 h
ou

se
s 

w
er

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 lo

si
ng

 th
ei

r 
ga

rd
en

 a
nd

 o
ff-

st
re

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

 / 
ga

ra
ge

. T
he

 lo
ca

l l
et

tin
gs

 p
la

n 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ill
 p

rio
rit

is
e 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 a

lre
ad

y 
liv

e 
in

 th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 if

 th
e 

ho
us

es
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

. B
ut

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 th

at
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 g
ar

de
ns

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s 

w
ill

 
de

cr
ea

se
. F

in
an

ci
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

if 
a 

re
si

de
nt

 lo
se

s 
th

ei
r 

ga
rd

en
 o

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e.

 

Page 152



 

3
2
 

 T
h

em
e 

6:
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 lo
ca

l f
ac

ili
ti

es
 

 M
an

y 
re

sp
on

se
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ut
 p

la
nn

in
g-

re
la

te
d 

is
su

es
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 n

ot
 in

 d
ire

ct
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

sk
ed

. T
he

se
 c

om
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

m
or

e 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 b
y 

es
ta

te
 r

es
id

en
ts

 th
an

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

. 
 Is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

un
de

r 
th

is
 th

em
e 

fa
ll 

in
to

 1
0 

m
ai

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

 T
he

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 th

at
 r

ai
se

d 
th

em
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
. 

 T
h

em
e 

6 
 -

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 lo

ca
l f

ac
ili

ti
es

 
  

 
P

o
in

t 
M

ad
e 

Q
u

o
te

s 
O

ff
ic

er
s’

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 

1.
 

W
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 s
ee

 r
o

ad
 

co
n

g
es

ti
o

n
 m

in
im

is
ed

 
 41

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 h

om
es

.  
 

“T
he

re
fo

re
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ee

m
s 

ve
ry

 
se

ns
ib

le
. A

 n
ew

 r
oa

d 
fr

om
 N

or
th

 E
nd

 
R

oa
d 

to
 W

ar
w

ic
k 

R
oa

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

ns
id

er
ab

ly
 e

as
e 

tr
af

fic
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

” 
 

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

es
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
nd

 h
as

 p
as

se
d 

th
em

 o
n 

to
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

   

2.
 

W
an

t 
to

 r
em

ai
n

 c
lo

se
 t

o
 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

  
 32

 r
es

id
en

ts
 m

en
tio

ne
d 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 H

av
in

g 
lo

ca
l s

ch
oo

ls
 

w
as

 o
fte

n 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 e
st

at
e 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 w

an
te

d 
th

is
 p

re
se

rv
ed

 
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

“I
 h

av
e 

3 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 a

t t
he

 
m

om
en

t a
nd

 a
no

th
er

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
in

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 W

e 
al

l w
an

t t
o 

st
ay

” 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 b
el

ie
ve

 th
at

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 r

em
ai

n 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 c
lo

se
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
th

at
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

om
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a.

 If
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
’s

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
is

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
si

te
 (

bo
un

de
d 

by
 W

es
t C

ro
m

w
el

l 
R

oa
d,

 th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 li

ne
, N

or
th

 E
nd

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
Li

lli
e 

R
oa

d)
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

m
ax

im
um

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t h

om
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

25
0m

, 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 w

he
re

 th
e 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
is

 lo
ca

te
d.

  I
f t

he
 r

es
id

en
t m

ov
es

 to
 a

 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

on
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d,
 th

e 
fu

rt
he

st
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
si

te
 w

ill
 

be
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
80

0m
. 

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 b
ei

ng
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
T

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
si

ze
 o

f t
he

se
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
al

t w
ith

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ro
ce

ss
.  

3.
 

C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

o
ve

r 
ca

p
ac

it
y 

o
f 

“A
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

m
us

t b
e 

m
ad

e 
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
no

te
s 

th
at

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f l
oc

al
 

Page 153



 

3
3
 

 

lo
ca

l r
ai

l a
n

d
 u

n
d

er
g

ro
u

n
d

 
st

at
io

n
s 

 18
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

co
nc

er
ns

 
ov

er
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f l
oc

al
 s

ta
tio

ns
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 a
t W

es
t 

B
ro

m
pt

on
/W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n/
E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 

st
at

io
ns

, b
us

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
 in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a.
 V

ol
um

es
 w

ill
 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
nd

 th
e 

st
at

io
ns

 m
us

t b
e 

ab
le

 to
 

co
pe

 w
ith

 th
is

” 
 

st
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 h
as

 p
as

se
d 

th
is

 p
oi

nt
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
 

4.
 

C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

o
ve

r 
ca

r 
p

ar
ki

n
g

 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 

 15
 r

es
id

en
ts

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
as

 a
n 

is
su

e.
 R

es
id

en
ts

 
w

er
e 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 

th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 

re
su

lt 
in

 le
ss

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s.

 

“I
t c

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
ni

ce
 b

ig
 p

ro
je

ct
 b

ut
 it

 la
ck

s 
on

e 
m

uc
h 

ne
ed

ed
 th

in
g 

: p
ar

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
s!

 
T

he
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 tw

ic
e 

as
 m

an
y 

pa
rk

in
g 

pl
ac

es
 a

s 
ho

m
es

 (
pu

bl
ic

 o
r 

pr
iv

at
e)

” 
 

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

th
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 T

he
m

e 
5,

 P
oi

nt
 3

 a
bo

ve
. 

5.
 

W
an

t 
to

 
re

m
ai

n
 

cl
o

se
 

to
 

U
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
 s

ta
ti

o
n

s 
 

15
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ea
se

 
of

 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 s

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

an
te

d 
th

is
 

to
 

be
 

pr
es

er
ve

d 
in

 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 

‘c
on

ve
ni

en
t t

ub
e 

st
at

io
n’

 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

at
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 r
em

ai
n 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 c

lo
se

 to
 lo

ca
l u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
s 

st
at

io
ns

.  
P

le
as

e 
se

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 T
he

m
e 

6,
 P

oi
nt

 2
 a

bo
ve

. 

6.
 

W
an

t 
to

 r
em

ai
n

 c
lo

se
 t

o
 b

u
s 

st
o

p
s 

 12
 r

es
id

en
ts

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f r

em
ai

ni
ng

 c
lo

se
 to

 
bu

s 
st

op
s.

 

“I
 h

op
e 

th
e 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
” 

 
 

R
es

id
en

ts
 m

ay
 e

nd
 u

p 
m

ov
in

g 
fu

rt
he

r 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

se
 (

se
e 

th
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 T

he
m

e 
6,

 P
oi

nt
 2

 a
bo

ve
).

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
ne

w
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a.

 T
he

ir 
ex

ac
t 

lo
ca

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

pa
ss

ed
 th

es
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

 
7.

 
W

an
t 

to
 r

em
ai

n
 c

lo
se

 t
o

 
h

ea
lt

h
ca

re
 

 10
 r

es
id

en
ts

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f r

em
ai

ni
ng

 c
lo

se
 to

 
he

al
th

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

“I
 a

m
 a

 p
at

ie
nt

 a
t F

ul
ha

m
 H

os
pi

ta
l” 

R
es

id
en

ts
 m

ay
 e

nd
 u

p 
m

ov
in

g 
fu

rt
he

r 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
he

al
th

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 th

ey
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
se

 (
se

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 T
he

m
e 

6,
 P

oi
nt

 2
 a

bo
ve

).
 

H
ow

ev
er

, a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ea
lth

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

(T
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

si
ze

 o
f t

he
se

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

al
t w

ith
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ro
ce

ss
.)

 

8.
 

W
an

t 
to

 r
em

ai
n

 c
lo

se
 t

o
 s

h
o

p
s 

 
“it

s 
ni

ce
 t

o 
ra

is
e 

a 
fa

m
ily

 n
ea

r 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

 
sh

op
s”

 
R

es
id

en
ts

 m
ay

 e
nd

 u
p 

m
ov

in
g 

fu
rt

he
r 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 s
ho

ps
 th

at
 th

ey
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
us

e 
(s

ee
 th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 T
he

m
e 

6,
 P

oi
nt

 2
 a

bo
ve

).
 H

ow
ev

er
, a

dd
iti

on
al

 

Page 154



 

3
4
 

 

11
 r

es
id

en
ts

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f r

em
ai

ni
ng

 c
lo

se
 to

 
sh

op
s.

 

sh
op

s 
an

d 
re

ta
il 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

(T
he

 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
si

ze
 o

f t
he

se
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
al

t w
ith

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ro
ce

ss
.)

 
9.

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 t
o

 lo
ca

l 
b

u
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 6 

re
si

de
nt

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 lo

ca
l b

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

“I
 h

op
e 

th
e 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
” 

T
he

se
 c

om
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

ed
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
as

se
d 

on
 to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 

10
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 t

o
 

cy
cl

in
g

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
 a

n
d

 
p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
s 

 6 
re

si
de

nt
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 c
yc

lin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 

“I
 w

ou
ld

 v
er

y 
m

uc
h 

lik
e 

to
 s

ee
 t

he
 a

re
a 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 &
 c

yc
lis

ts
” 

 

T
he

se
 c

om
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

ed
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
as

se
d 

on
 to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 

Th
em

e 
6 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 
T

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

oi
nt

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

nc
re

as
es

 in
 r

oa
d 

tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
at

 tr
ai

n 
an

d 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
st

at
io

ns
. T

he
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 

tr
af

fic
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
ed

 b
y 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

hi
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

s 
th

e 
st

ro
ng

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ta
ki

ng
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

re
 

w
er

e 
is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

by
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 E

st
at

es
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 th

at
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 m
ov

e 
pe

op
le

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
st

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
sh

or
t d

is
ta

nc
es

 th
at

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 E
st

at
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ov

in
g,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, s
ho

ul
d 

he
lp

 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
es

e 
co

nc
er

ns
. 

Page 155



 

3
5
 

 T
h

em
e 

7:
 N

ew
 h

o
u

si
n

g
  

 S
om

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ns

ity
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
T

hi
s 

w
as

 n
ot

 in
 d

ire
ct

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
sk

ed
 a

nd
 w

as
 r

ai
se

d 
by

 b
ot

h 
es

ta
te

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
 Is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

un
de

r 
th

is
 th

em
e 

fa
ll 

in
to

 4
 m

ai
n 

ca
te

go
rie

s.
 T

he
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 th
at

 r
ai

se
d 

th
em

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 
th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
. 

 T
h

em
e 

7 
– 

N
ew

 h
o

u
si

n
g

  
  

 
P

o
in

t 
m

ad
e 

Q
u

o
te

s 
O

ff
ic

er
s’

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 

1.
 

W
an

t 
to

 s
ee

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

 R
es

id
en

ts
 in

 th
is

 c
at

eg
or

y 
fe

lt 
th

at
 

th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g.
 T

he
re

 w
as

 a
 c

on
ce

rn
 

th
at

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
lo

w
er

 
in

co
m

es
 w

ou
ld

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

. S
om

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
“g

en
tr

ifi
ca

tio
n”

, a
nd

 “
S

oc
ia

l 
C

le
an

si
ng

”.
  

 28
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

co
nc

er
ns

 
ab

ou
t a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
. 

   

(T
he

 p
la

ns
) 

“d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f p
oo

re
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
be

in
g 

pr
ic

ed
 o

ut
 u

nl
es

s 
th

is
 is

 
ac

tu
al

ly
 y

ou
r 

in
te

nt
io

n,
 y

ou
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 le

ga
lly

 b
in

di
ng

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
s”

  
 “I

 a
m

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f r
en

ts
 

w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

. T
ho

se
 w

ho
 c

an
no

t a
ffo

rd
 th

e 
ne

w
 r

en
ts

 w
ill

 e
ith

er
 h

av
e 

to
 d

ow
ns

iz
e 

or
 

m
ov

e 
ou

t o
f t

he
 a

re
a.

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 
bu

y 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
to

 m
ov

e 
ou

t.”
 

  

S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
o 

ah
ea

d,
 7

60
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t  

ho
m

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

m
es

 o
n 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

.  
 A

ll 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 r

em
ai

n 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s 

in
 a

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a.
 R

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
es

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
w

ay
 a

s 
se

cu
re

 c
ou

nc
il 

re
nt

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. 
 R

es
id

en
t h

om
eo

w
ne

rs
 w

ill
 g

et
 th

e 
fu

ll 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

ir 
ho

m
e 

pl
us

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

of
 1

0%
 o

f i
ts

 v
al

ue
 (

up
 to

 £
47

,0
00

).
 T

ho
se

 c
ho

os
in

g 
to

 
m

ov
e 

to
 a

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

n 
ea

rly
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

 (
of

 1
0%

) 
an

d 
ca

n 
pu

t t
he

ir 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 b
uy

in
g 

an
 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
nd

 
fr

ee
ho

ld
er

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
or

ro
w

in
g 

on
 th

ei
r 

m
or

tg
ag

es
 

to
 a

ffo
rd

 a
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 p

re
ci

se
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

, i
t i

s 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 c
re

at
e 

ar
ou

nd
 7

40
 n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
.  

 
 O

ve
ra

ll,
 th

er
ef

or
e,

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a.

 T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
to

 

Page 156



 

3
6
 

 

th
e 

su
gg

es
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 a

m
ou

nt
 to

 a
ny

 fo
rm

 o
f “

so
ci

al
 

cl
ea

ns
in

g”
. 

2.
 

C
o

n
ce

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

h
ei

g
h

t 
o

f 
n

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g

s 
 A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

es
po

ns
es

 m
en

tio
n 

“3
0 

st
or

ey
 to

w
er

 b
lo

ck
s”

 a
nd

 
ex

pr
es

s 
co

nc
er

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 im

pa
ct

 
on

 B
ro

m
pt

on
 C

em
et

er
y.

 In
 a

ll,
 2

7 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
he

ig
ht

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

. 

“I
 th

in
k 

it 
is

 p
re

po
st

er
ou

s 
to

 b
ui

ld
 b

lo
ck

s 
of

 
30

 s
to

re
y 

fla
ts

” 
T

he
se

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ar

e 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 ty
pe

s.
 T

he
re

 w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 a
 m

ix
 o

f h
ei

gh
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a.

 
 T

he
 h

ei
gh

t o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
 T

he
se

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pa
ss

ed
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 

3.
 

T
h

e 
d

es
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e 
n

ew
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s 

 R
es

po
nd

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 

th
e 

“g
la

ss
 a

nd
 s

te
el

 b
ox

es
” 

 
sh

ow
n 

in
 th

e 
ar

tis
ts

’ i
m

pr
es

si
on

s 
in

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pa
ck

. S
om

e 
fe

lt 
th

es
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
lo

ok
ed

 “
so

ul
le

ss
” 

or
 g

en
er

ic
. 

 17
 r

es
id

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

co
nc

er
ns

 
ab

ou
t t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 
bu

ild
in

gs
. 

‘I 
w

ou
ld

 p
re

fe
r 

to
 s

ee
 te

rr
ac

in
g’

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
no

te
s 

th
es

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

nd
 h

as
 p

as
se

d 
th

em
 o

n 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
o 

ah
ea

d 
an

d 
de

ta
ile

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
, r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 

ra
is

e 
an

y 
co

nc
er

ns
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
os

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
st

at
ut

or
y 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 
 H

ow
ev

er
, o

ffi
ce

rs
 d

o 
co

ns
id

er
 th

at
 th

e 
de

si
gn

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
en

vi
sa

ge
d 

af
fo

rd
 a

ny
 g

oo
d 

re
as

on
 n

ot
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

4.
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 d
en

si
ty

 
 16

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ai
se

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 d
en

si
ty

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

“D
en

si
ty

 o
f l

iv
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

id
e 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
lo

w
 le

ve
ls

” 
T

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

en
si

ty
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 if

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
oe

s 
ah

ea
d,

 a
nd

 
so

 th
is

 is
su

e 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
bo

rn
e 

in
 m

in
d.

 U
lti

m
at

el
y,

 d
en

si
ty

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
al

t 
w

ith
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

he
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

si
te

’s
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
lin

ks
 to

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 (

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

) 
w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

de
ns

ity
 o

f t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 
 T

hi
s 

po
in

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
pa

ss
ed

 o
n 

to
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

T
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
co

nc
er

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

. T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ot
 o

nl
y 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

re
-p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 7

60
 h

om
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

bu
t a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

74
0 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

. T
hi

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

.  

Page 157



 

3
7
 

 M
is

ce
lla

n
eo

u
s 

is
su

es
 

 M
is

ce
lla

n
eo

u
s 

is
su

es
 

  
 

P
o

in
t 

M
ad

e 
Q

u
o

te
s 

O
ff

ic
er

s’
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 

1.
 

S
tr

es
s/

p
sy

ch
o

lo
g

ic
al

 C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

 M
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

an
d 

st
re

ss
 th

ey
 a

re
 fe

el
in

g 
du

e 
to

 
th

e 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
ab

ou
t t

he
 fu

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

E
st

at
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

st
re

ss
 o

f 
ha

vi
ng

 to
 m

ov
e 

ho
m

e.
  

 

“I
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

st
re

ss
fu

l i
f I

 h
ad

 to
 le

av
e 

no
w

” 
 “I

 w
ou

ld
 fe

el
 s

tr
es

se
d 

if 
I h

ad
 to

 m
ov

e”
 

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 E
st

at
es

 
ca

n 
ca

us
e 

an
xi

et
y 

an
d 

w
or

ry
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
at

te
m

pt
ed

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

is
 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ga

gi
ng

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t t
im

es
ca

le
s.

 B
ut

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ec
ia

te
s 

th
at

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ne
ed

 c
er

ta
in

ty
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r 
fu

tu
re

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
al

so
 r

ec
og

ni
se

s 
th

at
 m

ov
in

g 
ho

m
e 

ca
n 

be
 s

tr
es

sf
ul

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

of
fic

er
 to

 
ea

ch
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
re

 fu
lly

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 a

nd
 to

 h
el

p 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

es
e 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 h

av
in

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
ho

m
e.

 T
he

 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
llo

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 w
hi

ls
t m

ov
in

g 
ho

m
e.

 
F

ur
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
is

 is
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
E

IA
. 

2.
 

H
ea

lt
h

 is
su

es
 

 7 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
co

nc
er

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 p

ro
sp

ec
t o

f m
ov

in
g 

 o
n 

he
al

th
 g

ro
un

ds
 

“I
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 w
an

t t
o 

m
ov

e 
as

 I 
do

n'
t e

nj
oy

 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f h
ea

lth
” 

 

R
el

ev
an

t h
ea

lth
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 o
r/

m
ed

ic
al

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
pi

ck
ed

 u
p 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fa

ce
-t

o-
fa

ce
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
’s

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r.
 

T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 is
 r

e-
ho

us
ed

 b
as

ed
 

on
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

, a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 a
 r

es
id

en
t w

ho
 n

ee
ds

 fu
rt

he
r 

as
si

st
an

ce
. T

he
 E

IA
 a

dd
re

ss
es

 th
is

 is
su

e 
in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 a

s 
re

ga
rd

s 
el

de
rly

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
3.

 
R

eq
u

es
ts

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

er
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
en

qu
iri

es
 

fr
om

 e
st

at
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ab

ou
t w

ha
t 

so
rt

 o
f n

ew
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 o

ffe
re

d,
 a

nd
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

de
ta

ile
d 

m
ap

s 
of

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 fo
r 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t p

ha
si

ng
.  

S
om

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
sa

id
 th

ey
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

un
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 O
th

er
s 

“t
he

y 
do

 n
ot

 g
o 

in
to

 e
no

ug
h 

de
ta

il”
 

T
he

se
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 r

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 th
ro

ug
h 

fu
rt

he
r 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 fa
ce

-
to

-f
ac

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

  

Page 158



 

3
8
 

         

sa
id

 th
ey

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
co

nf
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 
on

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

. 
4.

 
In

d
iv

id
u

al
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 

ex
te

n
d

ed
 f

am
ili

es
 a

n
d

 h
id

d
en

 
h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
 S

om
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
us

ed
 th

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fo

rm
s 

to
 g

iv
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
an

d 
re

-h
ou

si
ng

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

   

T
he

se
 is

su
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pi
ck

ed
 u

p 
in

 th
e 

fa
ce

-t
o-

fa
ce

 in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
. 

 

5.
 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 f

o
r 

re
ti

re
d

 
p

eo
p

le
 

 2 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 th

is
 is

su
e.

 

 
T

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ho
us

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

. 

Page 159



 

39 
 

6.  THE TRAS’S RESPONSE 
  
6.1 The TRAs’ response (dated 12 March 2012) comprised a covering letter, six 

“Sections” and an Annex. The TRAs’ response is at Annex 5.  
 
6.2 The response raises issues in relation to (i) the lawfulness and adequacy of the 

consultation (in Sections 1 and 2); (ii) the draft Equality Impact Assessment (in the 
covering letter and Section 3, also Section 6, which deals with an earlier Equality 
Impact Assessment)); and (iii) the merits of the Council’s proposal (in the covering 
letter, Annex 1, and Sections 4 and 5). Topics (i) and (iii) are addressed below. 
Topic (ii) is addressed separately in the Equality Impact Assessment. 

 
6.3 The lawfulness and adequacy of the consultation 
 
6.3.1 Officers do not accept the TRAs’ claims that the consultation was unlawful and/or 

inadequate. The claims are not set out in detail in this Appendix as the Council has 
not been consulting on the lawfulness / adequacy of the consultation process. The 
following points are however noted. 

 
6.3.2 It is suggested at page 9 of the TRAs’ response that the Council did not consult 

with the TRAs. This is incorrect. On 22 December 2011, the Council wrote to the 
chairs of the TRAs to inform them of the consultation process and to offer to meet 
and explain the consultation documents. In addition, the TRA took the opportunity 
to respond to the consultation documents at length. 

 
6.3.3 The TRAs argue (at page 9) that the matter should be decided by an independent 

ballot of (it seems) the residents on the Estates. There is no legal requirement on 
the Council to decide the matter in this way (Schedule 3A to the Housing Act 1985 
does not apply). Further, it was appropriate for the Council to consult residents, but 
stop short of holding a formal binding ballot. First, an appropriate level of 
democratic accountability is ensured by the fact that the ultimate decision will be 
taken by elected members of the Council. Secondly, it was appropriate for the 
Council to consult with residents in the wider area (as well as on the Estates), as 
the issues posed in the consultation affect the wider area as well as the Estates. 
Thirdly, similar large regeneration schemes across London have canvassed 
resident opinion through methods other than a formal binding ballot. 

 
6.3.4 The TRAs also argue (at pages 12-13 of their response) that the Council incorrectly 

referred in the Tenant Offer to the use of CPO powers in relation to secure tenants. 
However, the Council was in fact correct to make reference to CPO powers in this 
regard. The Council has power to acquire land on the estates (including secure 
tenancies) through use of CPO powers under section 226(1)(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.   

 
6.3.5 Finally, the TRAs argue that the information pack made a mistake when it noted 

that a housing stock transfer could be done after the redevelopment scheme 
(pages 15-16 of the TRAs’ response). This was not a mistake. If the 
comprehensive redevelopment goes ahead, the secure Council tenants on the 
Estates will continue to be secure Council tenants - in new properties - after they 
have been moved, and such tenants could in principle seek a stock transfer in 
relation to their new properties at that time. 

 
6.4 The merits of the Council’s proposal: the TRAs’ covering letter 
 

Page 160



 

40 
 

6.4.1 The TRAs’ covering letter of 12 March 2012 argues that ‘a huge majority of 
households on the estates who responded to your consultation has voted no to 
demolition’, and that their views should be respected.  

 
6.4.2 However, if adopted, the Council’s proposal will have an impact on the wider area, 

including in terms of community facilities, public spaces and the potential for new 
jobs. It was therefore appropriate for the Council to have consulted residents in the 
wider area as well as residents on the Estates, and their views should be given 
weight. When all consultees’ views are considered, the proportion against the 
Council’s proposal is not much greater than the proportion in favour. Further, the 
Council conducted a consultation rather than a referendum. Whilst the Cabinet 
needs to carefully consider the views expressed in the consultation, the Cabinet is 
ultimately responsible for deciding what is best overall for local people, and it is not 
bound to reach its view simply on the basis of the proportion of consultees who 
were in favour or against.  

 
6.4.3 The TRAs also asked the Council to personally respond to all responses before 

any decision is made. The Council has assessed above the responses received 
from residents. Where residents have raised individual specific concerns relating to 
their own personal circumstances that need to be addressed, the Council will 
respond directly to the resident. If the Estates are included as part of the 
comprehensive redevelopment, all residents will also be able to discuss their 
individual concerns in the one-to-one interviews that will be arranged by their 
dedicated Re-housing Officer for the purpose of assessing housing need. The 
Council will also continue to engage with residents through regular newsletters, 
drop-in surgeries and events. 

 
6.4.4 The TRAs’ covering letter argued that there is ‘no evidence or rational basis 

whatsoever’ for adopting the proposal. The TRAs also claimed that Annex 1 to the 
TRAs’ response ‘shows that [the Council is] just doing this to get rid of us for 
political purposes’. It is also argued that the purpose of the proposal is to make 
money for the Council and to profit “your agent of destruction” (which appears to be 
a reference to Capco / EC Properties). These are strongly worded expressions of 
disagreement with the merits of the proposals but it does not follow that contrary 
views of the merits are, as claimed, untenable. Officers are recommending that the 
Council should enter into the CLSA for the reasons set out in the main Cabinet 
Report, rather than for any illegitimate financial or party-political reason.  

 
6.5 The merits of the Council’s proposal: sections 4 and 5 of the TRAs’ response 

 
6.5.1 Sections 4 and 5 of the TRAs’ response principally addressed the Economic 

Appraisal undertaken by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) and Amion Consulting to which 
reference was made on page 14 of the consultation information pack. These 
sections are virtually identical to the representations submitted by the TRAs on the 
Economic Appraisal during the consultation on the Supplementary Planning 
Document. Officers have therefore drawn on their analysis of those earlier 
representations in what follows, as well as JLL’s response to the TRA’s comments. 
The analysis of Section 4 uses the same headings as are used in Section 4 itself. 
 

6.5.2 Section 4: ‘Generally’ 
 

6.5.3 The TRAs raise a concern that no consultation was undertaken with the Estates’ 
residents for the purpose of preparing the Economic Appraisal. That is correct.  
There was no legal requirement to consult before obtaining the Economic 
Appraisal.  The absence of such consultation is not in itself a reason to reject the 

Page 161



 

41 
 

Economic Appraisal.  
 
6.5.4 The TRAs also argue that the Economic Appraisal contains only ‘minimal data’ 

about the Estates. Officers consider that the data on the Estates that was produced 
in support of the Appraisal is sufficiently detailed.  

 
6.5.5 The TRAs criticise what they see as ‘subjective opinions masquerading as facts’. It 

is inherent in the nature of an appraisal that it involves elements of judgment.  It is 
not accepted that the judgments made are masquerading as anything else. The 
TRAs also argue that some of the wording within the Appraisal was confusing and 
misguided, such as using the word ‘regeneration’ when what is meant is 
‘demolition’. In response, officers have revised the Appraisal so that the word 
‘regeneration’ has been amended to ‘redevelopment’.  

 
6.5.6 The TRAs criticised the lack of consideration of phasing, and of whether the 

scheme would be able to proceed smoothly in the current economic climate. JLL 
have confirmed that ‘an assessment of phasing, demand and viability in relation to 
each option has been carried out as part of the Economic Appraisal’. The main 
Cabinet Report considers the risk that the comprehensive redevelopment might not 
in the event be completed in full.   

 
6.5.7 The TRAs raised a concern that a lot of the data within the Economic Appraisal has 

not been identified. JLL have clarified that the data come either from published 
Lower Super Output Area Census data or from the West Kensington and Gibbs 
Green Estates Profiles document, which was provided separately to the TRAs in 
mid December 2011.  

 
6.5.8 Section 4: ‘Overview’ 
 
6.5.9 The TRAs criticise the statement in the Economic Appraisal that the Estates ‘suffer 

from discontinuous internal roads’, and refer to the DCLG / Department of 
Transport ‘Manual for Streets’ (MfS). The TRAs also question whether many of the 
streets within the Estates are in fact discontinuous and why those that are cannot 
be redesigned to connect with existing streets. Although there is no explicit 
statement in the MfS to the effect that "discontinuous streets are in all cases a poor 
design solution", it is implied throughout the document that a well-connected, 
permeable network of streets is preferable (see for example page 13 of the MfS). 
Officers are also satisfied that there are discontinuous internal roads in the Estates 
(in the sense of dead-end roads that are terminated by buildings, rear gardens or 
incidental open spaces). 

 
6.5.10 The TRAs also criticise the statement in the Economic Appraisal that the Estates 

have ‘poor quality open space’ and they refer in this regard to a lack of evidence of 
graffiti, uncollected rubbish, dumped cars, etc. This statement concerning ‘poor 
quality urban space’ refers to the role of open space in the urban grain and layout 
of the Estates rather than any vandalism or dumping. As the MfS states, "high-
quality open space is a key component of successful neighbourhoods" (page 57). 

 
6.5.11 The TRAs argue that the existing housing stock is in reasonable condition, and that 

the demolition of the Estates could not be justified on the basis of their poor 
physical condition, or social disintegration. However, the state of the current 
housing stock is not being advanced as a reason for adopting the Council’s 
proposal. What is, however, a consideration is the ongoing management and 
maintenance costs for the Estates, and the assessment that these will rise over 
time. The Economic Appraisal does not seek to justify the regeneration of the 

Page 162



 

42 
 

estates purely on the grounds of poor physical and/or social condition. Rather, the 
Appraisal assesses the overall net additional benefits of the inclusion of the estates 
within the proposed comprehensive regeneration scheme for the Opportunity Area. 

 
6.5.12 Section 4: ‘Background to regeneration’ 

 
6.5.13 The TRAs object to the statement in the Economic Appraisal that ‘The 

management and maintenance costs incurred by the Council are expected to 
increase above that for modern Council owned properties’ on the basis that it was 
not backed by any evidence. JLL has confirmed that the management and 
maintenance costs adopted in the appraisal for the existing estate proportions were 
based on the Stock Condition Survey (SCS) conducted by Savills in 2009 .JLL 
have stated that in relation to new stock, it is logical and professional opinion 
confirms that new accommodation would face lower on-going maintenance costs 
by virtue of the likelihood of actual renewal costs being required in the short term 
for older properties. It is assumed that large unexpected costs in the first few years 
of a new building’s life would be covered by NHBC warranties. Savills’ statement 
refers to the benefits of regular replenishment of the stock as part of the Borough-
wide management strategy. 

 
6.5.14 It was also said that the statement that already ‘the average cost per dwelling of the 

estates is above the average figure for LBHF housing estates’ was not 
substantiated. However, this was calculated using Council records of costs 
incurred, and officers consider it to be accurate. The TRAs also object that the 
sums spent on the Decent Homes Programme was not mentioned in the Economic 
Appraisal. However, these sums were in fact taken into account for the purposes of 
estimating future maintenance and management costs. 
 

6.5.15 The TRAs also state that ‘The Economic Appraisal seeks to justify demolition on 
the woolly grounds of ‘design obsolescence resulting from increased housing 
standards’’. This is a mischaracterisation of the Economic Appraisal, which refers 
to ‘design obsolescence resulting from increased housing standards’ as part of the 
explanation as to why the management and maintenance costs for the Estates are 
expected to increase above that for modern Council-owned properties. 

 
6.5.16 The TRAs state that the problems of over and under occupancy identified in the 

Economic Appraisal could be overcome by better management of the Estates. 
Officers accept that this is, in principle correct. However, the focus of the Economic 
Appraisal was on the net additional economic benefits associated with the inclusion 
or otherwise of the Estates within the redevelopment options for the Opportunity 
Area. 

 
6.5.17 The Economic Appraisal is said by the TRAs to have concluded that ‘there is a 

strong rationale for demolition and including the estates within the comprehensive 
regeneration of the Opportunity Area’. In fact, the Economic Appraisal refers to 
there being a strong rationale for ‘regeneration’ and for ‘including the estates within 
the comprehensive regeneration of the Opportunity Area’. That strong rationale 
flows from the other matters discussed under the ‘Background to regeneration’ 
section in the Economic Appraisal. 

 
6.5.18 The TRAs express the concern that the Council’s proposal would involve moving 

the majority of existing residents on the Estates to the Seagrave Road site, and 
that the current problems with socio-economic deprivation would therefore merely 
be shifted to a different location. However, the proposal is that only 25% of the 
Seagrave Road site would be used for re-housing from the Estates, and that the 

Page 163



 

43 
 

other re-housing would occur as part of a phased approach to the main site (on 
land within the Opportunity Area and within the Borough). 
 

6.5.19 Section 4: ‘Alternative options’ 
 
6.5.20 The TRAs object to the statement in the Economic Appraisal that the Estates 

‘would be unlikely to change physically’ under Option 1. Reference is made to their 
‘vision’ for the Estates published in December 2009. The merits of the Stock 
Transfer Option, and the possibility that it might lead to significant development on 
the Estates, are considered in the main Cabinet Report. 

  
6.5.21 The TRAs argue that, in its analysis of Option 2, the Economic Appraisal made 

unsubstantiated claims about the viability of infill development. In fact, this aspect 
of the Appraisal was supported by various development appraisals and cost 
models and, as a result, the claims about the viability of infill development can be 
substantiated.  
 

6.5.22 The TRAs argue that it is unclear what is being proposed under Options 3(a) and 
3(b), particularly in relation to what any comprehensive regeneration of the Estates 
on a standalone bases would look like. What was undertaken was a density 
analysis looking at viability, rather than an engineered design solution. Officers 
consider that to have been a reasonable approach. 

 
6.5.23 Section 4: ‘Economic benefits’ 
 
6.5.24 The TRAs question the use of the expression ‘new affordable’ homes within the 

Economic Appraisal. Officers have confirmed that ‘new affordable’ refers to newly- 
built affordable housing of various tenures, in line with current planning policy and 
market practice, this includes intermediate tenure housing including affordable rent 
and low cost home ownership. 

 
6.5.25 The TRAs object to the large increase in private sector housing under Options 3(a), 

3(b) and 4 on the grounds that such housing would be unaffordable to many in the 
borough. However, whilst of course not affordable to many, additional private 
sector housing still contributes towards meeting general housing need. Further, 
what is in practice achievable in the way of additional affordable housing (and the 
ratio of affordable housing to private sector housing) is necessarily limited by 
financial considerations. 
 

6.5.26 The TRAs state that it is difficult to see how any of the schemes other than Options 
1 and 2 come anywhere near meeting the 40% affordable housing target within the 
London Plan. The purpose of the Economic Appraisal was not to assess 
compliance with planning policy. Rather, the Economic Appraisal assessed the 
viability and economic advantages of the various options. It is also worth noting that 
the Council’s core strategy (policy H2), which sets a target of 40%, states that 
regard will be had to financial viability. Similarly, the London Plan (policies 3.11 and 
3.12) requires boroughs to set affordable housing targets but similarly states that 
regard should be given to viability.  

 
6.5.27 The TRAs ask a series of questions relating to the employment impacts identified in 

the Economic Appraisal. First, they question the period of time over which the 
calculation has been made. The answer is, 18 years. Secondly, the question 
whether the jobs which would be lost during development have been netted off. 
They have. Thirdly, the TRAs ask how the calculations have been related to the 
expected performance of the London economy as a whole during the period. The 

Page 164



 

44 
 

economic assessment took into account the economic prospects for London, 
including a forecast that employment is likely to grow significantly over the longer 
term. Fourthly, the TRAs ask about permanent job losses as a result of the 
proposals. These were also taken into account. 

 
6.5.28 The TRAs conclude that the figures for permanent employment are ‘highly 

questionable’, and argue that the assumed occupancy rates of 90% for offices, 
90% for retail and 100% for hotels were ‘wildly optimistic’. However, the average 
vacancy rate for office accommodation in Greater London is 8.2%, and the average 
vacancy rate for retail premises is 6.5%. Further, the occupancy rate of 100% for 
hotels means that all hotels are assumed to be open and trading, not that all hotels 
are assumed to have 100% room / bed occupancy. Overall, officers consider that 
the Economic Appraisal used reasonable assumptions about occupancy rates. 

 
6.5.29 Section 5 of the TRAs’ response 
 
6.5.30 Like Section 4, Section 5 of the TRAs’ response criticises the Economic Appraisal. 

The TRAs argue that the Stock Transfer Option ‘would deliver significant physical 
changes, could deliver infill development, and might even involve wider 
redevelopment’. Section 4 contains a table (Table 1) that sets out the TRAs’ 
arguments as to why they say the Stock Transfer Option should be preferred over 
the Council’s proposal, and an Appendix (Appendix 1) that lists what the TRAs 
would plan to achieve if there were a Stock Transfer Option. These issues are 
considered in the main Cabinet Report. 

 
6.5.31 The ‘Option 2’ column in Table 1 (which refers in fact to Option 4, the Council’s 

proposal) reiterates many of the criticisms of the Economic Appraisal that are set 
out in Section 4 of the TRAs’ response. Officers note the following additional points. 

 
6.5.32 In the first row of the ‘Option 2’ column in Table 1, the TRAs object to the Council’s 

proposal on the basis that it gives rise to an unsustainable increase in housing, 
having regard to the environment, the community and transport. Any proposal to 
increase housing will need to ensure that the relevant infrastructure is in place to 
support the increase in housing, this would include environment, community and 
transport infrastructure. The amount and type of infrastructure required will be 
determined through the planning process. 

 
6.5.33 In the second row, the TRAs object to the Council’s proposal on the basis that the 

comprehensive redevelopment will ‘dirty’ the area for over a decade and make it 
unsafe. This is not a valid criticism of the Economic Appraisal, which looks at the 
outcomes for local people following comprehensive redevelopment. Officers accept 
that the comprehensive redevelopment will cause noise and other disruption, but 
efforts will be made to minimise this. In addition, all building sites will be kept 
secure when work is not taking place. It is also claimed that the increased 
population density will make the area less safe. Officers do not agree with this 
claim.  

 
6.5.34 In the fifth row, the TRAs claim that the Council’s proposal would lead to the loss of 

240 existing private gardens, 200 garages, 2 community centres, a primary school 
and a nursery. It is correct that some gardens will be lost. However, it is anticipated 
that the proposal will deliver 37 acres of new public and private open space, a new 
primary school, nursery day-care facilities, a health hub and a sports hall. 

 
6.5.35 In the eighth row, the TRAs object to the Council’s proposal on the basis that it 

would create an unsustainable increase in traffic and place an undue burden on 

Page 165



 

45 
 

public transport. The levels of traffic and the impact on public transport will be 
assessed by the Planning Authority as part of the statutory planning application and 
decision making process. 

 
6.5.36 The TRAs strongly object, in the ninth row, to the Economic Appraisal’s conclusion 

that the townscape, public realm and environment would be improved under the 
Council’s proposal. The TRAs strongly disagree with the design of the 
comprehensive redevelopment, and argue that it is inferior to what is currently in 
the area. This is, in part, a question of judgment. Officers take the view that this 
aspect of the Economic Appraisal is correct. 
 

6.5.37 Summary 
 

6.5.38 Attached as Annex 6 is Amion Consulting’s response to the TRAs’ criticisms of the 
Economic Appraisal (as submitted during the consultation on the SPD). Amion 
Consulting address and, in turn, reject all the principal criticisms made. 
 

6.5.39 Overall, officers disagree with the TRAs that the Economic Appraisal is 
‘fundamentally flawed’. Officers consider that, subject to the Council being 
confident that the comprehensive redevelopment (if approved) would be fully 
completed (an issue which is addressed in the main Cabinet Report), the Economic 
Appraisal can properly be used to assess the potential economic benefits of the 
Council’s proposal. 

 
6.5.40 Subsequent correspondence with the TRAs 

 
6.5.41 The Council has received further representations from the TRAs since the TRAs 

submitted their response. These, together with the Council’s replies, are contained 
in Annex 9. Members should read this correspondence carefully. 
 

7.  MR SLAUGHTER’S LETTER 
 
7.1 Mr Slaughter’s letter of 12 March 2012 in response to the consultation is attached 

as Annex 7. (Mr Slaughter also wrote a letter to residents on the Estates prior to 
the consultation deadline of 12 March 2012, on or about 5 March 2012, which is 
attached as Annex 8.) 

 
7.2 Mr Slaughter appears to be arguing that the Council’s proposal should not be 

adopted because ‘a large number of residents feel that the council is pushing these 
proposals through with indecent haste and is suspicious of the council’s motives for 
that reason’. Whilst the consultation responses indicate that some residents are 
suspicious about the Council’s motives, officers do not consider that this in itself is 
a good reason for the Council not to adopt the proposal, should it otherwise 
consider that it is in fact in the best interests of local people. 

 
7.3 Mr Slaughter raises a concern that the Council is intent on proceeding with 

individual elements of the comprehensive redevelopment scheme before 
agreement has been reached for all aspects. The Council has not proceeded with 
individual elements of the redevelopment and is waiting for the Cabinet decision on 
whether to proceed with the comprehensive redevelopment proposal. 

 
7.3 Mr Slaughter criticises what he considers to be the ‘entirely partisan’ presentation 

in the consultation materials, and their lack of detail. These criticisms are not 
accepted. Officers consider that the materials were reasonable and objective, and 

Page 166



 

46 
 

contained sufficient information about the Council’s proposal as it stood at the time 
of the consultation. 

 
7.4 Mr Slaughter questions what would happen if the Seagrave Road planning 

application was ‘called in or stopped’ by the Mayor, and argues that this would 
prevent the Council from complying with its ‘one move’ promise. The Seagrave 
Road planning application was in fact approved by the mayor on 22 March 2012 
and the section 106 agreement and decision letter were completed on 30 March 
2012. 

 
7.5 Mr Slaughter argues that the re-housing promises are so vague as to be 

meaningless. Officers do not agree, and consider that the assurances given on re-
housing are sufficiently clear. It may be that Mr Slaughter is concerned that, even if 
a CLSA were entered into, EC Properties would not be bound to complete the 
comprehensive redevelopment in full. This risk is addressed in the main Cabinet 
Report. 

 
7.6 Mr Slaughter also argues that the overwhelming majority of residents on the two 

Estates want the Council’s proposal ‘shelved’ and ‘want investment to improve the 
existing much loved and decent neighbourhoods that are their homes’. It is not 
clear whether Mr Slaughter himself favours the Stock Transfer Option (he does not 
explain what he thinks should be the source of the investment to which he refers). 
Mr Slaughter is however correct about the level of opposition on the Estates 
themselves, although he does not make reference to the level of support amongst 
the wider community. The Cabinet should carefully consider the levels of support 
and opposition when deciding whether to adopt the Council’s proposal.   

 

Page 167



 

4
7
 

 8.
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
in

 t
h

e 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e 

23
rd

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
2 

C
ab

in
et

 R
ep

o
rt

.  
 C

om
m

en
t  

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
R

es
po

ns
e 

T
he

 C
LS

A
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 O

f H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 a
nd

 
F

ul
ha

m
 a

nd
 C

ap
co

 is
 a

bo
ut

 a
 s

ite
 n

ea
r 

bu
t n

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
E

ar
ls

 
C

ou
rt

 In
te

re
st

s 
of

 C
ap

co
.  

A
ll 

pa
rt

ie
s 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 e

ve
n 

if 
a 

C
LS

A
 

be
tw

ee
n 

LB
H

F
 a

nd
 C

ap
co

 is
 s

ig
ne

d 
th

at
 it

 w
ill

 n
ot

 ta
ke

 e
ffe

ct
 u

nl
es

s 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 p
rio

r 
sa

ke
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

by
 m

ea
ns

 o
f a

 le
as

e 
re

ge
ar

, e
ith

er
 b

y 
le

as
e 

ex
te

ns
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l a
lte

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

le
as

e 
te

rm
s 

or
 b

y 
m

ea
ns

 o
f a

 s
ur

re
nd

er
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
le

as
es

 a
nd

 a
 

re
gr

an
t o

f n
ew

 le
as

es
.In

de
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

C
LS

A
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
no

t o
nl

y 
a 

le
as

e 
re

ge
ar

 o
f t

he
 E

C
1 

an
d 

E
C

2 
le

as
es

, w
hi

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

a 
de

al
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
ap

co
 a

nd
 it

s 
La

nd
lo

rd
, t

he
 

F
re

eh
ol

d 
ow

ne
r 

of
 th

e 
La

nd
, T

ra
ns

po
rt

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
 (

T
fL

) 
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

a 
sa

le
 o

f s
al

e 
of

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t l

ea
se

s 
or

 le
as

es
 o

f t
he

 h
ug

e 
Li

lli
e 

B
rid

ge
 

D
ep

ot
, o

w
ne

d 
fr

ee
ho

ld
 b

y 
T

fL
 w

ith
 a

 s
m

al
l b

ut
 c

ru
ci

al
 s

tr
ip

 o
f l

an
d 

ow
ne

d 
fr

ee
ho

ld
 b

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

R
ai

l. 
T

hi
s 

is
 b

ec
au

se
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 a
 s

m
al

l 
ar

ea
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 w
he

re
 C

ap
co

 o
w

ns
 a

 5
0 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 s
ta

ke
 in

 
th

e 
fr

ee
ho

ld
 o

f t
he

 E
m

pr
es

s 
S

ta
te

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 le

as
e 

to
 th

e 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 P

ol
ic

e,
 a

nd
 is

 
va

lu
ed

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

in
 th

e 
C

ap
co

 a
cc

ou
nt

s,
 th

e 
T

fL
 o

w
ne

d 
Li

lli
e 

B
rid

ge
 

D
ep

ot
 is

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
La

nd
 d

em
is

ed
 to

 C
ap

co
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

tr
ad

in
g 

le
as

es
 

an
d 

th
e 

fr
ee

ho
ld

 la
nd

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 L

B
H

F
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ca
n 

on
ly

 m
ak

e 
de

ci
si

on
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 

pr
op

er
ty

 it
 o

w
ns

. C
ap

C
o 

w
ill

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

ha
ve

 to
 

ne
go

tia
te

 w
ith

 T
fL

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 la

nd
 u

nd
er

 th
ei

r 
co

nt
ro

l. 
 

T
he

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 p

re
ce

de
nt

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
po

se
d 

ar
e 

pr
im

ar
ily

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

om
es

 b
ef

or
e 

an
y 

di
sp

os
al

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 C
ap

co
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 w
an

t t
o 

sa
tis

fy
 it

se
lf 

as
 to

 it
s 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 o

f a
ny

 fu
rt

he
r 

la
nd

 in
te

re
st

s 
(a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
se

cu
rin

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
) 

be
fo

re
 it

 s
er

ve
s 

its
 T

rig
ge

r 
no

tic
e 

(in
 tu

rn
 tr

ig
ge

rin
g 

pa
ym

en
ts

).
  I

t h
as

 a
 d

ef
in

ed
 

pe
rio

d 
in

 w
hi

ch
 to

 d
o 

so
. I

f i
t h

as
 n

ot
 s

er
ve

d 
th

e 
T

rig
ge

r 
N

ot
ic

e 
(w

hi
ch

 in
 tu

rn
 tr

ig
ge

rs
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 to

 m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 ir

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f l

an
d 

tr
an

sf
er

) 
by

 
th

e 
lo

ng
 s

to
p 

da
te

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

‘s
 r

ig
ht

 to
 te

rm
in

at
e 

ar
is

es
.  

 

T
he

 r
ep

or
t c

on
fir

m
s 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
 2.

6 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
 a

nd
 N

et
w

or
k 

R
ai

l l
an

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
ps

  
2.

6.
1 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
ch

em
e 

of
fic

er
s 

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

to
 r

ea
ch

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 T

fL
 fo

r 
th

e 
 

tr
ea

tm
en

t o
f t

he
ir 

la
nd

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
ps

.  
 

• 
C

ap
co

 n
ee

ds
 to

 a
gr

ee
 a

 r
en

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

te
rm

 o
f t

he
ir 

 
ex

is
tin

g 
le

as
es

 fr
om

 T
fL

 o
n 

E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 1
 a

nd
 2

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
  

m
ak

e 
th

e 
le

as
es

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

  

O
ut

lin
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
on

se
nt

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f  
th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 
G

re
en

 E
st

at
es

. T
he

 a
bl

ili
ty

 o
f C

ap
co

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 th
is

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

th
ei

r 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

su
ita

bl
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 o
n 

its
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t h
om

es
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
as

 a
 c

on
di

tio
n 

pr
ec

ed
en

t i
n 

th
e 

C
LS

A
.  

  

Page 168



 

4
8
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
• 

T
he

 L
ill

ie
 B

rid
ge

 d
ep

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
on

ta
in

s 
an

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

 
de

po
t a

nd
 a

 tr
ai

n 
st

ab
lin

g 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 T

he
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
 d

ep
ot

  
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

-lo
ca

te
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

 
pr

oc
ee

d.
 T

he
 tr

ai
n 

st
ab

lin
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

w
ill

 s
ta

y 
bu

t w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

  
be

 c
ov

er
ed

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 o

ve
r.

  
• 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
at

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 a
re

 o
ng

oi
ng

 b
ut

 h
av

e 
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 n
ot

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
ei

th
er

 o
f t

he
se

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
ps

.  
 

2.
6.

2 
It 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

fo
r 

C
ap

co
 to

 r
ea

ch
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

  
N

et
w

or
k 

R
ai

l f
or

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ov
er

 th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

Li
ne

. O
ffi

ce
rs

  
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 a
re

 o
ng

oi
ng

 b
ut

 h
av

e 
no

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
  

co
nc

lu
de

d.
  

 2.
6.

1 
ab

ov
e 

un
de

rs
ta

te
s 

th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

by
 s

ay
in

g 
‘in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ch
em

e 
of

fic
er

s 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

to
 r

ea
ch

 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 T

fL
 fo

r 
th

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t o

f t
he

ir 
la

nd
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

ps
.’ 

 T
he

re
 

is
 n

o 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
ch

em
e 

or
 a

ny
 s

ch
em

e 
un

de
r 

th
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ce
na

rio
 u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
le

ga
l e

ve
nt

s 
I o

ut
lin

ed
 a

bo
ve

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
. 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
) 

T
he

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 a
ny

 s
ch

em
e 

de
pe

nd
s 

on
 p

or
tin

g 
R

B
K

C
 

va
lu

es
 in

 to
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 L

B
H

F
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

.  
C

ap
co

 w
ill

 n
o 

do
ub

t 
be

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 b
ef

or
e 

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

tr
ig

ge
r 

no
tic

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

.  
 W

he
re

 it
 d

oe
s 

so
 

it 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
in

 th
e 

C
LS

A
  a

nd
 p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 la

nd
 tr

an
sf

er
, d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t h
om

es
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

C
LS

A
.  

T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

dv
is

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
LS

A
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
be

st
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n.

  I
f C

ap
co

 is
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 s
at

is
fy

 it
se

lf 
it 

w
ill

 a
ch

ie
ve

 v
al

ue
s 

so
 a

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
vi

ab
le

 it
 

is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 s

er
ve

 th
e 

tr
ig

ge
r 

no
tic

e.
   

If 
it 

fa
ils

 to
 d

o 
so

 
by

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 lo
ng

 s
to

p 
da

te
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ca

n 
te

rm
in

at
e.

  
O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

fa
ile

d 
to

 a
dv

is
e 

th
at

 T
fL

 m
ay

 e
nt

er
 a

n 
un

co
nd

iti
on

al
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
ad

vi
se

d 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 o

f t
he

 a
cc

ur
at

e 

Page 169



 

4
9
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t o

r 
de

ve
lo

p 
its

 o
w

n 
la

nd
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ce
na

rio
 w

ith
ou

t L
B

H
F

 b
ut

 L
B

H
F

 m
ay

 n
ot

 e
nt

er
 a

n 
un

co
nd

iti
on

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

gr
ee

m
en

t o
r 

de
ve

lo
p 

its
 o

w
n 

la
nd

 in
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ith

ou
t T

F
L 

en
te

rin
g 

a 
pr

io
r 

un
co

nd
iti

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ag

re
em

en
t o

r 
T

fL
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
its

 o
w

n 
la

nd
. 

pi
ct

ur
e 

at
 a

ll 
st

ag
es

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

  

LB
H

F
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 g
ra

nt
 C

ap
co

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t  

rig
ht

s 
of

 
its

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

m
is

e 
un

de
r 

th
e 

tr
ad

in
g 

le
as

es
, t

he
 le

as
e 

re
ge

ar
 o

r 
to

 s
el

l 
it 

th
e 

D
ep

ot
 o

r 
to

 in
flu

en
ce

 T
fL

 in
 it

s 
de

ci
si

on
. 

T
hi

s 
is

 a
cc

ep
te

d,
 th

es
e 

pa
rt

s 
of

 la
nd

 a
re

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

F
ro

m
 th

e 
9t

h 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

to
 th

e 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 L
B

H
F

 w
as

 
ab

le
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

of
 T

fL
 b

y 
its

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

9t
h 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
ge

em
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
C

ap
ita

l &
 

C
ou

nt
ie

s 
Lt

d,
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
or

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

T
he

 M
ay

or
 a

nd
 B

ur
ge

ss
es

 o
f 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 O

f H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 a
nd

 F
ul

ha
m

. T
fL

 h
av

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 th

e 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t e

xp
ire

d 
on

 th
e 

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
.  

T
he

 C
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

so
 im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t 

it 
w

as
 r

en
ew

ed
 b

y 
al

l t
hr

ee
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 M
ay

 2
01

0.
  C

ap
co

 s
ai

d 
in

 it
s 

20
10

 r
ep

or
t a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

‘in
 r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 th

at
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

sc
he

m
e 

co
ve

rin
g 

al
l l

an
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

ps
 in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
C

O
A

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 b

et
te

r 
th

an
 ta

ki
ng

 th
e 

si
te

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

ly
, E

C
&

O
, T

fL
 a

nd
 

LB
H

F
 r

en
ew

ed
 th

ei
r 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

ag
re

em
en

t a
s 

la
nd

 o
w

ne
rs

 in
 M

ay
 

20
10

.’ 

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t h

as
 

ex
pi

re
d,

 it
 h

as
 n

ot
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

pr
ec

is
e 

da
te

 o
f e

xp
iry

, a
s 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

ar
e 

on
-g

oi
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
La

nd
ow

ne
rs

 B
oa

rd
. 

T
he

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 fa
ile

d 
to

 r
ep

or
t t

ha
t t

he
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

ag
re

em
en

t w
hi

ch
 is

 
th

e 
ca

us
al

 a
nd

 m
ot

iv
at

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

t o
f t

he
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

ex
pi

re
d 

on
 th

e 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

.  
Im

pl
yi

ng
 th

e 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t s

til
l e

xi
st

s 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 s

ai
d 

in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 o
nl

y 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
   

  
3.

2 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

3.
2.

1 
In

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
si

gn
ed

 a
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

w
ith

  
C

ap
co

 a
nd

 T
fL

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
th

re
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

 
co

ul
d 

ex
pl

or
e 

th
e 

fu
ll 

po
te

nt
ia

l o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
ne

go
tia

te
 te

rm
s 

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 k
ep

t r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 

th
ei

r 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f p

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 th

is
 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ch

em
e.

 
In

 a
ny

 e
ve

nt
, t

he
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t  

ex
pr

es
se

d 
th

e 
ho

pe
 th

at
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 a

 C
on

di
tio

na
l J

oi
nt

 V
en

tu
re

 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
as

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
01

0 
w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 
cl

ea
rly

 n
ot

 o
cc

ur
re

d.
  

   

Page 170



 

5
0
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
un

de
r 

w
hi

ch
 la

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

en
te

re
d 

in
to

.  
 In

de
ed

 T
fL

 h
as

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
 a

 le
tte

r 
of

 th
e 

23
rd

 M
ar

ch
 

20
12

 to
 th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 T

R
A

s 
w

hi
ch

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 
ha

ve
 fa

ile
d 

to
 r

ep
or

t a
lth

ou
gh

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f i
ts

 c
on

te
nt

s:
  

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 

‘T
o 

da
te

, t
he

 T
fL

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
an

y 
re

po
rt

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
.’ 

‘I 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
in

te
re

st
s 

he
ld

 
by

 C
ap

co
 in

 la
nd

 a
t E

ar
l’s

 C
ou

rt
 a

re
 tw

o 
le

as
es

 o
f E

C
1 

an
d 

E
C

2 
da

te
d 

19
59

 a
nd

 1
99

1 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 C

op
ie

s 
of

 th
es

e 
le

as
es

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 fr

om
 th

e 
la

nd
 r

eg
is

tr
y.

 T
fL

 a
nd

 C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 e

nt
er

ed
 

in
to

 a
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 e

xp
ire

d 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 o

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 C

ap
co

 w
hi

ch
 

bi
nd

 T
fL

 to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 C

ap
co

 a
lo

ne
.’ 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

no
t 

in
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f t
he

 T
fL

 la
nd

 b
ut

 p
le

as
e 

se
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 

ab
ov

e 
as

 to
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

tr
ig

ge
r 

no
tic

e.
 It

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
its

el
f d

id
 n

ot
 b

in
d 

T
fL

 “
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 C
ap

co
 a

lo
ne

” 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

m
ile

st
on

e 
da

te
s 

ha
d 

be
en

 p
as

se
d 

in
 2

01
0.

 
 

T
he

 a
bo

ve
 is

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 p
ut

 in
 to

 c
on

te
xt

 th
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
of

 a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ch
em

e 
ac

tu
al

ly
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

.  
In

de
ed

 r
ig

ht
 n

ow
, a

nd
 

un
le

ss
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

ch
an

ge
, a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ch
em

e 
is

 n
ot

 
ha

pp
en

in
g 

an
d 

of
fic

er
s 

ha
ve

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

co
rr

ec
tly

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 s

ay
: 

 1.
1 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 E

xh
ib

iti
on

 C
en

tr
e 

an
d 

 
Li

lli
e 

B
rid

ge
 D

ep
ot

 p
re

se
nt

s 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
 

th
e 

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 E
st

at
es

 w
ith

in
 a

 la
rg

er
  

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

sc
he

m
e.

   

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

st
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 in
 th

e 
‘p

ro
po

sa
l’ 

st
ag

e.
  C

ap
co

 h
as

 n
ot

 r
ea

ch
ed

 b
in

di
ng

 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 e
ith

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
or

 T
fL

 b
ut

 th
is

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
re

cl
ud

e 
it 

do
in

g 
so

 in
 d

ue
 c

ou
rs

e.
  

T
he

re
  i

s 
no

 la
rg

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
sc

he
m

e 
un

le
ss

 a
nd

 
un

til
 T

fL
 d

ec
id

e 
th

er
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

on
e 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

in
df

ul
 o

f 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
t b

y 
T

fL
  ‘

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 o
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 C
ap

co
 w

hi
ch

 b
in

d 
T

fL
 to

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 C
ap

co
 

al
on

e’
.. 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 s

ta
te

d 
in

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 R
ep

or
t d

at
ed

 2
3r

d 
A

pr
il 

(2
.6

) 
he

ad
ed

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 N
et

w
or

k 
R

ai
l 

la
nd

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
ps

. 

G
iv

en
 th

at
 T

fL
 h

av
e 

no
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 o

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 C

ap
co

 w
hi

ch
 

bi
nd

 T
fL

 to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 C

ap
co

 a
lo

ne
, w

hy
 is

 it
 th

at
 L

B
H

F
 a

re
 s

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
ev

er
y 

si
ne

w
 to

 m
ak

e 
th

is
 C

LS
A

 h
ap

pe
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

in
d 

LB
H

F
 to

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

do
 n

ot
 a

gr
ee

 w
e 

ar
e 

‘s
tr

ai
ni

ng
 e

ve
ry

 
si

ne
w

’. 
T

he
 r

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
ne

go
tia

tin
g 

an
d 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 
C

ap
co

 is
 th

at
 th

ey
 c

an
 e

ffe
ct

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

Page 171



 

5
1
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 C

ap
co

 a
lo

ne
. 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
ne

go
tia

tin
g 

th
ei

r 
le

as
es

 o
n 

E
C

1 
&

 E
C

2 
an

d 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

an
 in

te
re

st
 in

 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

fir
st

 
st

ag
e 

of
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t h

ou
si

ng
. T

hi
s 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

pr
om

is
e 

to
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 h

av
e 

‘o
ne

 m
ov

e’
 in

 
th

e 
re

-h
ou

si
ng

. C
ap

co
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 fu
rt

he
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 
in

te
re

st
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 
ob

st
ac

le
 to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ot
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
er

 
It 

is
 th

is
 b

in
di

ng
 o

f L
B

H
F

 to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 C

ap
co

 a
lo

ne
 th

at
 m

ak
es

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 in

co
rr

ec
t t

o 
si

gn
. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 a

gr
ee

 w
ith

 th
is

 c
om

m
en

t. 
T

he
 C

LS
A

 o
ffe

rs
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
th

at
 u

nl
es

s 
C

ap
C

o 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 h
om

es
 

C
ap

C
o 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

pr
op

er
ty

.  
P

le
as

e 
se

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ve
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 th

e 
rig

ht
 o

f t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
if 

no
 tr

ig
ge

r 
no

tic
e 

is
 s

er
ve

d.
   

T
he

 in
co

rr
ec

tn
es

s 
is

 a
m

pl
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 L

B
H

F
 c

an
no

t c
au

se
 th

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

ha
pp

en
.  

T
he

 h
ap

pe
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
f T

fL
 a

nd
 T

fL
 m

ay
 

ex
cl

ud
e 

C
ap

co
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
an

 o
nl

y 
ha

pp
en

 b
y 

co
nc

er
te

d 
ac

tio
n 

by
 L

B
H

&
F

, T
fL

 &
 C

ap
co

.  
T

he
 C

LS
A

 
fa

ci
lit

at
es

 th
is

. 
T

fL
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ith
ou

t r
ea

ch
in

g 
an

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

C
ap

co
. 

LB
H

F
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 s

ou
gh

t a
 d

ea
l w

ith
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 la
nd

ow
ne

r 
T

fL
 a

nd
 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 C
ap

co
.  

A
 d

ea
l b

et
w

ee
n 

LB
H

F
 a

nd
 T

fL
 w

ou
ld

 a
t l

ea
st

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 fr
ee

ho
ld

er
s 

T
fL

 a
nd

 L
B

H
F

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 th

e 
tw

o 
fr

ee
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 c
on

tr
ol

 th
e 

ph
as

in
g 

an
d 

en
su

re
 b

es
t 

va
lu

e 
by

 p
ut

tin
g 

ou
t t

o 
te

nd
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
ite

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e.

   

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

LS
A

 is
 th

e 
be

st
 o

pt
io

n 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

, w
hi

ch
 b

ot
h 

cr
ea

te
s 

ec
on

om
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 &
 d

el
iv

er
s 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 It
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 n
ot

ed
 th

at
 C

ap
co

 a
lre

ad
y 

ha
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 to
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
20

0 
ne

w
 c

ou
nc

il 
ho

m
es

. 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ou

ld
 r

es
pe

ct
 

th
e 

w
is

he
s 

of
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

on
ly

 in
cl

ud
e 

bl
oc

ks
 a

nd
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ith
 

de
m

oc
ra

tic
 c

on
se

nt
.  

 I a
m

 n
ow

 g
oi

ng
 to

 b
rie

fly
 li

st
 s

om
e 

ot
he

r 
co

nc
er

ns
 w

hi
ch

 a
ris

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
in

co
rr

ec
t p

ol
ic

y 
of

 e
nt

er
in

g 
a 

C
LS

A
 w

ith
 C

ap
co

  a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 n

ot
 w

ill
in

g 
to

 s
pe

cu
la

te
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

ric
es

 o
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
co

nf
irm

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

se
cu

re
d 

ad
vi

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

w
ill

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
be

st
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 o

bt
ai

na
bl

e 
fo

r 
its

 in
te

re
st

s 
ha

vi
ng

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 

th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 

Page 172



 

5
2
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 C
LS

A
 it

se
lf.

 
 1)

 T
he

 C
LS

A
 is

 n
ot

 a
 la

nd
 s

al
e.

  I
f i

t i
s 

si
gn

ed
 C

ap
co

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

an
d 

LB
H

F
 h

av
e 

so
ld

 a
n 

op
tio

n 
fo

r 
la

nd
 to

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
by

 
C

ap
co

, f
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
hi

ch
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 le
ga

lly
 e

xi
st

.  
T

he
 o

pt
io

n 
pr

ic
e 

is
 £

10
5m

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 o

ve
r 

5 
ye

ar
s 

pl
us

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t h

ou
si

ng
.  

 2)
 T

he
 o

pt
io

n 
pr

ic
e 

is
 fi

xe
d 

an
d 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t h

om
es

 w
ill

 
go

 u
p 

w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
s.

  

in
de

xa
tio

n 
w

he
re

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
.  

 T
he

 C
LS

A
 is

 a
 c

om
pl

ex
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 la

nd
 

sa
le

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s.

   
A

ny
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f d

el
iv

er
in

g 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

et
 b

y 
C

ap
co

.  

3)
 T

he
 o

pt
io

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
 is

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
op

en
 m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 h

ad
 it

 b
ee

n 
so

ld
 ju

st
 b

ef
or

e 
be

in
g 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

by
 o

pe
n 

te
nd

er
, a

nd
 th

e 
C

LS
A

 c
os

t w
hi

ch
 w

ill
  b

e 
th

e 
a 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

£1
05

m
 p

lu
s 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t h

om
es

. T
he

 
op

tio
n 

di
sc

ou
nt

 w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

iz
e 

as
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

“b
es

t c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n”
 te

st
. T

he
 o

ne
 m

ov
e 

of
fe

r 
to

 te
na

nt
s 

m
ea

ns
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 p

ha
se

 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

B
y 

de
fin

iti
on

, a
ny

 d
ev

el
op

er
 w

ill
 

se
ek

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 v

al
ue

 b
y 

ca
rr

yi
ng

  o
ut

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t (

kn
ow

n 
as

 ‘d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
is

k’
) 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 li
ke

 to
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

te
d 

to
. 

4)
 T

he
 o

pt
io

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

be
 q

ua
nt

ifi
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 tw
en

ty
 

ye
ar

 b
ui

ld
 p

er
io

d 
gr

an
te

d 
by

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 w

he
n 

yo
u 

ca
n 

va
lu

e 
w

ha
t t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 p
lo

t i
f e

ac
h 

pl
ot

 w
as

 s
ol

d 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

A
n 

es
tim

at
e 

of
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

di
sc

ou
nt

 c
ou

ld
 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

ho
w

ev
er

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

e 
un

de
r 

di
ffe

re
nt

 
po

ss
ib

le
 p

ha
si

ng
 s

ce
na

rio
s 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
O

ffi
ce

r’s
 r

ep
or

t. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

“b
es

t c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n”
 te

st
. C

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

of
it 

20
 y

ea
rs

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 is
 o

f l
itt

le
 p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

. 

5)
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 C

ap
co

 h
av

e 
be

en
 g

iv
en

 2
0 

ye
ar

s 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
  O

ve
r 

a 
tw

en
ty

 y
ea

r 
pe

rio
d 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

so
ld

 w
ill

 
pr

ob
ab

ly
 h

av
e 

go
ne

 u
p 

by
 o

ve
r 

4 
tim

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

by
 a

 lo
t m

or
e 

if 
K

en
si

ng
to

n 
va

lu
es

 a
re

 p
or

te
d 

in
 to

 th
e 

LB
H

F
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
  A

s 
en

d 
va

lu
es

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
ve

r 
tim

e 
so

 w
ill

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
  a

nd
 s

lo
w

ly
 

th
e 

pe
nn

y 
w

ill
 d

ro
p 

th
at

 L
B

H
F

 h
av

e 
in

co
rr

ec
tly

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
th

at
 c

au
se

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
 v

as
t l

os
s 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 

T
hi

s 
is

 s
pe

cu
la

tio
n.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
be

st
 w

ay
 fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 c
re

at
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 
 R

ea
lis

tic
al

ly
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

oe
s 

ta
ke

 ti
m

e.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

to
 te

rm
in

at
e 

th
e 

C
LS

A
 if

 c
er

ta
in

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 h
ou

si
ng

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
m

et
 

be
 c

er
ta

in
 d

at
es

.  
T

he
 a

dv
ic

e 
on

 v
al

ue
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

Page 173



 

5
3
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
 fu

ll 
co

gn
is

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
C

LS
A

. 
 

6)
 T

he
 d

ea
l w

ill
 c

re
at

e 
a 

da
y 

on
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

re
m

iu
m

 fo
r 

C
ap

co
 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

its
 p

ro
fit

 a
nd

 lo
ss

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 
ye

ar
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 p

ro
ve

 L
B

H
F

 h
av

e 
un

de
rs

ol
d 

th
e 

si
te

.  
A

lre
ad

y 
C

ap
co

 
ha

ve
 ta

ke
n 

a 
£5

5 
m

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 it

s 
pr

of
it 

on
 a

 n
on

 e
xi

st
en

t s
ch

em
e 

in
 

its
 A

nn
ua

l A
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
20

11
 b

ef
or

e 
si

gn
in

g 
an

y 
de

al
 w

ith
 L

B
H

F
 o

r 
T

fL
.  

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

ut
el

y 
em

ba
rr

as
si

ng
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 
ye

ar
s 

T
he

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 C

ap
co

’s
 a

ss
et

s 
is

 n
ot

 a
 m

at
te

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ca

n 
co

m
m

en
t u

po
n 

pr
io

r 
to

 e
nt

er
in

g 
in

to
 a

ny
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 C
ap

co
 o

r 
its

 s
ub

si
du

ar
ie

s.
 

  

7)
 S

ho
ul

d 
T

fL
 s

ig
n 

w
ith

 C
ap

C
o,

 a
nd

 I 
do

n’
t b

el
ie

ve
 th

ey
 w

ill
, L

B
H

F
 w

ill
 

ha
ve

 p
le

nt
y 

of
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 to

 g
et

 fu
ll 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
its

 la
nd

 w
ith

ou
t g

iv
in

g 
aw

ay
 a

n 
op

tio
n 

di
sc

ou
nt

.  
T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

LB
H

F
 to

 s
ig

n 
a 

C
LS

A
 w

ith
 C

ap
co

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 it

s 
la

nd
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

fu
ll 

va
lu

e.
  

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 a
 ‘o

ne
 m

ov
e’

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

an
y 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
an

d 
th

is
 r

el
ie

s 
on

 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 h
om

es
 a

t S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d.

 A
no

th
er

 
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

fir
st

 p
ha

se
 

of
 h

om
es

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
be

fo
re

 a
ny

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 
to

 m
ov

e,
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 le
ad

 to
 fu

rt
he

r 
di

sr
up

tio
n 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

 
8)

 8
) 

In
 5

.9
.1

 o
f t

he
 r

ep
or

t i
t s

ay
s 

‘C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ith

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

in
de

m
ni

ty
 a

ga
in

st
  a

ny
 b

lig
ht

 c
la

im
s 

up
 to

 £
50

m
 fr

om
 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
S

P
D

.’ 
 T

hi
s 

in
de

m
ni

ty
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

si
gn

ed
 a

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
on

tr
ac

t a
nd

 n
ow

 e
xi

st
s 

as
 a

 le
ga

lly
 b

in
di

ng
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
be

tw
ee

n 
C

ap
co

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 M
or

al
 h

az
ar

d 
is

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

pr
os

pe
ct

 th
at

 a
 p

ar
ty

 in
su

la
te

d 
fr

om
 r

is
k 

m
ay

 b
eh

av
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

ly
 fr

om
 

th
e 

w
ay

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
eh

av
e 

if 
it 

w
er

e 
fu

lly
 e

xp
os

ed
 to

 th
e 

ris
k.

  C
ap

co
 

ha
ve

 in
su

la
te

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l f
ro

m
 r

is
k 

an
d 

by
 s

o 
do

in
g 

ha
s 

in
flu

en
ce

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o 

gr
an

t i
t f

in
an

ci
al

 b
en

ef
its

.  
It 

w
as

 in
de

ed
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

le
ad

er
 a

t t
he

 2
3r

d 
A

pr
il 

20
12

 c
ab

in
et

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
at

 C
ap

co
 h

ad
 

gr
an

te
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

a 
va

lu
ab

le
 p

ar
en

t c
om

pa
ny

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 e

nh
an

ci
ng

 
th

e 
m

or
al

 h
az

ar
d.

  T
he

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

ac
tiv

e 
in

de
m

ni
ty

 is
 p

ro
of

 o
f a

 c
lo

se
 

an
d 

im
pr

op
er

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
C

ap
co

. 

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
rr

es
po

nd
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

yo
ur

se
lf 

(M
r 

O
sb

an
d)

 &
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
go

in
g 

ba
ck

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
on

th
s 

 
ab

ou
t r

is
ks

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

‘b
lig

ht
’ c

la
im

s 
fr

om
 

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
. T

hi
s 

ris
k 

is
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

D
oc

um
en

t (
S

P
D

).
 It

 w
as

 e
ss

en
tia

l f
or

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 it

se
lf 

fr
om

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 
m

ul
tip

le
 ‘b

lig
ht

’ c
la

im
s.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 tr

an
sp

ar
en

t a
nd

 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

 o
f t

ax
 p

ay
er

s 
at

 a
ll 

st
ag

es
. 

 

Page 174



 

5
4
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
9)

 J
on

es
 L

an
g 

La
sa

lle
 a

nd
 P

w
C

 a
ls

o 
ac

t f
or

 C
ap

co
 a

nd
 th

e 
ad

vi
ce

 
th

ey
 b

ot
h 

ha
ve

 g
iv

en
 fa

ils
 to

 q
ua

nt
ify

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
. 

Jo
ne

s 
La

ng
 L

as
al

le
 a

nd
 P

w
C

 a
re

 m
aj

or
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

fir
m

s 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

st
ric

t g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

si
tu

at
io

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

is
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 n

ot
 r

ec
og

ni
se

 
th

e 
“o

pt
io

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
” 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 b

es
t 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 

10
) 

T
he

 s
al

e 
of

 th
e 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 S
ch

oo
l a

nd
 1

1 
F

ar
m

 L
an

e 
ar

e 
bo

lto
ns

 
to

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
de

al
.  

T
he

y 
ar

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
al

es
 in

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
rig

ht
 a

nd
 

LB
H

F
 h

av
e 

no
t m

ar
ke

te
d 

th
e 

si
te

s 
or

 g
on

e 
ou

t t
o 

te
nd

er
 to

 g
et

 b
es

t 
bi

ds
.  

T
he

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

sa
le

 o
f t

he
se

 s
ite

s 
is

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

or
e 

di
st

ur
bi

ng
 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

is
 d

ea
l. 

 1
1 

F
ar

m
 L

an
e 

is
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 a
re

a 
al

to
ge

th
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 S
ch

oo
l i

s 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 p
ha

se
 o

f t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
he

n 
it 

is
 c

le
ar

 th
at

 th
e 

to
p 

pr
ic

es
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
 1

5 
to

 
20

 y
ea

rs
 ti

m
es

 w
ill

 p
ro

ve
 th

e 
si

te
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

un
de

rs
ol

d 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

 
T

he
 G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 s

ch
oo

l w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ol
d 

to
o 

ea
rly

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 g

et
 b

es
t v

al
ue

. C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

no
 le

as
e 

of
 a

ny
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 1

1 
F

ar
m

 L
an

e 
si

te
 o

r 
th

e 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 S

ch
oo

l a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
tin

g 
ill

eg
al

ly
 b

y 
se

lli
ng

 C
ap

co
 a

ny
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
ite

 
w

ith
ou

t a
 te

nd
er

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ha
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 a
dv

ic
e 

th
at

 it
 is

 n
ot

 
ac

tin
g 

ill
eg

al
ly

 a
nd

 is
 c

om
fo

rt
ab

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

th
at

 m
ak

es
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 th

e 
be

st
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n.

 T
he

re
 

ar
e 

ov
er

ag
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 a

nd
 r

e-
pu

rc
ha

se
 

op
tio

ns
 th

at
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
if 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
. 

11
) 

LB
H

F
 h

as
 a

 le
ga

l d
ut

y 
to

 p
ut

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ou
t t

o 
te

nd
er

 u
nd

er
 it

s 
ow

n 
po

lic
ie

s,
 n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 e

ur
op

ea
n 

la
w

. E
ve

ry
 c

ou
nc

il 
go

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
an

 O
JE

U
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

ef
or

e 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
a 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e.

 L
B

H
F

 
th

in
ks

 it
 c

an
 le

ga
lly

 b
yp

as
s 

th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

. B
yp

as
si

ng
 O

JE
U

 w
ill

 le
av

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
op

en
 to

 le
ga

l c
ha

lle
ng

e.
 C

ap
co

 h
av

e 
no

 le
as

e 
of

 a
ny

 p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

LB
H

F
 s

ite
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

tin
g 

ill
eg

al
ly

 b
y 

se
lli

ng
 th

em
 

an
y 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 w

ith
ou

t a
 te

nd
er

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

ct
in

g 
w

ith
in

 E
U

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t r
ul

es
. I

t 
w

ill
 o

f c
ou

rs
e 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
th

e 
co

ns
en

t o
f t

he
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
 b

ef
or

e 
an

y 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 la
nd

 
is

 m
ad

e.
 

12
) 

T
he

 C
LS

A
 c

an
no

t b
ec

om
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
un

le
ss

 T
fL

 d
oe

s 
a 

pr
io

r 
de

al
.  

T
he

 L
B

H
F

 is
 a

n 
ad

do
n 

to
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 th
at

 d
oe

s 
no

t y
et

 e
xi

st
. T

he
 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
se

lli
ng

 a
n 

op
tio

n 
fo

r 
its

 la
nd

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 d

oe
s 

no
t y

et
 le

ga
lly

 e
xi

st
 a

nd
 th

is
 it

se
lf 

m
ay

 b
e 

ill
eg

al
. 

T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ge

s 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ak

es
 

pl
ac

e.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 n
ot

 a
ct

in
g 

ill
eg

al
ly

.  

13
) 

LB
H

F
 h

av
e 

br
ok

en
 r

an
ks

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 
T

fL
. T

fL
 h

av
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 th
e 

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t e
xp

ire
d 

on
 th

e 
S

ee
 c

om
m

en
t 6

. 

Page 175



 

5
5
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

.  
T

he
y 

do
 n

ot
 r

eg
ar

d 
C

ap
co

 a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 th

ei
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ar
tn

er
 a

nd
 a

re
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

ot
he

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
. 

14
) 

LB
H

F
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
yp

in
g 

C
ap

co
 s

in
ce

 2
00

9 
by

 c
la

im
in

g 
it 

is
 a

 
m

aj
or

 la
nd

ow
ne

r 
w

he
n 

it 
on

ly
 h

as
 tr

ad
in

g 
le

as
es

 w
ith

 n
o 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
by

 c
on

si
st

en
tly

 b
ac

ki
ng

 C
ap

co
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
be

yo
nd

 a
ny

 r
ig

ht
 o

r 
re

as
on

.  
T

hi
s 

hy
pi

ng
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

a 
de

fe
ns

e 
ag

ai
ns

t c
po

 p
re

m
iu

m
 in

 C
ap

co
’s

 fa
vo

ur
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
it 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 

cp
o 

th
e 

C
ap

co
 tr

ad
in

g 
le

as
es

 a
t a

 p
re

m
iu

m
 to

 th
e 

no
 s

ch
em

e 
va

lu
e,

 
T

fL
 c

ou
ld

 s
ue

 L
B

H
F

 fo
r 

re
co

ve
ry

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
em

iu
m

. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

di
sp

ut
es

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ‘h

yp
in

g’
 C

ap
co

. 
C

ap
co

 is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t l

an
do

w
ne

r 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 w
ith

 a
 

le
as

e 
fo

r 
m

an
y 

ye
ar

s 
to

 c
om

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

aj
or

 s
ite

 o
f E

ar
ls

 
C

ou
rt

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e 

ce
nt

re
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
an

 in
te

re
st

 in
 th

e 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
si

te
 (

w
ith

 it
s 

ro
le

 in
 fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
a 

si
ng

le
 

de
ca

nt
).

 C
ap

co
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 o
th

er
 la

nd
 in

te
re

st
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

15
) 

In
 1

0.
7.

5 
of

  t
he

 r
ep

or
t i

t s
ay

s 
‘It

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 it
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
th

at
 th

e 
C

LS
A

 w
ill

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

T
fL

 d
ea

l i
s 

co
nc

lu
de

d.
’  

T
hi

s 
is

 
a 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

in
co

rr
ec

t i
nt

en
tio

n 
to

 a
ct

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 
of

 T
fL

, g
iv

in
g 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l o
pt

io
n 

di
sc

ou
nt

 to
 C

ap
co

 a
nd

 a
 lo

ss
 to

 T
fL

 
sh

ou
ld

 it
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

th
em

 to
 C

P
O

 th
e 

tr
ad

in
g 

le
as

es
, a

nd
 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 a
nd

 in
co

rr
ec

tly
 b

in
di

ng
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 C
ap

co
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

do
es

 n
ot

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f t

he
  

‘o
pt

io
n 

di
sc

ou
nt

’ a
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 b
es

t 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
e 

C
LS

A
 is

 th
e 

be
st

 d
ea

l f
or

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 s
tim

ul
at

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 
  

16
) 

C
ap

C
o 

no
w

 h
as

 a
 u

nb
re

ak
ab

le
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 in
te

re
st

s,
 

as
 th

e 
C

ap
C

o/
K

w
ok

 S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

JV
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

as
 o

nl
y 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 

on
 th

e 
gr

an
t o

f p
la

nn
in

g.
  T

he
 K

w
ok

 in
te

re
st

s 
no

w
 o

w
n 

50
 p

er
 c

en
t o

f 
th

e 
K

w
ok

/C
ap

C
o 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

JV
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

T
he

 K
w

ok
 C

ap
co

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 th
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

of
 2

00
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t h

om
es

 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
LS

A
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

LS
A

 c
an

no
t p

ro
ce

ed
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

of
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 C
ap

co
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

A
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
C

LS
A

 b
y 

th
e 

K
w

ok
 

C
ap

co
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 s
el

f-
ev

id
en

tly
 a

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
LS

A
. 

 LB
H

F
 c

ab
in

et
 r

es
ol

ve
d 

on
 th

e 
23

rd
 A

pr
il 

20
12

 th
at

 'T
he

 C
ab

in
et

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
st

ru
ct

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 w

ith
 C

ap
C

o'
, d

es
pi

te
 th

e 
ar

re
st

s 
of

 tw
o 

of
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 b
ro

th
er

s,
 R

ay
m

on
d 

an
d 

T
ho

m
as

 K
w

ok
, o

n 
th

e 
29

th
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 (

W
al

te
r 

K
w

ok
 w

as
 a

rr
es

te
d 

3r
d 

M
ay

 2
01

2)
. 

 O
n 

th
e 

th
e 

29
th

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2,

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

23
rd

 A
pr

il 
20

12
 c

ab
in

et
 

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
9.

3 
of

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 r
ep

or
t r

ef
er

s 
to

 th
is

 is
su

e.
 

 P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

to
 o

pe
ra

te
 w

ith
in

 U
K

 L
aw

.  
            

Page 176



 

5
6
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
m

ee
tin

g,
 R

eu
te

rs
 r

ep
or

te
d 

th
at

 “
H

on
g 

K
on

g'
s 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ga

in
st

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

on
 T

hu
rs

da
y 

ar
re

st
ed

 tw
o 

se
ni

or
 

co
m

pa
ny

 e
xe

cu
tiv

es
, i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

 a
s 

S
un

 H
un

g 
K

ai
 

P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

ty
co

on
 b

ro
th

er
s 

R
ay

m
on

d 
an

d 
T

ho
m

as
 K

w
ok

, f
or

 
co

rr
up

tio
n”

. 
 B

y 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

 to
 s

ig
n 

th
e 

C
LS

A
, L

B
H

F
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 2
00

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t h
om

es
 to

 e
nt

iti
es

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 a

lle
ge

d 
cr

im
in

al
s 

in
 th

e 
fu

ll 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
at

 th
e 

al
le

ge
d 

cr
im

in
al

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ar
re

st
ed

 b
y 

a 
re

sp
ec

te
d 

la
w

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ge

nc
y 

of
 a

no
th

er
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

or
 a

lle
ge

dl
y 

br
ib

in
g 

of
fic

ia
ls

 o
f t

ha
t g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
 T

hi
s 

un
de

rm
in

es
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

cr
im

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gy

. 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 

17
) 

T
he

 C
ap

co
 A

nn
ua

l 2
01

1 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

co
nt

ai
n 

in
co

rr
ec

t f
ac

ts
 a

nd
 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 r
en

de
r 

C
ap

co
 a

 n
ot

 fi
t a

nd
 p

ro
pe

r 
pa

rt
ne

r 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 d
o 

a 
de

al
 w

ith
.  

T
he

 in
co

rr
ec

t f
ac

ts
 a

nd
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

 a
re

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
A

pp
en

di
x.

 
 A

pp
en

di
x 

re
 C

ap
ita

l A
nd

 C
ou

nt
ie

s 
P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
P

LC
 (

ca
lle

d 
C

A
P

C
 in

 th
e 

ap
pe

nd
ix

, t
he

 s
to

ck
 m

ar
ke

t c
od

e,
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
 a

nd
 n

ot
 C

ap
co

) 
20

11
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 th
re

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 it
em

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 in
 th

e 
C

A
P

C
 2

01
1 

A
nn

ua
l 

R
ep

or
t &

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
(t

yp
e 

in
to

 b
ro

w
se

r 
ht

tp
://

tin
yu

rl.
co

m
/C

A
P

C
20

11
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

 to
 d

ow
nl

oa
d)

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
en

di
ng

 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

at
 th

e 
20

th
 A

pr
il 

20
12

 A
G

M
. 

 T
he

 th
re

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 it
em

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
re

: 
  O

n
e:

  
  T

he
 r

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
A

P
C

 in
te

re
st

s 
at

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 a
re

 n
ot

 b
as

ed
 o

n 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
 th

is
 d

ea
l i

s 
th

e 
be

st
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

is
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

F
ur

th
er

 to
 th

is
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

e 
de

al
 b

ei
ng

 
pr

op
os

ed
 is

 th
e 

op
tim

um
 p

os
iti

on
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 it
s 

ow
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 d
ue

 
di

lig
en

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
 th

at
 w

ill
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 g
ua

ra
nt

or
. T

he
 C

LS
A

 in
cl

ud
es

 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
fo

r 
fr

eq
ue

nt
 te

st
in

g 
of

 th
e 

ne
t a

ss
et

 v
al

ue
 

of
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 e

nt
iti

es
 w

ith
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
ut

y 
of

 c
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fir
m

 a
ct

in
g 

as
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

 T
hi

s 
is

 c
om

m
en

te
d 

on
 in

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 R
ep

or
t. 

      

Page 177



 

5
7
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
fa

ct
 a

nd
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 in

fla
te

s 
th

e 
C

A
P

C
 p

ro
fit

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
  T

he
 C

A
P

C
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
t E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 a

re
 o

n 
th

e 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 
th

e 
tr

ad
in

g 
le

as
es

 o
f t

he
 E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 1

 a
nd

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 2
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
th

is
 C

A
P

C
 in

ve
st

m
en

t (
th

e 
tw

o 
tr

ad
in

g 
le

as
es

) 
ar

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 in
 th

e 
C

A
P

C
 2

01
1 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t &
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

on
 p

ag
e 

89
 

as
 h

av
in

g 
be

en
 v

al
ue

d 
as

 a
 's

ite
 w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ot
en

tia
l' 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 

ar
e 

no
t a

 s
ite

 w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ot

en
tia

l a
nd

 o
n 

pa
ge

 1
1 

it 
sa

ys
 't

he
 

G
ro

up
’s

 in
te

re
st

s 
at

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

ev
al

ue
d 

fr
om

 £
13

8 
m

ill
io

n 
to

 £
19

5 
m

ill
io

n,
 im

pl
yi

ng
 a

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 £
8.

6 
m

ill
io

n 
pe

r 
ac

re
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
G

ro
up

’s
 2

3 
ac

re
s 

at
 E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
. T

he
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t v
al

ue
r 

ha
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
to

 a
 la

nd
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ha
vi

ng
 r

eg
ar

d 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ot
en

tia
l i

n 
lig

ht
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pr
oc

es
s,

 a
nd

 th
is

 m
ar

ks
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 e
xi

st
in

g 
us

e 
ba

si
s.

' A
ll 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ot

en
tia

l b
el

on
ge

d 
to

 
T

fL
 a

t t
he

 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 a

nd
 s

til
l d

oe
s.

 A
t t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

on
 th

e 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

1 
th

e 
si

te
 d

id
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 
st

ill
 d

oe
s 

no
t. 

 In
 a

ny
 c

as
e 

sh
ou

ld
 th

e 
si

te
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
, t

he
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 v
al

ue
 w

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 a

cc
ru

ed
 to

 T
fL

, t
he

 o
w

ne
r 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

an
d 

no
t 

C
A

P
C

. 
  T

he
 r

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
fa

ct
 a

nd
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 in

fla
te

s 
th

e 
C

A
P

C
 p

ro
fit

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
  T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

th
e 

m
en

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
tr

ea
tm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
C

A
P

C
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t a

nd
 A

cc
ou

nt
s:

 
  P

ag
e 

11
: 

T
he

 G
ro

up
’s

 in
te

re
st

s 
at

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

ev
al

ue
d 

fr
om

 £
13

8 
m

ill
io

n 
to

 £
19

5 
m

ill
io

n,
 im

pl
yi

ng
 a

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 £
8.

6 
m

ill
io

n 
pe

r 
ac

re
 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
                              

Page 178



 

5
8
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

G
ro

up
’s

 2
3 

ac
re

s 
at

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

. T
he

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t v

al
ue

r 
ha

s 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 a

 la
nd

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
ha

vi
ng

 r
eg

ar
d 

fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ot

en
tia

l i
n 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

, a
nd

 th
is

 m
ar

ks
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 e
xi

st
in

g 
us

e 
ba

si
s.

 T
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 C
ap

co
’s

 in
te

re
st

s 
in

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 a
s 

at
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 r

ea
lis

in
g 

th
is

 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

w
ith

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ba

si
s 

no
w

 a
 la

nd
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ha
vi

ng
 r

eg
ar

d 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ot
en

tia
l, 

a 
ch

an
ge

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 b
as

is
 o

f 
ex

is
tin

g 
us

e 
as

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

ss
et

s.
 A

s 
at

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
, t

he
 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 £

19
5 

m
ill

io
n,

 a
 r

is
e 

of
 3

9 
pe

r 
ce

nt
, r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
a 

va
lu

e 
of

 £
8.

6 
m

ill
io

n 
pe

r 
ac

re
 v

er
su

s 
£6

.1
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

r 
ac

re
 a

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

. 
  P

ag
e 

30
: 

T
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 C
ap

co
’s

 in
te

re
st

s 
in

 E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 a
s 

at
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 r
ea

lis
in

g 
th

is
 p

ot
en

tia
l, 

w
ith

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ba

si
s 

no
w

 a
 la

nd
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ha
vi

ng
 r

eg
ar

d 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

po
te

nt
ia

l, 
a 

ch
an

ge
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 b

as
is

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

us
e 

as
 

op
er

at
io

na
l a

ss
et

s.
 A

s 
at

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
, t

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 £
19

5 
m

ill
io

n,
 a

 r
is

e 
of

 3
9 

pe
r 

ce
nt

, r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

a 
va

lu
e 

of
 £

8.
6 

m
ill

io
n 

pe
r 

ac
re

 v
er

su
s 

£6
.1

 m
ill

io
n 

pe
r 

ac
re

 a
t D

ec
em

be
r 

20
. 

  P
ag

e 
42

: 
A

 s
te

p 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

G
ro

up
’s

 in
te

re
st

s 
at

 E
ar

ls
 

C
ou

rt
 w

as
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

in
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 y

ea
r.

 U
nd

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 th

e 
G

ro
up

’s
 v

al
ue

rs
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

nd
 b

es
t u

se
 w

he
n 

va
lu

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
ca

rr
ie

d 
at

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e.
 T

he
 h

ig
he

st
 a

nd
 b

es
t u

se
 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 e
xh

ib
iti

on
 h

al
ls

 a
t 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 w
as

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
a 

la
nd

 v
al

ue
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
po

te
nt

ia
l. 

T
hi

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
ed

 to
 a

 li
ke

-f
or

-li
ke

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

su
rp

lu
s 

of
 1

0.
9 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
                              

Page 179



 

5
9
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
pe

r 
ce

nt
 r

ec
or

de
d 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

he
ld

 a
t E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 &

 
O

ly
m

pi
a 

w
hi

ch
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ed

 a
 la

nd
 v

al
ue

 o
f £

8.
6 

m
ill

io
n 

pe
r 

ac
re

 to
 th

e 
si

te
. T

hi
s 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

G
ro

up
’s

 e
ffo

rt
s 

to
w

ar
d 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

co
ns

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

E
C

O
A

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 fu
rt

he
r 

in
 th

e 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

. 
  P

ag
e 

89
: 

V
al

ua
tio

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

w
ha

t i
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

nd
 b

es
t 

us
e.

 T
he

 G
ro

up
’s

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

t E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

, a
nd

 S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d,

 a
 

ca
r 

pa
rk

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

, h
av

e 
be

en
 v

al
ue

d 
as

 a
 s

ite
 w

ith
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ot
en

tia
l. 

  O
n 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 b

ut
 r

el
at

ed
 is

su
e.

  T
he

 tr
ad

in
g 

le
as

es
 a

re
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 o

n 
pa

ge
 3

1 
as

 lo
ng

 le
as

es
.  

T
he

 le
as

e 
of

 E
C

1 
ha

s 
on

ly
 2

9 
ye

ar
s 

le
ft 

ex
pi

rin
g 

20
41

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

ga
rd

ed
 a

s 
a 

lo
ng

 le
as

e 
en

ab
lin

g 
un

de
rle

tti
ng

 fo
r 

le
as

eh
ol

d 
ap

ar
tm

en
t u

se
 (

sh
ou

ld
 th

er
e 

be
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 

in
 th

e 
le

as
e 

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
le

t f
or

 s
uc

h 
us

e 
w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is

 n
ot

).
 

  P
ag

e 
31

: 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
 (

T
fL

) 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 
C

ap
co

’s
 e

xi
st

in
g 

lo
ng

 le
as

eh
ol

d 
in

te
re

st
s 

at
 E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 c

ov
er

in
g 

T
fL

 a
nd

 L
B

H
F

’s
 la

nd
 in

 th
e 

E
C

O
A

. 
  T

he
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
in

co
rr

ec
t r

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
ar

e 
th

e 
tw

o 
le

as
es

 o
f E

C
1 

an
d 

E
C

2 
th

em
se

lv
es

. T
he

 le
as

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

na
ly

se
d 

he
re

 b
ut

 I 
am

 
co

nt
en

t t
ha

t a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ur
ve

yo
r 

re
ad

in
g 

th
e 

le
as

es
 w

ou
ld

 
co

nc
lu

de
 th

at
 n

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

ar
e 

gr
an

te
d 

by
 th

e 
le

as
es

 o
th

er
 

th
an

 th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 m

ak
e 

m
in

or
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

ex
hi

bi
tio

n 
ce

nt
re

s.
 

  T
yp

e 
in

 to
 b

ro
w

se
r 

ht
tp

://
tin

yu
rl.

co
m

/E
C

1L
ea

se
 to

 d
ow

nl
oa

d 
th

e 
le

as
e 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
                              

Page 180



 

6
0
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
of

 E
C

1 
- 

fr
ee

 g
oo

gl
e 

ac
co

un
t n

ee
de

d.
 

T
yp

e 
in

 to
 b

ro
w

se
r 

ht
tp

://
tin

yu
rl.

co
m

/E
C

2L
ea

se
 to

 d
ow

nl
oa

d 
th

e 
le

as
e 

of
 E

C
2 

- 
fr

ee
 g

oo
gl

e 
ac

co
un

t n
ee

de
d.

 
  T

w
o

: 
 

  T
he

 n
on

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

as
 a

 p
os

t b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 e

ve
nt

 o
f t

he
 e

xp
iry

 o
n 

th
e 

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 o

f t
he

 9
th

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t  

(t
yp

e 
in

to
 b

ro
w

se
r 

 h
ttp

://
tin

yu
rl.

co
m

/c
ol

la
ba

g 
to

 d
ow

nl
oa

d 
- 

fr
ee

 g
oo

gl
e 

ac
co

un
t n

ee
de

d)
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
A

P
C

, T
fL

 a
nd

 L
B

H
F

. 
  H

ow
ar

d 
C

ar
te

r 
G

en
er

al
 C

ou
ns

el
 fo

r 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
or

 L
on

do
n,

 T
fL

’s
 

se
ni

or
 la

w
ye

r,
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

 a
 le

tte
r 

(t
yp

e 
in

to
 b

ro
w

se
r 

ht
tp

://
tin

yu
rl.

co
m

/c
ar

te
rle

t t
o 

do
w

nl
oa

d 
- 

fr
ee

 g
oo

gl
e 

ac
co

un
t n

ee
de

d)
 

to
 M

r 
Jo

na
th

an
 R

os
en

be
rg

, C
om

m
un

ity
 O

rg
an

is
er

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t 

K
en

si
ng

to
n 

E
st

at
e 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 E
st

at
e 

T
R

A
s 

da
te

d 
23

rd
 M

ar
ch

 
20

12
: 

  ‘T
o 

da
te

, t
he

 T
fL

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
an

y 
re

po
rt

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
.’ 

‘I 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
in

te
re

st
s 

he
ld

 
by

 C
ap

co
 in

 la
nd

 a
t E

ar
l’s

 C
ou

rt
 a

re
 tw

o 
le

as
es

 o
f E

C
1 

an
d 

E
C

2 
da

te
d 

19
59

 a
nd

 1
99

1 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 C

op
ie

s 
of

 th
es

e 
le

as
es

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 fr

om
 th

e 
la

nd
 r

eg
is

tr
y.

 T
fL

 a
nd

 C
ap

co
 h

av
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 e

nt
er

ed
 

in
to

 a
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 e

xp
ire

d 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 o

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 C

ap
co

 w
hi

ch
 

bi
nd

 T
fL

 to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 C

ap
co

 a
lo

ne
.’ 

  H
ow

ar
d 

C
ar

te
r 

al
so

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 in

 a
n 

em
ai

l (
ty

pe
 in

to
 b

ro
w

se
r 

ht
tp

://
tin

yu
rl.

co
m

/c
ar

te
re

m
ai

l t
o 

do
w

nl
oa

d 
- 

fr
ee

 g
oo

gl
e 

ac
co

un
t 

ne
ed

ed
) 

to
 M

r 
R

os
en

be
rg

 o
n 

th
e 

9t
h 

M
ay

 2
01

2 
th

at
 'T

he
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t e

xp
ire

d 
on

 3
1 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
.' 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
                              

Page 181



 

6
1
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
  T

h
re

e:
 

  T
he

 n
on

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

as
 a

 p
os

t b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 e

ve
nt

 o
f t

he
 2

9t
h 

M
ar

ch
 

20
12

 a
rr

es
t b

y 
H

on
g 

K
on

g'
s 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ga
in

st
 

C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

of
 R

ay
m

on
d 

an
d 

T
ho

m
as

 K
w

ok
 fo

r 
al

le
ge

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n.

 
K

w
ok

 a
pp

ea
rs

 1
4 

tim
es

 in
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t a

nd
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

bu
t t

he
re

 
is

 n
o 

m
en

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ar

re
st

s.
 T

o 
pu

t t
he

 n
on

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

in
 c

on
te

xt
 th

er
e 

fo
llo

w
s 

a 
lis

t o
f a

ll 
m

en
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 K
w

ok
 n

am
e 

in
 th

e 
C

A
P

C
 A

nn
ua

l 
R

ep
or

t &
 A

cc
ou

nt
s:

 
  pa

ge
 5

: 
Jo

in
t v

en
tu

re
 w

ith
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 F
am

ily
 In

te
re

st
s 

an
no

un
ce

d 
T

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

si
te

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 b

oo
st

 w
ith

 a
 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 5

0:
50

 jo
in

t v
en

tu
re

 w
ith

 th
e 

‘K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s’
 –

 m
aj

or
 

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

 o
f S

un
 H

un
g 

K
ai

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

Li
m

ite
d,

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 la

rg
es

t 
an

d 
m

os
t r

ep
ut

ab
le

 r
ea

l e
st

at
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 in

 H
on

g 
K

on
g 

  pa
ge

 9
: 

In
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

 a
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
to

 g
ra

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

co
ns

en
t f

or
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
w

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d,

 w
hi

ch
 fo

llo
w

ed
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f a
 c

on
di

tio
na

l 
jo

in
t v

en
tu

re
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

si
te

 w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
in

 
D

ec
em

be
r.

 T
he

se
 s

uc
ce

ss
es

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 th

e 
G

ro
up

 to
 p

ur
su

e,
 in

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p,
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 8
00

 h
om

es
 a

t S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d.

 
  pa

ge
 9

: 
W

e 
lo

ok
 fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 w
or

ki
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
to

 
ta

ke
 fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
  pa

ge
 1

1:
 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
                              

Page 182



 

6
2
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 v

al
ue

 d
ur

in
g 

20
11

 b
y 

£1
1 

m
ill

io
n 

to
 £

11
6 

m
ill

io
n 

an
d 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 

a 
50

:5
0 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 jo

in
t v

en
tu

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
si

te
 

w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
at

 £
13

1 
m

ill
io

n.
 

  pa
ge

 1
1:

 
T

he
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
w

ill
 d

ev
el

op
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

as
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
be

co
m

es
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

je
ct

. 
  pa

ge
 2

8:
 

C
on

di
tio

na
l j

oi
nt

 v
en

tu
re

 fo
r 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 
F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
  pa

ge
 2

8:
 

T
ak

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
  pa

ge
 3

2:
 

T
he

 G
ro

up
 w

ill
 s

ee
k 

to
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

la
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 L
B

H
F

 a
nd

 T
fL

 
co

ns
ol

id
at

in
g 

fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
ta

ke
 fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s.
 

  pa
ge

 3
3:

 
C

on
di

tio
na

l J
oi

nt
 V

en
tu

re
 fo

r 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

K
w

ok
 

F
am

ily
 In

te
re

st
s 

  pa
ge

 3
3:

 
In

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 a

 5
0:

50
 c

on
di

tio
na

l j
oi

nt
 v

en
tu

re
 w

ith
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 
F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
w

as
 a

gr
ee

d,
 s

ig
na

lli
ng

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t m
ile

st
on

e 
in

 
C

ap
co

’s
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 c

re
at

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 jo
bs

 fo
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

. 
  pa

ge
 3

9:
 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
                              

Page 183



 

6
3
 

 C
om

m
en

t  
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

R
es

po
ns

e 
In

 D
ec

em
be

r 
th

e 
G

ro
up

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 a
 c

on
di

tio
na

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
K

w
ok

 F
am

ily
 In

te
re

st
s.

 T
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t, 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 o

n 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
on

se
nt

 im
m

un
e 

fr
om

 c
ha

lle
ng

e,
 is

 to
 a

cq
ui

re
 a

 5
0 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 
st

ak
e 

in
 th

e 
G

ro
up

’s
 in

te
re

st
s 

at
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
fo

r 
£6

6 
m

ill
io

n,
 a

 1
3 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 u
pl

ift
 o

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 A

s 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
co

nd
iti

on
al

 a
t t

he
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 d
at

e,
 th

e 
di

ve
st

m
en

t i
s 

no
t 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

ab
ov

e.
 

  pa
ge

 1
13

: 
O

n 
17

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

12
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f 

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 &
 F

ul
ha

m
 r

es
ol

ve
d 

to
 g

ra
nt

 d
et

ai
le

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 fo

r 
th

e 
G

ro
up

’s
 p

la
ns

 to
 r

ed
ev

el
op

 th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

th
e 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
up

on
 e

xp
iry

 o
f t

he
 th

re
e 

m
on

th
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
er

io
d 

w
hi

ch
 fo

llo
w

s 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
  pa

ge
 1

22
: 

K
w

ok
 F

am
ily

 In
te

re
st

s 
C

on
di

tio
na

l j
oi

nt
 v

en
tu

re
 p

ar
tn

er
 a

nd
 m

aj
or

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

 in
 a

 la
rg

e 
lis

te
d 

H
on

g 
K

on
g 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r.
 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 a
bo

ve
).

 
    

 

Page 184



The Council is undertaking this consultation to seek your views on whether or not the Council 
should include the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates within the comprehensive Earls Court 
Redevelopment scheme. The Council is consulting with all residents on the estates and residents 
and businesses in the wider area.

For secure tenants on the estates, this process will also satisfy the requirements of Section 105 of 
the Housing Act 1985.

The Council wants to hear your views on this proposal. This is your opportunity to make your views 
known to the Council. You are free to comment on any aspect of the proposals and your views will 
be considered prior to any decision being made.  

Should you consider that any aspect of the proposal would or might have any particular impact 
upon you as a result of your age, disability (if any), marital / civil partnership status, race, gender, 
sexual orientation, religion or beliefs, or as a result of you being pregnant, or being on maternity, or 
having undergone gender re-assignment then we would encourage you to explain this to us. The 
council has attempted to identify the potential impacts in a ‘draft Equality Impact Analysis’, which 
you can find at www.lbhf.gov.uk/westken. We would welcome any comments you have on whether 
we have correctly identified the potential impacts in this document.  

You can make your views known by either filling in this feedback form and returning it in the pre 
paid envelope, or by logging on to on the councils website www.lbhf.gov.uk/westken, or by writing 
a letter to Philip Morris/Sarah Lovell, Housing and Regeneration, 3rd Floor, Town Hall Extension, 
King Street, W6 9JU.

The consultation concludes on Friday 17 February 2012. We must have your views by then

Name:

Address:

Gender:

Age:

If a resident of the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates are you a (please tick one box):

Secure council tenant   Tenant of Family Mosaic   
Tenant of Shepherd’s Bush Housing Association   London and Quadrant tenant    
Leaseholder   Freeholder   Private Tenant   Other   

Or resident of the wider area 

Hammersmith & Fulham Council

Feedback form

Continued over

West Kensington  
and Gibbs Green  

Page 185



1. What are your views on the council’s proposal to include the estates within the  
redevelopment scheme?

 

2. Are there any further comments you want to make concerning any aspect of the development?

 

3. Are there any comments you want to make on the tenant and leaseholder/freeholder assurances 
issued with this document?

 

4. Do you have any suggestions as to how we might communicate with you in future?

 

Please feel free to continue your answers on a separate sheet if you wish. 

If you would like any part of this document produced in large print 
or braille, or in another language, please phone 020 8753 5571

Page 186



 

Annex 2 

Page 187



Page 188



 
1
 

A
n

n
ex

 4
 

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

 o
f 

R
eh

o
u

si
n

g
 P

o
lic

ie
s 

 T
en

an
ts

 
 

 
R

ig
h

t 
to

 
R

et
u

rn
 

O
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
te

n
an

cy
 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
B

ed
 n

ee
d

 
R

ig
h

t 
to

 
B

u
y 

R
en

t 
O

th
er

 

E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 
O

ne
 m

ov
e 

Y
es

. O
pt

io
n 

in
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

 
in

 s
ch

em
e 

an
d 

m
ov

e 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

oc
k.

 
O

pt
io

n 
fo

r 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

te
na

nt
s 

to
 

ta
ke

 u
p 

ne
w

 
C

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nc

y.
 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 N

ew
 

w
hi

te
 g

oo
ds

 
an

d 
ne

w
 

ca
rp

et
s 

an
d 

cu
rt

ai
ns

 in
 

ne
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

ho
m

e.
 

G
ua

ra
nt

ee
 o

f 
be

dr
oo

m
 o

ve
r 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

 if
 

al
re

ad
y 

un
de

r-
oc

cu
py

in
g 

E
xi

st
in

g 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

di
sc

ou
nt

s 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 n

ew
 

bu
ild

 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ex

is
tin

g 
C

ou
nc

il 
st

oc
k.

 

R
en

t 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
w

ay
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

t r
en

t i
f 

m
ov

e 
to

 a
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ho
m

e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r 
lo

ss
 o

f 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
ga

rd
en

s 
an

d 
ho

m
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
R

es
id

en
ts

 c
an

 m
ov

e 
to

ge
th

er
 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

so
ci

al
 n

et
w

or
ks

. 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

rr
ea

rs
 d

ue
 to

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

du
ct

ed
 

fr
om

 h
om

el
os

s 
pa

ym
en

t. 

G
re

en
 M

an
 L

an
e 

E
al

in
g 

C
an

 r
eq

ue
st

 
to

 r
et

ur
n 

if 
no

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

m
ee

t y
ou

r 
ne

ed
. N

ee
d 

to
 r

ea
pp

ly
 

Y
es

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

m
ov

e 
in

to
 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
oc

k.
 A

ll 
ne

w
 s

oc
ia

l 
re

nt
ed

 is
 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

C
le

ar
 u

pp
er

 
lim

its
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

nu
al

ly
. 

E
xt

ra
 b

ed
ro

om
 

m
ay

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 C

le
ar

 
cr

ite
ria

.  
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r 

do
w

ns
iz

in
g.

 

N
ew

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
P

re
se

rv
ed

 
R

ig
ht

 to
 

R
en

ts
 fo

r 
ne

w
 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

P
ro

vi
de

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ar
e 

ta
rg

et
 

re
nt

 a
nd

 

Li
ke

 fo
r 

lik
e 

po
lic

y 
(i.

e.
 if

 in
 

m
ai

so
ne

tte
, w

ill
 tr

y 
to

 o
ffe

r 
a 

m
ai

so
ne

tte
) 

Page 189



 
2
 

ev
er

y 
2 

ye
ar

s.
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
 a

t t
im

e 
of

 o
rig

in
al

 
re

fe
re

nc
in

g.
  

P
ro

vi
de

r 
on

 
as

su
re

d 
te

na
nc

y.
 

B
uy

. 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
ch

ar
ge

s 
al

so
 

ap
pl

y.
 N

o 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
le

ve
ls

. 
A

yl
es

bu
ry

, 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
T

ho
se

 w
ho

 
m

ov
e 

be
fo

re
 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, 

m
ay

 b
e 

ab
le

 
to

 r
et

ur
n 

if 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

ne
ed

. 
T

en
an

ts
 in

 
ea

rly
 p

ha
se

s 
ca

n 
op

t t
o 

m
ov

e 
to

 
la

te
r 

ph
as

e 
of

 e
st

at
e 

an
d 

th
en

 
m

ov
e 

to
 n

ew
 

ho
m

e.
 

Y
es

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

m
ov

e 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

op
er

ty
 (

i.e
. 

no
t n

ew
) 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 

E
xt

ra
 b

ed
ro

om
 

po
lic

y 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 

N
ew

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
R

ig
ht

 to
 

A
cq

ui
re

. 

R
en

ts
 s

et
 b

y 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r.

 W
ill

 
be

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 r
en

t a
rr

ea
rs

 m
ay

 
be

 d
ed

uc
te

d 
fr

om
 h

om
e 

lo
ss

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

H
ey

ga
te

, 
C

an
 e

xp
re

ss
 

Y
es

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
R

ea
so

na
bl

e 
E

xt
ra

 b
ed

ro
om

 
R

ig
ht

 to
 

R
en

ts
 s

et
 b

y 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 r

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 m

ay
 

Page 190



 
3
 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

a 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

 
to

 m
ov

e 
to

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 

on
 o

ne
 o

f 2
0 

si
te

s 
ar

ou
nd

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 b

ut
 

no
 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
of

 
a 

ne
w

 h
om

e.
  

if 
m

ov
e 

to
 

an
ot

he
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

er
ty

. 

co
st

s 
po

lic
y 

ap
pl

ie
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

an
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

er
ty

 

A
cq

ui
re

 fo
r 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

P
ro

vi
de

r 
te

na
nt

s.
 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

P
ro

vi
de

r.
 W

ill
 

be
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

be
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 h
om

e 
lo

ss
 

pa
ym

en
ts

. 

K
id

br
oo

ke
, 

G
re

en
w

ic
h 

C
an

 m
ov

e 
el

se
w

he
re

 
te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
an

d 
ha

ve
 

fir
st

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
ho

m
e.

 

 
 

E
xt

ra
 b

ed
 

po
lic

y 
ap

pl
ie

s 
fo

r 
2 

be
d 

ov
er

 
ne

ed
. 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
at

 £
35

0 
pe

r 
be

dr
oo

m
. 

 
 

Li
ke

 fo
r 

lik
e 

po
lic

y 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

W
oo

db
er

ry
 D

ow
n,

 
H

ac
kn

ey
 

Le
ga

lly
 

bi
nd

in
g 

R
ig

ht
 to

 
R

et
ur

n 
to

 a
 

ne
w

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

pr
op

er
ty

.  

Y
es

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

m
ov

e 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

op
er

ty
 (

i.e
. 

no
t n

ew
).

 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 

E
xt

ra
 b

ed
ro

om
 

po
lic

y 
m

ay
 

ap
pl

y 
if 

ce
rt

ai
n 

cr
ite

ria
 m

et
. 

 
 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 r
en

t a
rr

ea
rs

 w
ill

 
be

 d
ed

uc
te

d 
fr

om
 h

om
el

os
s 

pa
ym

en
t. 

C
an

ni
ng

 T
ow

n,
 

N
ew

ha
m

 
C

om
m

itm
en

t 
th

at
 

re
si

de
nt

s 

G
ua

ra
nt

ee
 

th
at

 c
an

 s
ta

y 
a 

C
ou

nc
il 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 

T
en

an
ts

 
un

de
ro

cc
up

yi
ng

 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 

W
ill

 
ne

go
tia

te
 

a 
R

et
ai

ne
d 

C
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 r
en

t, 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

, 
H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 r
ep

ai
r 

de
bt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

of
f 

Page 191



 
4
 

ca
n 

m
ov

e 
to

 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

th
at

 
rig

ht
 to

 
re

tu
rn

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

te
na

nt
 b

ut
 

no
t i

n 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

sa
m

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 b
ed

ro
om

s 
as

 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

 n
ew

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

R
ig

ht
 to

 
B

uy
. 

P
ro

vi
de

r 
re

nt
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

ch
ar

ge
s 

in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
C

ou
nc

ils
. 

ho
m

el
os

s 
pa

ym
en

t. 

      

Page 192



 
5
 

L
ea

se
h

o
ld

er
s 

 
 

M
ov

e 
to

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
O

pt
io

n 
of

 
C

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nc

y 

B
as

is
 o

f 
ho

m
e 

lo
ss

 
pa

ym
en

t 

E
qu

ity
 s

ha
re

 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

B
as

is
 o

f 
va

lu
at

io
n 

O
th

er
 

E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 
Y

es
 if

 r
es

id
en

t 
le

as
eh

ol
de

r 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
co

ul
d 

of
fe

r 
so

ci
al

 r
en

te
d 

or
 in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 

re
nt

ed
. 

10
%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
w

ith
 m

in
im

um
 

of
 £

4,
70

0 
an

d 
m

ax
 o

f 
£4

7,
00

0.
 

7.
5%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
fo

r 
no

n 
re

si
de

nt
 

ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

. 

Y
es

. C
ou

nc
il 

re
ta

in
 v

al
ue

 
of

 r
es

t. 
C

an
 

st
ai

rc
as

e.
 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 

If 
no

t m
ov

e 
to

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
bo

ug
ht

 
be

fo
re

 
02

/1
1,

 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 

pa
y 

th
e 

pr
ic

e 
pa

id
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

al
es

 
di

sc
ou

nt
 o

f 1
0%

 
if 

si
gn

 u
p 

ea
rly

. 
S

er
vi

ce
 c

ha
rg

e 
ca

p 
fo

r 
5 

ye
ar

s.
 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

ea
rly

 
re

de
m

pt
io

n 
pe

na
lti

es
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

or
tg

ag
es

. 
P

ot
en

tia
lly

 
cr

ea
te

 a
 

le
as

eh
ol

d 
in

 
an

ot
he

r 
co

un
ci

l 
pr

op
er

ty
. 

G
re

en
 M

an
 

La
ne

 E
al

in
g 

Y
es

. 
In

 e
xc

ep
tio

na
l 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 

10
%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
Y

es
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

.  
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

re
ta

in
s 

va
lu

e.
 

S
ha

re
d 

eq
ui

ty
 a

ls
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s 
M

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e.

 
W

ill
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

S
ha

re
d 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
tio

ns
 w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 
el

se
w

he
re

. 

Page 193



 
6
 

pa
rt

ne
r 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

P
ro

vi
de

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

el
se

w
he

re
.  

H
ey

ga
te

, 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
Y

es
. 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ne
ed

 a
nd

 
fin

an
ci

al
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

co
ul

d 
of

fe
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

or
 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

P
ro

vi
de

r 
pr

op
er

ty
. 

 
Y

es
. 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

P
ro

vi
de

r 
re

ta
in

s 
va

lu
e 

of
 r

es
t. 

 

 
M

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e.

 
P

ot
en

tia
lly

 
cr

ea
te

 a
 

le
as

eh
ol

d 
in

 
an

ot
he

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

op
er

ty
. 

K
id

br
oo

ke
, 

G
re

en
w

ic
h 

Y
es

. 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
co

ul
d 

of
fe

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nc

y.
 

10
%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
w

ith
 m

in
im

um
 

of
 £

4,
70

0 
an

d 
m

ax
 o

f 
£4

7,
00

0.
 

Y
es

. 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

re
ta

in
 s

ha
re

. 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e.
 

 

W
oo

db
er

ry
 

D
ow

n,
 

H
ac

kn
ey

 

 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
co

ul
d 

of
fe

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

op
er

ty
. 

10
%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
w

ith
 m

in
im

um
 

of
 £

1,
50

0 
an

d 
m

ax
 o

f 
£4

4,
00

0.
 

7.
5%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 

S
ha

re
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
op

tio
ns

 in
 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
 b

ut
 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ay
 r

en
t 

on
 b

al
an

ce
. 

S
ha

re
d 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s.
 

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e.
 

P
ot

en
tia

lly
 

cr
ea

te
 a

 
le

as
eh

ol
d 

in
 

an
ot

he
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

er
ty

. C
ou

nc
il 

op
er

at
es

 a
 

pr
iv

at
e 

H
om

eb
uy

 
sc

he
m

e 
w

he
re

 

Page 194



 
7
 

fo
r 

no
n 

re
si

de
nt

 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
 

w
ith

 a
 

m
ax

im
um

 
pa

ym
en

t o
f 

£1
5,

00
0.

 

eq
ui

ty
 

ap
pl

ie
s 

in
 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 

in
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ith

 
R

eg
is

te
re

d 
P

ro
vi

de
r 

re
ta

in
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 
th

e 
va

lu
e.

 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
ta

in
s 

eq
ui

ty
 v

al
ue

 
in

te
re

st
. 

C
an

ni
ng

 
T

ow
n,

 
N

ew
ha

m
 

 
 

10
%

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
w

ith
 m

in
im

um
 

of
 £

4,
00

0 
an

d 
m

ax
 o

f 
£4

0,
00

0 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
.  

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
of

fe
r 

eq
ui

ty
 

sh
ar

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
st

s 
M

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 

 

 A
yl

es
bu

ry
 T

en
an

ts
 R

eh
ou

si
ng

 T
oo

lk
it 

U
pd

at
e 

W
oo

db
er

ry
 D

ow
n 

S
ec

ur
e 

T
en

an
ts

 O
ffe

r 
D

oc
um

en
t 

C
an

ni
ng

 T
ow

n 
an

d 
C

us
to

m
 H

ou
se

 R
es

id
en

ts
 C

ha
rt

er
 

G
re

en
 M

an
 L

an
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

et
tin

gs
 P

la
n 

G
re

en
 M

an
 L

an
e 

A
 G

ui
de

 fo
r 

R
es

id
en

t L
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
F

re
eh

ol
de

rs
 

H
ey

ga
te

 le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 r
eh

ou
si

ng
 to

ol
ki

t 
N

ew
 H

om
es

 fo
r 

H
ey

ga
te

 R
ef

er
en

ci
ng

 P
ac

k 

Page 195



P
age 196



P
age 197



P
age 198



P
age 199



P
age 200



P
age 201



P
age 202



P
age 203



P
age 204



P
age 205



P
age 206



P
age 207



P
age 208



P
age 209



P
age 210



P
age 211



P
age 212



P
age 213



P
age 214



P
age 215



P
age 216



P
age 217



P
age 218



P
age 219



P
age 220



P
age 221



P
age 222



P
age 223



P
age 224



P
age 225



P
age 226



P
age 227



P
age 228



P
age 229



P
age 230



P
age 231



P
age 232



P
age 233



P
age 234



P
age 235



P
age 236



P
age 237



P
age 238



P
age 239



P
age 240



P
age 241



P
age 242



P
age 243



P
age 244



P
age 245



P
age 246



P
age 247



P
age 248



P
age 249



��������	
���	���������
��
��
����
������	��	������������������������

�
�

�

��
�
�

�
�
�

������������	
�������������
����
���
��

�
�

����������������
��	�������������������
����������������������
����������
�
 �����
�
����!�"��#�$�%&'%��

�

Page 250



��
� � � ��	��	�(�����)��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��
� � � +����
���,
#�
� ���	��#��	-�,.�	���.�����#�
#��/� �
��	
���������	
���
� � �  �����
� � � ����!�"��#�$�%&'%�
�

�
�

�
�
�

������������	
�������������
�������
��
�

������������������	�������������������
��������������������������������
�
 �����
�
���������� �!"#!�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
 ����0���#	��#��������"$-�

�

���	#���1
2-�

�
� �
�#��1
2-� 3�#)#�� �

����
� �
4�"�5���1
2-� +#�	���6���.���
� �
6#�-� ��!�"��#�$�%&'%�
� �

��������	
���	���
�)���#��	��	#����*���������	
���	���������
 ���
������**�.�-��#	��	
��5)��+�#7#��'&&������#������������������������4�
����#	$���-���&�8���
5��-�&'9'�%%��99:��
5)�
���.���	��	.����	��#���	��.�
�.�	#�	
����#��
�
 �*-�;-<���,�5�<4��<,#��
�����<6������#"��
< �
��	
����.����	
<,.�	���.�
����#�
#�� �
��	
���������	
�/�������&�&%'%=��.>�

Page 251



��
� � � ��	��	�(�����)��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��
� � � +����
���,
#�
� ���	��#��	-�,.�	���.�����#�
#��/� �
��	
���������	
���
� � �  �����
� � � ����!�"��#�$�%&'%�
�

�
�

�
��	�	
�

�
#� $����������� %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%% ��

!� ��������������������%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%% ��

%='� �#.?��*���#���#	�������	.� ======================================================================================================��

%=%� ��	��#	.���*�)���
#�
�#	��#
���#��	
��*��..��#	
 =============================================================��

%=�� �#.?��*��#	
�#��	.$ ================================================================================================================��

%=@� ���#��	#��A�
�*�.#��	�*�����������	========================================================================================��

%=9� !#��������#

�

���
���	
B�.����	�$��#	
*�������	 ============================================================��

�� ����������%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%% ��

�
�
�� �
�
�

Page 252



��
� � � ��	��	�(�����)��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��
� � � +����
���,
#�
� ���	��#��	-�,.�	���.�����#�
#��/� �
��	
���������	
���
� � �  �����
� � � ����!�"��#�$�%&'%�
�

'�
�

' �	����.��	�
��������	
���	����	�.�	A�	.��	�0�)�4�	�
��#	���#�#����14��2������#����#	�,.�	���.�����#�
#��
 �������#

�
�)����	��	�(�����)��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#���	�.�	
�����	��)����

�"���
�	.��
��	� �*� )�� C�
� ;�	
�	��	� #	�� 3�""
� 3���	� �
#�
� 0�)�	� #� .�����)�	
���� �)#
���

.)���� �*� ����	��#��	� *��� )�� ,#��B
� ����� #	�� C�
� ;�	
�	��	� ������	�$� ���#=� � 5)��
,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� 0#
� #	� #..���#	$�	�� ��.���	� �� )�� ����
��� ,#��B
� ����� #	�� C�
�
;�	
�	��	�������	�$����#�4��	���������	#�$�+�#		�	��6�.���	�1�����"����%&''2=�

5)�
� ������ 
�
� ��� #� ��
��	
�� �� )�� .����	
� *���� C�
� ;�	
�	��	� D� 3�""
� 3���	�
�����	�$�����
�#	��)��C�
�;�	
�	��	�D�3�""
�3���	�5�	#	
�#	�� �
���	
��

�.�#��	
�
1C;� D� 33� �����	�$� ����
� #	��C;� D� 33� 5 �
2� �	� )�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� �����=� � 5)��
��
��	
�� 0�)�	� )�
� ������ �
� *�.�
��� �	� )�� .�	.����	�� .����	
� *���� )�� C;� D� 33�
�����	�$�����
�#	��C;�D�33�5 �
��0)�.)�
#��)#�)��,.�	���.�����#�
#��
�**��
�*���-�

• E#��#.?��*���#���#	�������	.��*����
�.�	.��
��	
��0)�.)�#���#����"��"#
����	�#����)��#�
�*�
�"A�.�������	��	
��#
F���#��	��#
�G*#.
BH�

• #	��"����
���	��#	.���*�)��.)#�#.����*�)���
#�
�#	��)����"��
)���#
���#��	
��*�)����
�..��#	
H�

• #��#.?��*��#	
�#��	.$�#"���)�0�)��*�����
�#���#�������#�#	��#�*#���������������$���*�	��
#�"�����
����
H�

• #	����#��	#��A�
�*�.#��	�*�����������	�"#
����	�
������
�����	�
H�#	��

• #�*#��������*#���$�#	���������$�#

�

�
�)����
���	
B�.����	�$��#	
*�������	=I�

,#.)��*� )�
�� .����	
� �
���#��0�)� �	� ��	�"���0=� ��� *���� ��
��	
�� ��#��� �*� )�� .����	
�
��.������ *���� )�� C;� D� 33� �����	�$� ����
� #	�� C;� D� 33� 5 �
� )#
� "��	� 
�"�����

��#�#��$=��

�	� .�	
�����	�� )�� .����	
� *���� C;� D� 33� �����	�$� ����
� #	�� C;� D� 33� 5 �
�� )��
�����
��#	��
.�����*�)��,.�	���.�����#�
#��
)�����"��"��	���	���	�=�����
�	���	�	������"��
#	�#

�

��	��*�)�����#.
��*�)�������������	��	�)��0���
#�
�#��	�=�� #)�����
�*�.�
�
�
��	�#

�

�	��)�����������.�

�#	��"�	�*�
���)��"�����)
��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��
#	�� ;�	
�	��	� #	�� �)��
�#� �*� )�� �	.��
��	� ��� 	�� �*� )�� �
#�
� 0�)�	� )�� �����
���
.�����)�	
��������	��#��	�
.)����*���)��������	�$����#=�

%  �
��	
����.����	
�

%=' �#.?��*���#���#	�������	.��
5)��,.�	���.�����#�
#���
�"#
������	�#�)�����)������0�#	��#	#�$
�
=����.�����
�
�#�.��#��#	��
����.#��#

�

��	��*� )�����

�#	��	��#�����	#�����#.
��*�*����#���	#��������	
����#0�	��
�	� #� �#	��� �*� �����	.�� �	.����	�� 
�.��/�.�	���.� �##�� �.�	���.� #	�� *�	#	.�#��������	�� #	��
�#�?�� #

�

��	
=� � 5)�� ������ )#
� "��	������.��� �	� ��	��0�)����5��#
��$B
�3���	�(��?��

Page 253



��
� � � ��	��	�(�����)��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��
� � � +����
���,
#�
� ���	��#��	-�,.�	���.�����#�
#��/� �
��	
���������	
���
� � �  �����
� � � ����!�"��#�$�%&'%�
�

%�
�

0)�.)��	��.#�
�)#�#���
��	��	�������
#�
�
)�����"��#..���#	����"$�#���������	#��#	��0����

��.�����#���#�
#�=�

�	�#

�

��	��*��)#
�	������#	��#	����#"���$��	����#��	����#.)�����	�)#
�"��	�.#���������
#
��#���*�)��,.�	���.�����#�
#�=� � �	�#�����	��#�������#���#	#����	�#	���#�	�	#	.���*�
)��
�.?�*���
��#���*��#.)��*�)������	
�#���#�
��=�5)���#	#����	�#	���#�	�	#	.��.�

�
�*�)������	
�)#���"��	�.�	
�������#	��#����	.������0�)�	�)��#

�

��	��*�)��	�����
�	�
�#���=�

5)�� #

�

��	� �*� )�� 	�� #�����	#�� "�	�*�
� �	.����
� 
��.�*�.� .�	
����#��	� �*� ��#?#����
��
��#.���	������������#	����#�0���)��**�.
�*����#.)��*�)������	
�#	��)#
�"��	��	*������
"$� �#����
� #	#�$
�
�� #
� 0���� #
� ��.��	�
��� �##� 
���.�
� #	�� ����#	.�� 1*��� �>#������ )��
6��#���	�*���(�
�	�

��		��#��	�#	���?���
B�����#	.���	�#

�

�	��#�����	#��$2=���	����	��
���
*����>#������)�����	�#�� *�������#	�	�A�"���

�
��	�����#.)��*�)��#���	#��������	
�)#
�
#�
��"��	�.�	
�������1)����)�)��#

�

��	��*���
��#.���	�#	����#�0���)2=�

%=% ��	��#	.���*�)���
#�
�#	��#
���#��	
��*��..��#	
�
5)�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� 0#
� �	*������ "$� #� 	��"��� �*� 
��� ��
�
� #	�� �#����
� .�	�>�#��
#	#�$
�
���	.����	��
�.��/�.�	���.��##���#�?��#

�

��	
�#	�����������	�#���#�
#�
=��5)��
.�	����	� �*� )�� �
#�
� 0#
� .�	
������� #
� �#�� �*� )�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�=� !��� �>#������ ��
�	*������)��#	#�$
�
��*�*�����.�

=�

5)����
��
��*�)�����	.��B
�.�	
��#��	
�0����#�
�������0���#
��#���*�)��,.�	���.�����#�
#�=��
5)�� ���	.��� )#
� "��	� .�	
���	�� �>�	
����$�0�)� ��
���	
� �*� )�� �
#�
� ����� )�� �#
� 0��
$�#�
��	����������	���
#	��)���

��
�#	��.�	.��	
�)#�)�$��#$�)#��������)���	.��
��	��*�
)���
#�
�#
��#���*�.�����)�	
���������������	��*� )��,#��B
������#	��C�
�;�	
�	��	�
������	�$����#=���

5)�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� )#
� )#�� ���#��� �� )�� �#����
� �����
#�
� 1�	.����	�� )�
�� �*� ��.#��
��
���	
2�*���)��#��#=���

%=� �#.?��*��#	
�#��	.$�
5)�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� ���
�	
� )�� ?�$� #

�����	
� #	�� ��
��
� �*� )�� #	#�$
�
=� 5�.)	�.#��
���
�� 
�.)� #
� )�
�� #

�.�#��� 0�)� #�����	#��$�� #��� ��*�	��� �	� )�� ��.���	=� � 5)��
#�����	#��$�#

�����	
�#����>���.��$����	�*����
��)#�)�����

���	��#�����	#��#�A�
��	�
�
�.��#�=�

5)��  ����� 0#
� �	*������ "$� 
�.��/�.�	���.� #	#�$
�
� 0)�.)� 0#
� "#
��� �	� ��"��
)��� ��0���
�#$��� ������ ����� ���#� �##�� ���)��� 0�)� �	*���#��	� .�	#�	��� �	� #� ���	.��� ��.���	�
1C�
�;�	
�	��	�#	��3�""
�3���	�,
#�
����*���
2=�

%=@ ���#��	#��A�
�*�.#��	�*�����������	�
5)�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� �	��.#�
� )#� )���� �
� #� �#��	#��� *��� G����	��#��	B=� � �#	$�
����	��#��	�
.)���
� �	�����������������	=� �5)���*���� )���
���*� )��0��������	��#��	� �
�

Page 254



��
� � � ��	��	�(�����)��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��
� � � +����
���,
#�
� ���	��#��	-�,.�	���.�����#�
#��/� �
��	
���������	
���
� � �  �����
� � � ����!�"��#�$�%&'%�
�

��
�

.�	
�������#�������#�=�6�������	��*�)���
#�
�0������	�$�"���	���#?�	�#
��#���*�#��)#
���
��/�����
��	��*�)���
�#	��)�	.������	��#��	=�

5)�����	�*�.#��	��*�)��.�����)�	
���������������	�
.)����*���)��������	�$����#�#
�)��
"�
�����	��
�"#
����	�#�.��#��#	#�$
�
��*�)���.�	���.�.#
�=��5)��,.�	���.�����#�
#�����
�	��

��?� �� A�
�*$� )�� ����	��#��	��*� )���
#�
������$��	� )������	�
��*�������)$
�.#��#	�J���

�.�#��.�	����	=� � #)���� )������#�
#��#

�

�
�)������#���	��#�����	#��"�	�*�
� ��)��0��
"�����)
� �*� )�� �	.��
��	� ��� 	�� �*� )�� �
#�
� 0�)�	� )�� �����
��� .�����)�	
����
����	��#��	�
.)����*���)��������	�$����#=�

5)�����	.���#.?	�0�����
�)#�6�.�	�����
�!�	�
�)#���"��	�
��	��	�)���
#�
�#	��)�
��
�
#..��	���*����	��
��#�
��*�*������#�	�	#	.��#	���#	#����	�.�

=��5)�
��
��	���*�#��#	���
�*�.�	
����#��	
��	.������0�)�	�)��,.�	���.�����#�
#�=�

5)�� .�����)�	
���� �����������	� �*� )�� ������	�$� ���#�� 0)�.)�0���� "�� *#.���#��� "$� )��
�	.��
��	��*� )���
#�
��0���� ��	��#�� 
��	�*�.#	�	�� #�����	#�� �.�	���.�"�	�*�
� �� )�� 0��
(�����)
��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��#	��;�	
�	��	�#	���)��
�#�0)�.)� ��.#�� ��
���	
�.#	�
"�	�*��*���=�

%=9 !#��������#

�

���
���	
B�.����	�$��#	
*�������	�
����	
�'�#	��%��	.������)�����	�#��*������������	
�#	���	*�������������	��
�.)�#
�)�
��
�����
����	����)����
���	
B�.����	�$��#	
*��=� � �� �
�#�
���	���
����)#� )�����	.���)#
�
�	��.#��� )#� �� 0����� "�� 0����	�� �� ���
��� ����	
� *��� ��.#�� �0	��
)��� *����0�	��
�����������	=�

5)��,.�	���.�����#�
#��)#
�)#�����#�����)���#����
������
#�
�*���)��#��#���	.����	��)�
���*�
��.#����
���	
=���
�*�.�
�0#
��	�)��	��#�����	#��"�	�*�
���)��0��"�����)
��*�)���	.��
��	�
���	���*�)���
#�
�0�)�	�)�������
���.�����)�	
��������	��#��	�
.)����*���)������#���
,#��B
������#	��C�
�;�	
�	��	�������	�$����#=�

� ��	.��
��	�
5)��,
#�� ���	��#��	�,.�	���.�����#�
#�� 
��$�)#
�"��	�.�������=� � � ��)#
�#

�

��� )��
#�����	#���.�	���.�.�

�#	��"�	�*�
�*���)��0��"�����)
��*��#����
��)�#	��!��)#��#	��
;�	
�	��	�#	���)��
�#��*�*��������	
�1�	.����	��#���*���	.��.#
�2�*���)���
#�
�#	��)��0�����
,#��B
������#	��C�
�;�	
�	��	�������	�$����#=�

5)��,
#�� ���	��#��	�,.�	���.�����#�
#���
�	��.�	
���������"��G*�	�#��	#��$�*�#0��B=���
)#
�#���#�
���#��#���$��*�����	
�*���)���
#�
��#	��	��*������	��#���	����	��	�)����)���
.�����)�	
��������	��#��	�#
��#���*�)��,#��B
������#	��C�
�;�	
�	��	�������	�$����#=�
5)�� ,.�	���.� ����#�
#�� �	.������ #	#�$
�
� �*� )�� ���

� #	�� 	�� #�����	#�� ���#.
� #

�.�#���
0�)��#.)�����	=���)#
��	*������)�����	.��B
���.�
��	�#"���)���	.��
��	��*�)���
#�
�0�)�	�
)�� �����
��� .�����)�	
���� ����	��#��	� 
.)���� *��� )�� ,#��B
� ����� #	��C�
� ;�	
�	��	�
������	�$� ���#=� �� )#
� #�
�� "��	� �
��� �� �	*���� )�� .����	� .�	
��#��	� ��.���	� #"���
0)�)������	�� ���	��� �	��#� �#	��
#��� #������	� �	�����	�� )��C�
�;�	
�	��	�#	��3�""
�
3���	�,
#�
=�

Page 255



�
�

��������	
���������	��������������������
��������������������	�����

��	��������������������������� ���
 ! �"!�#�$ %!�

�
�����&������'�������(���
��	���
�����)
��������
�*�+�
�
�!���������! �!��
�
�
,��������
�
-����������
������&��������������	������������������������������������
�������������
����
��������������������������(�����	���*�����.����
���	�����������/���+��	����! �!0������
����������(����������������&�����������������1&�������������
�(��
�����	����������
�(�����&�����������&��������������������	������2�����&��
������0�-�������������������������
�
�	����������������������������	��������&	����
�����&��&����������	
�����������������������
����	�&����	����������	����.������(����������������0�
�
3����������������������������-���������������������	�������
������������������������������
�(��&���������������������������������������������	����������(�0����2��������������
��������4�������	���5&&���	���������������������������	�������&����������������������6��
����7�����7���4�����������������������������8�����(��&��������������������������
�����������
�����������������2�����������������������
�����������	�����������������&������
�
���������(��	��������������������������
����������������������������������&��0��
�
9(��������-������������������������������������	��������&�������������������������0����
�
����������������������������������������������������������������&������8���������������
&	�����1&���8����������������&��������&�������0�3������������	����&���	������������������
�(��&�.��&��������(���������������&&������������������������	�����
���������
�����
�(��&��������&����
���������������	&�����������������������(���������(�������	����������
���������������(��������(�������&��:����������������
�������
����
������
��	&�������������
������(�1���������&��&����������������������(�1&�����������&&�������0�;����������	����
���&��&����
������

������
����������
������������	�������������&�&�������(��1&�����8�
���	
���(����
�����
�&��:�����������������
����������������������	���������&�&�0����
��&���������	�������	���&����������������������������������&����������	����������0�3�������
��������
�&��������(���������������(��	�����	����������������������������������������������(�
��
�����������(�������(��	������
��	&�0��
�������������������
�����������	�������������
�(��&����&������������&���������(���
����������	�0�5����
���1&������(��&�����
���(�������������������	�����������	������������	�����(���������������������������������������
��������������������������������������	��������1�������&�������������������
0�
�
�������	�����&&����������
��(�)�����&&����������������������������&&�������������<�3��
�����(�&��������	�������������	�����������	������	�������������
���0�3������������
������	����������������������	��������&���������������������������������������������&���0�

Page 256



+	�����&����������	�����	���
�������(�
	��������������
����8��������	���������������
��������&������������������������	����������(��&��8����������
���������������������
������������	����.�����������
�
��	&��(�����������������
�����������
�����	������������2�
	&������&������0�
�
�������������	�����1&������������������������������������������	������&	�����<�3����������
�����1�������	���������������������������������	������2��&�&�������2����=����
��
����������
�����(���	����������������������������������0�3���	������>�����2��������&������������
��	������	���<?�����% ����������
�����������������	��	����������������������������
������2���
���������	����������0�4(�����������������	
������������������&�������������������������
�����������������������
�	�	������(���(����������2�����@�
�
�����������	

�������
�����������
�������������	��������������
�������		�����	
��	����
�
������	

�������
�����������
������������������������������	�������
�����������
��
����������
������������������������	����	��
��
������
	���������������	����	��������
��������	��	� 
		����
������	�����������	�����
��	���
���������!"#$������!"%$&�
�
3������������(���(���������������������	���������	������������������������	������������������
������������������������������������������0��
�
3����	�����2�����(�������������(�����=A	�������������������	���������(���
���	&����
���������������������6����
����7�����7�������	����������7��	&�����������
������������	���
��������/B����������	���
����������2�����������������������������������
���������������������������	����0�3����	�����������������
��������&�������������
����	���������(�����������������6����
����4�����3)������7�����7�������,�&&������3)���
�����������6��CD�7�����7�������	����������
��	&����(�������������������������
����(������������������&&�������&����E�������������������	����.�������
�
��	&����
���
���	���
������	�������������&���������	&��������(����������������&����������(��&�����������
������������
��������0�-��	���������������	�����2�����(����������������(�������
���:���������
����������������������������2��������&����@�����������������(���������������
��(�����������&��(����1�����
��	�����(�������������
���	������������������������0��
�
-���2������	�����������&���������������������������������&��&�������������������������������
�&���������
�	�������
	�����������������	������������	�����������2����������������
��&��(�0�
�
�
;�	������������
�
�
��������	
����

Page 257



P
age 258



P
age 259



P
age 260



P
age 261



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

 
Dear Ms Taylor 

   
Briefing on proposals for Earls Court 
 
The Council is about to consult on whether to enter into a Conditional Land Sale Agreement that 
would have the effect of including the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates in the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme. 
 
We have conducted our own assessment which concludes that including the estates in the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme would be in the interests of local people. However, 
before we make any final decision, we want to hear the views of people living there and in the 
wider area. We are therefore consulting residents. 
 
For secure tenants on the estates, this consultation process will also satisfy the requirements of 
section 105 of the Housing Act 1985. 
 
The consultation will start on 6th January 2012 and conclude on Friday 17th February  2012.  
 
Please could you let us know if you would like to organise a briefing in the new year so that we 
can brief you on the consultation process. If you would like a briefing please call Philip Morris on 
020 8753 3334 and we will do our best to organise a meeting to accommodate you. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 
Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Director of Housing & Regeneration  

3rd Floor, Extension, King Street, London W6 9JU 

Tel:  020 8753 4228 
Email: Melbourne.Barrett@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

22nd December 2011 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

 
Ms Sally Taylor  
Chair of West Kensington Estate TRA 
Flat 7, 231 North End Road 
London W14 9UQ 
 
 

Page 262



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
�
�
�
�
�
�

� 
Dear Ms Belshaw 

   
Briefing on proposals for Earls Court 
 
The Council is about to consult on whether to enter into a Conditional Land Sale Agreement that 
would have the effect of including the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates in the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme. 
 
We have conducted our own assessment which concludes that including the estates in the 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme would be in the interests of local people. However, 
before we make any final decision, we want to hear the views of people living there and in the 
wider area. We are therefore consulting residents. 
 
For secure tenants on the estates, this consultation process will also satisfy the requirements of 
section 105 of the Housing Act 1985. 
 
The consultation will start on 6th January 2012 and conclude on Friday 17th February  2012.  
 
Please could you let us know if you would like to organise a briefing in the new year so that we 
can brief you on the consultation process. If you would like a briefing please call Philip Morris on 
020 8753 3334 and we will do our best to organise a meeting to accommodate you. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 
Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Director of Housing & Regeneration  

3rd Floor, Extension, King Street, London W6 9JU 

Tel:  020 8753 4228 
Email: Melbourne.Barrett@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

22nd December 2011 

 
Ms Diana Belshaw 
Chair of Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close TRA 
105 Gibbs Green 
London W14 9NE 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

Page 263



P
age 264



�����������	�
�������������������
����������������������
���������
����

Send reply to: 
Jonathan Rosenberg, 
Community Orgainser 

Jlnr49@gmail.com 
Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director, Housing and Regeneration  
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
Town Hall 
3rd Floor, Extension,  
King Street,  
London W6 9JU 
 
10 January 2012 
 
Dear Mr Barrett 
 
CONSULTATION ON SALE AND DEMOLITION OF THE ESTATES 
 
The consultation the Council has issued is wrong in many respects. At this stage we 
want to make it plain that, given how much this affects our lives, 6 weeks is not enough 
time for people to respond properly. 
 
London Council’s advice is that local authority consultation should normally comply 
with the criteria set out in the Government’s Code of Practice on Consultation (2008).  
http://www.bis.gov.uk/files/file47158.pdf 
 
Criterion 2 of the Code, ‘Duration of consultation exercises’ states: “Consultations 
should normally last for at least 12 weeks with consideration given to longer timescales 
where feasible and sensible”. 
 
Given the gravity of what is being consulted on, six weeks is plainly an insufficient and 
unreasonable period for people to consider properly and respond. Clearly, it should be 
12 weeks or longer, especially as it is difficult to imagine a more important matter 
affecting people’s lives.  
 
Please will you, at the very least, extend the consultation period to 12 weeks and 
inform residents accordingly. Alternatively, please explain the Council’s reasons for 
providing half of the recommended period. Is this in fact being driven by commercial 
considerations and timetable rather than the need to consult people properly? 
 
Many people, especially those who are disadvantaged, do not have access to the 
internet and so will not be able to read copies of important documents referred to in the 
Information Pack. Therefore, we request you send printed copies of the Equalities 
Impact Analysis, Economic Appraisal and Conditional Land Sale Agreement to all 
residents as soon as possible. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Sally Taylor, Chair West Kensington Estate TRA 
 
 
Diana Belshaw, Chair Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close TRA 
 
 
Shirley Wiggins, Chair West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes 

Page 265



P
age 266



P
age 267



P
age 268



P
age 269



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mrs Belshaw and Ms Taylor    
 
 
West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates Update 
  
I am writing to thank those of you who sent us your views during the recent consultation 
on the proposal to enter into a so-called “Conditional Land Sale Agreement”, and to 
update you on recent developments.  
 
As you may be aware, on 23rd April 2012 a report outlining the initial findings of the 
consultation was presented to a meeting of the Council’s Cabinet. The report also set 
out information on the likely terms of the Conditional Land Sale Agreement, and gave 
detailed financial information. 
 
At the Cabinet meeting councillors noted that the Conditional Land Sale Agreement was 
‘suitable for recommendation’ to the Council, subject to certain points of detail. 
 
This does not mean that everything has been finalised, or that a final decision has been 
taken about whether or not to enter into the Conditional Land Sale Agreement, but it 
does mean that good progress is being made towards taking that final decision.  
 
Officers are now finalising negotiations on the Conditional Land Sale Agreement so that 
a final report, including a full analysis of the consultation responses, can go to a Cabinet 
meeting later this year. 
 
If you would like to read the 23rd April Cabinet report you can do so by logging on to 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/westken, or you can request a hard copy of the report by calling Sarah 
Lovell on 020 8753 5571. 
 
If you would like to make any comments on the information contained within the Cabinet 
report you can do so by emailing sarah.lovell@lbhf.gov.uk or by writing to Sarah Lovell 
at 3rd Floor, Hammersmith Town Hall Extension, King Street, W6 9JU. The Council 
would welcome any comments by 30th May 2012. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Executive Director of Housing & Regeneration  

3rd Floor, Extension, King Street, London W6 9JU 

Tel:  020 8753 5571 
Email: sarah.lovell@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

14th  May 2012 

Ms Belshaw, Chair of Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close TRA 
Ms Taylor, Chair of West Kensington Estate TRA 
c/o Dianne Belshaw 
105 Gibbs Green, London  
W14 9NE 
 

Page 270



 
 

 
We will keep you updated with future developments regarding the West Kensington and 
Gibbs Green Estates If you have any questions please contact Sarah Lovell on 020 
8753 5571 or email her on sarah.lovell@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration  
 
 
 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

Page 271



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration� 
LB Hammersmith & Fulham Council � 
3rd Floor 
Hammersmith Town Hall Extension 
King Street, Hammersmith  
London W6 9JU 
 
29 May 2012: URGENT 
 
Dear Mr Barrett 
 
Proposed disposal of West Kensington & Gibbs Green estates: Consultation 
analysis and inspection arrangements – serious concerns 
 
I am writing further to your letter dated 14 May 2012, in which you invited West 
Kensington & Gibbs Green residents to make comments by 30 May on the information 
contained in the 23 April Cabinet report, which outlined the initial findings of the 
consultation on the Council’s proposal to enter a Conditional Land Sale Agreement 
(CLSA) for the disposal of residents’ homes to a developer, albeit you concealed this 
proposed agreement from residents and the public. 
 
You have previously received (though not responded to) our 60-page critique of the 
Council’s consultation process. Unfortunately, we are bound to report now that we shall 
not be able complete our comments on the Council’s analysis of the consultation by 30 
May because the Council has obstructed us from inspecting the consultation feedback 
forms. 
 
In any event, the two-week deadline you have set for comments is unreasonable, given 
the complexity of the information contained in the Cabinet report and the scale of its 
impact on residents. Government and London Councils policy is that consultation 
periods should last a minimum of 12 weeks. 
 
On 18 April, the Chair of West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes (WKGGCH) 
wrote to the H&F Council’s Head of Governance and Scrutiny, (copied to two other 
Council Officers and to the Chairs of West Kensington & Gibbs Green TRAs): 
 

We would like to formally request to inspect the consultation responses before the 
Cabinet meeting on Monday April 23. According to the Council's press release "Earl's 
Court progress report to go before Cabinet" published April 16 2012, "By the time 
Cabinet meets all the responses will be available for inspection upon request, including 
the responses that were not considered." 
 
There is, however, no specification regarding who to contact or how to get in touch. 
Could you please forward this email to the relevant parties and let us know as soon as 
possible when we could view the responses for inspection? 
Please acknowledge the receipt of this email. 

 
Around 20 April the Council distributed a newsletter to residents promising:  
 

From Monday 23 April, H&F Council will be making all consultation responses available 
for inspection by appointment. You will be able to see all the responses that were 
considered as well as the responses we were unable to consider. 

 
The WKGGCH Chair received no response to her letter to LBHF’s Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny. Following your presentation to Cabinet on 23 April, she 
wrote to you on 24 April: 

Page 272



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

 
We were told at the Cabinet meeting last night that residents' responses to the Earl's 
Court consultation would be available for inspection as early as today. I emailed Mr 
Adewumi about this on 18th April last week. (see email) 
 
Please let me know when and how we can make arrangements to view these. 

 
Again, receiving no reply, the WKGGCH Chair wrote to you and the Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny on 2 May, copied to the two TRA Chairs: 
 

I am still waiting for a response to my emails of 18th and 24th April. 
 
It was not until 8 May, almost three weeks after our original request, when the Council 
finally responded to make arrangements for inspection. 
 
On top of the unexplained delay, the Council then imposed unwarranted and 
unreasonable restrictions on inspection that plainly made it impossible for us “to see all 
the responses” as the Council had promised. On 8 May, Mr Patterson, from the 
Council’s Housing Services department emailed the WKGGCH Chair: 
 

I can arrange an appointment for you to inspect the feedback forms from the recent 
consultation. 
  
Appointments are for one person at a time. Inspections are for up to 45 mins and there 
can be no photography or copying of the forms. 
  
Please contact me to arrange your appointment. 
 

On 10 May, Celine Kuklowsky, Community Organiser for the West Kensington & Gibbs 
Green estates, attended the Council offices to begin our formal inspection. After 45 
minutes, she was stopped, even though she had made only partial progress through 
more than 800 forms residents of the estates (we have not even begun our inspection 
of the 600 responses from the so-called ‘wider area’). 
 
On 21 May, she requested another visit to continue our formal inspection, which was 
agreed and took place on 24 May. Since our work was far from complete, and we had 
found many discrepancies that suggested a pattern of distortion biased towards the 
Council’s demolition stance, the Community Organiser immediately requested a third 
visit. Mr Patterson responded on 25 May: 
 

The 45 minute inpection [sic] was specified to protect the privacy of respondents. You 
have already exceeded the allotted inspection time of 45 minutes with the second 
inspection. I am therefore not going to arrange another appointment for you to inspect 
the forms. 

 
When the Community Organiser asked Mr Patterson on 10 May to explain the purpose 
behind the Council’s inspection restrictions, he replied these were “for data protection 
reasons”. This is insupportable. Either the data can be viewed or it cannot. There is no 
in-between position.  
 
The subsequent version of the argument, that the restrictions were “specified to protect 
the privacy of respondents”, is equally spurious, since the Council blacked out all 
names and addresses and heavily redacted many forms (including entire paragraphs) 
to remove all personal references. Clearly, the Council obscured this personal data to 
ensure it did not breach the Data Protection Act when it made the response forms 
available for inspection by the public. Therefore, neither “data protection” nor “privacy” 
can possibly be used to justify the restrictions and blockage placed by the Council on 
our formal inspection. 

Page 273



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

 
We understand that the Council intends to rely on its analysis of the consultation 
feedback forms when it makes its next decision on whether to sign the CLSA. 
Inevitably, also, it will have to report this information to the Government.  
 
We have very serious concerns about the rectitude of the Council’s analysis, which, far 
from being allayed by our inspection that you unreasonably curtailed, have only 
deepened. Inter alia, we have identified: 
 

• Difficulties reconciling the numbers in the Council’s analysis with the numbers 
of forms it has placed in each category; 

• Miscategorisation of residents ‘against’ and residents ‘concerned’ into ‘no 
opinion’, leading to miscounting; 

• Absence of any procedure for dealing with ‘duplicates’, leading to miscounting, 
erroneous exclusion and miscategorisation; 

• Failure to date and have any procedure for dealing with forms from residents 
changing their minds, leading to miscategorisation and miscounting; 

• Forms discounted for no apparent reason, leading to miscounting; 
• Forms counted as ‘in favour’ that were so heavily qualified they should have 

been categorized as ‘concerned’ or even ‘against’, leading to miscounting; 
• 18 ‘in favour’ forms, which contained the same brief or similar content, which 

appeared to be written by a single hand, and which contained no signature or 
mark attesting authenticity. 

 
We discovered well over a hundred miscategorised or suspect responses. Nearly all of 
these biased the results in one direction, and not only resulted in a systematic 
distortion of the analysis in favour of the Council’s position for demolition, but also hid 
the true scale of residents’ opposition to redevelopment and denied residents’ fixed 
determination to transfer the estates into community ownership.  
 
From our inspection, which you arbitrarily limited to one and a half hours, it appears 
that the three and a half to one majority of residents against demolition is a significant 
undercount, amounting to gross misreporting. 
 
Outwith any further investigation, which you blatantly obstruct now, we conclude that 
the Council has not only misrepresented its own analysis of the results but has also 
miscategorised the consultation response forms to such a extent as to render its 
analysis worthless for Cabinet Members to rely upon when making any decision about 
whether to sign the CLSA. Worse, the Council is in danger of staging a lie, presenting a 
poisoned chalice for the Government to sup when it forces it to consider whether to 
grant consent for disposal of the estates to the developer for demolition. 
 
The evidence we have gathered does more than lend credence to the charge that the 
Council has perverted the results of its informal and statutory consultation by 
systematically distorting and misrepresenting its analysis; it explains why the Council 
has made up the rules as it went along for limiting and disallowing our formal 
inspection.  
 
The grounds we have itemized are sufficient for us, and for any sensible member of the 
public to fear that Council officers may be colluding to falsify the overall consultation 
results and to suspect that they may be conspiring to stop residents’ elected 
organisations from discovering the truth, thereby misleading also the Council’s Cabinet, 
the public and the Government. 
 

Page 274



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

The Council has broken its “you will be able to see all the responses” promise by 
delaying, restricting and finally blocking our formal inspection. The Council has no data 
protection or privacy defence against us continuing with our formal inspection.  We 
have detected evidence of systematic bias: it is our duty to resume our formal 
inspection in the public interest, in the defence of our homes and community, and in 
the cause of national policy, which is Localism and the Big Society.  
 
The Council will make itself incapable of sustaining any case that it has validated its 
analysis through independent inspection, unless, and immediately, it:  
 

• Restores and maintains continued access for us to scrutinize the categorization 
and genuineness of response forms, without time limit, so we may complete our 
formal inspection absent unreasonable restrictions;  

• Commissions an independent analysis of the response forms to be undertaken 
by a neutral assessor appointed with our agreement; and 

• Institutes a formal Review under the Freedom of Information Act of the 
Council’s handling of the request we made on 18 April to take up its invitation 
for residents to see all the responses, since more than 20 working days have 
elapsed within the time it is statutory for you to provide a satisfactory response. 

 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Jonathan Rosenberg 
Community Organiser 
 
West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes Ltd 
West Kensington Estate Tenants & Residents Association 
Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close Tenants & Residents Association 
 
Cc: Derek Myers, Chief Executive LBHF; Greg Clark, Minister for 
Decentralisation and Planning; Andy Slaughter MP; The Information 
Commissioner; WKGGCH Board Members. 

Page 275



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Dear Mr Rosenberg,  
 
Earls Court Regeneration Project  
 
Thank you for your letter of 29 May.  I am considering the points you have raised and will write 
to your with my substantive response next week. 
 
In the meantime I am prepared to extend the time for you to respond to my letter of 14 May to 
Friday 8 June at 4pm.  I can not give you more time as Cabinet are due to make a decision 
about entering into the CLSA on 23 July and I will need to consider your response and include it 
in my report to members. 
 
If you would like to make another appointment to view the consultation responses please 
contact Shaun Dunleavy on 020 8753 4244.        
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Executive Director of Housing & Regeneration  

3rd Floor, Extension, King Street, London W6 9JU 

Tel:  020 8753 5571 
Email: sarah.lovell@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

1st June 2012 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

Mr Jonathan Rosenberg 
West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes Ltd 
 

Page 276



� �����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration� 
LB Hammersmith & Fulham Council � 
Hammersmith Town Hall Extension 
King Street  
London W6 9JU 
 
7 June 2012 
 
Dear Mr Barrett 
 
Proposed disposal of West Kensington & Gibbs Green estates: Consultation 
analysis and inspection arrangements – serious concerns 
 
Further to my letter to you, dated 29 May 2012, I received at 10.04 am on 6 June an 
email from a Council Officer, Jennifer Liang. This email purported to send on to me an 
email, which, it seemed, was sent to me at 10.50 am on 2 June by the Council’s Head of 
Litigation, Janette Mullins, who stated: “I have been asked to forward this letter to you.” 
 
Not recalling the receipt of an email from the Council’s Head of Litigation on 2 June 
2012, I checked my inbox, and I searched through my ‘trash’ and ‘junk’ boxes, neither of 
which I have emptied since well before 2 June. However, I could not find any email from 
a Janette Mullins, Head of Litigation at LB Hammersmith & Fulham.  
 

The email to me from Jennifer Liang, dated 6 June, which purported to send on the 
email from the Council’s Head of Litigation, attached a letter signed by you to me, dated 
1 June 2012, whose file name is ‘Final Letter to the TRA, and the Word ‘document 
properties’ of which I have attached at Annex A. This letter stated: 
 

Earls Court Regeneration Project  
 
Thank you for your letter of 29 May.  I am considering the points you have raised and will 
write to your with my substantive response next week. 
 
In the meantime I am prepared to extend the time for you to respond to my letter of 14 
May to Friday 8 June at 4pm.  I can not give you more time as Cabinet are due to make 
a decision about entering into the CLSA on 23 July and I will need to consider your 
response and include it in my report to members. 
 
If you would like to make another appointment to view the consultation responses please 
contact Shaun Dunleavy on 020 8753 4244.        

 

Notwithstanding the inexplicable circumstances surrounding my receipt of this 
communication, 33 minutes later I instructed Celine Kuklowsky, the West Kensington & 
Gibbs Green Community Organiser who conducted the previous two 45-minute 
inspections, to contact the Officer you nominated, Shaun Dunleavy, on the phone 
number you provided, so that she could make arrangements for our next inspection, 
which, as you know, is in furtherance of our investigation into how the Council has 
categorised responses to its consultation on the proposed Earl’s Court redevelopment, 
and about which, in our letter to you dated 29 May, we raised serious concerns. 
Therefollowing she: 
 

1. Rang Mr Dunleavy on the phone number you provided at around 10.45 am on 6 
June; Mr Dunleavy did not answer, so she left a voicemail message asking him 
to contact her to agree the next time she could attend the Council’s offices to 
continue our inspection of the consultation response forms; 

 

2. Sent an email to Mr Dunleavy at his Council email address at 12.56 pm on 6 
June to the same effect, but received no reply; 

Page 277



� �����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

 
3. Rang the phone number you provided at around 2 pm on 6 June; Mr Dunleavy 

did not answer, and she was unable to leave a further message because the 
Council’s phone system did not put her through to his voicemail; 

 
4. Rang the phone number you provided at around 3 pm on 6 June; Mr Dunleavy 

did not answer, and she was unable to leave a message because the Council’s 
phone system put her through to an automated message that advised the caller 
to contact the switchboard, or to dial the person’s extension, which was the 
number she had rung in the first place; 

 

5. Sent a further email to Mr Dunleavy at his Council email address at 4:29 pm on 6 
June, but received no reply; 

 

6. Rang the phone number you provided at 9.58 am on 7 June, with the same 
result as at 4. above;  
 

7. Rang the phone number you provided at 10.33 am on 7 June, with the same 
result as at 4. above; and 

 

8. Rang the Council’s switchboard at 10.36 am on 7 June to request that the 
operator put her through to Mr Dunleavy’s extension. The operator transferred 
her to his extension, but Mr Dunleavy did not answer, and she was unable to 
leave a message because the Council’s phone system put her through, yet 
again, to an automated message that advised her to contact the switchboard, or 
to dial the person’s extension, the former which was the number she had rung in 
the first place, and the latter which was the number to which the operator had 
transferred her. 
 

I do not understand how it can be that the Council’s Head of Litigation appears to have 
sent me an email, which I do not recall, and have no evidence of, receiving. Under the 
Freedom of Information Act, please send me any relevant correspondence or 
documentation involving Council Officers and Members. 
 

At no stage did we manage to speak with your nominated Officer, Mr Dunleavy; he did 
not answer our phone calls; we received no phone calls or voicemail messages from 
him; and he did not reply to our emails, to which, we confirm also, we received no 
bounce-backs. Under the Freedom of Information Act, please send me any relevant 
correspondence or documentation involving Council Officers and Members. 
 
In the circumstances I have detailed in this letter, which you may admit are curious, if 
not Kafkaesque, please understand why it is impossible for us to comply with the 
deadline-extension you set, of 4 pm tomorrow 8 June, for us to respond to your letter of 
14 May 2012. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Jonathan Rosenberg 
Community Organiser 
 
West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes Ltd 
West Kensington Estate Tenants & Residents Association 
Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close Tenants & Residents Association 
 
 

Cc: Derek Myers, Chief Executive LBHF; Andy Slaughter MP; The Information 
Commissioner. 

Page 278



� �����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

Annex A 
 
The ‘Document properties’ we ‘grabbed’ at 10.31 pm on 7 June 2012 from Word 
document, file name: ‘Final Letter to the TRA’ 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Title: Date – month – year 
Subject: 
Author: ADM 
Manager 
Company: London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Category: 
Keywords: 
Comments: 
Hyperlink base: 
 
 
STATISTICS 
Created: Friday, June 1, 2012 16:19 
Modified: Thursday, June 7, 2012 22:21 
Printed: Tuesday, May 15 2012 
Last saved by: jm30 
Revision number: 4 
Total editing time: 2 Minutes 
 
Statistics:  
Characters (with spaces): 717 
Characters: 582 
Words: 130 
Lines: 43 
Paragraphs: 8 
Pages: 1 
 

Page 279



P
age 280



P
age 281



P
age 282



P
age 283



P
age 284



P
age 285



P
age 286



P
age 287



P
age 288



P
age 289



P
age 290



P
age 291



P
age 292



P
age 293



P
age 294



P
age 295



P
age 296



P
age 297



P
age 298



P
age 299



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration� 
LB Hammersmith & Fulham Council � 
Hammersmith Town Hall Extension 
King Street, Hammersmith  
London W6 9JU 
 
26 June 2012 
 
Dear Mr Barrett 
 
Proposed disposal of West Kensington & Gibbs Green estates: Consultation 
analysis and inspection arrangements – serious concerns 
 
1. Thank you for your letter, dated 21 June, which I received on 22 June, in 
response to the letters I wrote to you and to Mr Myers, dated 7 and 10 June 2012. 
 
2. You say you address “certain of the issues that are raised in those two letters”. 
This implies, and the content of your letter confirms, that you do not address all of the 
issues I raised. Why is that? 
 
3. You say that the Council delayed the Cabinet decision on whether or not to 
enter the CLSA from 23 July to 3 September 2012 because “negotiations … have yet 
to be concluded”. Under the Freedom of Information Act, please provide me with the 
record of the decision to delay Cabinet’s next consideration of the CLSA. Please 
provide also the emails, correspondence, notes of meetings and other documents 
relevant to the CLSA negotiations, and which made it “clear that it will not now be 
possible to reach a decision on” 23 July. 
 
4. Thank you for extending the deadline to 16 July 2012 for us to make 
representations on the 23 April Cabinet report; for offering further time to inspect the 
(redacted) consultation responses; and for lifting the 45-minute restriction on 
individuals to undertake inspections.  
 
5. Thank you for attaching the “undeliverable” email receipt. I, too, cannot account 
for why this email was not delivered, as I am not aware of anyone else having had 
problems emailing this address at that time. Did the Head of Litigation take any steps 
to find my alternative email address, which is provided under ‘Contact’ on the ‘About’ 
page of the People’s Estates’ website 
http://westkengibbsgreen.wordpress.com/about/? If you have any difficulties in future, 
please send emails to jlnr49@gmail.com. 
 
6. On Friday 22 June at 5.02 pm, Celine Kuklowsky, our deputy Community 
Organiser, sent an email to Mr Dunleavy, and to the new email address you provided. 
She has received no response, and nor have I heard from Mr Dunleavy, or from any 
other Council officers pursuant to the Council’s commitments to provide us with 
unlimited access to carry on our inspection. 
 
As we advised in our email, Celine Kuklowksy shall attend Hammersmith Town Hall 
tomorrow, 27 June. Please arrange for an officer to meet her at 2 pm. 
 
7. It is curious that the Head of Litigation received an ‘out of office’ reply in 
response to an email she sent to Mr Dunleavy, whereas we received no such reply in 
response to our emails. Under the Freedom of Information Act, please provide me with 
the email Ms Mullins sent to Mr Dunleavy, which provoked the ‘out of office’ reply. 
 

Page 300



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

You were on leave, Mr Dunleavy was on leave, and you say that when Ms Mullins 
contacted officers in your department “to alert them to the potential difficulties that this 
might cause” for our inspection she discovered that “a number of officers involved in 
the Earl’s Court project were on leave”. Under the Freedom of Information Act, please 
provide me with the annual leave schedule for the Council Officers involved with the 
Earl’s Court project from Easter 2012 to date. 
 
You say that you are “not able to explain why the voicemail message left by” us could 
not be retrieved, and you conclude: “I can only apologise for the inconvenience that 
you have been caused”.  
 
I think you can do more than that. Do you think it is satisfactory for a caller engaged in 
important business with the Council to be given the run-around by automated 
messages; that everyone is on leave at the same time and does not know it; that 
emails don’t get delivered or don’t get resent promptly; that voicemail messages cannot 
be retrieved; and that out of office replies are inconsistent in content and transmission?  
 
Will you undertake to use your influence with the administrative part of the Council to 
investigate how these errors occurred so that the Council can avoid any recurrence? 
 
8. As I have reported in 6 above, immediately following receipt of your latest letter, 
our deputy Community Organiser emailed Mr Dunleavy at 5.02 pm on 22 June to 
arrange an appointment for Wednesday 27 June to continue with our inspection. She 
copied this email to the new email address you have provided. Still, we’ve heard 
nothing from Mr Dunleavy, or from anyone else. 
 
9. I do not understand why you “do not propose to respond to each and every 
point made” in my letter to Mr Myers of 10 June 2012. As you say, Mr Myers: “makes 
the Council’s position plain on a number of the issues”. However, it does not address 
all the points I raised, and the evidence I supplied, in my response to his letter. 
 
Given your role, I would have expected it to be your responsibility to respond to all of 
my points, rather than just to respond to “the points which [you] think [you] can usefully 
address”. If you cannot address all the points, then please let me know who will and 
when. 
 
10. I accept your apology for Mr Myers’ erroneous claim that “in fact” your letter of 
14 May 2012 stated the deadline was 28 May 2012. You accept that in fact your letter 
specified the deadline was 30 May 2012. Inexplicably, Mr Myers placed some weight 
on this, his opening point, in his letter to me. Under the Freedom of Information Act, 
please provide me with the relevant documents to account for how Mr Myers came to 
make this mistake. Who drafted his letter to me, who checked it, and what inquiries did 
Mr Myers make to ensure it was accurate?  
 
11. Regarding the information I supplied to evidence our charge that the Council 
“concealed” the CLSA, you say: “Thank you for that clarification”.  This was not a 
clarification: I merely quoted from what we had sent you on this matter three months 
previously.  
 
It was obviously irrational for the Council to consult with residents (between January 
and March 2012) about whether it should sign a document that it did not allow them to 
see. I don't understand how Mr Myers’ explanation that “the CLSA was not published at 
the time of the 23 April 2012 Cabinet meeting because it remained the subject of 
commercial negotiations yet to be concluded” has any bearing on the matter. Indeed, it 
suggests that even the Council itself did not know what it was consulting about at that 
time. 

Page 301



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

 
Under the Freedom of Information Act, please tell me which Officers, Members, 
consultants, partners, legal advisors and others are involved in negotiating the CLSA, 
and inform me of the costs the Council has incurred to date. Please also provide a 
chronology showing how the negotiations have progressed.  
 
12. You have not responded adequately to my letter of 7 of June, as paragraph 7 
above refers. 
 
13. With regard to our concerns about the Council’s analysis of the consultation 
responses, you say: “that in fact the Information Commissioner has no jurisdiction over 
these matters”. I would have thought the Council might have been more cautious about 
making claims of “fact”, given your earlier apology for Mr Myers’ strenuous, yet 
erroneous, claim of “fact”. I shall continue to copy this correspondence to the 
Information Commissioner. 
 
14. You say: “Paragraphs 7-12 of your letter complain of bias and error in the 
Council’s analysis of the consultation responses”. Paragraph 6 of my letter to Mr Myers 
states: 
 

These are not complaints to the Council: rather, they are grounds for us to challenge in 
the Courts any decision that the Council may make on whether to enter into the CLSA 
with the developer, Capital and Counties PLC, or with one of its subsidiaries, which 
relies on a faulty or false analysis of the consultation responses; they are grounds, 
furthermore, for making a serious complaint to the Information Commissioner; and, we 
think, they are evidence of public scandal. 

 
Your first bullet point does not address paragraph 11 of my letter to Mr Myers, which 
explained:  
 

The point we made about the 18 ‘in favour’ forms, which contained the same brief or 
similar content, and which appeared to be written by a single hand, was that none of 
them contained any signature or mark attesting authenticity. There is no parallel with 
forms in the ‘against’ file, because in the vast majority of these cases, forms not in the 
respondent’s handwriting bear verifying statements and signatures, and are markedly 
different from each other in content. 

 
In your second bullet point you say: “it is unfortunately the case that not all responses 
were date-stamped on receipt by the Council”. If, as you claim in these cases, Officers’ 
judgment has “not been biased in favour of a particular viewpoint”, how do you account 
for our observation that these responses were categorized in favour of demolition? 
 
In your third bullet point you say that because the forms were not recounted after they 
had been processed and made available for inspection: “it is therefore possible that 
there are minor discrepancies between the original responses that the Council has 
been using for its analysis and the redacted versions that have been made available 
for inspection”. You seem to be suggesting there are two sets of files and that the 
discrepancies are between these two sets.  
 
I hope that through our further inspection, and through your Officers checking what you 
call “minor discrepancies”, we can determine whether the systematic bias we have 
described was resultant from miscategorisation of the responses, or from 
discrepancies that arose between the sets of responses. 
 
15. We look forward to hearing back from Mr Dunleavy or another Officer as soon 
as possible so we can confirm the continuation of our inspection for this Wednesday, 
27 June. 

Page 302



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

 
16. I take it from what you say that you confirm the form we quoted from is indeed 
the one you discounted for being “potentially violent”. We found it in the ‘Not-counted’ 
file alongside the responses from the 40 or so children whose forms you discounted on 
the ground that they were less than 12 years of age. 
 
You say: “the form in question contained foul language and a threat of violence”. That 
is your opinion. Equally, it could be suggested that the respondent was communicating 
in plain old Anglo Saxon, and deploying Cockney rhetoric to emphasise, as it turned 
out, his forlorn hope that you would take good note of his opposition to demolition. 
 
You may think that the form: “is for that reason not helpful or constructive”. But this is 
not a rational ground for discounting it. In any event, if this is your ‘rule’, then the 
Council has applied it inconsistently. Other forms contain the same swearword, 
variations of it, and other swearwords. Many forms also contained a “threat”, if not of 
“violence”, most certainly of physical defiance. 
 
Undoubtedly, this language is direct; and there is no question that it is involves 
swearing. However, not all swearing is “foul”; and threats, however unwelcome, are 
subject to interpretation, are a question of degree, and, naturally, should be kept in 
context. 
 
I look forward to receiving the answer to my Freedom of Information request for the 
Council’s policy for dealing with “potentially violent” responses. In the meantime, 
please confirm that the Council did not discount any other forms for this reason. 
 
You say that my: “letter of 10 June 2012 will be put before Cabinet Members, so the 
quoted content from that form will, for what it is worth, be before Cabinet Members who 
are in any case already well aware of the strength of feeling of some objectors”.  
 
The import of that form was that the respondent, very strongly, wanted you to read it. 
Instead, the Council discounted it; and now, you’ve belittled its worth. 
 
Unlike any other consultation or vote, the Council failed to provide the totals or 
percentages for residents and households for and against. Now, you describe the 
many hundreds of residents who expressed strong feelings in their responses as 
“some objectors”, even though these formed the overwhelming majority of 
respondents, indeed, an absolute majority of households living on the estates. 
 
17. To my mind, Mr Myers provided opinions and bureaucratic defences rather than 
any rational or legal grounds for not taking up my request for him to institute a formal 
Review under FoI. We shall continue to treat our inspection requests as Freedom of 
Information requests.  
 
You say that you do not propose to revisit this issue, (a formal Review under FoI), 
albeit this was a decision taken by Mr Myers. Under the Freedom of Information Act, 
please provide me with any documentation relating to the decision not to institute a 
formal Review under FoI. 
 
18. Thank you for your confirmation that my letter of 10 June 2012 will be put 
before Cabinet Members when they make their final decision on the CLSA. Please 
confirm that you will put all of my letters (with the same subject heading as above), 
along with the replies from you and Mr Myers, before Cabinet. 
 
19. You say: “Contrary to the tenor of some colourful phrases used in your letters 
(e.g. “Kafkaesque”, “labyrinthine plot”) there is no sinister hidden agenda in this 

Page 303



�����������	
����	����������
����������
�
����
�

WKGGCH Limited. Company No: 07556140. Registered Office: 105 Gibbs Green, London W14 9NE 
�

��

exercise”. I agree that the agenda is not hidden. The Council has been open about its 
agenda, and has publicly promoted and supported demolition; and, we have exposed 
how this appears to have influenced its analysis of the consultation responses.  
 
You say: “The Council is merely doing everything it can to ensure that the decision-
making process is fair and lawful”. There is a great deal of evidence, much of it now the 
subject of fresh Judicial Review proceedings, to suggest that this is not true. 
 
You say: “We acknowledge that some communication difficulties and administrative 
errors in correspondence have occurred. This is regrettable and we have apologised 
where it has occurred”. I have previously thanked you for this apology. However, since 
you do not seem to have investigated these difficulties and errors, you have little 
evidence to support your claim that your agenda is not, as you call it, “sinister”. 
 
20.  You say: “The Council respects [our] democratic right to campaign in this way 
but does not accept that [our] detailed points add up to a case that the Council is 
behaving unreasonably or unlawfully”. 
 
We questioned every claim where we had evidence to support an opposite contention 
and where we doubted its veracity. We provided material evidence to support the 
detailed allegations we made about miscategorisation, yet Mr Myers provided nothing 
of any substance to support his claim that our allegations were “entirely baseless”. 
 
Nor have you. You declined to respond to all of my points; you devoted most of your 
letter to explaining and apologizing for administrative errors, albeit, aside from 
providing us with an alternative email address, you made no proposals for ensuring 
these errors do not recur; you side-stepped the point Mr Myers failed to address about 
the 18 forms with the same handwriting; and you claimed the discrepancies were 
between rather than within the sets of forms. 
 
Neither you nor Mr Myers have addressed my detailed points on the substantive matter 
of systematic miscategorisation. So, how can the Council decide it “does not accept 
that [our] detailed points add up to a case that the Council is behaving unreasonably or 
unlawfully”? 
 
21. I look forward to receiving the Council’s responses to the FoI requests I have 
made in this letters, and in my previous letters of 7 and 10 June. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Jonathan Rosenberg 
Community Organiser 
 
West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes Ltd 
West Kensington Estate Tenants & Residents Association 
Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close Tenants & Residents Association 
 
Cc: Derek Myers, Chief Executive LBHF; Andy Slaughter MP; The Information 
Commissioner; WKGGCH Board Members. 

Page 304



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Rosenberg, 
 
West Kensington & Gibbs Green Estates 
 
Thank you for your letter of 26 June 2012. I respond below. 
 
As to paragraph 2 of your letter, you are right that I did not address all of the points 
raised in your letters of 7 and 10 June 2012 in my letter of 21 June 2012. As explained 
later in my letter of 21 June 2012, Mr Myers’ letter 8 June 2012 had already made the 
Council’s position plain on a number of issues. As regards your paragraph 9, neither I 
nor anyone else at the Council will be responding to the issues that I considered could 
not usefully be addressed by the Council. 
 
As to your paragraph 5, Janette Mullins did not attempt to identify an alternative email 
address for you. Thank you for identifying an alternative address. 
 
As to your paragraphs 6, 8 and 15, I understand that Sarah Lovell replied to Celine 
Kuklowsky’s email of Friday 22 June on Tuesday 26 June 2012, and that Ms Kuklowsky 
attended to inspect the consultation responses on 27 June 2012, and 5 and 16 July 
2012.  Ms Kuklowsky’s email was addressed to Shaun Dunleavy and 
“westken@lbhf.gov.uk”.  
 
As to your paragraphs 7 and 12, I note your comments regarding the automated 
message system but I do not consider an investigation to be necessary.   
 
I note paragraph 13 of your letter. As a matter of law, the Information Commissioner has 
no jurisdiction over the Council’s analysis of the consultation responses. You have not 
identified any argument to the contrary. That said, you are of course free to send 
correspondence to the Information Commissioner as you see fit. 
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Housing and Regeneration   

3rd Floor, Extension, King Street, London W6 9JU 

Tel:  020 8753 4228 

Email: melbourne.barrett@lbhf.gov.uk 

Web:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 

  
Date: 24 July 2012 

Jonathan Rosenberg, Community Organiser 
West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes Ltd 
West Kensington Estate TRA 
Gibbs Green & Dieppe Close TRA 
 
105 Gibbs Green, 
London W14 9NE 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 Page 305



I also note your comments in paragraph 14 .  I do not accept your claim of systematic 
bias but in, so far as is possible, the Council will consider any further representations 
that you wish to make. 
 
As to your paragraph 16, you are incorrect in your assumption that the form you quoted 
from was discounted for being “potentially violent”.  The form in question was included 
in the “not-counted” file because the resident in question submitted duplicate forms.  No 
forms were discounted because residents used bad language or threatened violence.   
 
Paragraph 17 of your letter is noted. The Council’s position remains as set out in my 
letter of 21 June 2012. 
 
As to your paragraph 18, the Council proposes to put before the Cabinet your letters of 
29 May 2012, and 7, 10 and 26 June 2012, together with the Council’s responses (from 
Mr Myers and myself). If there are any further letters that you wish to be included, I 
would be grateful if you could identify them for me.  
 
Paragraphs 19 and 20 contain further argument relating to the alleged inadequacies of 
the Council’s analysis of the consultation responses. As explained above, this will be 
put before the Cabinet in due course. I remain of the view that the Council’s position has 
already been sufficiently stated in previous correspondence. I do not propose to 
lengthen this letter by repeating the points already made.  
 
Finally, I note that various FOIA requests are made in your letter of 26 June 2012. 
These will be responded to in due course in accordance with the Council’s standard 
procedure for requests of this type. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
ExecutiveDirector 
Housing and Regeneration 
 

Page 306



P
age 307



P
age 308



P
age 309



P
age 310



P
age 311



P
age 312



 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jonathon Rosenberg 
West Ken & Gibbs Green Community Homes Ltd, 
105 Gibbs Green, 
London, 
W14 9NE 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Rosenberg, 
 
RE : West Kensington & Gibbs Green Estates 
 
Thank you for your letter of 27 July 2012 and the attached report. 
 
The consultation responses have now been rechecked by officers, and some minor 
discrepancies have been corrected. Save as to this, the Council maintains its position 
as set out in earlier correspondence on this issue, and in particular considers that it has 
conducted a proper analysis of the consultation responses.  
 
I briefly address the issues raised in Ms Kuklowsky’s report below, adopting the 
numbering in her report. 
 
(1) Totals 
 
Ms Kuklowsky has incorrectly stated the Council’s figure for wider area support. The 
figure she gives is 597. The figure as reported to Cabinet at its meeting on 23 April 2012 
was in fact 448 (see table 3 of Appendix 5 to the relevant Cabinet report). Thus, the 
comparison has been undertaken on an incorrect basis.  
 
Further, even as regards her figures, it appears that Ms Kuklowsky has neglected to 
add together the total number of consultation responses in the two binders of wider area 
support to which she refers. One bundle contains 329 consultation responses (which is 
very close to Ms Kuklowsky’s figure of 331 / 297). However, the other bundle - which 
contains 104 consultation responses - appears to have been overlooked.  
 
(2) Duplicates 
 
There was a small number of duplicate consultation responses. These were however 
identified and removed in the rechecking to which I have already referred. 
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Housing and Regeneration   

3rd Floor, Extension, King Street, London W6 9JU 

Tel:  020 8753 4228 

Email: westken@lbhf.gov.uk 

Web:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 
Date: 21st August 2012 

Page 313



 

Melbourne Barrett MBA MRICS 
Executive Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 
 

(3) Miscategorisation 
 
The rechecking revealed that a small number of consultation responses had been 
miscategorised. These have now been correctly categorised. 
 
(4) Censored information 
 
Some of the duplicates to which I referred above under (2) had also been redacted. This 
issue has now been resolved.  
 
Officers have not used redaction as a means of miscategorising consultation responses. 
 
(5) Data Protection 
 
The Council would like to thank Ms Kuklowsky for pointing out the instances where 
personal details had not been redacted. The consultees in question will receive an 
apology. 
 
(6) Multiple sets of responses and binders 
 
I can confirm that Ms Kuklowsky was given access to all the consultation responses. 
 
(7) Notable changes since previous inspections 
 
One consultation response was changed (in that information was redacted) during the 
inspection process. No other changes were made. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
 
 
Melbourne Barrett 
Executive Director for Housing and Regeneration  

Page 314



P
age 315



P
age 316



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 1 

Headline summary of proposed terms for a Conditional Land Sale Agreement to be entered 
into between the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham (the Council) and a EC 
Properties LP (part of the Capital and Counties group) (Capco).  

16 August 2012 

Thumbnail sketch:    The CLSA is to be an agreement for the disposal of land in phases by the 
Council to Capco with vacant possession at a price of £105m (the Price).  As the land is currently 
occupied by secure tenants and by leaseholders (and some freeholders) the agreement is to provide 
as a pre-condition of the transfer of land that the relevant statutory consents have been obtained and 
that 760 (or an increased number if Seagrave Houses are included (see below)) replacement homes 
are constructed to current London wide standards.   It is a pre-condition of transfer, although not an 
obligation, that CapCo provides replacement homes to objectively-assessed standards. The Council 
will hold a long leasehold interest in each of these replacement homes.  They will be used in part to 
re-house secure tenants.  The Council will also grant long leases to qualifying owners who have 
elected to take up such leases in replacement to their existing homes.  The Council will retain any 
Replacement Homes not required for either of the above.   

Key terms: 

Exclusivity Agreement: In July 2011 (extended for a further year on its expiry in 2012), the Council 
signed an Exclusivity Agreement with Capco. In return for the right to negotiate exclusively with the 
Council for a year to ascertain whether the final terms of a CLSA could be concluded, Capco paid 
£15m, £5m of this is non-refundable and £10m is refundable if the parties do not enter into the CLSA. 
These payments will be treated as part payment of the consideration under the terms of the CLSA 
when entered into. Once the CLSA is completed the Council will retain the £10m sum unless it is 
unable to secure Secretary of State’s (SOS) consent to sell the land (or otherwise is not authorised to 
enter into the CLSA).   
 
Gibbs Green School and 11 Farm Lane.  It is proposed that Capco will acquire these properties at a 
price of £15m at the same time that the CLSA is exchanged.    Completion is to take place straight 
away and the full price is to be paid on completion.  These funds would not be repayable unless the 
Council did not have the power to sell. If the CLSA is terminated then a conventional overage 
provision will apply to development undertaken on these sites.  Capco have requested that completion 
of the transfer of title to Gibbs Green School is postponed until the school vacate. Consequently at 
exchange of the CLSA there will be in place an unconditional agreement for the transfer of title to 
Gibbs Green School and the full consideration of £9,300,000 will have been paid and released to the 
Council.  This does mean that any consents required for the disposal of the school (and if relevant 
Farm Lane) will need to have been obtained prior to exchange of the CLSA.  
 
Gibbs Green and Farm Lane Overage.  Where no material development has commenced prior to 
service of the Trigger Notice the Council will have a right to buy back both properties at the cost paid 
plus indexation (and cost of works undertaken).   If the Trigger Notice is served Gibbs Green falls out 
of this overage regime and is only subject to Scheme Overage (if relevant).  If material development 
has taken place but the Trigger Notice is not served (in the case of Gibbs Green School) or in any 
event where material works have been commenced in the case of Farm Lane overage is payable at 
the rate of 25% of any profit earned on the development after a 20% IRR.  
 
Seagrave Road Houses (8a and 8b and 10 and 12 and 1 Rickitt Street). Capco is entitled to make 
proposals for these properties to be included within the project.  Capco are to provide documentation 
at a level that would support an outline planning permission to facilitate consultation on this proposal.   
If the Council believe it is appropriate to do so having regard to such proposal the Council will then 

Page 317



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 2 

commence consultation with the residents. The tenants are to be offered the same arrangements as 
those proposed for secure tenants across the wider site.    
 
Following completion of the consultation process and the making of a planning application Capco wish 
to be able to request that the Council makes an application to the Secretary of State for disposal.  The 
decision to dispose cannot be made ahead of the consultation and consequently the Council reserves 
its rights to make this decision having regard to the consultation.   
 
If (following consultation) a decision is made to include Seagrave Road Houses then the requirement 
in relation to replacement homes is increased accordingly and the number of houses to be provided is 
increased to 77 houses.  
 
Land to be Sold:  This is referred to as the "Option Land". In addition to the two sites above the land 
to be sold comprises the West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates. Gibbs Green School will be 
treated as part of the Option Land for the purposes of main scheme overage where the Trigger Notice 
is served (see below) but Farm Lane will not.  
 
Secretary of State’s Consent:  Consent is required for the sale of housing land.  The agreement 
(and the option granted by it)  will be exchanged conditional on this consent which will be applied for 
shortly following exchange. The decision to apply for consent needs to be confirmed by a full Council 
meeting. If consent cannot be obtained (either without conflicting conditions or to both parties 
satisfaction) then the agreement can be terminated and £10m will be repayable to Capco. 
  
Trigger Notice:  Capco is to have up to the earlier of 5 years from the date of the CLSA and 9 months 
from the date the Seagrave Road Affordable Housing has become Habitable to serve notice 
confirming that it wishes to proceed with the transaction.  It should be noted that there is no obligation 
to build out the Seagrave Road Affordable Housing and consequently completion could be held off by 
Capco.  This would however have implications for Capco under the Seagrave Road Section 106 
Agreement. In this time it is envisaged that Capco will satisfy itself as to the acceptability of any 
planning consent granted and the viability of its scheme.   It is anticipated that it will seek to agree 
terms with TfL during this period.  If the trigger is not served, but SOS consent has been obtained and 
there has been no other successful challenge to the Council's right to enter into the CLSA then the 
Council will retain the £15m paid.  If the Trigger notice is served the first of the Advance Payments is 
payable and the following Advance Payments will be due as set out below.   If Capco ascertains that 
the terms of the planning agreement or market conditions render the transaction no longer viable it is 
likely that they will reject the form of SOS consent so that the £10m is repayable. 
 
Section 34A Challenge: Insofar as a successful application is made under Section 34 A of the 
Housing Act 1985 the land affected will be excluded from the CLSA and the consideration will be 
adjusted.  The number of Replacement Homes will be reduced by the number of Existing Homes 
within the relevant area, in addition the Advance Payments will be reduced (on a pro rata area based 
on a payment of £90m) provided that in any event the £15m will not be repayable by reason of the 
operation of such refund.  
 
Advance Payments:  The cash consideration is payable in 5 yearly instalments with the first payable 
on 31.12.2015 or, if later, the date the Trigger notice is served.  These payments are due irrespective 
of when vacant possession is achieved and the land transfers take place.   Notwithstanding this there 
is also provision to increase the payments where needed so that the phases drawn down cannot 
result in land having been transferred to a value in excess of the payments made.  In reality it is likely 
that the Advance Payments will run ahead of land transfer. 
 

Page 318



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 3 

If the first payment is made after 31.12.2015 (ie by reason of the Trigger notice being served after that 
date) then the payments will be indexed by reference to RPI (Note: the indexation is applied to that 
element of the payment which is received later than it would have been had the Trigger notice been 
served and the first payment and subsequent annual payments been made on and annually after 
31.12.2015).   
 
See diagram: 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Allowable Capital Expenditure (ACE) and Allowable Revenue Expenditure (ARE) 
 
ACE is cost incurred by the Buyer in funding acquisitions from leaseholders and freeholders or in 
securing vacant possession (including compensation payable).  At the option of the Council it can be 
rolled forward until deducted from Advance Payments.  If the deduction would amount to more than 
50% of the Advance Payment the balance is rolled forward to the next Advance Payment.  ACE 
carries a holding cost (cost of funding) which is 6.5% over 6 month LIBOR from time to time.  This is 
felt to be a high cost of funds and accordingly the Council currently intends to make as little use of 
such funding as practicable.   Where the Council does incur the costs it is to be entitled to pay down 
these costs early (to reduce holding cost accruing) but otherwise the costs are to be deducted from 
Advance Payments.   
 
The Council would be entitled to require that Capco meet the first £7.5m of acquisition costs under 
Early Purchase Agreements and up to a further £7.5m of the cost of entering into agreements with 
Existing Owners (once there is a Satisfactory Scheme Planning Permission, SOS Consent and 106 
Agreement).  Once the Trigger Notice has been served the Council can require Capco fund all 
Standard Purchase Contracts entered into with Existing Home owners.   As stated it is not currently 
the intention of the Council to use this facility given its cost.    The Council has a degree of control as 
to how many Early Purchase Agreements are entered into as these are intended to address hardship 
as determined by the Council.  Once the Satisfactory Scheme Planning Permission is in place 

2012 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Years 

 

 

 

 

 

£30 M 

£15 M £15 M £15 M £15 M £15 M 

Latest 
Trigger 
Date 

 

RPI Indexation on movement of payment profile.  
 

Page 319



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 4 

however it is anticipated that Council will be required, by promises that have been made to residents, 
to enter into Standard Purchase Contracts as requested.  This process will incur transactional costs 
and payments and where individuals exercise their entitlement to require the Council to acquire their 
homes (at 10% above market value) the Council will incur capital costs (including SDLT) in so doing.  
If it does not intend to look to Capco to fund these acquisitions (due to the cost of funding) it will need 
to have funds available to meet this commitment.   
 
ARE is the revenue cost (after income) of managing the properties acquired prior to their incorporation 
in a demolition phase.  Deduction Accounts are to be prepared annually from 31.03.2013 however 
Capco have agreed to roll these sums forward (subject to holding cost) to be deducted from Advance 
Payments.  It is now stated to be the intention of the Council wherever practicable to retain ownership 
of any Existing Homes acquired and to manage such properties and their letting itself in part so as to 
avoid incurring ARE. 
 
 
Replacement Homes  
 
The re-provision is required to include 760 (increased as appropriate if Seagrave Houses are 
included) (see below)  homes of which 75 (77 if the Seagrave Road Houses are included) are 
required to be houses and 66 are required to be ground floor maisonettes or duplexes (with access to 
gardens) (house equivalents).  It is anticipated that additional affordable homes (circa 740) will be 
required pursuant to the Planning Agreement entered into with the Scheme Permission. 
 
Replacement homes are required to be built to the following standards in order to satisfy the pre-
condition to transfer of land 
- Space standards within the London Mayor’s Design Guidelines,  
- Code for Sustainable Homes 4 
- 100% Lifetime Homes 
- Secured by Design certification 
- HQI score of upper mid-quartile 
- At least Silver Standard Building for Life 
  
Scheme Overage 
 
Scheme overage will be payable in respect to all implementable consented gross external area (GEA) 
above the agreed Base GEA.  This will be payable at a rate of £17.50 per sq ft and £1,000 per 
additional car parking space (exceeding 4311).   This is payable in respect to additional consented 
development across the wider scheme area ie the planning red line.  
 
Securing Vacant Possession 
 
The land will be transferred in phases.  Capco intend to undertake development at Seagrave Road  
which will include the first Replacement Homes.  It should be noted that there is (and can be) no 
obligation on Capco to construct Replacement Homes or to do so in any particular location.  However, 
there is a provision which means that Replacement Homes, if they are provided, must be provided on 
Seagrave Road until the cap for that site is reached and can only then be provided elsewhere.  Given 
the pre-condition that Replacement Homes (based on the number of Existing Homes within the land 
requested to be drawn down by Capco) are to be constructed, independently certified as being 
habitable and handed over before transfer of a Demolition Phase it is anticipated that Replacement 
Homes will constructed to meet the needs of residents on the next phase so that residents of one 
Phase are decanted to Replacement Homes constructed on land vacated by residents decanted to 
earlier Phases.    

Page 320



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 5 

 
Land cannot be transferred to Capco unless Capco has already constructed Replacement Homes to 
meet the needs of residents (subject to the caps referred to but ascertained by reference to a needs 
assessment carried out by the Council).  For each phased transfer of lands Capco will begin by 
providing (non-binding) information, to be used by the Council in its engagement with residents, 
showing the proposed phase and the replacement accommodation.  The outcome of this engagement 
will feed into the development of a PPDN. Capco and the Council have agreed to both allocate 
resources to this process and Capco has agreed to provide feedback including the extent to which 
they are able to modify their proposals as a result of the feed back or the reasons why they cannot.  
This is an obligation to engage and have regard to feed back.  It does not entitle the Council to 
impose changes.   
 
Allied to this process, however, is a requirement for CapCo to provide for the Council's approval 
details of a scheme designed at minimising and mitigating the impact of demolition on the residents of 
the remaining estates (known as a Phase Impact strategy).  The strategy deals with issues such as 
access, maintenance of car parking and services.  
 
Not less than 6 months after the beginning of the engagement process a formal notice is to be served 
by Capco identifying the next Phase.  An updated needs assessment is then carried out in relation to 
those Council tenants resident within the Phase.  It is intended that the parties will by then have a 
clear understanding as to the nature and number of Replacement Homes to be provided however the 
requirement is to be based on the needs assessment.  It will also take account of those leaseholder 
and freeholder contracts in place with residents within the proposed Phase.  Notwithstanding this 
Capco are not to be obligated to provide to the Council, for Council Tenants, more than 10% more 
than the number of homes or gross internal area of existing homes within the Demolition Phase 
identified.   The Flex does not extend to the number of Houses or House Equivalents.  
 
The Council can select how many bedrooms (up to five) are to be included with each unit subject to 
these caps.  There is an overall maximum gross internal area of replacement homes to be provided 
as well as the cap of 760 (increased as appropriate if Seagrave Road Houses are included). 
 
As Replacement Homes are constructed for residents prior to transfer of the land on which they 
currently live there is a strong commercial incentive for Capco to develop out.  Notwithstanding this 
where Capco have not delivered Replacement Homes (exact number and area to be agreed) by the 
date 10 years following exchange (with provision for additional time to be given where they have 
nearly done so) the Council is entitled to terminate the Agreement (although it will then need to pay 
back the consideration attributable to the land not transferred).  
 
The Council will be able to reject a proposed phase if it causes such nuisance and annoyance to 
residents of dwellings on the retained land that such dwellings would not be reasonably habitable or if 
it would restrict reasonable access or necessary servicing.  The Executive Group is to agree a 
remaining estate management strategy  to ensure that the quality of life of residents is not unduly 
compromised. 
 
If work ceases for 6 months (or up to 9 months where the Capco indicates work is about to re-
commence but it does not) the Council can insist that actions are taken: demolition completed and 
made good, a partially completed building completed as to the exterior and structure and surrounding 
area made good etc. If Capco or its successors or funders fail to take such mitigating action the 
Council can gain access to undertake the works and charge Capco.  
 
The Replacement Homes to be provided to meet the needs of a Demolition Phase must include at 
least 60% of the number of council for rent houses in the Demolition Phase. If Capco cannot achieve 

Page 321



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 6 

this and no other acceptable solution can be found then the Council can veto the phase. Alternatives 
to houses such as ground floor maisonettes and duplexes with gardens will be provided for the 
remaining residents within the Phase living in houses who are not allocated houses as Replacement 
Homes.     
 
Council Tenants 
  
Secure Tenants will be offered Replacement Homes.  Under-occupying tenants will be offered a new 
home with one additional bedroom above their need. There will be no need for temporary 
accommodation – tenants will have one move only to their new home. 
  
Secure tenants will remain secure tenants and their rents will continue to be set in line with other 
existing council rents. A homeloss payment of £4,700 per household will be made by the Council. 
New white goods, carpets and curtains will be provided in their new homes. 
 
Buy-back of existing Leasehold and Freehold Interests 
 
To achieve vacant possession, it has been recognised to be in the interests of the Council and Capco 
for contracts to be entered into with owners under which they can either require the Council to buy 
their homes or to provide them with Replacement Homes.  
 
Once there is a Satisfactory Scheme Planning Permission, SOS Consent and 106 Agreement the 
Qualifying Owner's (QO's) are to be encouraged to take up the Advance Purchase Offer.  This is an 
agreement under which the QO agrees to sell its property when the Phase within which it is located is 
selected for development.  The QO is to benefit from  the right at any time to elect to sell (and will be 
paid 10% above market value) or to take a  lease of a Replacement Home when available.  It is to 
benefit from the terms agreed between the Council and Capco so that the consideration payable for 
the lease of the replacement home will be treated as 10% below market value.  The QO is to commit 
its existing equity and the Council intends to seek to facilitate/use its influence to encourage a panel of 
lenders to assist the resident to raise an equivalent to its existing mortgage towards the cost of the 
replacement home.  The Council is to provide the balance of the consideration through a shared 
equity scheme.  No rent or interest will be charged on the Council shared equity element.  
 
The Council will have agreed with QOs that it will cap the service charges for the new properties for 5 
years.  The costs of moving, valuation and legal advice will be funded by the Council.  Capco have 
agreed to cap the service charge on the Council units (for Council tenants or retained by the Council) 
for the life of the head lease subject to indexation.  The Council may need to fund a shortfall if the QO 
service charge increases above the cap.  
 
Registered Provider (Housing Association) Ownerships 
 
The Council will need to complete negotiations for relocation of the Registered Providers (RPs) who 
have long leases and properties on the estates. Assured tenants of the RPs will be offered the right to 
become Council tenants and stay within the new development.   
 
Compulsory Purchase 
 
Ultimately if agreement cannot be reached with existing tenants and owners the Council has agreed  
(subject to it being an appropriate use of such powers at the time) seek Cabinet authority to use its 
compulsory purchase powers to secure vacant possession of the Option Land.  This is intended to be 
promoted on planning grounds.  The Council also agreed (subject to appropriate considerations and 
Counsel's advice) seek authority to promote CPO to enable development within Seagrave Road and 

Page 322



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 7 

within other parts of the Earls Court Regeneration Area within the Council's administrative boundary.   
In the latter two cases all costs will be borne by Capco, but in the case of the Option Land all costs will 
be borne by the Council or funded by Capco and recovered from the Council by deduction from the 
Advance Payments.  
 
Notwithstanding the intention that compulsory purchase would be used as a last resort the parties 
have agreed to the appointment of an Independent Representative (IR).  This is to be an individual (or 
firm which allocates an individual) with significant experience of re-housing tenants and occupiers and 
housing relocation and renewal schemes.  Residents affected by CPO will be able to make 
representations to the IR who will have power to advise how the process may be managed in a way to 
impact less severely on the personal circumstances of that individual including providing assistance, 
altering the order of decant or the allocations but does not extend to an ability to defer the ultimate VP 
date.  
 
The Council has also agreed to use its powers of appropriation (under planning legislation) as an 
alternative to compulsory purchase, including in respect of land owned by CapCo.  Appropriation 
gives rise to rights to compensation.  In respect of land currently owned by the Council and forming 
part of the Option Land, the Council will bear any costs.  In respect of land owned by CapCo, it will be 
necessary to agree a scheme in advance of any appropriation, the overriding principle of which is that 
(a) the Council will not be exposed to any costs as a result of it and which provides for security to 
cover any exposure, and (b) security acceptable to the Council will be provided in advance.    
 
 
Damages 
 
The Council will be subject to a performance regime for delivery of vacant possession to agreed 
dates. If the Council can be shown to have failed to meet dates, due to matters within its control, then 
the Council will be liable for damages to Capco.  These damages are capped at £10m (indexed at 
RPI). We have been told that Officers are satisfied that the performance dates are reasonable and 
achievable. If damages arise in excess of the cap they accrue and are payable through Compensation 
Overage in the circumstances set out below.  
 
No damages will be payable, however, in respect of a failure to meet the performance regime in 
respect of compulsory purchase of non-Option Land. 
 
Termination 
 
Termination by the Council: 
 
As well as termination for Insolvency or breach of the NAV requirements the Council can terminate if 
the Trigger Notice has not been served by the Trigger Notice Long Stop Date (see above), where the 
Advance Payments are not made, if the Replacement Home Accommodation Leases are not granted 
when due, where SOS Consent has not been obtained or where the Halfway Condition (delivery of 
Replacement Homes) has not been met.  
 
The Collateral Agreement also covers circumstances where a challenge can lead to an entitlement to 
terminate.  
 
Termination by Capco: 
 
Capco can terminate where: 
 

Page 323



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 8 

• no application is made to the Secretary of State within 5 months of the CLSA (or 4 weeks of 
the first Council meeting following exchange) or if Secretary of State Consent is not obtained 
within 12 months of the application having been made; or 

  
• the Council has failed to complete any Time Critical Item by the expiry of the relevant period; 

or 

• in relation to any Phase or CPO a cabinet resolution is not made or otherwise the CPO 
progressed within an agreed period; or 

• the Council  has not submitted a CPO to the Secretary of State for confirmation within 30 
days of the making of the CPO; or 

• in relation to any Phase the Council is able to confirm a CPO but fails to do so within two 
months of being enabled to do so; or 

• one of the events occurs which would result in the Council abandoning a CPO; or 

• the Secretary of State or any other confirming authority has either (i) decided not to confirm a 
Satisfactory CPO or (ii) has not within 12]months of the date on which the application was 
sent to the Secretary of State for such confirmation made a decision confirming the same; or 

• the Council has failed within 1 month of the relevant notification of satisfaction to publish the 
required notices confirming the making of the CPO / General Vesting Declaration (GVD) or 
within 20 Wording Days to serve the relevant notice to effect entry as to third party interests 
or rights; or to a serve relevant notices (GVD); or 

• otherwise fails to secure vacant possession of any CPO Land and to complete the Relevant 
Phase Transfer and the transfer of all interests and rights and New Rights by the relevant VP 
Date; or  

• if appropriation does not go ahead according to an agreed timetable, or authority is not given, 
or (authority having been given) is not progressed; or 

• if a Road Closure Order is necessary to enable a Phase to be developed in accordance with 
a Satisfactory Main Site Planning Permission and such road closure order will not be or has 
not been obtained (and is secure from Challenge) by the relevant VP Date; or  

• the Council fails to perform its obligations in relation to the making of payments within 90 
days of the same having been demanded in writing and becoming due; or 

• where there is a material breach of the Council’s other obligations and the Council has failed 
to remedy such breach within 90 days of notice. 

• In the event of a valid Section 34 A application; or 

• In the event of a successful challenge JR or Procurement Challenge to the Council’s ability to 
enter into the CLSA. 

The view taken is that as Capco can only terminate the whole agreement rather than a phase the 
breadth of the termination rights is consistent with the fact that Phases are brought forward at Capco's 
discretion.   
  

Page 324



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 9 

In the event of termination the Council is to retain the consideration paid for Gibbs Green School and 
Farm Lane.  It is to retain the £15m (originally paid under the Exclusivity Agreement but treated as 
part payment under the CLSA) save where the £10m is repayable in the circumstances set out above.   
All land transferred to Capco will be retained by them. All Existing Homes which have been vacated 
as a result of the occupant moving into a Replacement Home will be retained by Capco (and a lease 
granted to them as relevant).  All Replacement Accommodation where a lease has been granted to 
the Council will be retained by the Council.  The Council will retain all of the Advance Payments that 
proportionately relate to the Phases (land) already transferred to Capco.  If Capco had acquired 
Existing Properties or had such properties transferred to it (as the Council can do in order to call on 
the indemnity but which it no longer intends to do) Capco would retain those properties but the 
relevant entitlement to reclaim costs relating to those properties would fall away.   
 
If a "Refund Termination Event" (a public sector delay event) exists at the date of termination or where 
termination arises due to a failure to meet the Halfway Condition (failure to have built enough 
Replacement Homes) then the balance of the Advance Payments will be reimbursed to Capco.  If 
there is no Refund Termination Event at the time of Termination the Council will retain whatever 
Advance Payments it holds. 
 
There is also to be an audit of expenses and holding costs incurred which Capco would have been 
entitled to deduct from the Advance Payments (if not all made at that time).  
 
Compensation Overage  (or overage following termination): 
 
In the event of termination and subsequent disposal by the Council of land which would have been 
caught by the CLSA within 5 years overage is payable where the land is sold for more than the 
combined cost to Capco of the attributable land payment and relevant proportion of the Replacement 
Home cost.  This is set at a base level of 25% of the additional consideration.  If the Council are liable 
to Capco for damages for breach but these have not been paid due to the LAD cap then the rate of 
overage is to be an additional 50% (in addition to the base 25%) of the excess consideration.   
   
Longstop date 
 
The final end date for the agreement is 2035.  The Council will have received the full cash 
consideration (excluding any potential payments under overage arrangement) by the 10 anniversary 
of signature of the CLSA at the latest (subject to prior termination).   
    
Fighting Challenges 
 
It is recognised that there is a significant chance that a number of the decisions made by the Council 
on this project may be challenged.  As a result we have advised you separately on such challenges. It 
has been agreed that such advice is outside the scope of this summary.  
 
 
Independent evaluation of the commercial terms and best consideration.  
 
Jones Lang LaSalle and PWC have been appointed to advise the Council in respect of negotiations 
and to provide the Council with confirmation that the overall transaction represents the best 
consideration that could reasonably be obtained by the Council.  We are informed that a residual land 
value model has been used to arrive at a valuation for the land. This model has been adapted to 
reflect the deal and the scheme as it has evolved.   We are further informed that a detailed model 
audit has been satisfactorily completed.  
 

Page 325



 

Draft: 16 August 2012 
RGB/90883.00001/9256416.08  Page 10 

This firm and the Council’s other professional advisors (in their respective capacities and as to their 
respective areas of expertise) have been closely involved in negotiating the terms of this transaction 
and have confirmed that they remain of the view that the agreement and arrangements when 
concluded will represent best consideration and an appropriate use of the Council’s powers. A draft 
letter from Price Waterhouse Coopers is attached at Appendix 4.  Final signed letters from advisors 
are to be attached to any cabinet report.   
 
Note this is an overview and not a comprehensive report.  Prominence is given to matters by 
reference to queries raised and to assist overall understanding rather than by reference to 
financial or legal importance.  
 
SNR Denton UK LLP. 

Page 326



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

1 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  
 

Earls Court & West Kensington Local Lettings Plan 
 

Interim Statement  
 
 
1. Summary  
 
1.1 This document sets out how Hammersmith & Fulham Council intends 

to adopt and deliver a local lettings plan for eligible residents of the 
Earls Court & West Kensington regeneration scheme area. This 
document is an interim statement, which forms the framework of what 
the final Local Lettings Plan will comprise. It will be the subject of 
further development, detail and consultation with the West Kensington 
& Gibbs Green Steering Group, before formal adoption in line with 
legislative requirements.  

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 Gibbs Green and West Kensington estates are council housing estates 

built in the early 1960s and 1970s respectively to provide social 
housing. Each of the estates includes a number of properties owned by 
leaseholders/freeholders (originally bought under the right to buy) who 
are either residents or who have let out their homes for private rented 
purposes. There are a number of properties owned by the Council and 
rented to secure tenants. There are a further three Registered 
Providers (also known as housing associations) who rent to assured 
tenants and provide a combined total of 58 homes for social housing 
purposes. The Earls Court West Kensington Opportunity Area was first 
identified in 2009 as an area for regeneration and the Council has been 
consulting on the possible regeneration since this time.  

 
3. Vision 
 
3.1  The Council is seeking to comprehensively regenerate the local area. It 

is aiming to create a better place to live and work in tandem, address 
the high levels of deprivation and physical decline that the area 
currently exhibits. The scheme is expected to provide over 9,000 new 
jobs as well as the provision of 7,500 new homes. The regeneration 
scheme is planned to achieve a transformational change to both 
estates and the surrounding area. Outcomes will include new town 
centres; improved transport infrastructure; improved economic health of 
businesses; and providing new community infrastructure to benefit the 
wider North Fulham area in which this scheme is located.  The site will 
deliver significant economic growth and provide a new gateway to 
London, as well as re-providing 760 brand new homes for those eligible 
residents who live in the area presently.  

 

Page 327



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

2 

3.2 The Council’s proposals are underpinned by the Mayor of London’s 
London Plan, which features the Earls Court and West Kensington 
scheme as one of his 33 Opportunity Areas. Along with White City and 
Old Oak, the Earls Court West Kensington Opportunity Area is one of 
three opportunities in Hammersmith & Fulham to accommodate new 
housing, commercial and other development linked to existing or 
potential improvements to public transport accessibility. 

 
3.2 The Council’s vision for Earls Court West Kensington Opportunity Area 

to regenerate the local economy and provide new housing is identified 
in our Local Development Framework Core Strategy. The  Earls Court 
West Kensington Opportunity Area is one of the Council’s 5 key 
regeneration opportunity areas for growth in the borough. The Council 
have also identified Earls Court West Kensington Opportunity Area as 
a key theme within the Council’s Corporate Plan to regenerate the 
borough. 

 
3.3  The scheme is also identified as a priority in two key housing 

documents: the Council’s Borough Investment Plan (Dec 2011) and 
Draft Housing Strategy (May 2012) which is expected to adopted in 
October 2012.   

 
3.4 The final Local Lettings Plan is intended to facilitate the relocation of 

eligible residents from the current West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
estates as well as those occupying Registered Provider properties (all 
identified in section 4 below) to enable the comprehensive regeneration 
of the Earls Court and West Kensington Opportunity Area.  

 
 
4. Area Affected  
 
4.1 The properties affected by the local lettings plan include Gibbs Green 

estate, West Kensington estate and the Registered Provider (RP) infill 
properties. The street or block names of these properties are: 

 
Homes that are Council Owned & Managed (including 
leaseholders & freeholders)  
 
Churchward House (1-88) 
Fairburn House (1-88) 
Gibbs Green estate (1-38; 101-160) 
Aisgill Avenue  
Stanier Close 
Ivatt Place 
Marchbank Road 
Sharnbrook House (1-40) 
North End Road (1-8) 
Desborough House (1-80) 
Lickey House (1-80) 
Bellamy Close  

Page 328



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

3 

Franklin Square 
 
Family Mosaic Housing Association 
 
Leery Close (1-6) 
Thaxton Road (1-15 – odd numbers) 
Dieppe Close (1-28) 
 
 
London & Quadrant Housing Association   
 
Marchbank Road (63-71 – odd numbers) 
Aisgill Avenue (14 a,b,c&d) 
 
Shepherds Bush Housing Association  
 
Garsdale Terrace (1 -7) 

 
 
4.2 There are 191 private car parking spaces on the estate in garages, car 

ports and hard-standings. In addition, there are approximately 350 
parking spaces dedicated to permit parking within the estate boundary. 
Across the two estates 189 households enjoy the use of their own 
private gardens 

 
4.3 The replacement housing for secure tenants and assured tenants will 

be primarily defined by the housing needs of the residents in the first 
phase of re-housing. More detail on the mix and location of the 
replacement housing will be feature in the final Local Lettings Plan.  

 
 
5. Guiding Principles to the Council’s Approach  
 
5.1 The Local Lettings Plan will be governed by the following guiding 

principles:  
 

• Residents will be consulted on all the policies and their views, where 
possible, will be taken into account. 

 
• The Council will establish a Local Lettings Plan Working Group to 

oversee the development and implementation of the Plan.  
 
• This Local Lettings Plan will operate within the legal and regulatory 

framework and the policies of the Council. 
 

• This Local Lettings Plan must support the sustainable management of 
the estate during the regeneration programme period. 

 
• The Council will be sensitive to equalities issues which may arise 

during the local lettings plan process and have regard to relevant 

Page 329



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

4 

legislation. This will include taking account eligible residents’ special 
needs. 

 
• Residents must sign the relevant contract to be eligible for the full 

terms of the re-housing offer. 
 

• The Council can only proceed with the local lettings policy once the 
Conditional Land Sales Agreement (CLSA) is signed. 

 
• Eligibility for the scheme will be determined by the tenancy /ownership 

status of the resident concerned.  
 

• Resident homeowners will only be eligible for the move to the new site 
if they have lived at their property a year from the ‘Effective Date1’. 

 
• For the purposes of this document, a social housing tenant or tenants 

(i.e., joint tenants) are deemed to include those who are registered 
members of the household who are eligible for re-housing under the 
terms of the final Local Lettings Plan. 

 
• The Council will freeze it’s re-housing obligations for registered 

members of the household from the 31st October 2012. However, 
registered members of the household will have to have been in 
occupation a year prior to this date. 

 
• Any compensation payments made will be offset against accrued debt 

with the Council, e.g., rent arrears.  
 
• Eligible residents will include secure tenants of the council; 

homeowners (i.e. former secure tenants who have exercised their right 
to buy and are now freeholders and leaseholders of the council); 
assured tenants of housing associations (also known as Registered 
Providers), who will be entitled to the local lettings plan offers set out in 
this document. 

 
• Tenants of private sector landlords (whether assured shorthold tenants 

or on other forms of private tenure terms) will not be eligible for 
rehousing under the terms described in this Interim Statement and the 
final Local Lettings Plan. The Council will assist with their relocation 
where necessary under the policies set out in the Housing Allocation 
Scheme. 

 

                                                 
1 The Effective Date is the date on which the Council will make these Leaseholder/Freeholder 
Contracts available to homeowners. The date is dependent upon key approvals being in 
place, giving more certainty that the scheme can go ahead. The approvals that need to be in 
place are as follows: the grant of satisfactory planning permission on the main development 
site along with the signature of any related planning agreements, the consent of the Secretary 
of State for the Council to sell its housing land and the Council signing the CLSA with EC 
Properties Ltd. The date that all of these key approvals have been secured is the Effective 
Date. 

Page 330



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

5 

• The primary objective of the Local Lettings Plan will be to facilitate the 
successful relocation of all eligible residents from existing homes to 
new accommodation. An additional objective is to help ensure that the 
relocation process and associated management issues does not 
detrimentally impact on the successful management of the estate and 
the remaining residents’ well being. 

 
• Acknowledging the long timeframe for the regeneration scheme, 

proposals for ‘meanwhile uses’ for the housing that is vacated by 
relocated households will be developed which will reflect the priorities 
and policies set out in the Council’s Housing Allocation Scheme. Where 
households are allocated homes on a ‘meanwhile use’ basis, they will 
not be entitled to rehousing under the terms set out in this Local 
Lettings Plan Interim Statement and the final Local Lettings Plan.  

 
 
 
6. Key Commitments  
 
6.1 The following commitments are made to eligible residents affected by 

the regeneration scheme as described in Section 3 of this document:  
 

• Eligible residents will receive the offer of a brand new home 
 
• Existing secure tenants’ rights will be unaffected by the move, except 

where there are specific circumstances that will be made clear during 
the process.  

 
• All residents will be expected to move only once  
 
• If residents wish to move to an area outside the regeneration scheme 

area (including outside Seagrave Rd) they will be supported with their 
re-housing aspirations  

 
• Resident homeowners will not be expected increase borrowing to 

purchase an affordable home in the site. 
 
• Service charges will be capped for 5 years for resident homeowners 

who move to the redeveloped site. Service charges will be capped for 
secure tenants who move to the redeveloped site. 

 
• Where possible, the Council will seek to facilitate ‘group moves’ (where 

2 or more households wish to be re-housed in close proximity to each 
other) that have been requested by residents.  

 
• An under-occupying secure tenant or assured tenant will be offered a 

new home that meets their bedroom need in line with the Housing 
Allocation Scheme policy in place at the time, plus one bedroom 

 

Page 331



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

6 

• Statutory Home loss and discretionary disturbance payments will be 
paid 

 
• Compensation will be paid for loss of garage/car parking spaces 

(secure tenants), loss of private garden space (secure tenants), and 
major works service charges (resident homeowners).   

 
7. Quantum and Cohorts of Housing Need  
 
7.1 There are up to 760 households to be re-housed from the site, who are 

primarily families with 2, 3 & 4 bedroom housing need. It is likely that 
some households will want to use the regeneration scheme as an 
opportunity to move out of the area, whether they are secure or 
assured tenants or are resident or non resident homeowners. 

  
7.2 Households which are secure tenants will be eligible to be re-housed 

and there will also be the opportunity for tenants of Registered 
Providers to be included in the regeneration scheme. Those existing 
residents who are private tenants will have no eligibility for a move to 
the redeveloped site, however, the Council will provide support for 
private tenants and their housing needs through the Council wide 
service we already offer. 

 
7.3 In seeking to meet identified cohorts of need within the households that 

need to be re-housed, the Council will establish links with the local 
community services to assess local housing needs of residents with 
physical disabilities,  learning difficulties and any other needs that need 
to be taken into consideration. The Council will set up an Advocate 
System where the resident can opt to have their matters dealt with by a 
nominated Advocate, usually a close family member or other 
appropriate person. 

 
7.4 Residents who currently occupy private sector housing (including 

homeless households registered with the Council) will be assessed on 
a case by case basis in line with the Council’s Housing Allocation 
Scheme, but will not be eligible for the housing offers set out in this 
document.  Where homes are allocated on a ‘meanwhile use’ basis (as 
described in section 5.1, final bullet point), these residents will similarly 
not be eligible for the housing offers set out in this document.  

 
 
8. Timeframe  
 
8.1 The developer has planning permission to build housing on the 

Seagrave Rd site within the regeneration area. This will provide the first 
200 homes for residents to move from the West Kensington and Gibbs 
Green regeneration. The first 150 of these homes on Seagrave Road 
are expected to be ready for occupation by 2015 which will enable the 
start of the first (advanced) phase of the final Local Lettings Plan.  

 

Page 332



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

7 

8.2 The further phases may be developed from 2015 based on the re-
provision of the housing within the regeneration area. The Council can 
serve notice to terminate the CLSA if the developer has not served its 
trigger notice (confirming its commitment to make advance payments 
and to preserve its rights to proceed with the development in 
accordance with the phasing plans)  within 9 months of the first 150 
properties being built on Seagrave Road or 31 December 2017.   

 
 
9. Housing Allocation Scheme  
 
9.1 The policy framework for the rehousing approach will be governed by 

the Council’s Housing Allocation Scheme, likely to be substantially the 
May 2012 Draft document currently out to consultation. Detail is set out 
in sections  4.19 – 4.24 of the Draft scheme. The  Housing Allocation 
Scheme is expected to be adopted in October 2012.  

 
10. Advanced Local Lettings Plan – Seagrave Rd  
 
10.1 To help deliver the early phase of the Local Lettings Plan, the Council 

will deliver an Advanced Local Lettings Plan (that will be set out in the 
final version of this Plan) which will cover: 

 
• Those secure tenants who do not wish to move to the regeneration 

scheme site. Secure tenants who opt for this, will be offered a transfer 
to another Council secure ‘lifetime’ tenancy and will still be eligible for 
home loss and disturbance compensation, provided they have been 
resident since the ‘freeze’ date and have been resident 1 year prior to 
the need to be re-housed. Where secure tenants express a preference 
for a housing association tenancy, this will be let on an assured 
‘lifetime’ tenancy. Such an option will not constitute an offer under the 
terms of the final Local Lettings Plan.  Secure tenants who opt for this 
option will not be eligible for a transfer back to the regenerated site or 
eligible for the enhanced compensation package. If tenants wish to 
move to an alternative area outside the Hammersmith & Fulham area, 
the Council will use the appropriate channels to support this request. 

 
• Those secure tenants wishing to move to Seagrave Road if there are 

surplus properties available after the first phase of residents have 
been re-housed. These will be prioritised on the following basis : 

 
- Tenants who are vulnerable and/or whose housing needs are 

affected by medical conditions 
 

- The floor level of available properties 
 

- Those residents who wish to move from a house to a flat or 
maisonette 

 
- Residents most affected by demolition and construction works 

Page 333



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

8 

 
- Date of registration for the ‘Advanced Local Lettings Plan’  

 
- Where all other factors are equal, preference will be given to the 

resident with the earlier date the relevant contract  was signed 
 
 11. Buy Back of leasehold & freehold properties and Local Lettings 

Plan Options  
 
11.1 The Council will develop a Buy Back Policy which will encompass the 

leaseholder and freeholder contracts which will be made with resident 
and non resident homeowners after the Effective Date.  .  

 
11.2 The Council will engage a ‘Buy Back’ officer who will lead on the 

negotiations of the purchase of the interest and the offer of a 
discounted sale for a new home in the redeveloped site. Resident 
homeowners will not have to increase their mortgage in their move to 
the new site.  

 
11.3 The Council will engage in separate discussions with each of the 3 

Registered Providers and make a fair and reasonable offer... 
 
12. Equalities 
 
12.1 In developing and delivering the final version of this Local Lettings 

Plan, the Council will have regard to the needs of equality groups and 
potential positive and negative impacts when preparing the equalities 
impact assessment initial screening document.  

 
 
13. For Further Information Contact:  
 
13.1 Dan Hollas, Project Officer, Housing & Regeneration Department;  tel 

020 8753 3334; dan.hollas@lbhf.gov.uk; www.lbhf.gov.uk  

Page 334



 
E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 &

 W
es

t K
en

 L
oc

al
 L

et
tin

gs
 P

la
n 

– 
In

te
rim

 S
ta

te
m

en
t  

 

9 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 

 T
ab

le
 o

f 
P

o
lic

ie
s 

 P
o

lic
y 

S
ec

u
re

 
(C

o
u

n
ci

l)
 

T
en

an
t 

A
ss

u
re

d
 

(R
P

) 
T

en
an

t 
R

es
id

en
t 

H
o

m
eo

w
n

er
 

N
o

n
 

re
si

d
en

t 
h

o
m

eo
w

n
er

 
P

ri
va

te
 t

en
an

t 

L
o

ca
l L

et
ti

n
g

 P
o

lic
y 

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 

A
d

va
n

ce
d

 
L

o
ca

l 
L

et
ti

n
g

 P
o

lic
y 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

B
u

y 
B

ac
k 

P
o

lic
y 

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 

H
o

m
e 

lo
ss

 
&

 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 P

o
lic

y 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 

D
ec

en
t 

H
o

m
es

 
P

o
lic

y 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 

L
o

ss
 

o
f 

P
ri

va
te

 
G

ar
d

en
 P

o
lic

y 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 
�

 

L
o

ss
 o

f 
C

ar
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 
sp

ac
e 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

L
o

n
g

 
T

er
m

 
S

ec
u

re
 

T
en

an
t 

P
o

lic
y 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

Page 335



 Earls Court & West Ken Local Lettings Plan – Interim Statement  
 

10 

 

Page 336



Appendix 8 – Housing Standard’s Comparison 
 
During consultation and at the 23rd April 2012 Cabinet Meeting, concern was 
expressed about the size of the new re-provided homes. Residents wanted an 
understanding of how the new homes, built to the London Design Guide Size 
Standards, compare to the Parker Morris Standards to which most Local 
Authority Housing adhered between 1961 - 80. 
 
The table below demonstrates how the current London Design Guide Size 
Standards compare to the Parker Morris standards. 
 
Home Type Parker Morris Size 

Standards 
London Design Guide 
Standards 

1 bed 2 person 44.6 m2 50 m2 

2 bed 4 person 69.7 m2 70 m2 

3 bed 5 person 79.0 m2  86 m2 

4 bed 6 person 86.4 m2 99 m2 

 
The Council has also obtained the size standards of three properties on the 
estates and compared these to the size of the new homes being built on 
Seagrave Road. 
 
Room 1 Bed flat on estates 1 Bed flat in Seagrave 

Road 
Lounge 16ft 3” x 9ft 11” 17ft 4” x 11ft 2” 
Kitchen  11ft x 6ft 11 ft 2” x 8ft 5” 
Main Bedroom 15ft x 8ft 5” 12ft 8” x 9ft 8” 
 
Room 2 Bed flat on estates 2 Bed flat in Seagrave 

Road 
Lounge 17ft 8” x 8ft 8” 19ft 8” x 14ft 8” 
Kitchen  11ft x 8ft 6” 10ft x 5ft 
Main Bedroom 16ft 6” x 8ft 4” 12 ft x 9ft 
 
Room 4 Bed house on estates 4  Bed flat in Seagrave 

Road  
Lounge 12ft 5” x 13ft 15ft x 14ft 
Kitchen  10ft x 12ft 14ft x 13ft 
Main Bedroom 10ft x 12ft  15ft x 10ft 
  
Note : Residents requested the measurements in ‘Imperial Units’ 

Page 337



To 
Seagrave
Road

To Seagrave Road, 
Farm Lane or 
Phase 1 a

1

2

1a

3/4

5

6

Appendix 9 - Indicative
Phasing Plan

Page 338



!"#$%%&''""()*
+,%&-'.%"./"0.1),23"$24"5&3&2&%$',.2
6.24.2"#.%.137"./"0$88&%)8,'7"9":1;7$8
<%4":;..%=">.?2"0$;;"(@'&2),.2
0$88&%)8,'7">.?2"0$;;=
A,23"B'%&&'
6.24.2
CD"EFG

H1%"%&/ ,IJJ/IJ%.-1%&8&2'I;K7/
L&-.I6.B/HIMNMOPQ;&'

+,%&-'";,2& RSS"TMUQMO"MVO"NQQM
!.K,;& RSS"TMUOEOM"E<V"DNQ
-7%,)WJ%$''X&1WY;;W-.8

P< Z131)'"QMPQ

!"#$%&'($!) * +,-./0)&)1&01#'")"1#$%&%$#'&+$%/&$2(//3/#)

+&$% !&;=

/$(%+&01,()&(/2/#/($)"1# * 4$%"'$)"1#&1!&0$5")$%&6&01,#)"/+7&1!!/(

C&"%&/&%"'."'7&".23.,23"4,)-1)),.2) K&'?&&2"'7&"6.24.2"#.%.137"./"0$88&%)8,'7"9":1;7$8"T'7&
[.12-,;U"$24"[$J,'$;"9"[.12',&)"\%.J&%',&)"J;-"T[$J[.U"-.2-&%2,23"'7&"J%.J.)&4"%&4&]&;.J8&2'"./"'7&
;$24 7.;4,23)"./"'7&"[.12-,;="[$J[."$24">%$2)J.%'"/.%"6.24.2"T>/6U",2"'7&"($%;)"[.1%'"%&3&2&%$',.2 $%&$
$24"'7&".//&%"/%.8"[$J[."'."$-*1,%&"'7&"[.12-,;^)",2'&%&)')",2";$24W

+89:;&9<&=>?@&ABC?8;

C&"7$]&"K&&2"$)_&4"'."-.88&2'".2"'7&"$--&J'$K,;,'`"$24"4&;,]&%$K,;,'`"./"'7&".//&%="$)"'7&"K$),)"/.%"$
[.24,',.2$;"6$24"B$;&"Z3%&&8&2'"T[6BZU"'."K&"&2'&%&4",2'."K`"'7&"[.12-,;"$24"[$J[."T'7&"\$%',&)UW
>7,)"$4],-&"%&;,&)".2"'7&"/.;;.?,23a

! '7&" 4$'$" -.2'$,2&4" ?,'7,2" '7&" /,2$2-,$;" 8.4&;" J%&J$%&4" K`" [#5(" 6'4" T[#5(U" .2" K&7$;/" ./
[$J[."$24"4,)-;.)&4"'."'7&"[.12-,;"'."$;;.?"$2"$))&))8&2'"./"[$J[.^)"J%.J.)$;)b

! '7&"$))18J',.2" '7$'"[$J[."?,;;"&2'&%",2'."),8,;$%"$%%$23&8&2')"?,'7">/6"'."&2$K;&"'7&"7.;,)',-
%&4&]&;.J8&2'"./"'7&"Y.,2'";$247.;4,23b

! '7&"\$%',&)"$--&J'$2-& '7$'"/1%'7&%"4&),32"$24"-.)'"J;$2"4&]&;.J8&2'"?,;;"-.2',21&"12',;"$24
K&`.24"'7&")1K8,)),.2"./"4&'$,;&4"J;$22,23"$JJ;,-$',.2)"/.%"4&]&;.J8&2'"J7$)&)"$24"'7$'"'7,)
?,;;"$//&-'"'7&"J%.3%$88&="-.)')"$24"]$;1&)"-1%%&2';`"%&/;&-'&4",2"'7&"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;b"$24

! )J%&$4)7&&')"J%.],4&4"K`"6#0:"?7,-7"$%&"1)&4"'."-$;-1;$'&"'7&"]$;1&"./"'7&"POP
;&$)&7.;4&%I/%&&7.;4&% %&J;$-&8&2'"12,')W"C&"124&%)'$24"'7&)&"]$;1&)"'."7$]&"K&&2"J%.],4&4"'.
6#0:"K`"[$J[."K$)&4".2"]$;1$',.2"$4],-&"J%.],4&4"'."[$J[."K`"B$],;;)"J;-W

Page 339



Page 340



<

$55/#'"D&"

E "F:G?8A=?9H@&9<&=>;&=?F?HI&9<&=>;&8A@>&:AJF;H=@

>7&"',8,23)"./"'7&"-$)7"J$`8&2')"4&'&%8,2&"'7&"'.'$;"J%&)&2'"4$`"]$;1&"./"'7&"J$`8&2')"TK$)&4
$' !$`"QMPQUW">7&"'$K;&"K&;.?")7.?) '7&",8J;,-$',.2)"T,2"2&'"J%&)&2'"]$;1&"'&%8)U"./"%&-&,],23
J$`8&2')",2";,2&"?,'7"'7&"$3%&&4"%&-&,J'"J%./,;&W

5AJF;H=&+8>;BKG; #54&9<&LEMNF
B?@89KH=;B&A=&OPOQR

:A

c<M8"T!$`"QMPQU RR

cPN8"T+&-"QMPNU
cPN8"T+&-"QMPDU
cPN8"T+&-"QMPOU
cPN8"T+&-"QMPVU
cPN8"T+&-"QMPEU

cVQWSP8

!"#$%&

' ()$*%+),-."/0.*1-20%3"+.# )*#$-450#6-*.-*11"5*.3$-7")-0.71*#0".-*#-89:
'' ;$-+.2$)%#*.2-#6*#-<=>/-"7-#60%-*/"+.#-5*%-#)*.%7$))$2-#"-?@AB-0.-C+1,-DE==F-(6$-$*)1,
)$3$0G#-"7-#60%-%+/-0%-."#-)$71$3#$2-0.-#6$-20%3"+.#0.H-*I"J$K-56$)$-0#-6*%-I$$.-*%%+/$2-#"-I$
)$3$0J$2-0. L*,-DE=DF

S )>;@;&<A8=9T@&?H8T;A@;&=>;&@=T;HI=>&9<&=>;&8KTT;H=&89H@?B;TA=?9H&9<<;T

!?HAH8;&(A=;&$@@KF;B

>7&"8.4&;" 7$)" $4.J'&4" $"12,]&%)$;" /,2$2-&" %$'&" ./" DWNdW Z;'7.137" '7&" /,2$2-&" %$'&)" 7$]&" 2.'
K&&2"%&],),'&4",2"'7&"8.4&;"/.%").8&"',8&="'7,) %&8$,2) $"%&$;,)',- K;&24&4 $))18J',.2W

>7&"-1%%&2'"8,4LJ%,-&"./" '7&"QM"`&$%" )?$J"%$'&" ,) -,%-$"QWOd="$))18,23"$" '`J,-$;"4&]&;.J8&2'
J&%,.4"8$%3,2"./"1J"'."Sd= '7,)"?.1;4"3,]&"%,)&"'."$"'.'$;"%$'&"./"DWOdW e/"'7,)"7,37&%"%$'&"?$)"'.
K&",2-.%J.%$'&4",2"'7&"8.4&;"'7&";$24"]$;1&"?.1;4"%&41-&W

Z;).=" $%%$23&8&2'" /&&)" $%&" -1%%&2';`" 2.'" ,2-;14&4" ,2" '7&" 8.4&;" $24" ?7&2" ,2-.%J.%$'&4" ?,;;
,2-%&$)&" /,2$2-,23"-.)')"$24"-.2)&*1&2';`"%&41-&" ;$24"]$;1&W" e'" ,)"$2',-,J$'&4" '7$'"$%%$23&8&2'
/&&)"./"PLQd"?.1;4"K&"-7$%3&4",2"'7&"-1%%&2'"4&]&;.J8&2'"/,2$2-&"8$%_&'W

Z)"PMMd"/,2$2-,23"7$)"K&&2"$))18&4",2"'7&"8.4&;="'7&"&*1,'`"7$)"'7&%&/.%&"$;)."K&&2"J%,-&4"$'
DWNdb" ?&" -.2),4&%" '7$'" '7,)" ,)" ;.?" /.%" '7&" 2$'1%&" $24" %,)_)" ./" 4&]&;.J8&2'" '7$'" [$J[." ,)

Page 341



S

$--&J',23" K1'" ,24,-$'&)" '7$'" [$J[." ,)" ,2'&24,23" '. '$_&" ,')" &*1,'`" %&'1%2" /%.8" 4&]&;.J8&2'
J%./,')W

09B;&<9T&+K@=A?HAUG;&V9K@?HI

[$J[."7$)"$))18&4"'7$'"[.4&"6&]&;"N"?,;;"K&"%&*1,%&4"K`"'7&"',8&"4&]&;.J8&2'",)"124&%'$_&2
.2"),'&="'7&"-1%%&2'"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;"%&/;&-')"-.)')"4&;,]&%,23"$")'$24$%4",2"&@-&))"./"[.4&"6&]&;"SW

C&"124&%)'$24"'7$'"[$J[.",)"&@J&-',23"'."$K).%K"'7&"$44,',.2$;"-.)'"./"$2`"2.%8$;",241)'%`
)1)'$,2$K,;,'`"%&*1,%&8&2')"'7$'"$%&",2"J;$-&"$'"'7&"J.,2')"$'"?7,-7"4&'$,;&4"J;$22,23"-.2)&2')"$%&
.K'$,2&4W

5T?CA=;&T;@?B;H=?AG&@AG;@&TA=;@

>7&"J%,]$'&"7.1),23")$;&)"%$'&)",2-;14&4"?,'7,2"'7&"8.4&;"$%&"/$,%"$24"%&$).2$K;&",2"'7&"-1%%&2'
8$%_&'="?,'7"%$'&)"%$23,23"/%.8"cO<DI)*/'"'."cP=SVV"I)*/'W

G24&%" '7&" -1%%&2'" [$J[." .//&%=" 7.?&]&%=" '7&" [.12-,;^)" -$)7" %&-&,J'" ,)" J%.'&-'&4" ,/" '7&" )$;&)
]$;1&)"%&41-&",2"'7&"/1'1%&W

W )>?@ <A8=9T ?H=T9BK8;@ A&B;IT;;&9<&T?@X&A=&:T;@;H=

+;8=?9H&EMO&89H=T?UK=?9H@

e2" '7&" J;$22,23" $JJ;,-$',.2)" )1K8,''&4" '." '7&" K.%.137)" [$J[." 7$)" )&'" .1'" '7&" /1;;" %$23&" ./
-.8812,'`"K&2&/,')"$24"J;$22,23"3$,2"$))18J',.2)"T&41-$',.2"J%.],),.2"$24";.-$;"Y.K"-%&$',.2=
/.%"&@$8J;&U"'7$'",'"K&;,&]&)"?,;;"K&"%&*1,%&4"$-%.))"'7&"4&]&;.J8&2'W

C&"124&%)'$24"'7$'"-.88&%-,$;"2&3.',$',.2)")1%%.124,23"'7&"-.)'"-.2'%,K1',.2)"'."'7&"K.%.137)^
$24"f6Z^)" %&*1,%&8&2')" $%&" )',;;" .2L3.,23" $24"?,;; 1;',8$'&;`" 2&&4" '." K&" %&-.2),4&%&4" ,2" '7&
-.2'&@'"./"'7&"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;".1'"'1%2"]$;1&)W

Page 342



N

Y )AUG;&9<&$@@KF:=?9H@

$@@KF:=?9H 09FF;H=
H]&%$;;")-7&8&
),g&"./"PMWP8")*/'

>7&"8.4&;"-1%%&2';`"%&/;&-')"$")-7&8&"),g&"./"PMWPP8 )*/'"f(Z"T.%"EWDS8 )*/'
feZUW"C&"124&%)'$24"'7$'"'7,)",) $--&J'$K;&"'."'7&"[.12-,;W

MNO P H)"%%-$Q#$).*1-*)$*
MRO P H)"%%-0.#$).*1-*)$*

:,2$2-,$;"!.4&; h
B'$'1)"./
%&J;$-&8&2'"7.8&
12,'"218K&%)W

\;&$)&"2.'&"'7$'"'7&";$'&)'"]&%),.2"./"'7&"8.4&;"'7$'"?&"7$]&"4.&)"2.'"%&/;&-'"'7&
-1%%&2'"-.88&%-,$;"2&3.',$',.2)"%&3$%4,23"'7&"218K&%"./"4&-$2'"$//.%4$K;&
12,')"'."K&"J%.],4&4".2"'7&"8$,2"$JJ%$,)&4"),'&W

>7&"8.4&;"-1%%&2';`"$))18&)"NDM"4&-$2'"$//.%4$K;&"12,')".2"'7&"8$,2"),'&"$24
7&2-&"$"%&8$,2,23"QMM"4&-$2'"$//.%4$K;&"12,')".//"'7,)"8$,2 ),'&W"0.?&]&%"?&
124&%)'$24"'7$'"'7&"-1%%&2'"$2',-,J$',.2",)"/.%"K&'?&&2"P<OLPVO"12,')"'."K&
4&;,]&%&4".//"'7&"8$,2"),'&"$'"B&$3%$]&"5.$4W

0.?&]&%"'7&".]&%$;;")*/'"./"4&-$2'"$//.%4$K;&"12,')".2"'7&"8$,2"),'&"?,;;"K&"$'
'7&")$8&";&]&; '7$' ,)"-1%%&2';`"$JJ%$,)&4",2"'7&"-1%%&2'"8.4&;="?7,-7"1)&)
]$;1&)"$24"-.)')".2"$ J&%")*/'"K$),)W

\%.-1%&8&2'
!&'7.4

>7,)"$4],-&",)"K$)&4".2"'7&"$))18J',.2"'7$'"$"J1K;,-"J%.-1%&8&2'"&@&%-,)&
?.1;4"2.'"2&&4"'."K&"124&%'$_&2"%&;$',23"'."'7&"4&;,]&%`"./"%&J;$-&8&2'
$//.%4$K;& 7.1),23W

e8J;,-$',.2"./
2&?").-,$;
7.1),23"J.;,-`".2
).-,$;"/.%"%&2'
12,')

e'"7$)"K&&2"$))18&4"'7$'"'7&"J%.J.)&4"2&?").-,$;"7.1),23"J.;,-`"?,;;"2.'"7$]&
$2",8J$-'".2"'7&"]$;1&".%"-.)'"./"'7&").-,$;"/.%"%&2'"12,')"'7$'"$%&"K&,23"%&'1%2&4
'."'7&"[.12-,; $)"'7&`"$%&"%&J;$-&8&2'"7.8&)W

\7$),23"./
%&J;$-&8&2'
7.8&)

>7&"4&;,]&%`"./"'7&"ODM"%&J;$-&8&2'"7.8&)")7.1;4"K&"J%,.%,',)&4".]&%"'7&
4&;,]&%`"./"'7&"$44,',.2$;"OSM"$//.%4$K;&"7.8&)W

e24&@$',.2"./"-$)7
J$`8&2')

e24&@$',.2",)"$JJ;,&4"'."J$`8&2')"'7$' $%&"2.'"8$4&"$'"'7&"$3%&&4"8,;&)'.2&W

e24&@$',.2"./
.]&%$3&"%$'&

e24&@$',.2",)",2-.%J.%$'&4",2'."'7&".]&%$3&"J%.],),.2)W

Page 343



D

\$%_,23"J%.],),.2 Z4&*1$'&"J$%_,23"J%.],),.2"%&;$',23"'."'7&"ODM"%&J;$-&8&2'"7.8&)"?,;;"K&
%&*1,%&4W

e'",)"124&%)'..4"'7$'"'7&"8$,2"),'& J;$22,23"$JJ;,-$',.2 ,2-.%J.%$'&) $ %&),4&2',$;
J$%_,23"%$',."./"MWD $24 '7$' '7&"B&$3%$]&"5.$4 J;$22,23"-.2)&2' T$-%.))"'7&
?7.;&")-7&8&U J%.],4&)"'7&")$8&"%$',.W

5&;,$K,;,'`"./"'7&
[#5("/,2$2-,$;
8.4&;

>7&"%&),41$;";$24"]$;1&"$JJ%.$-7"'$_&2 K`"[$J[.",)"-.2),4&%&4"'."K&"$"2.%8$;
8$%_&'"8&'7.4.;.3`"/.%"]$;1,23"4&]&;.J$K;&";$24="&)J&-,$;;`",2"'7&"$K)&2-&"./
4,%&-'"8$%_&'"-.8J$%$K;&)W

C&"7$]&"124&%'$_&2"$"7,37";&]&;"8.4&;"%&],&?"?,'7"*1&%,&)"$24"-.88&2')
4,%&-'&4"'."[#5(W"i&-&))$%`"$8&248&2')"7$]&"K&&2"8$4&"K`"[#5("$24
%&],)&4"8.4&;)"7$]&"K&&2"%&;&$)&4W"C&"7$]&"$3$,2"%&],&?&4"'7&"%&],)&4"8.4&;
>7&"8.4&;"%&)1;')"$JJ&$%"%.K1)'"?,'7")&2),',],'`"%&)1;')"$)"&@J&-'&4W e2";,2&"?,'7
.1%"&$%;,&%"%&-.88&24$',.2="?&"124&%)'$24"'7$'"!$g$%) 66\"7$) -.8J;&'&4 $
-.8J%&7&2),]&",24&J&24&2'"$14,'"./"'7&"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&; $24"'7$'"2."8$'&%,$;
-.2-&%2)"7$]&"K&&2"%$,)&4W

:,2$2-,$;"%&)1;') >7&"$4&*1$-`"./"'7&"[$J[.".//&%"7$)"K&&2"$))&))&4",2"%&;$',.2"'."'7&"%&)1;') ./
'7&"-1%%&2'"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;W P

#$)&4".2"&@,)',23"$))18J',.2)",2"'7&"8.4&;="$"%&),41$;";$24"]$;1&"./"cVWOS
8,;;,.2"J&%"$-%&",)"-$;-1;$'&4="&*1$',23"'. $"'.'$;"6#0:";$24"]$;1&"./"cPVQ
8,;;,.2W"">7,)"]$;1&",2-;14&)"2."3%.?'7".%"4,)-.12',23"T?7,-7"?&"-.2),4&%"'."K&
%.K1)'UW

0.?&]&%="'7&"-1%%&2'"8.4&;"&@-;14&)"]$;1&"/.%"'7&"%&J;$-&8&2'"T4&-$2'U"12,')
-.2'$,2&4"?,'7,2",'W"C&"-.2),4&%"'7$'"'7&%&")7.1;4"K&").8&"]$;1&"$''%,K1'$K;&"'.
'7&)&"12,')W

>7&"8.4&;"$;).",2-;14&)"'?."j\$`8&2')"'."B&$3%$]&"5.$4k"'.'$;;,23"c<<WN8W
C&"4.2^'"-.2),4&%"'7$'"'7&)&"-.)')")7.1;4"K&",2-;14&4"?,'7,2"'7&"8.4&;W

:,2$;;`="'7&"8.4&;"$))18&)"$"12,]&%)$;"J%./,'".2"-.)'";&]&;"./"QMd="?7,-7"?&
-.2),4&%"$JJ%.J%,$'&"/.%"'7&"J%,]$'&"%&),4&2',$;"12,')"K1'"'.."7,37",2"%&;$',.2"'.
'7&"-.88&%-,$;"$24"$//.%4$K;&"%&),4&2',$;")J$-&)W

C&"7$]&"%12"$"%&],)&4"8.4&;"?,'7"'7%&&"_&`"-7$23&)W

P (6$-S@TN-70.*.30*1-/"2$1-J$)%0".-)$J0$5$2U*2*G#$2-0.-3"/G010.H-#60%-*.*1,%0%-0%&-VB@S-W-7")-C??-4=8F=DF==:-0.3

X*)0*I1$-Y)"70#

Page 344



O

PW C&"7$]&"$''%,K1'&4"]$;1&"'."'7&"4&-$2'"12,')a"1),23"'7&"[$J[.
$//.%4$K;&")$;&)"%$'&)"J%&)&2'&4"?,'7,2"'7&"8.4&;"T?7,-7"?&%&")?,'-7&4
.//",2"'7&"8.4&;"/.%"'7&"4&-$2'"12,')U"?&"7$]&"%12"'7&"8.4&;"?,'7"'7&
,2-;1),.2 ./"]$;1&"/.%"'7&"4&-$2'"%&J;$-&8&2'"12,')W">7&"[$J[.
$//.%4$K;&")$;&)"%$'&)"$%&"cPQNI)*/'"/.%"'7&").-,$;"%&2'"12,')"$24
cQVNI)*/'"/.%"'7&",2'&%8&4,$'&"%&2'"12,')="K.'7"%&J%&)&2',23"'&21%&
]$;1&W

QW C&"7$]&"%&8.]&4"'7&"c<<WN8"j\$`8&2')"'."B&$3%$]&"5.$4k"-.)'W

<W C&"7$]&"$4Y1)'&4"'7&"4&]&;.J&%"J%./,'";&]&;)"'."QMd"T\%,]$'&
5&),4&2',$;U="PMd"T[.88&%-,$;U"$24"Dd"TZ//.%4$K;&"5&),4&2',$;UW

>7&"$4Y1)'&4";$24 ]$;1&"?,'7"'7,)"-7$23&",)"cPMWV<8"J&%"$-%&="&*1$',23"'. $ '.'$;
6#0:";$24"]$;1&"./"cQQD 8,;;,.2W

>7&".1'J1' ]$;1&"/%.8"'7&"8.4&;"4.&) 2.'"-.2),4&%"'7&";$24"$'"PP":$%8"6$2&=
?7,-7"?&"124&%)'$24"'."K&"J%,-&4"$'"$2"$44,',.2$;"cNWO8"$)"$3%&&4 K&'?&&2
[$J[."$24"6#0: .%"'7& B&$3%$]&"5.$4"0.1)&) /.%"?7,-7"'7&"-.2),4&%$',.2",)
$3%&&4"$'"cNMM=MMM"J;1)"$2"$44,',.2$;"/,]& 7.1)&)W Z;'7.137 '7&":$%8"6$2&
-.2),4&%$',.2",) $%31$K;` $'"'7&";.?&%"&24"./"$2",24&J&24&2'"8$%_&'")$;&"]$;1&
%$23&="'7,) ]$;1& ,)"-.2),4&%&4"$--&J'$K;&"'."6#0: $)"J$%'"./"$ ;$%3&")-$;&
)-7&8& ./"'7,)"2$'1%&W >7,)";$24"?,;; $--&;&%$'&"'7&"%$'&"./"4&-$2' ?,'7,2"'7&
)-7&8&"$24"?,;; /$-,;,'$'&"]$;1&".2"'7&"8$,2"),'&"?7,-7"8$` .'7&%?,)& 7$]&
K&&2";.)'"?,'7.1'"'7,)"$44,',.2$;"4&-$2'"),'&W

>7&"-.)'"J&%"12,'".K'$,2&4 /%.8"'7&"[#5( /,2$2-,$;"8.4&;"/.%"$").-,$;"%&2'
$//.%4$K;&"12,'",)"cPOS=SMM"T-.2)'%1-',.2"-.)'= -.2',23&2-`"9"J%./&)),.2$;"/&&)UW

>7&"'.'$;"218K&%"./"%&J;$-&8&2'").-,$;"%&2'"-.12-,;".?2&4"12,')",)"N<P="?7,-7
?,;;"J$%';`"K&"4&;,]&%&4".1'),4&"./"'7&"8$,2"),'&"$JJ%$,)&4"K`"'7&"/,2$2-,$;
8.4&;W"G),23"$"J%.L%$'$"-$;-1;$',.2="'7,)"&*1$'&)"'."$"'.'$;"-.)'"./"cEQWDP8"/.%
'7&"J%.],),.2"./"'7&"N<P"%&J;$-&8&2'"[.12-,;".?2&4").-,$;"%&2'"12,')"?7&2
1),23"'7,)"J&%"12,'"$]&%$3&"-.)'W"">7&"J%.],),.2"./"'7&)&"12,')"K`"[$J[.")$]&)
'7&"2&&4"/.%"6#0:"'."4&;,]&%"'7&)&"12,')",')&;/= ?7,-7"?.1;4"7$]&"K&&2"$
%&*1,%&8&2'"/.%"6#0:"'."$-7,&]&"/1;;"]$-$2'"J.))&)),.2"./"'7&";$24W

>7&"$]&%$3&"),g&"./"'7&").-,$;"/.%"%&2'"$//.%4$K;&"12,')",2"'7&"8.4&;",)"P=MMM)*/'
f(Z"TENQ)*/'"feZI"OVD)*/'"ieZUW

Z2"$44,',.2$;"NV"5\"12,')"?,;;"$;)."/.%8"J$%'"./"'7&"-.2),4&%$',.2"$24"?&

Page 345



V

124&%)'$24 '7&)&"?,;;"%&J;$-&"'7&"-1%%&2'"NV"$//.%4$K;&"12,')"7&;4"K`"5\)W">7&
$44,',.2$;"-.)'"/.%"'7&)&"NV").-,$;"/.%"%&2'"5\"12,')",)"cPMWPQ8Q 1),23"'7&
$]&%$3&"-.)'"J&%"12,'"./"cPOS=SMM"T$)"J&%"'7&"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;UW""Z;'7.137"'7&
]$;1&"./"'7&)&"12,')"?,;;"1;',8$'&;`";,&"?,'7"'7&"5\)="'7&"J%.],),.2"./"'7&)&"12,')
K`"[$J[.")$]&)"'7&"2&&4"/.%"6#0:"'."4&;,]&%"'7&)&"12,')",')&;/="?7,-7"?.1;4
7$]&"K&&2"$"%&*1,%&8&2'"/.%"6#0:"'."$-7,&]&"/1;;"]$-$2'"J.))&)),.2"./"'7&";$24W

>7&"8$%_&'"]$;1&"./"'7&"$44,',.2$;"POP"7.8&)"/.%8,23"J$%'"./"'7&"[.2),4&%$',.2
,)"cPMS8<

e'",)"124&%)'..4"'7$'"]$;1&"/.%"'7&)&"12,')"?,;;"K&"$-7,&]&4"K`"6#0:"$)"J$%'"./
'7&"-.2),4&%$',.2"K`"?$`"./"&,'7&%a

! '7&")$;&"./"'7&"12,')"$'"8$%_&'"]$;1&b".%
! '7&"1)&"./"'7&"12,')"$)"%&J;$-&8&2'";&$)&7.;4&%"7.8&)= $24"'7&%&/.%&

8&&',23"6#0:"]$-$2'"J.))&)),.2"-.)')"T&*1,'`".//&%"'.";&$)&7.;4&%)U
?,'7"'7&"$44,',.2$;"&*1,'`"K&,23"%&'$,2&4"K`"6#0:W

H/"'7&"POP";&$)&7.;4&%"12,')"PPO"$%&"%&),4&2'";&$)&7.;4&%"12,')"$24"NS"$%&"2.2L
%&),4&2'";&$)&7.;4&%"12,')W"e/"'7&)&"PPO 2&?"7.8&)"?&%&"$;;"'."K&"1)&4"'."%&J;$-&
'7&"&@,)',23 12,')"?&"124&%)'$24"'7&"&*1,'`",2"'7&"2&?"7.8&)"8$`"K&"$''%,K1'&4
$)"/.;;.?)a

PPO"5&),4&2'"6&$)&7.;4&%) S

:1;;"!$%_&'"l$;1&a"cOQWPD8
(*1,'`"H//&%"'.";&$)&7.;4&%)"a"cSOWEP8
5&'$,2&4"[.12-,;"(*1,'`a"c"QSWQS8

0.?&]&%"?&"124&%)'$24"6#0:"?,)7&)"'."4,)-.12'"'7&"%&'$,2&4"&*1,'`"%&;$',23"'.
'7&"PPO"-1%%&2'"%&),4&2'";&$)&7.;4&%"12,')"'."),81;$'&"'7&"J&%,.4".]&%"?7,-7"'7&
[.12-,;"?,;;"K&"$K;&"'."%&$;,)&"'7&"&*1,'`W"C&"7$]&"8$4&"2."$;;.?$2-&"/.%
-$J,'$;"]$;1&"3%.?'7".]&%"'7,)"J&%,.4W"6#0:"7$)"%&41-&4"'7,)"]$;1&"/%.8
cQSWQS8"'."cPNWN<8W">7,)"J%.],4&)"$"%&41-&4"'.'$;"]$;1&"./"'7&"POP";&$)&7.;4&%
12,')"'."6#0:"$)"J$%'"./"'7&"-.2),4&%$',.2"./"cENW<O8W

>7&"[.12-,;"?,;;"$;)."%&-&,]&"$"218K&%"./"-$%"J$%_,23")J$-&)="$' '7,)")'$3&"$

Q (6$%$-3*13+1*#0".-0%-*-G)"-)*#*-10.$*)-3*13+1*#0".-G$)7")/$2-+%0.H---3"%#-G$)-+.0#-*.2-*GG103*I1$-.+/I$)-"7-+.0#%

< (60%-70H+)$-)$1*#$%-#"-=EE9-/*)Z$#-J*1+$F
S R#-0%-+.2$)%#""2-#6*#-56$.-3*13+1*#0.H-$[+0#,-%#*Z$%-0.-#6$-+.0#%-*-20%3"+.#-#"-/*)Z$#-J*1+$-/*,-I$-0.3")G")*#$2F

(6$-$[+0#,-I)$*Z2"5.-70H+)$%-*I"J$-6*J$-I$$.-G)"J02$2-#"-+%-I,-?@AB-0.-#6$-%G)$*2%6$$#%-\?A-N[+0#,]OG)01DE=D

.".-)$%02$.#%FQ1%^-*.2-\?A-N[+0#,] OG)01-DE=D-)$%02$.#%^

Page 346



E

]$;1&"7$)"2.'"K&&2"$''%,K1'&4"'."'7&8="4.,23")."?.1;4",2-%&$)&"'7&"]$;1&"./"'7&
-.2),4&%$',.2W

l$;1&"./"POP 2.2L
).-,$;"%&2'"12,')

C&"7$]&"1)&4")J%&$4)7&&')"J%.],4&4"K`"6#0:"'7$'"-$;-1;$'&"'7&"/1;;"8$%_&'
]$;1&"./"'7&"POP"12,')"K$)&4".2"'7& 4&/,2&4"12,'"8,@"?,'7,2"'7&")J%&$4)7&&')W
C&"124&%)'$24"'7&)&"]$;1&)"'."7$]&"K&&2"J%.],4&4"'."6#0:"K`"[$J[.="$24"$%&
$'"$";&]&;"'7$'"6#0:",)"-.8/.%'$K;&"?,'7W

=-I$2-<WEEKEEE ] D=-+.0#%
D-I$2-<>_>KEEE P `>-+.0#%
8-I$2-<a>EKEEE P DW-+.0#%
W-I$2-<_D`KEEE P D +.0#%
8-I$2-6"+%$-<_>EKEEE ]Db--+.0#%
W-I$2-6"+%$-<_b>KEEE ]=E-+.0#%

l$;1&"./
Z//.%4$K;&"12,')
?,'7,2"8.4&;W

>7&".1'J1'";$24"]$;1&"/%.8"'7&"8.4&;",)"$//&-'&4"K`"'7&"$//.%4$K;&"%$'&)",2"'7&
8.4&;"TcQVNI)*/'"/.%",2'&%8&4,$'&"12,')"$24"cPQNI)*/'"/.%").-,$; %&2'"12,')UW""C&
124&%)'$24"'7$'"$;'7.137 [$J[."-.2),4&%) '7$'"2."]$;1&")7.1;4"K&"$''%,K1'&4"'.
'7&)&"12,') ,2"'7&"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;="6#0:",) )$',)/,&4"?,'7"J1'',23"]$;1&",2'."'7&
8.4&;"$'"'7&)&"%$'&)W

[.)'"./"NVE ).-,$;
%&2'"12,')"/.%8,23
J$%'"./
-.2),4&%$',.2

C&"7$]&"'$_&2"'7&"J&%"12,'"-.)'"4,%&-';`"/%.8"'7&"8.4&;"/.%"'7&").-,$;"/.%"%&2'
12,')",2"'7&"8.4&;"$24"$JJ;,&4"'7,)"'."'7&"'.'$;"218K&%"./"%&J;$-&8&2'").-,$;"/.%
%&2'"12,')

6#0:"2&&4)"'."K&")$',)/,&4"?,'7"'7&"$))18J',.2"'7$'"'7&"-.)'"/.%"'7&").-,$;"/.%
%&2'"12,')".2"'7&"B&$3%$]&"),'&",)"$'"'7&")$8&";&]&;"$)"'7&"-.)')"/.%"'7&").-,$;"/.%
%&2'"12,')".2"'7&"8$,2"),'&="$24"'7$'"'7&"$]&%$3&"12,'"),g&"$-%.))"'7&"'?."),'&)",)
-;.)&;`"-.8J$%$K;&W

\%.J&%',&)"$' :$%8
6$2&"$24
B&$3%$]&"5.$4

e'",)"124&%)'..4 '7$'"'7& :$%8"6$2&"),'& ,) K&,23"K.137'"K`"[$J[."/%.8"6#0:
/.%"$"J%,-&"./"cNWO8 $24"'7$' '7&"J%.J&%',&)"$'"V$"$24"K="PM"9"PQ"B&$3%$]&"5.$4
$24"P"5,-_&''"6$2& T'7&"B&$3%$]&"5.$4"0.1)&)U"$%& K&,23"J1%-7$)&4"/.%
cNMM=MMM"J;1) $2"$44,',.2$;"/,]& ).-,$;"%&2'"12,')".2"'7&"8$,2"),'&"$24"'7$'"'7&)&
J%.J&%',&)"?,;;"K&"1)&4"'."/$-,;,'$'&"'7&"4&-$2'"./"'7&"&@,)',23"7.8&)W

f%.?'7"$24
4,)-.12',23

>7& ;$24"]$;1&"-$;-1;$'&4",2"'7&"8.4&;",)"4&%,]&4"/%.8"-.)')"$24"%&]&21&)"'7$'
4."2.'",2-;14&"$2`"3%.?'7 h ,2-;14,23"3%.?'7"?.1;4"K&";,_&;`"'.",2-%&$)&
'7& ;$24 ]$;1&W

0.?&]&%= '7& ;$24"]$;1& $;)."&@-;14&)"$2`"$;;.?$2-&"/.%"'7&"',8&"]$;1&"./
8.2&` h '7$'",)="2."4,)-.12',23"7$)"K&&2"$JJ;,&4"'."'7&"-$)7"/;.?".%"-$J,'$;
%&-&,J')",2"/1'1%&"J&%,.4)="'7,)"?.1;4"%&41-&"'7&"J%&)&2' ]$;1&"./"'7&";$24W

Page 347



PM

e2")188$%`="$))18,23"'7$'"'7&"4.?2?$%4"]$;1&",8J$-'"./"4,)-.12',23 ,) 3%&$'&%
'7$2"$2`",2-%&$)&"$-7,&]&4"'7%.137"$44,23"3%.?'7="'7&";$24"]$;1&"?.1;4"%&41-&W

[.2',23&2-`=
J%./&)),.2$;"/&&)
$24"4&]&;.J8&2'
8$2$3&8&2'"/&&)

>7&"8.4&;",)"K$)&4".2"-.2',23&2-`"$24"/&&"%$'&)"$)"/.;;.?)a

(2$K;,23"C.%_)"Nd
H//"B,'&"5.$4"e8J%.]&8&2')"Nd
5.$4="B'%1-'1%$;"$24"[,],;"e2/%$)'%1-'1%&"Nd
\1K;,-">%$2)J.%'b"5$,;"e2/%$)'%1-'1%&="#1)"$24"[`-;&"\%.],),.2)"PNd
G',;,',&)"I"B,'&"B&%],-&)"e2/%$)'%1-'1%&"Nd
e2/%$)'%1-'1%&"ZK2.%8$;)"PNd
i&?"#1,;4,23) h ZK2.%8$;)"PMd
[$%"\$%_,23 L K$)&8&2'"T$;;"1)&)U""PNd
\1K;,-"BJ$-&)"Nd
[.2)'%1-',.2"[.2',23&2-`"Nd
+&]&;.J8&2'"[.2',23&2-`"Qd
\%./&)),.2$;":&&)"PQWNdW

C&"-.2),4&%"'7&)&"%$'&)"'."K&"/$,%"$24"%&$).2$K;&"3,]&2"'7&"2$'1%&"./"'7&
)-7&8&W Z"-.2)'%1-',.2"-.2',23&2-`"./"Nd",) %&$).2$K;& 3,]&2"'7&")-$;&=
-.8J;&@,'`"$24"',8,23)"./"'7&")-7&8&W">7&"7,37&%"%$'&)"%&;$',23"'.",2/%$)'%1-'1%&
-.)')"$%&"4&&8&4"'."K&"%&/;&-',]&"./"'7&"12-&%'$,2'`")1%%.124,23"'7&"&@$-'";&]&;
./"'7&)& -.)')"$)"'7&`"$%&"12,*1&"'."'7,)")-7&8&W

[$'&3.%`"$24
]$;1&"./
$44,',.2$;
$//.%4$K;&"7.8&)

>7&"-.2),4&%$',.2"7$)"K&&2"$))&))&4",2"%&;$',.2"'."'7&"-1%%&2'".1'L'1%2";$24
]$;1&"/%.8"'7&"/,2$2-,$;"8.4&;"$24 ,) '7&%&/.%&"K$)&4".2"'7&"-1%%&2'",2J1')",2
'7&"8.4&;W

e'",)"124&%)'..4"'7$'"'7&"$44,',.2$;"$//.%4$K;&"7.8&)"?,;;"'$_&"'7&"/.%8"./
)7$%&4"&*1,'`"12,')"$24"'7,)",)"%&/;&-'&4",2"'7&"8.4&;W"">7&)&"12,')"$%&"2.'
'%$2)/&%%&4"'."'7&"[.12-,;"$24"'7&"[.12-,;"4.&)2^'"J$%',-,J$'&",2"'7&"]$;1&"./
'7&)&"12,')W

F1)',/,-$',.2
./I-7$23&",2
-.2)'%1-',.2"-.)'
;&]&;)

f,]&2"'7&")-$;&"$24"-.8J;&@,'`"./"'7&")-7&8&=",'"?.1;4"2.'"K&"J%$-',-$;"/.%"&$-7
J$%'`"'."7$]&",')".?2"-.)'"-.2)1;'$2'"K1,;4"$2",24&J&24&2'"-.)'"J;$2W

[;&$%;`="'7&"&//&-'"./"$2`"4&],$',.2)"/%.8"'7&"-1%%&2'"-.)')",2"'7&"8.4&;"?.1;4
2&&4"'."K&"-.2),4&%&4"?7&2"4&'&%8,2,23"%&),41$;";$24"]$;1&W

Page 348



PP

+&]&;.J&%^)"J%./,'
./"QMd".2";$24
$24"$//.%4$K;&
12,')

>7&"8.4&;"-1%%&2';`"$))18&)"'7&"4&]&;.J&%"J%./,'";&]&;)".2"-.)'"$24";$24"$'
QMda

QMd",)"$'"'7&"7,37&%"&24 ./"'7&"$--&J'$K;& J%./,'"8$%3,2 $24"%&/;&-')"'7&"%,)_
J%./,;&"$24")-$;&"./"'7&"J%.Y&-'W"C&"?.1;4"-.2),4&%"'7,)"'."K&"'.."7,37"/.%"'7&
$//.%4$K;& $24"-.88&%-,$; 12,')"$24"7$]&"%12"'7&"8.4&;"?,'7"'7&"/.;;.?,23
4&]&;.J&%"J%./,'";&]&;)a

\%,]$'&"5&),4&2',$;a QMd
Z//.%4$K;&"5&),4&2',$;a"Dd
[.88&%-,$;a"PMdW

C&"124&%)'$24"'7$'"6#0:",)"-.8/.%'$K;&"?,'7"'7&)&"%&],)&4 ;&]&;)"./ 4&]&;.J&%
J%./,' $24"-.2),4&%)"'7&"QMd";&]&;"$JJ;,-$K;&"'."'7&"J%,]$'&"%&),4&2',$;"/$,% 3,]&2
'7&"*1$2'18= 2$'1%&I-.8J;&@,'` $24"%,)_"J%./,;& ./"'7&")-7&8&W

Page 349



P
age 350



P
age 351



P
age 352



P
age 353



P
age 354



P
age 355



P
age 356



P
age 357



P
age 358



P
age 359



P
age 360



P
age 361



P
age 362



P
age 363



P
age 364



P
age 365



P
age 366



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
1 

 

         
 

                     

��
��

���
��

	

��

�
��


�
		

�	
	�

��
�


 

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

/E
ar

ls
 C

ou
rt

 P
ot

en
tia

l R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 

Page 367



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
2  

O
ve

ra
ll 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
E

q
u

al
it

y 
Im

p
ac

t 
A

n
al

ys
is

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r 
an

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

20
12

-2
01

3 

N
am

e 
an

d
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
p

o
lic

y,
 s

tr
at

eg
y,

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

, 
p

ro
je

ct
, a

ct
iv

it
y,

 o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
 

T
h

e 
E

ar
ls

 C
o

u
rt

 R
ed

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

ro
je

ct
  

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

is
 p

ro
po

si
ng

 to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
 C

on
di

tio
na

l L
an

d 
S

al
e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t (

C
LS

A
) 

to
 g

ra
nt

 a
n 

op
tio

n 
to

 E
C

 
P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ce
rt

ai
n 

co
un

ci
l-o

w
ne

d 
la

nd
 w

ith
in

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
sc

he
m

e 
th

at
 c

ov
er

s 
th

e 
E

ar
ls

 C
ou

rt
 E

xh
ib

iti
on

 C
en

tr
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

ca
r 

pa
rk

 (
bo

th
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 C
ap

ita
l a

nd
 C

ou
nt

ie
s 

pl
c,

 
w

hi
ch

 o
w

ns
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s)
 a

nd
 th

e 
T

fL
-o

w
ne

d 
Li

lli
e 

B
rid

ge
 D

ep
ot

. T
he

 c
ou

nc
il-

ow
ne

d 
la

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
W

es
t 

K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
es

. 
  F

ro
m

 6
th

 J
an

ua
ry

 –
 1

2th
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
un

de
rt

oo
k 

a 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
to

 s
ee

k 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 v
ie

w
s 

on
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
in

 th
e 

w
id

er
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

sc
he

m
e.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
is

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

al
so

 in
vi

te
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
a 

dr
af

t E
qu

al
iti

es
 Im

pa
ct

 A
na

ly
si

s 
(E

IA
) 

th
at

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

on
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 w

eb
si

te
. T

he
 d

ra
ft 

E
IA

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
as

se
ss

, b
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s,

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
en

te
rin

g 
in

to
 th

e 
C

LS
A

 o
n 

th
os

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t –
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
pu

pi
ls

 a
t t

he
 Q

ue
en

s 
M

ill
 S

ch
oo

l t
em

po
ra

ril
y 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 
S

ch
oo

l s
ite

. 
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
up

da
te

d 
th

e 
E

IA
 a

nd
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

fin
ed

 it
s 

pr
op

os
al

s.
  

  
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

  
N

am
e:

 S
ar

ah
 L

ov
el

l  
P

os
iti

on
: P

ro
je

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r 
E

m
ai

l: 
 s

ar
ah

.lo
ve

ll@
lb

hf
.g

ov
.u

k 
T

el
ep

ho
ne

 N
o:

 0
20

 8
75

3 
55

71
 

 
D

at
e 

o
f 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fi

n
al

 
E

IA
 

17
th

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
2 

 

Page 368



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
3 

  S
ec

ti
o

n
 0

2 
 

S
co

p
in

g
 o

f 
F

u
ll 

E
IA

 
P

la
n

 f
o

r 
co

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
S

ta
rt

 d
at

e 
of

 E
IA

: 1
8th

 J
un

e 
20

11
 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r:

 S
ar

ah
 L

ov
el

l 
 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
p

o
lic

y,
 

st
ra

te
g

y,
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
, 

p
ro

je
ct

, a
ct

iv
it

y,
 o

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

lo
o

ki
n

g
 t

o
 

ac
h

ie
ve

?
 

T
h

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
in

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
 A

fte
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 y
ea

rs
 o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 

es
ta

te
s,

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l a
re

a 
an

d 
E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
/ C

ap
ita

l a
nd

 C
ou

nt
ie

s,
 c

ou
nc

il 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
re

co
m

m
en

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
ha

t i
t e

nt
er

s 
in

to
 th

e 
C

LS
A

 w
ith

 E
C

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
re

e 
ke

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
:  

 
1.

 
T

ha
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
en

te
r 

in
to

 C
on

di
tio

na
l L

an
d 

S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 E
C

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

LP
. 

 
2.

 
T

ha
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ea

rly
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

by
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
of

 la
nd

 fo
rm

er
ly

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

 G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 
S

ch
oo

l. 
 

3.
 

T
ha

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

sa
le

 to
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
of

 la
nd

 a
t 1

1 
F

ar
m

 L
an

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

 T
h

e 
P

o
te

n
ti

al
 Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
th

e 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 B
el

ow
, t

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

ss
es

se
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s.

 ‘+
’ i

nd
ic

at
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 im

pa
ct

, ‘
-’ 

in
di

ca
te

s 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 a

nd
 ‘/

’ i
nd

ic
at

es
 a

 n
eu

tr
al

 im
pa

ct
. ‘

L’
, ‘

M
’ a

nd
 ‘H

’ i
nd

ic
at

e 
th

at
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 is
 o

f l
ow

, m
ed

iu
m

 
or

 h
ig

h 
re

le
va

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n.

 A
ny

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

lis
te

d 
af

te
r 

ea
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
im

pa
ct

. 
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 1
 

 
• 

T
ha

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

en
te

r 
in

to
 C

on
di

tio
na

l L
an

d 
S

al
e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
LP

. 
 P

ro
te

ct
ed

 
C

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

A
g

e 
 

 
W

he
re

 a
ge

 is
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
, i

t r
ef

er
s 

to
 p

er
so

ns
 o

f a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
ge

 (
e.

g.
 3

2 

Page 369



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
4 

 
  -                                  

  H
                                  

ye
ar

 o
ld

s)
 o

r 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ge
s 

(e
.g

. 1
8 

- 
30

 y
ea

r 
ol

ds
).

 
 (1

) 
T

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

in
g 

to
 le

av
e 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

es
 o

n 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

fo
r 

el
de

rly
 r

es
id

en
ts

 th
an

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
. P

ac
ki

ng
, m

ov
in

g 
an

d 
un

pa
ck

in
g 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

fo
r 

su
ch

 p
eo

pl
e.

 E
ld

er
ly

 r
es

id
en

ts
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

su
ffe

r 
gr

ea
te

r 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l e

ffe
ct

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
re

ss
 a

nd
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 h

av
in

g 
to

 m
ov

e,
 a

nd
 a

s 
re

ga
rd

s 
liv

in
g 

in
 a

n 
in

iti
al

ly
 u

nf
am

ili
ar

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t (
af

te
r 

m
ov

in
g)

. F
ur

th
er

, e
ld

er
ly

 r
es

id
en

ts
 m

ay
 r

el
y 

m
or

e 
on

 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rs

 a
nd

 n
ea

rb
y 

fa
m

ily
 fo

r 
su

pp
or

t, 
an

d 
m

ov
in

g 
ho

m
e 

m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 

th
es

e 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
. 4

2 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 r
ai

se
d 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 h
av

in
g 

to
 m

ov
e,

 g
iv

en
 th

ei
r 

ag
e.

 4
9 

ot
he

r 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 
co

nc
er

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
ty

pe
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 fa
m

ily
 m

em
be

rs
, o

r 
as

 a
 g

en
er

al
 m

at
te

r.
 

 � 
E

ac
h 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r,

 w
ho

 w
ill

 
he

lp
 th

em
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

-h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 r
e-

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, i

nf
or

m
in

g 
th

em
 a

bo
ut

 
th

e 
re

-h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 m
ov

e 
pr

oc
es

s,
 k

ee
pi

ng
 th

em
 u

pd
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 m
ov

e 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 a
ss

is
t e

ld
er

ly
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
he

n 
m

ov
in

g 
ho

m
e.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

is
 s

up
po

rt
 w

ill
 -

 if
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 -
 ta

ke
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
llo

ca
tin

g 
a 

pa
ck

in
g 

an
d 

un
pa

ck
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 h
el

p 
el

de
rly

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 m
ov

e,
 o

r 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

R
e-

H
ou

si
ng

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 ti
m

e 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 a

nd
/o

r 
th

e 
re

si
de

nt
’s

 
fa

m
ily

 / 
ca

re
r 

/ s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k.
   

 � 
T

he
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 s

ig
n 

ol
de

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

up
 to

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 ‘a

dv
oc

at
e 

sc
he

m
e.

’ U
nd

er
 th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
an

 o
ld

er
 r

es
id

en
t 

ca
n 

no
m

in
at

e 
an

 ‘a
dv

oc
at

e’
 (

us
ua

lly
 a

 s
on

 o
r 

da
ug

ht
er

),
 w

ho
 c

an
 th

en
 

lia
is

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
to

 m
ak

e 
al

l t
he

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

m
ov

e,
 a

nd
 h

an
dl

e 
re

la
te

d 
m

at
te

rs
, o

n 
th

e 
ol

de
r 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 b

eh
al

f. 
 

� 
W

he
re

 r
es

id
en

ts
 n

ee
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

ca
n 

re
fe

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 o

th
er

 c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
he

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

A
du

lt 

Page 370



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
5 

                     -               

                   
 

 H
               

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
F

lo
at

in
g 

S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 w

hi
ch

 o
ffe

r 
fr

ee
 s

up
po

rt
 

to
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 h

el
p 

th
em

 w
ith

 m
an

y 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 th
ei

r 
liv

es
. T

hi
s 

su
pp

or
t c

an
 in

cl
ud

e:
 h

el
pi

ng
 r

es
id

en
ts

 s
et

tle
 in

to
 a

 n
ew

 h
om

e,
 h

el
pi

ng
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
st

ay
 in

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 fr
ie

nd
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
, r

ep
or

tin
g 

re
pa

irs
, 

so
rt

in
g 

ou
t r

en
t a

nd
 o

th
er

 te
na

nc
y 

is
su

es
, f

ill
in

g 
in

 fo
rm

s 
an

d 
w

rit
in

g 
le

tte
rs

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ab
ou

t o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
al

so
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
co

m
pl

et
es

 a
 p

os
t-

m
ov

e 
vi

si
t 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 to

 s
ee

 if
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 h

as
 s

et
tle

d 
in

to
 th

ei
r 

ne
w

 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

to
 s

ee
 if

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
an

y 
co

nc
er

ns
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 If
 

a 
re

si
de

nt
 is

 h
av

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t p

ro
bl

em
s,

 th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 
al

lo
ca

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

th
em

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 fr

om
 A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 
th

e 
F

lo
at

in
g 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
ab

ov
e.

  
 � 

It 
is

 a
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

LS
A

 a
nd

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t’s
 L

oc
al

 L
et

tin
gs

 P
ol

ic
y 

th
at

, w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ov
ed

 in
 g

ro
up

s 
so

 a
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

su
pp

or
t n

et
w

or
ks

 a
re

 
ke

pt
 in

ta
ct

. A
 n

ee
ds

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ill
 h

el
p 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

ea
ch

 r
es

id
en

t w
an

ts
 to

 m
ov

e 
w

ith
.  

 (2
) 

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
of

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 o

ffe
re

d 
a 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

ho
m

e 
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
ay

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

fo
r 

el
de

rly
 p

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
th

an
 

fo
r 

ot
he

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s.
 E

ld
er

ly
 p

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
m

ay
 fi

nd
 th

is
 m

or
e 

st
re

ss
fu

l, 
an

d 
m

ay
 lo

se
 lo

ca
l s

up
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
ks

 if
 th

ey
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 fi
nd

 a
 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 P

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

el
de

rly
 r

el
at

iv
es

 
ne

ar
by

 m
ay

 fi
nd

 it
 h

ar
de

r 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
r 

ca
re

 fo
r 

th
em

 (
on

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

si
de

nt
 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

is
 is

su
e)

. F
am

ili
es

 w
ith

 s
ch

oo
l-a

ge
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 a
re

 p
riv

at
e 

te
na

nt
s 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
su

ffe
r 

a 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 if
 th

ey
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 fi
nd

 a
 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 

 � 
P

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
rs

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
ei

r 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 c
an

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

e-
ho

us
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

. 
W

he
re

 r
es

id
en

ts
 c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 a

 c
le

ar
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ill

 h
el

p 
th

em
 to

 fi
nd

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. H

ow
ev

er
, b

ey
on

d 
th

is
, o

ffi
ce

rs
 d

o 
no

t c
on

si
de

r 
th

at
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

Page 371



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
6 

       
 

-       +      +              
/ a

n
d

 +
 

        H
      

 
H

      H
              H
 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 fu

rt
he

r 
m

iti
ga

te
 a

ny
 a

ge
-r

el
at

ed
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

pr
iv

at
e 

te
na

nt
s.

 
 (3

) 
If 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
oe

s 
ah

ea
d,

 c
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
-h

ou
se

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

. F
ro

m
 th

e 
po

in
t o

f v
ie

w
 o

f a
ge

, t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 v
ar

y 
fr

om
 c

as
e 

to
 c

as
e:

 
 

(3
a)

 F
or

 a
n 

ol
de

r 
co

up
le

 o
r 

an
 o

ld
er

 s
in

gl
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ho
se

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
ha

ve
 le

ft 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ow

 o
cc

up
yi

ng
 a

 la
rg

e 
fla

t o
r 

ho
us

e,
 

th
e 

re
su

lt 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

sm
al

le
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 
(a

lb
ei

t t
ha

t t
he

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

ho
m

e 
w

ith
 o

ne
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 b
ed

ro
om

 
ab

ov
e 

th
ei

r 
ne

ed
).

 T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
su

ch
 

pe
op

le
.  

 (3
b

) 
F

or
 a

 y
ou

ng
er

 c
ou

pl
e 

or
 a

 y
ou

ng
er

 s
in

gl
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

se
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
is

 o
ve

r-
oc

cu
pi

ed
, t

he
 r

es
ul

t w
ou

ld
 

be
 th

at
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

a 
ne

w
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

th
at

 m
ee

ts
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

s 
(u

p 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f a
 5

-b
ed

ro
om

 p
ro

pe
rt

y)
. T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
.  

 (4
) 

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
 (

as
 r

eg
ar

ds
 c

om
m

on
 a

re
as

, l
ift

s,
 le

ve
l 

ac
ce

ss
, a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
ro

ut
es

 to
 h

om
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a)

, w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ol

de
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 a

ge
-r

el
at

ed
 m

ob
ili

ty
 im

pa
irm

en
ts

, 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

pa
re

nt
s 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 T
he

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 to

 n
ew

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

D
oc

um
en

t M
 

- 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 a
nd

 U
se

 o
f B

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 in
 th

e 
Li

fe
tim

e 
H

om
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

T
he

se
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
re

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

n 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
pp

lie
d 

w
he

n 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
es

ta
te

s 
w

er
e 

bu
ilt

. T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
10

%
 o

f w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r 

al
l 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

w
ho

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

an
 in

di
vi

du
al

 n
ee

ds
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

ar
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 r
eq

ui
re

 it
.  

  (5
) 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
e 

re
si

de
nt

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

ho
m

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 a

da
pt

ed
 d

ue
 to

 th
ei

r 
ag

e.
 A

da
pt

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 

Page 372



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
7 

                 
+ 

an
d

 -
 

       -           

                 M
        M
           

ho
m

es
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
pi

st
’s

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 r
es

id
en

t’s
 n

ee
ds

. T
ho

se
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

ho
m

es
 to

 
w

hi
ch

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e,

 a
nd

 w
ho

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 n

ee
d 

th
os

e 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

, w
ill

 h
av

e 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
es

. T
ho

se
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 a

ss
es

se
d 

to
 n

ee
d 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

T
he

ra
pi

st
, b

ut
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 li
vi

ng
 in

 h
om

es
 w

ith
 th

os
e 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
, w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
em

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 fo

r 
th

ei
r 

ne
w

 h
om

e.
 O

ve
ra

ll,
 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 th

is
 a

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
ei

th
er

 a
 

ne
ut

ra
l o

r 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
el

de
rly

 r
es

id
en

ts
. 

 (6
) 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

 th
e 

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

 &
 F

ul
ha

m
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 F
or

um
 

an
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

on
su

lte
es

 r
ai

se
d 

is
su

es
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
he

al
th

 / 
so

ci
al

 / 
co

m
m

un
ity

 / 
re

ta
il 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 b

us
 r

ou
te

s.
 It

 is
 

no
t p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 b

e 
pr

ec
is

e 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 fa

r 
ea

ch
 r

es
id

en
t w

ho
 w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 m

ov
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

: 
 

(6
a)

 I
f 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 n

ew
 h

om
e 

is
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

si
te

 (
bo

un
de

d 
by

 
W

es
t 

C
ro

m
w

el
l 

R
oa

d,
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 l

in
e,

 N
or

th
 E

nd
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

Li
lli

e 
R

oa
d)

 th
en

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 m
ay

 e
nd

 u
p 

be
in

g 
cl

os
er

 to
 o

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
aw

ay
 

fr
om

 
ex

is
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(t
he

 
m

ax
im

um
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
di

st
an

ce
 

be
in

g 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

25
0m

),
 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
pr

ec
is

el
y 

w
he

re
 

th
ei

r 
ne

w
 

ho
m

e 
is

 lo
ca

te
d.

 T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f 
th

is
 m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
fo

r 
el

de
rly

 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 a
nd

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
  

 (6
b

) A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

20
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

-p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
at

 th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

si
te

. T
he

 fu
rt

he
st

 
di

st
an

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

fu
rt

he
st

 e
dg

e 
of

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 th

e 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
si

te
 is

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

80
0m

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ar

es
t 

di
st

an
ce

 is
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
32

0m
. A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
pl

an
s,

 r
e-

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
 a

 b
lo

ck
 a

t t
he

 r
ea

r 
of

 th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

si
te

. A
m

on
gs

t t
ho

se
 r

e-
ho

us
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
si

te
, t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 s
ho

ps
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

fe
lt 

m
or

e 
by

 
el

de
rly

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

  
 

� 
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 a
ls

o 
gi

ve
 r

is
e 

to
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
ne

w
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

Page 373



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
8 

              -    -     
+/

-             

              M
    M
     H
             

pr
op

os
ed

 S
po

rt
s 

an
d 

Le
is

ur
e 

H
ub

. T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 h
el

p 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 e
nd

 u
p 

m
ov

in
g 

fu
rt

he
r 

aw
ay

 
fr

om
 e

xi
st

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

 
� 

T
he

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 n
ew

 h
ea

lth
 fa

ci
lit

y 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
T

he
 n

ew
 h

ea
lth

 fa
ci

lit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

so
 a

s 
to

 b
e 

ea
si

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
fr

om
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

id
er

 c
at

ch
m

en
t a

re
a 

th
at

 it
 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 s

er
ve

. T
he

 h
ea

lth
 fa

ci
lit

y 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

, 
am

on
g 

ot
he

r 
th

in
gs

, c
on

su
lti

ng
/e

xa
m

in
at

io
n/

tr
ea

tm
en

t s
pa

ce
, 

di
st

ric
t n

ur
si

ng
, h

ea
lth

 v
is

iti
ng

, d
ia

gn
os

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 d
en

ta
l 

su
rg

er
y,

 o
pt

om
et

ry
 a

nd
 a

 p
ha

rm
ac

y.
 

 
(6

c)
 S

om
e 

el
de

rly
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
m

ay
 

be
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
m

ov
e 

to
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d,
 a

s 
th

ey
 m

ay
 

be
 m

ov
ed

 fu
rt

he
r 

fr
om

 b
us

 r
ou

te
s.

 
 (7

) 
T

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ov
e 

ho
m

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

an
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

fa
m

ili
es

 w
ith

 s
ch

oo
l-

ag
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 th

at
 th

e 
di

st
an

ce
 fr

om
 th

ei
r 

ho
m

e 
to

 th
ei

r 
lo

ca
l s

ch
oo

l m
ay

 
ch

an
ge

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 fu

rt
he

st
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

th
at

 a
 fa

m
ily

 s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 to
 m

ov
e 

fr
om

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

e 
is

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

80
0m

. 
 (8

) 
T

he
re

 a
re

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

19
0 

ho
us

es
 o

n 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s,
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

ga
rd

en
s.

 
S

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
be

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

w
ill

 
re

ce
iv

e 
75

 
ho

us
es

 
w

ith
 

ga
rd

en
s 

an
d 

66
 

m
ai

so
ne

tte
s 

w
ith

 g
ar

de
ns

, 
re

su
lti

ng
 i

n 
a 

to
ta

l 
of

 o
nl

y 
14

1 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
ith

 
ga

rd
en

s 
(e

qu
at

in
g 

to
 a

 lo
ss

 o
f a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
49

 p
riv

at
e 

ga
rd

en
s)

. T
he

 lo
ss

 
of

 a
 g

ar
de

n 
m

ay
 w

el
l h

av
e 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
fa

m
ili

es
 w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 5
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

(a
nd

 o
ne

 r
es

id
en

t 
w

ith
 g

ra
nd

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 v
is

ite
d)

 
ra

is
ed

 th
is

 is
su

e.
 

 � 
T

he
 C

ur
re

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

pr
op

os
es

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 2

.9
7 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f 

pu
bl

ic
ly

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
pa

rk
 

an
d 

3 
ga

rd
en

 
sq

ua
re

s)
, 

2.
43

 h
ec

ta
re

s 
of

 p
ub

lic
ly

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ci
vi

c 
sp

ac
e 

(in
 t

he
 f

or
m

 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

qu
ar

es
) 

an
d 

2.
17

5 
he

ct
ar

es
 o

f p
la

y 
sp

ac
e.

  
  

Page 374



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
9 

 +            
   

   
 

 

 H
        

(9
) 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
(a

s 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

by
 th

e 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
A

pp
ra

is
al

) 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

. I
f t

he
 

C
LS

A
 is

 s
ig

ne
d,

 a
 s

ki
lls

 a
ud

it 
of

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 a

ny
 id

en
tif

y 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 w
or

k,
 a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 n
ee

ds
.  

O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
 ta

rg
et

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t p

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
as

si
st

 r
es

id
en

ts
 to

 g
ai

n 
or

 r
eg

ai
n 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

  D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
on

su
lte

es
 a

pp
ea

re
d 

to
 b

e 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

ab
ou

t w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ov
e 

ho
m

e 
w

ou
ld

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 s

en
d 

th
ei

r 
yo

un
ge

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
sc

ho
ol

 a
s 

th
ei

r 
ot

he
r 

(o
ld

er
) 

ch
ild

re
n,

 o
r 

th
at

 th
ei

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 m
ov

e 
sc

ho
ol

. O
ffi

ce
rs

 
ha

ve
 in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 th

is
, a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
 s

uc
h 

im
pa

ct
 

as
 n

on
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ch

oo
ls

 th
at

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

at
te

nd
 

ha
s 

a 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

tc
hm

en
t a

re
a,

 a
nd

, f
or

 th
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f a

dm
is

si
on

s,
 th

e 
‘s

ib
lin

g’
 c

rit
er

io
n 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

‘d
is

ta
nc

e’
 c

rit
er

io
n.

 F
ur

th
er

, a
 

ch
ild

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 c

ea
se

 to
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 to

 a
tte

nd
 th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t s

ch
oo

l s
im

pl
y 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
m

ov
e.

  
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

    -      
    

  

    H
            

A
 p

er
so

n 
ha

s 
a 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
if 

s/
he

 h
as

 a
 p

hy
si

ca
l o

r 
m

en
ta

l i
m

pa
irm

en
t w

hi
ch

 
ha

s 
a 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

nd
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

at
 p

er
so

n'
s 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t n

or
m

al
 d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. 

 (1
) 

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 h

av
in

g 
to

 le
av

e 
th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t h

om
es

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 th
an

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
. P

ac
ki

ng
, m

ov
in

g 
an

d 
un

pa
ck

in
g 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 d

iff
ic

ul
t f

or
 s

uc
h 

pe
op

le
. D

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

su
ffe

r 
gr

ea
te

r 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l e

ffe
ct

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
re

ss
 a

nd
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
. F

ur
th

er
, 

di
sa

bl
ed

 r
es

id
en

ts
 m

ay
 r

el
y 

m
or

e 
on

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s 

an
d 

ne
ar

by
 fa

m
ily

 fo
r 

su
pp

or
t, 

an
d 

m
ov

in
g 

ho
m

e 
m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 th
es

e 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
. 

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

54
 c

on
su

lte
es

 r
ai

se
d 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 th

is
 s

or
t i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
pe

op
le

’s
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 
 � 

T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
un

de
r 

‘a
ge

’ a
bo

ve
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 in

to
 

ac
co

un
t t

he
 d

iff
er

en
t n

ee
ds

 o
f d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

he
n 

pr
ov

id
in

g 

Page 375



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
10

                                   - 

                                   H
 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
th

em
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

m
ov

e.
 

 
� 

T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 a
ss

is
t d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

he
n 

m
ov

in
g 

ho
m

e.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

su
pp

or
t w

ith
 th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 m

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 -
 if

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 -

 ta
ke

 
th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
llo

ca
tin

g 
a 

pa
ck

in
g 

an
d 

un
pa

ck
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 h
el

p 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 o
rg

an
is

in
g 

al
l o

f t
he

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 d
is

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 o

f 
ap

pl
ia

nc
es

 a
nd

/o
r 

ar
ra

ng
in

g 
a 

re
m

ov
al

 s
er

vi
ce

. T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

of
fic

er
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

llo
ca

te
 m

or
e 

tim
e 

to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 
an

d/
or

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 fa

m
ily

 / 
ca

re
r 

/ s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
ny

 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l c

on
ce

rn
s 

th
at

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 m
ay

 h
av

e.
 

 
� 

W
he

re
 d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ne

ed
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

ca
n 

re
fe

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 o

th
er

 c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
F

lo
at

in
g 

S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 u
nd

er
 ‘a

ge
’ 

ab
ov

e.
 

  
� 

W
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 a

ss
is

t, 
th

e 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pu
t d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 to
uc

h 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

up
po

rt
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

.  
 

� 
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
co

m
pl

et
es

 a
 

po
st

-m
ov

e 
vi

si
t w

ith
 a

ll 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 to
 s

ee
 if

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 h
as

 s
et

tle
d 

in
to

 th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

an
d 

to
 s

ee
 if

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
an

y 
co

nc
er

ns
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 If
 a

 d
is

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
 is

 h
av

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t p

ro
bl

em
s 

th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

em
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fr

om
 A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 th
e 

F
lo

at
in

g 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

  
 

� 
It 

is
 a

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
LS

A
, a

nd
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 E
ar

l’s
 C

ou
rt

 
R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

’s
 L

oc
al

 L
et

tin
gs

 P
ol

ic
y 

th
at

, w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 in

 g
ro

up
s 

so
 a

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
xi

st
in

g 
su

pp
or

t 
ne

tw
or

ks
 a

re
 k

ep
t i

nt
ac

t. 
A

 n
ee

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ill

 h
el

p 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 
kn

ow
 w

ha
t s

up
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s 
ea

ch
 r

es
id

en
t 

w
an

ts
 to

 m
ov

e 
w

ith
. T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 h

el
p 

en
su

re
 th

at
 d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

ov
e 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

ks
, a

nd
 fa

m
ili

ar
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s.
 

 (2
) 

H
av

in
g 

to
 m

ov
e 

ho
m

e 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 d
iff

ic
ul

t f
or

 b
lin

d 
or

 

Page 376



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
11

             -                 
/ a

n
d

 -
 

     

             H
                 M
 

   
   

    

pa
rt

ia
lly

-s
ig

ht
ed

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 w

ill
, a

t l
ea

st
 in

iti
al

ly
, b

e 
un

fa
m

ili
ar

 w
ith

 th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 v

ic
in

ity
 a

ro
un

d 
th

ei
r 

ne
w

 h
om

es
. T

w
o 

bl
in

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

of
 th

is
 ty

pe
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

 � 
T

he
 D

ed
ic

at
ed

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 a

ny
 b

lin
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 fu
lly

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

m
ov

e.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

in
 B

ra
ill

e,
 

an
d 

th
at

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 n

ew
 h

om
e 

ha
s 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

. T
he

 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 c
om

fo
rt

ab
le

 in
 th

ei
r 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
an

d 
its

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 v

ic
in

ity
, f

or
 

in
st

an
ce

 b
y 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 to

 th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

an
d 

ta
ki

ng
 

th
em

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

am
en

iti
es

, b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

m
ov

e 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e.
  

 (3
) 

H
av

in
g 

to
 m

ov
e 

ho
m

e 
m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 d

iff
ic

ul
t f

or
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
w

ho
 s

uf
fe

r 
fr

om
 m

en
ta

l i
lln

es
s.

 M
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ra
is

ed
 th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 s

tr
es

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

of
 m

ov
in

g,
 b

ut
 o

nl
y 

th
re

e 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 
re

fe
rr

ed
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 to

 m
en

ta
l i

lln
es

se
s.

 T
w

o 
of

 th
es

e 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

th
is

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 fa
m

ily
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ne
 r

ai
se

d 
th

is
 a

s 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

is
su

e.
 

 � 
W

he
re

 r
es

id
en

ts
 h

av
e 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 e
xi

st
in

g 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

k 
/ c

ar
er

s 
/ G

P
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 c

ar
e 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 W
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 b

rie
f l

oc
al

 h
ea

lth
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 a
ny

 th
ird

 
se

ct
or

 s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

  
� 

W
he

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 A
du

lt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 th

e 
F

lo
at

in
g 

S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 (4

) 
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
a 

co
nc

er
n 

w
as

 r
ai

se
d 

ab
ou

t r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

ha
vi

ng
 to

 m
ov

e 
fr

om
 g

ro
un

d 
flo

or
 h

om
es

 to
 u

pp
er

 fl
oo

r 
ho

m
es

. 
N

ew
 h

om
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 n
ee

d,
 a

nd
 s

o 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 
m

os
t n

ee
d 

gr
ou

nd
 fl

oo
r 

ho
m

es
 d

ue
 to

 th
ei

r 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
th

em
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

t i
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
at

 s
om

e 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ill

 m
ov

e 
to

 
up

pe
r 

flo
or

 h
om

es
 fr

om
 g

ro
un

d 
flo

or
 h

om
es

 if
, f

or
 in

st
an

ce
, t

he
ir 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 

Page 377



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
12

    - 
                 -               

    M
   

 
             M
               

is
 n

ot
 m

ob
ili

ty
-r

el
at

ed
, o

r 
do

es
 n

ot
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
re

qu
ire

 a
 g

ro
un

d 
flo

or
 h

om
e.

 
T

o 
th

is
 e

xt
en

t, 
th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 fo
r 

so
m

e 
di

sa
bl

ed
 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

 (5
) 

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s 
of

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 o

ffe
re

d 
a 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

ho
m

e 
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
ay

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
riv

at
e 

te
na

nt
s 

th
an

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s.
 D

is
ab

le
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

te
na

nt
s 

m
ay

 fi
nd

 th
is

 m
or

e 
st

re
ss

fu
l, 

an
d 

m
ay

 lo
se

 lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

ks
 if

 th
ey

 a
re

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 fi

nd
 a

 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 T
w

o 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

 c
on

su
lte

es
 m

en
tio

ne
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 fa
m

ily
 m

em
be

rs
, a

nd
 tw

o 
ot

he
r 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 

ra
is

ed
 it

 a
s 

a 
ge

ne
ra

l c
on

ce
rn

.  
 � 

P
riv

at
e 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

rs
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 c

an
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
e-

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
. 

W
he

re
 r

es
id

en
ts

 c
an

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 a
 c

le
ar

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

re
a 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 h

el
p 

th
em

 to
 fi

nd
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

. H
ow

ev
er

, b
ey

on
d 

th
is

, o
ffi

ce
rs

 d
o 

no
t c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 fu
rt

he
r 

m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

di
sa

bi
lit

y-
re

la
te

d 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
pr

iv
at

e 
te

na
nt

s.
 

 (6
) 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 m
ov

e 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
on

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 a
st

hm
a 

or
 o

th
er

 r
es

pi
ra

to
ry

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

as
 r

ai
se

d.
 L

un
g 

di
se

as
e 

w
as

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
by

 tw
o 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
, a

nd
 b

y 
on

e 
co

ns
ul

te
e 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f h

er
 h

us
ba

nd
, a

nd
 a

st
hm

a 
w

as
 m

en
tio

ne
d 

th
re

e 
tim

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
 

an
d 

on
ce

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 a
 c

on
su

lte
e’

s 
so

n.
 T

he
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t w

hi
ch

 a
cc

om
pa

ni
ed

 th
e 

ou
tli

ne
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

n 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

di
d 

no
t s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 a

dd
re

ss
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
as

th
m

a 
su

ffe
re

rs
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 r
es

pi
ra

to
ry

 p
ro

bl
em

s,
 it

 
di

d 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
du

st
 o

n 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
in

 g
en

er
al

, a
nd

 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

re
pr

es
en

t a
 ‘n

ui
sa

nc
e’

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

‘c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

m
ea

su
re

s’
, a

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pr
op

os
ed

. I
t i

s 
th

us
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
be

 s
ur

e 
ab

ou
t t

he
 

ex
te

nt
 o

f a
ny

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 a

st
hm

a 
or

 o
th

er
 

re
sp

ira
to

ry
 p

ro
bl

em
s,

 b
ut

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
cc

ep
t t

ha
t t

he
re

 m
ay

 b
e 

an
 a

dv
er

se
 

im
pa

ct
. 

Page 378



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
13

      +            
/ o

r 
+ 

              +   

      M
            H
               H
   

 � 
If 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

do
es

 in
 fa

ct
 h

av
e 

an
 a

dv
er

se
 a

ffe
ct

 o
n 

an
y 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

re
si

de
nt

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

as
th

m
a 

or
 o

th
er

 r
es

pi
ra

to
ry

 p
ro

bl
em

s,
 th

en
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
 fo

r 
an

 
ea

rly
 m

ov
e 

as
 a

 w
ay

 o
f m

iti
ga

tin
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 th

is
 im

pa
ct

.  
 

 

(7
) 

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
 (

as
 r

eg
ar

ds
 c

om
m

on
 a

re
as

, l
ift

s,
 le

ve
l 

ac
ce

ss
, a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
ro

ut
es

 to
 h

om
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
id

er
 a

re
a)

, w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ith

 m
ob

ili
ty

 p
ro

bl
em

s.
 A

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

ab
ov

e 
un

de
r 

‘a
ge

’, 
th

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 to
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. T

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
(a

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

ab
ov

e)
 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
10

%
 o

f w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r 
al

l e
xi

st
in

g 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 

es
ta

te
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 r
eq

ui
re

 it
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

in
di

vi
du

al
 n

ee
ds

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

 (8
) 

4 
re

si
de

nt
s 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 h

ad
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 in

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
pr

op
er

ty
, o

r 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 in
 th

ei
r 

ne
w

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 A

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 o
th

er
 c

on
su

lte
es

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

or
 n

ee
d 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 b

ut
 th

ey
 d

id
 n

ot
 d

ire
ct

ly
 s

ta
te

 th
is

. A
da

pt
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 
th

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l T

he
ra

pi
st

’s
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 in
di

vi
du

al
 r

es
id

en
t’s

 n
ee

ds
. T

ho
se

 d
is

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

ho
m

es
 to

 w
hi

ch
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e,
 a

nd
 

w
ho

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 n

ee
d 

th
os

e 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

, w
ill

 h
av

e 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 
th

ei
r 

ne
w

 h
om

es
. T

ho
se

 d
is

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
to

 n
ee

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
pi

st
, b

ut
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 li
vi

ng
 

in
 h

om
es

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

, w
ill

 h
av

e 
th

em
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 

th
ei

r 
ne

w
 

ho
m

e.
 S

o,
 o

ve
ra

ll,
 th

is
 a

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

ei
th

er
 a

 
ne

ut
ra

l o
r 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

di
sa

bl
ed

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 n

ee
d 

ad
ap

te
d 

ho
m

es
. 

 (9
) 

A
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 n
ot

ed
 a

bo
ve

 u
nd

er
 ‘

ag
e’

, 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

ill
 

re
qu

ire
 a

 n
ew

 h
ea

lth
 f

ac
ili

ty
 t

o 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 

Page 379



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
14

      
+ 

an
d

 -
 

     -                 -    -   

      M
      M
                 M
    M
   

 (1
0)

 D
ur

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

 th
e 

is
su

e 
w

as
 r

ai
se

d 
of

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
so

ci
al

 / 
co

m
m

un
ity

 / 
re

ta
il 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 b

us
 r

ou
te

s,
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

lo
ca

l h
os

pi
ta

ls
).

 It
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ec

is
e 

ab
ou

t h
ow

 fa
r 

ea
ch

 r
es

id
en

t w
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

be
in

g 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 m

ov
e.

 
H

ow
ev

er
: 

 
(1

0a
) 

 If
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
’s

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
is

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
si

te
 th

en
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 m

ay
 e

nd
 u

p 
be

in
g 

cl
os

er
 to

 o
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

be
in

g 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

25
0m

),
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

pr
ec

is
el

y 
w

he
re

 th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

is
 lo

ca
te

d.
 

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 
  (1

0b
) 

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

20
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

-p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
at

 th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

si
te

. T
he

 fu
rt

he
st

 
di

st
an

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

fu
rt

he
st

 e
dg

e 
of

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 th

e 
S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d 
si

te
 is

 a
pp

ro
ci

m
at

el
y 

80
0m

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ar

es
t 

di
st

an
ce

 is
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
32

0m
. A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
pl

an
s,

 r
e-

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
 a

 b
lo

ck
 a

t t
he

 r
ea

r 
of

 th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d 

si
te

. A
m

on
gs

t t
ho

se
 r

e-
ho

us
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
si

te
, t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 s
ho

ps
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

fe
lt 

m
or

e 
by

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 
 

� 
T

he
se

 im
pa

ct
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

to
 a

n 
ex

te
nt

 m
iti

ga
te

d 
by

 th
e 

ne
w

 h
ea

lth
 

fa
ci

lit
y 

(s
ee

 (
9)

 a
bo

ve
).

 T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 a

ls
o 

gi
ve

 r
is

e 
to

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f n

ew
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 S
po

rt
s 

an
d 

Le
is

ur
e 

H
ub

. T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
he

lp
 to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 e
nd

 u
p 

m
ov

in
g 

fu
rt

he
r 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 

(1
0c

) 
S

om
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 r
es

id
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
m

ov
e 

to
 S

ea
gr

av
e 

R
oa

d,
 a

s 
th

ey
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

ov
ed

 fu
rt

he
r 

fr
om

 b
us

 
ro

ut
es

. 
 (1

1)
 D

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 

Page 380



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
15

        -                 -        - 

        M
                 M
        M
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
ve

hi
cu

la
r 

ro
ut

es
 d

ur
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

or
k 

th
an

 o
th

er
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 
 � 

T
he

 p
ha

si
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

is
 im

pa
ct

. B
ef

or
e 

a 
ph

as
e 

ca
n 

be
 a

gr
ee

d 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
er

 m
us

t b
e 

ab
le

 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

us
t a

gr
ee

 h
ow

 s
af

e,
 c

om
m

od
io

us
 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 li

t p
ub

lic
 r

oa
d 

an
d 

fo
ot

pa
th

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

eg
re

ss
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
fo

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
, c

yc
le

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 a
cc

es
s 

is
su

es
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
  

 (1
2)

 T
hr

ee
 r

es
id

en
ts

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 d
id

 n
ot

 w
an

t t
o 

lo
se

 th
ei

r 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

ei
r 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s.

 T
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

is
 c

an
no

t b
e 

pr
ec

is
el

y 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

at
 th

e 
pr

es
en

t t
im

e,
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
nu

m
be

r 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
45

6 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 (
as

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 is

 5
40

 a
t p

re
se

nt
).

 It
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
lik

el
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
pa

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
es

ta
te

 r
es

id
en

ts
.  

 � 
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
T

ea
m

 w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
po

lic
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 th
at

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
os

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

th
em

 (
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, t

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

ill
 p

rio
rit

is
e 

bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 

ho
ld

er
s,

 a
nd

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 n

ee
d 

a 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

fo
r 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
or

 
he

al
th

 r
ea

so
ns

).
 O

n 
th

is
 b

as
is

, o
ffi

ce
rs

 d
o 

no
t a

nt
ic

ip
at

e 
th

at
 th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 n

ee
d 

a 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

ir 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 
 (1

3)
 O

ne
 d

is
ab

le
d 

re
si

de
nt

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 s

he
 n

ee
de

d 
he

r 
ga

rd
en

 fo
r 

he
r 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

ab
le

 to
 d

is
co

ve
r 

w
he

th
er

 th
is

 is
 in

 fa
ct

 th
e 

ca
se

. 
 � 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
llo

ca
te

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 n
ee

d,
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
it 

be
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

th
at

 a
 r

es
id

en
t h

as
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
a 

ga
rd

en
, t

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

du
rin

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
n.

  
 (1

4)
 T

w
o 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ov
e 

on
 r

es
id

en
t w

ith
 

Page 381



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
16

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 R
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
m

ay
 w

el
l f

in
d 

it 
ha

rd
er

 to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
se

 
th

ei
r 

m
ov

e 
to

 n
ew

 h
om

es
. 

 � 
T

he
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 a

ny
 r

es
id

en
t 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 fu

lly
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 a
nd

 
fu

lly
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
m

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

 T
he

y 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 in

 a
 w

ay
 th

at
 th

ey
 c

an
 u

nd
er

st
an

d.
 T

he
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 o

rg
an

is
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
m

ov
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

in
g 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n,
 d

is
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

of
 u

til
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
pa

ck
in

g 
an

d 
m

ov
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 
   

 
� 

T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 s
ig

n 
up

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

to
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 ‘a

dv
oc

at
e 

sc
he

m
e’

, a
s 

no
te

d 
un

de
r 

‘a
ge

’ a
bo

ve
. 

 
� 

W
he

re
 r

es
id

en
ts

 n
ee

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
ca

n 
re

fe
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 o
th

er
 c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 th
e 

F
lo

at
in

g 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

C
h

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

 
+/

- 
L

/M
/H

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

G
en

d
er

 
re

as
si

g
n

m
en

t 
   -       

 
  

   L
           

G
en

de
r 

re
as

si
gn

m
en

t i
s 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 tr

an
si

tio
ni

ng
 fr

om
 o

ne
 g

en
de

r 
to

 
an

ot
he

r.
 

 (1
) 

In
 th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
se

, t
he

 T
R

A
s 

no
te

d 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 th
at

 m
ov

in
g 

ho
m

e 
m

ay
 g

en
er

at
e 

m
or

e 
an

xi
et

y 
re

la
te

d 
to

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

by
 n

ew
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 p
er

so
ns

 w
ith

 th
is

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

. I
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t, 
no

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
on

su
lte

es
 m

ad
e 

an
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
is

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

. 
 � 

In
so

fa
r 

as
 th

is
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 a

ro
se

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ou

ld
 p

ro
po

se
 to

 
m

iti
ga

te
 it

 b
y 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 a
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

ny
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ith

 th
is

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

.  
 

Page 382



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
17

� 
W

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 in

 g
ro

up
s 

so
 a

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
xi

st
in

g 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
 a

re
 k

ep
t i

nt
ac

t. 
P

ro
te

ct
ed

 
C

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

M
ar

ri
ag

e 
an

d
 

C
iv

il 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

     
N

/A
 

 

     
N

/A
 

 

M
ar

ria
ge

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s 
a 

'u
ni

on
 b

et
w

ee
n 

a 
m

an
 a

nd
 a

 w
om

an
'. 

S
am

e-
se

x 
co

up
le

s 
ca

n 
ha

ve
 th

ei
r 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 le
ga

lly
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
as

 'c
iv

il 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
'. 

 C
iv

il 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 m

us
t b

e 
tr

ea
te

d 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 m

ar
rie

d 
co

up
le

s 
on

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 le
ga

l m
at

te
rs

. 
 It 

is
 n

ot
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
1 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

an
y 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 th
is

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

 a
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 n

on
e 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 d
is

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 

th
is

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

C
h

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

 
+/

- 
L

/M
/H

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

P
re

g
n

an
cy

 
an

d
 m

at
er

n
it

y 
      - 
              

      H
              

P
re

gn
an

cy
 is

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f b

ei
ng

 p
re

gn
an

t o
r 

ex
pe

ct
in

g 
a 

ba
by

. 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 r
ef

er
s 

to
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

af
te

r 
th

e 
bi

rt
h,

 a
nd

 is
 li

nk
ed

 to
 m

at
er

ni
ty

 
le

av
e 

in
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
on

te
xt

. I
n 

th
e 

no
n-

w
or

k 
co

nt
ex

t, 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ag
ai

ns
t m

at
er

ni
ty

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

is
 fo

r 
26

 w
ee

ks
 a

fte
r 

gi
vi

ng
 b

irt
h,

 a
nd

 th
is

 
in

cl
ud

es
 tr

ea
tin

g 
a 

w
om

an
 u

nf
av

ou
ra

bl
y 

be
ca

us
e 

sh
e 

is
 b

re
as

tfe
ed

in
g.

 
 (1

) 
T

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

in
g 

to
 le

av
e 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

es
 o

n 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

fo
r 

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

en
, a

nd
 w

om
en

 o
n 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 le

av
e,

 th
an

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
. P

ac
ki

ng
, m

ov
in

g 
an

d 
un

pa
ck

in
g 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
fo

r 
pr

eg
na

nt
 w

om
en

, a
nd

 w
om

en
 o

n 
m

at
er

ni
ty

 le
av

e.
 D

ur
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
th

is
 is

su
e 

w
as

 r
ai

se
d 

by
 o

ne
 p

re
gn

an
t 

co
ns

ul
te

e,
 o

ne
 c

on
su

lte
e 

w
ho

 w
as

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r 
pr

eg
na

nt
 m

ot
he

r 
an

d 
3 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 w

ho
 r

ai
se

d 
it 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 g

en
er

al
.  

 � 
T

he
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 r
ec

or
d 

al
l p

re
gn

an
ci

es
 a

t t
he

 
ea

rli
es

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

su
es

 c
an

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 b

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
 

� 
T

he
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 p

re
gn

an
t w

om
en

 w
ho

 m
ig

ht
 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
ne

ed
 to

 m
ov

e 
at

 o
r 

sh
or

tly
 a

fte
r 

th
ei

r 
du

e 
da

te
 w

ill
 b

e 

Page 383



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
18

                 +     -            - 
  

                 H
     M
            H
  

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 fo

r 
an

 e
ar

lie
r 

m
ov

e,
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 s
et

tle
 in

to
 

th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

be
fo

re
 th

ei
r 

ch
ild

 is
 b

or
n.

 
 

� 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
re

gn
an

t w
om

en
 a

nd
 w

om
an

 o
n 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 le

av
e,

 a
 fu

ll 
su

pp
or

t p
ac

ka
ge

, u
nd

er
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r.

 T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 o

rg
an

is
e 

an
d 

pa
y 

fo
r 

m
ov

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 h

el
p 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

pa
pe

rw
or

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

m
ov

e.
 T

he
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 li

ai
se

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls
, f

or
 in

st
an

ce
 s

o 
as

 to
 n

ot
ify

 th
em

 o
f t

he
 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 n

ew
 a

dd
re

ss
. 

 
� 

W
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ov
ed

 in
 g

ro
up

s 
so

 a
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

su
pp

or
t n

et
w

or
ks

 a
re

 k
ep

t i
nt

ac
t. 

T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 h
el

p 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 p

re
gn

an
t w

om
en

, a
nd

 w
om

en
 o

n 
m

at
er

ni
ty

 le
av

e,
 m

ov
e 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
su

pp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
, a

nd
 fa

m
ili

ar
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s.
 

 (2
) 

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 p

os
iti

ve
ly

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

eg
na

nt
 

w
om

en
 a

nd
 w

om
en

 o
n 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 le

av
e.

 A
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
ab

ov
e,

 th
e 

ne
w

 
ho

m
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 to
 im

pr
ov

ed
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 

  (3
) 

P
re

gn
an

t w
om

en
, a

nd
 w

om
en

 o
n 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 le

av
e,

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

an
d 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
ro

ut
es

 d
ur

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g 

w
or

k 
th

an
 o

th
er

 r
es

id
en

ts
. 

 � 
T

he
 p

ha
si

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
is

 im
pa

ct
. B

ef
or

e 
a 

ph
as

e 
ca

n 
be

 a
gr

ee
d 

fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

er
 m

us
t b

e 
ab

le
 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l m
us

t a
gr

ee
 h

ow
 s

af
e,

 c
om

m
od

io
us

 
an

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 li
t p

ub
lic

 r
oa

d 
an

d 
fo

ot
pa

th
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
eg

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

fo
r 

ve
hi

cl
es

, c
yc

le
s 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 a

cc
es

s 
is

su
es

 fo
r 

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

en
, a

nd
 w

om
en

 o
n 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 le

av
e,

 to
 b

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
  

 
(4

) 
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
th

e 
T

R
A

s 
qu

es
tio

ne
d 

w
he

th
er

 p
re

gn
an

t w
om

en
 

w
ill

 b
e 

sa
fe

 in
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 d

ec
an

te
d 

bl
oc

ks
. T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

Page 384



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
19

     

     

pa
rt

ia
lly

 d
ec

an
te

d 
bl

oc
ks

 r
em

ai
n 

sa
fe

 fo
r 

an
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 S

ho
ul

d 
a 

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

an
 fe

el
 u

ns
af

e,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

he
 is

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
 

fo
r 

an
 e

ar
lie

r 
m

ov
e.

   
  

O
ne

 c
on

su
lte

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 a
 c

hi
ld

m
in

di
ng

 b
us

in
es

s.
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

sp
ok

en
 

to
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

te
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

ei
r 

co
nc

er
ns

. T
he

 c
on

su
lte

e 
w

as
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 m
ov

e 
ou

t o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ho
 u

se
 th

ei
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

. A
s 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
te

e 
is

 a
 s

ec
ur

e 
co

un
ci

l t
en

an
t a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ch
ild

 m
in

di
ng

 b
us

in
es

s,
 o

r 
th

e 
fa

m
ili

es
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 u

se
 it

.  
P

ro
te

ct
ed

 
C

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

R
ac

e 
             -        

             H
        

R
ac

e 
re

fe
rs

 to
 a

 g
ro

up
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
th

ei
r 

ra
ce

, c
ol

ou
r,

 a
nd

 
na

tio
na

lit
y 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
ci

tiz
en

sh
ip

) 
et

hn
ic

 o
r 

na
tio

na
l o

rig
in

s.
 

 20
01

 C
en

su
s 

da
ta

 is
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
et

hn
ic

ity
 o

n 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
. A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
20

01
 C

en
su

s,
 th

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

t e
th

ni
ci

ty
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 is

 W
hi

te
 B

rit
is

h,
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
fo

r 
42

%
. T

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
is

 c
on

si
de

ra
bl

y 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 (
58

%
) 

an
d 

Lo
nd

on
 (

60
%

) 
av

er
ag

es
, a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 (
87

%
).

 R
es

id
en

ts
 fr

om
 

m
in

or
ity

 (
no

n-
w

hi
te

) 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 4
3%

 o
f t

he
 r

es
id

en
t 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s.

 T
hi

s 
fig

ur
e 

is
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
y 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

22
%

),
 L

on
do

n 
av

er
ag

e 
(2

9%
) 

an
d 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 

(9
%

).
 

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, a
nd

 to
 th

is
 e

xt
en

t, 
(1

) 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f h

av
in

g 
to

 le
av

e 
ho

m
es

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s,

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
es

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
w

ill
 b

e 
fe

lt 
by

 a
n 

ab
ov

e-
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 fr

om
 

m
in

or
ity

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
ds

, w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

et
hn

ic
 p

ro
fil

e 
of

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

, L
on

do
n,

 o
r 

na
tio

na
lly

.  
 � 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 d
o 

no
t c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 th
is

 im
pa

ct
, w

hi
ch

 is
 it

se
lf 

a 
st

at
is

tic
al

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f t
he

 e
th

ni
c 

pr
of

ile
 o

f t
he

 e
st

at
es

, c
an

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
in

 

Page 385



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
20

  -                                  

  H
                                  

an
y 

pr
ac

tic
al

 w
ay

. 
 (2

) 
T

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f h

av
in

g 
to

 le
av

e 
ho

m
es

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

an
d 

m
ov

e 
el

se
w

he
re

 m
ay

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

fo
r 

ce
rt

ai
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fr

om
 m

in
or

ity
 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
s,

 fo
r 

in
st

an
ce

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f l

an
gu

ag
e 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
, o

r 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 
a 

la
ck

 o
f f

am
ili

ar
ity

 w
ith

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
m

or
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

. L
an

gu
ag

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

w
er

e 
ra

is
ed

 a
s 

an
 is

su
e 

by
 3

 c
on

su
lte

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
. O

ne
 c

on
su

lte
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
la

ng
ua

ge
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

as
 a

n 
is

su
e 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
m

ot
he

r.
 

 � 
T

he
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
llo

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 a

ss
is

t r
es

id
en

ts
 fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t r

ac
ia

l g
ro

up
s 

w
ho

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
la

ng
ua

ge
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 th

at
 th

ey
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t i
s 

ha
pp

en
in

g 
an

d 
ca

n 
in

te
ra

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
 � 

T
he

 R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 s
ig

n 
up

 r
es

id
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 ‘a
dv

oc
at

e 
sc

he
m

e’
 (

de
sc

rib
ed

 a
bo

ve
) 

if 
fo

r 
in

st
an

ce
 a

 
re

si
de

nt
 h

as
 a

 s
on

 o
r 

da
ug

ht
er

 w
ho

 is
 m

or
e 

flu
en

t i
n 

E
ng

lis
h 

th
an

 th
ey

 
ar

e.
 

 
� 

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

R
e-

ho
us

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

co
m

pl
et

es
 a

 p
os

t-
m

ov
e 

vi
si

t w
ith

 a
ll 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 to

 s
ee

 if
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 h

as
 s

et
tle

d 
in

to
 

th
ei

r 
ne

w
 h

om
e 

an
d 

to
 s

ee
 if

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
an

y 
co

nc
er

ns
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 If
 a

 r
es

id
en

t i
s 

ha
vi

ng
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t p
ro

bl
em

s 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

A
dv

is
or

 w
ill

 w
or

k 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

em
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 fr
om

 
A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 th
e 

F
lo

at
in

g 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

  
 � 

A
s 

no
te

d 
ab

ov
e,

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ov
ed

 in
 g

ro
up

s 
so

 
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

su
pp

or
t n

et
w

or
ks

 a
re

 k
ep

t i
nt

ac
t. 

 
  (3

) 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

(a
s 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
by

 th
e 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

A
pp

ra
is

al
) 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 ta
rg

et
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t p
la

n 
(a

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 u

nd
er

 ‘a
ge

’ a
bo

ve
) 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
of

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 r

el
ev

an
ce

 to
 th

os
e 

ra
ci

al
 g

ro
up

s 
th

at
 in

 g
en

er
al

 h
av

e 
lo

w
er

 r
at

es
 o

f e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

ity
 th

an
 

ot
he

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

 (
62

.5
%

),
 P

ak
is

ta
ni

 (
62

.5
%

),
 W

hi
te

 a
nd

 
B

la
ck

 C
ar

ib
be

an
 (

60
.7

%
) 

an
d 

th
e 

O
th

er
 A

si
an

 (
54

.8
%

) 
gr

ou
ps

 (
th

e 

Page 386



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
21

+      

H
  

bo
ro

ug
h 

av
er

ag
e 

is
 6

5%
).

 T
he

 lo
w

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

ity
 r

at
e 

am
on

g 
Ir

is
h 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(6

0.
2%

) 
pa

rt
ly

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
th

e 
ol

de
r 

ag
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
hi

gh
er

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

w
ho

 a
re

 o
ve

r 
pe

ns
io

na
bl

e 
ag

e 
(2

00
1 

C
en

su
s 

R
ep

or
t 2

: E
th

ni
c 

G
ro

up
s 

in
 H

am
m

er
sm

ith
 a

nd
 F

ul
ha

m
, p

. 3
8)

. 

P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

C
h

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

 
+/

- 
L

/M
/H

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

R
el

ig
io

n
/b

el
ie

f 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 
n

o
n

-b
el

ie
f)

 

               - 
         

- 
an

d
 +

 
 

               H
          M
  

R
el

ig
io

n 
ha

s 
th

e 
m

ea
ni

ng
 u

su
al

ly
 g

iv
en

 to
 it

 b
ut

 b
el

ie
f i

nc
lu

de
s 

re
lig

io
us

 
an

d 
ph

ilo
so

ph
ic

al
 b

el
ie

fs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

la
ck

 o
f b

el
ie

f (
e.

g.
 A

th
ei

sm
).

 G
en

er
al

ly
, 

a 
be

lie
f s

ho
ul

d 
af

fe
ct

 y
ou

r 
lif

e 
ch

oi
ce

s 
or

 th
e 

w
ay

 y
ou

 li
ve

 fo
r 

it 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
. 

 20
01

 C
en

su
s 

da
ta

 is
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
et

hn
ic

ity
 o

n 
th

e 
E

st
at

es
. A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
20

01
 C

en
su

s,
 th

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

t r
el

ig
io

n 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
E

st
at

es
 is

 C
hr

is
tia

ni
ty

 (
60

%
),

 w
hi

ch
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

64
%

).
 T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 M
us

lim
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

(1
3%

) 
ex

ce
ed

s 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

7%
),

 L
on

do
n 

av
er

ag
e 

(8
%

) 
an

d 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 (
2%

),
 w

hi
le

 o
th

er
 r

el
ig

io
ns

 a
pp

ea
r 

in
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l 
pr

op
or

tio
ns

. P
er

so
ns

 s
ta

tin
g 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
no

 r
el

ig
io

n 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 1
6%

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
av

er
ag

e 
(1

8%
),

 
Lo

nd
on

 a
ve

ra
ge

 (
16

%
) 

an
d 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 (

15
%

).
 

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, a
nd

 to
 th

is
 e

xt
en

t, 
(1

) 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f h

av
in

g 
to

 le
av

e 
ho

m
es

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s,

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
es

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
w

ill
 b

e 
fe

lt 
by

 a
n 

ab
ov

e-
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 M
us

lim
 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

lig
io

us
 m

ak
e-

up
 o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

, 
Lo

nd
on

, o
r 

na
tio

na
lly

.  
 � 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 d
o 

no
t c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 th
is

 im
pa

ct
, w

hi
ch

 is
 it

se
lf 

a 
st

at
is

tic
al

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f t
he

 r
el

ig
io

us
 p

ro
fil

e 
of

 th
e 

E
st

at
es

, c
an

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
in

 a
ny

 p
ra

ct
ic

al
 w

ay
. 

 (2
) 

O
ne

 c
on

su
lte

e 
ra

is
ed

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f b
ei

ng
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

ra
ct

is
e 

th
ei

r 
cu

ltu
re

 a
nd

 r
el

ig
io

n 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 r
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 

Page 387



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
22

    
 

      
 

fo
r 

re
lig

io
us

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
fr

om
 th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t p

la
ce

 o
f w

or
sh

ip
 

th
an

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

es
 o

n 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s.
 E

qu
al

ly
, i

t i
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
at

 r
e-

ho
us

in
g 

re
lig

io
us

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 b
rin

g 
th

em
 c

lo
se

r 
to

 th
ei

r 
pl

ac
e 

of
 

w
or

sh
ip

. I
f t

he
 r

es
id

en
t’s

 n
ew

 h
om

e 
is

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
si

te
 th

en
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

m
ax

im
um

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t h
om

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
25

0m
. I

f t
he

 r
es

id
en

t’s
 n

ew
 h

om
e 

w
as

 o
n 

S
ea

gr
av

e 
R

oa
d,

 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

a 
re

si
de

nt
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 m
ov

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

80
0m

.  
P

ro
te

ct
ed

 
C

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
ex

 
         -       

         M
       

S
ex

 m
ea

ns
 a

 m
an

 o
r 

a 
w

om
an

 
 

T
he

 2
00

1 
C

en
su

s 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 9
0%

 o
f l

on
e 

pa
re

nt
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
ar

e 
he

ad
ed

 b
y 

w
om

en
. T

he
 2

00
1 

C
en

su
s 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 1

4%
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 o
n 

th
e 

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

es
ta

te
 a

re
 lo

ne
 p

ar
en

t h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

an
d 

9%
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

on
 th

e 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

e 
ar

e 
lo

ne
 p

ar
en

t 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 (
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
m

or
e 

re
ce

nt
 d

at
a)

. F
ur

th
er

, l
on

e 
pa

re
nt

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 fi
nd

 m
ov

in
g 

ho
m

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g.
  

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, a
nd

 to
 th

is
 e

xt
en

t, 
(1

) 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f h

av
in

g 
to

 le
av

e 
ho

m
es

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
fo

r 
fe

m
al

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

th
an

 m
al

e 
re

si
de

nt
s.

  
 � 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 d
o 

no
t c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 th
is

 im
pa

ct
, w

hi
ch

 is
 it

se
lf 

a 
st

at
is

tic
al

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f t
he

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
pr

of
ile

 o
f t

he
 E

st
at

es
 (

as
 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
ge

nd
er

 d
at

a 
on

 lo
ne

 p
ar

en
t h

ou
se

ho
ld

s)
, c

an
 b

e 
m

iti
ga

te
d 

in
 a

ny
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 w
ay

.  
P

ro
te

ct
ed

 
C

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
ex

u
al

 
O

ri
en

ta
ti

o
n

 
   -  

   L
  

S
ex

ua
l o

rie
nt

at
io

n 
m

ea
ns

 w
he

th
er

 a
 p

er
so

n'
s 

se
xu

al
 a

ttr
ac

tio
n 

is
 to

w
ar

ds
 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
se

x,
 th

e 
op

po
si

te
 s

ex
 o

r 
to

 b
ot

h 
se

xe
s 

 
(1

) 
In

 th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

se
, t

he
 T

R
A

s 
no

te
d 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 th

at
 m

ov
in

g 
ho

m
e 

m
ay

 g
en

er
at

e 
an

xi
et

y 
fo

r 
le

sb
ia

n,
 g

ay
 a

nd
 b

is
ex

ua
l r

es
id

en
ts

 a
s 

re
ga

rd
s 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 b

y 
ne

w
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s.
 In

 th
e 

ev
en

t, 
no

ne
 o

f t
he

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 m

ad
e 

an
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
is

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

. 

Page 388



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
23

 � 
In

so
fa

r 
as

 th
is

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 a
ro

se
, t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 p
ro

po
se

 to
 

m
iti

ga
te

 it
 b

y 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 a

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 

to
 a

llo
ca

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 a
ny

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
 th

is
 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
.  

 
� 

W
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ov
ed

 in
 g

ro
up

s 
so

 a
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

su
pp

or
t n

et
w

or
ks

 a
re

 k
ep

t i
nt

ac
t. 

   R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 2

 
 

• 
T

ha
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ea

rly
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

by
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
of

 la
nd

 fo
rm

er
ly

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

 G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 
S

ch
oo

l. 
 

P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 

+/
- 

L
/M

/H
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

A
g

e 
/ 

N
o

n
e 

It 
is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 (

as
 r

ea
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
 in

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
18

 to
 th

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
 2

01
0)

 a
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
-    + 

M
    H
 

T
he

 te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
au

tis
tic

 s
ch

oo
l l

oc
at

ed
 a

t Q
ue

en
s 

M
ill

 S
ch

oo
l 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
be

 m
ov

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
ev

ita
bl

y 
ca

us
e 

di
sr

up
tio

n,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 T
he

 e
ar

ly
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 a

ut
is

tic
 

sc
ho

ol
 c

an
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

t a
 p

er
m

an
en

t a
nd

 p
ur

po
se

-b
ui

lt 
fa

ci
lit

y 
in

 W
hi

te
 

C
ity

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
hi

gh
ly

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

di
sa

bl
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 a

nd
 w

ill
 in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-
te

rm
 b

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
fo

r 
th

em
.  

G
en

d
er

 
re

as
si

g
n

m
en

t 
/ 

N
o

n
e 

It 
is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 a

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

M
ar

ri
ag

e 
an

d
 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
/ 

N
o

n
e 

It 
is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 a

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 

Page 389



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
24

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
P

re
g

n
an

cy
 a

n
d

 
m

at
er

n
it

y 
/ 

N
o

n
e 

It 
is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 a

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

R
ac

e 
/ 

N
o

n
e 

It 
is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 a

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

R
el

ig
io

n
/b

el
ie

f 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 n
o

n
 

b
el

ie
f)

 

/ 
N

o
n

e 
It 

is
 n

ot
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
2 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

an
y 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 th
is

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

 a
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
S

ex
 

/ 
N

o
n

e 
It 

is
 n

ot
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
2 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

an
y 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 th
is

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

 a
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
S

ex
u

al
 

O
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

/ 
N

o
n

e 
 

It 
is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

2 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 a

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

  R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 3

 
 

• 
T

ha
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
sa

le
 to

 E
C

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

of
 la

nd
 a

t 1
1 

F
ar

m
 L

an
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 In
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

, T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

ab
in

et
 to

ok
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 to

 c
lo

se
 th

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

H
os

te
l l

oc
at

ed
 a

t F
ar

m
 

La
ne

. T
he

 u
nd

er
-o

cc
up

ie
d 

ho
st

el
 w

as
 d

ee
m

ed
 s

ur
pl

us
 to

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

cl
os

ed
. A

 fu
ll 

E
IA

 w
as

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 c

lo
se

 th
is

 h
os

te
l. 

T
he

 C
ab

in
et

 g
av

e 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r 
th

e 
si

te
 to

 b
e 

di
sp

os
ed

 o
f i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 s
ec

tio
n 

12
3 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t A

ct
 1

97
2.

  
 If 

th
e 

si
te

 is
 s

ol
d 

to
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s,
 it

 is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 E

C
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
/ C

ap
ita

l a
nd

 C
ou

nt
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

ui
ld

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l h
om

es
 o

n 
it.

 It
 is

 n
ot

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 a
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e 
th

at
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
3 

w
ou

ld
 in

 it
se

lf 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s,
 a

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 
 

 
 

    

Page 390



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
25

  S
ec

ti
o

n
 0

3 
A

n
al

ys
is

 o
f 

re
le

va
n

t 
d

at
a 

 
D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 d
at

a 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
at

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

us
ed

 to
 h

el
p 

in
fo

rm
 th

is
 E

IA
: 

 T
h

e 
co

u
n

ci
l’s

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
T

he
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

as
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

in
 2

00
7 

an
d 

se
ts

 th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
of

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

bo
th

 th
e 

C
or

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

th
e 

S
in

gl
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 s
ch

em
e.

 T
he

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
fr

om
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, p
riv

at
e,

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 w
as

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 p

ub
lic

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n.
 A

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

e 
ai

m
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 to

 c
om

bi
ne

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

, w
ith

 s
oc

ia
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l j

us
tic

e 
to

 a
ss

is
t t

he
 v

as
t m

aj
or

ity
 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

to
 h

el
p 

th
em

se
lv

es
 w

hi
le

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
T

he
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

eq
ua

lit
y 

du
tie

s 
fr

om
 th

at
 ti

m
e.

  
 T

h
e 

co
u

n
ci

l’s
 S

in
g

le
 E

q
u

al
it

y 
S

ch
em

e 
T

he
 S

in
gl

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
co

nt
ai

ns
 o

ur
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
nd

 n
on

-s
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

qu
al

ity
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 s

im
pl

ifi
es

 
ho

w
 w

e 
m

ee
t o

ur
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

al
l, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
gr

ou
ps

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 b

y 
di

sc
rim

in
at

io
n 

la
w

. O
ffi

ce
rs

 g
av

e 
ca

re
fu

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

co
de

s 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 r
ac

e,
 g

en
de

r,
 a

nd
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e,

 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

to
 th

e 
du

tie
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 a
ris

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
 2

01
0,

 w
hi

ch
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

R
oy

al
 A

ss
en

t i
n 

A
pr

il 
20

10
, a

nd
 m

os
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 w

hi
ch

 c
am

e 
in

to
 fo

rc
e 

on
 1

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

0 
(s

ee
 b

el
ow

).
 T

he
 S

in
gl

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
w

as
 a

ls
o 

de
vi

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
w

 e
qu

al
ity

 d
ut

y 
fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
11

 in
 m

in
d.

 
 T

he
 S

in
gl

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

s 
th

e 
S

pa
tia

l v
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

or
e 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

bo
ro

ug
h 

of
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 fo

r 
al

l, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
ho

m
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
th

e 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
. A

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 w
or

k 
to

 th
os

e 
sa

m
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

 T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

ai
m

s 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

th
e 

ke
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

al
l g

ro
up

s 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
• 

G
re

at
er

 h
om

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

of
 a

de
qu

at
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
• 

H
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

• 
B

et
te

r 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
ed

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

in
 h

ea
lth

 
• 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 w

or
ki

ng
, g

re
at

er
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
re

du
ce

d 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

• 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 d

ep
riv

ed
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 b
et

te
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t t

o 
liv

e,
 w

or
k 

an
d 

vi
si

t 
• 

D
iv

er
se

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 e
th

ni
c 

id
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
va

lu
ed

 a
nd

 c
el

eb
ra

te
d 

• 
G

re
at

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t, 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

co
he

si
on

, r
ed

uc
ed

 s
oc

ia
l i

so
la

tio
n 

Page 391



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
26

• 
P

os
iti

ve
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

an
d 

re
du

ce
d 

in
ci

de
nc

e 
of

 a
bu

se
 a

nd
 n

eg
le

ct
 

• 
R

ed
uc

ed
 c

rim
in

al
 v

ic
tim

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

vi
ol

en
ce

 
• 

H
ig

he
r 

ov
er

al
l l

iv
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

re
du

ce
d 

po
ve

rt
y 

 E
q

u
al

it
ie

s 
D

u
ti

es
 

 P
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
P

u
b

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
E

q
u

al
it

y 
D

u
ty

 
T

he
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

eq
ua

lit
y 

du
ty

 (
P

S
E

D
) 

st
at

es
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f o

ur
 fu

nc
tio

ns
, t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

us
t h

av
e 

du
e 

re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
: 

 
� 

E
lim

in
at

e 
un

la
w

fu
l d

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n,
 h

ar
as

sm
en

t a
nd

 v
ic

tim
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

co
nd

uc
t t

ha
t i

s 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ct
; 

� 
A

dv
an

ce
 e

qu
al

ity
 o

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 s
ha

re
 a

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 d

o 
no

t; 
an

d 
� 

F
os

te
r 

go
od

 r
el

at
io

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 s

ha
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 d
o 

no
t. 

 H
av

in
g 

du
e 

re
ga

rd
 fo

r 
ad

va
nc

in
g 

eq
ua

lit
y 

in
vo

lv
es

: 
 

� 
R

em
ov

in
g 

or
 m

in
im

is
in

g 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
s 

su
ffe

re
d 

by
 p

eo
pl

e 
du

e 
to

 th
ei

r 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s;
 

� 
T

ak
in

g 
st

ep
s 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
fr

om
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 g
ro

up
s 

w
he

re
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 fr
om

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 o
th

er
 p

eo
pl

e;
 a

nd
 

� 
E

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
fr

om
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 g
ro

up
s 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 p
ub

lic
 li

fe
 o

r 
in

 o
th

er
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 w
he

re
 th

ei
r 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
is

 d
is

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

ly
 lo

w
. 

 T
he

 E
qu

al
ity

 A
ct

 2
01

0 
st

at
es

 th
at

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 th
at

 a
re

 d
iff

er
en

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 d

is
ab

le
d 

in
cl

ud
es

 ta
ki

ng
 s

te
ps

 to
 ta

ke
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

’s
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 It

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 

fo
st

er
in

g 
go

od
 r

el
at

io
ns

 a
s 

ta
ck

lin
g 

pr
ej

ud
ic

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
pe

op
le

 fr
om

 d
iff

er
en

t g
ro

up
s.

 
It 

st
at

es
 th

at
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

S
E

D
 m

ay
 in

vo
lv

e 
tr

ea
tin

g 
so

m
e 

pe
op

le
 m

or
e 

fa
vo

ur
ab

ly
 th

an
 o

th
er

s.
  

 G
en

er
al

 D
em

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
T

he
 W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

es
 o

cc
up

y 
an

 a
re

a 
of

 2
2 

ac
re

s 
an

d 
ar

e 
pr

im
ar

ily
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 5
31

 c
ou

nc
il-

ow
ne

d 
so

ci
al

 r
en

te
d 

pr
op

er
tie

s,
 1

32
 le

as
eh

ol
d 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
an

d 
39

 fr
ee

ho
ld

 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 s

m
al

l H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
tw

o 
es

ta
te

s.
 

 

Page 392



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
27

T
he

 ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 ty

pe
s 

of
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

es
. 
  

 

  
1 

B
ed

 
F

la
t 

1 
B

ed
 

H
ou

se
 

2 
B

ed
 

F
la

t 
2 

B
ed

 
H

ou
se

 
3 

B
ed

 
F

la
t 

3 
B

ed
 

H
ou

se
 

4 
B

ed
 

F
la

t 
4 

B
ed

 
H

ou
se

 
T

O
T

A
L 

C
ou

nc
il 

16
3 

0 
21

2 
0 

46
 

75
 

8 
27

 
53

1 

Le
as

eh
ol

d/
F

re
eh

ol
d 

21
 

0 
85

 
0 

24
 

29
 

2 
10

 
17

1 

R
S

L 
4 

3 
6 

13
 

0 
25

 
0 

7 
58

 

T
ot

al
 

18
8 

3 
30

3 
13

 
70

 
12

8 
10

 
45

 
76

0 

  U
p

d
at

ed
 A

g
e 

P
ro

fi
le

 
T

he
 a

ge
 p

ro
fil

e 
of

 W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
es

 d
iff

er
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 a
ve

ra
ge

, 
pr

im
ar

ily
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 a

 lo
w

er
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

du
lts

 a
ge

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
30

 a
nd

 4
4 

ye
ar

s 
(2

4%
 o

f e
st

at
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 3
0%

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
) 

an
d 

hi
gh

er
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ag
ed

 le
ss

 th
an

 1
6 

ye
ar

s,
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
fo

r 
21

%
 

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 e

st
at

es
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 1

7%
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. 1
1%

 o
f a

du
lts

 a
re

 in
 th

ei
r 

re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

 
(t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 b

ei
ng

 1
0%

).
 (

O
N

S
 S

LO
A

 M
id

-Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

20
10

.)
 

 T
he

 a
du

lt 
to

 c
hi

ld
 r

at
io

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

is
 3

:1
, w

hi
ch

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 a

nd
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
s 

(b
ot

h 
3:

1)
 

bu
t d

iff
er

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

4:
1)

. I
t i

s 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ad
ul

t t
o 

ch
ild

 r
at

io
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 is
 a

rt
ifi

ci
al

ly
 h

ig
h,

 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

du
lts

, d
ue

 to
 th

e 
pr

ev
al

en
ce

 o
f y

ou
ng

, s
in

gl
e 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s.
 

 W
ith

in
 th

e 
47

1 
co

un
ci

l-o
w

ne
d 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
on

 W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

es
ta

te
 th

at
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
(4

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

ar
e 

vo
id

 a
s 

at
 A

pr
il 

20
12

),
 1

14
 m

ai
n 

te
na

nt
s 

ar
e 

ag
ed

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 6
5 

ye
ar

s,
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

24
%

. O
f t

he
se

, 5
7 

te
na

nt
s 

ar
e 

ag
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
65

 a
nd

 7
4 

ye
ar

s,
 4

2 
ar

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
75

 a
nd

 8
4 

ye
ar

s,
 a

nd
 1

5 
ar

e 
ag

ed
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 8

5 
ye

ar
s.

 O
n 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
e,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
9 

m
ai

n 
te

na
nt

s 
ag

ed
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 6

5 
ye

ar
s,

 o
f w

hi
ch

 7
 a

re
 a

ge
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

65
 a

nd
 7

4 
ye

ar
s,

 2
 a

re
 b

et
w

ee
n 

75
 a

nd
 8

4 
ye

ar
s.

 
  

Page 393



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
28

A
g

e 
P

ro
fi

le

21
%

25
%

24
%

19
%

11
%

17
%

23
%

30
%

19
%

10
%

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%

35
%

0 
to

 1
5

16
 to

 2
9

30
 to

 4
4

45
 to

 6
4

65
+

A
g

e 
R

an
g

e

Percentage

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

&
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en

B
or

ou
gh

 A
ve

ra
ge

 
  

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
It 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0 

m
ill

io
n 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
U

K
 (

S
ou

rc
e:

 L
B

H
F

 A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

A
ll 

20
06

) 
an

d 
m

or
e 

th
an

 8
00

,0
00

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 in
 L

on
do

n 
(S

ou
rc

e:
 L

on
do

n 
P

la
n 

S
P

D
: P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

E
qu

al
ity

 2
00

7)
. T

hi
s 

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

lle
ng

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t m
ak

es
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 

 T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
f W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

es
 w

ho
 a

re
 p

er
m

an
en

tly
 s

ic
k 

or
 d

is
ab

le
d 

(6
%

) 
is

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

5%
) 

an
d 

Lo
nd

on
 (

5%
) 

av
er

ag
es

. O
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s,

 1
7%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 a
re

 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 L

im
iti

ng
 L

on
g-

T
er

m
 Il

ln
es

s 
(L

LT
I)

, w
hi

ch
 is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 fi
gu

re
s 

re
co

rd
ed

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 a
nd

 a
cr

os
s 

Lo
nd

on
 (

bo
th

 1
5%

).
 T

he
se

 d
at

a 
ar

e 
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

20
01

 C
en

su
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

m
or

e 
up

-
to

-d
at

e 
da

ta
. 

 

Page 394



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
29

G
en

d
er

 R
ea

ss
ig

n
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ci
al

 s
ta

tis
tic

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

en
su

s 
da

ta
, a

re
 n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 o
n 

ge
nd

er
 r

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t. 

 M
ar

ri
ag

e 
an

d
 C

iv
il 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
H

al
f o

f t
he

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

es
 a

re
 s

in
gl

e 
an

d 
ha

ve
 n

ev
er

 b
ee

n 
m

ar
rie

d,
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 th

e 
LB

H
F

 a
ve

ra
ge

 (
55

%
).

 A
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ar
rie

d 
(2

8%
),

 
al

th
ou

gh
 th

is
 fi

gu
re

 is
 s

lig
ht

ly
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 a
ve

ra
ge

 (
29

%
).

 T
he

 e
st

at
es

 c
om

pr
is

e 
a 

hi
gh

er
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 
di

vo
rc

ed
 /s

ep
ar

at
ed

 r
es

id
en

ts
 (

14
%

) 
th

an
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

11
%

).
 

 P
re

g
n

an
cy

 a
n

d
 M

at
er

n
it

y 
T

he
 te

en
ag

e 
pr

eg
na

nc
y 

ra
te

 w
ith

in
 N

or
th

 E
nd

 w
ar

d 
is

 v
er

y 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

, w
ith

 5
2 

co
nc

ep
tio

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 te
en

ag
er

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 5

0 
co

nc
ep

tio
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 te

en
ag

er
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. 

(L
B

H
F

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

20
09

/1
0)

 
 R

ac
e 

T
he

 p
re

do
m

in
an

t e
th

ni
ci

ty
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 o

n 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 e

st
at

es
 is

 W
hi

te
 B

rit
is

h,
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
fo

r 
42

%
, a

lth
ou

gh
 th

is
 fi

gu
re

 is
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
y 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

58
%

) 
an

d 
Lo

nd
on

 (
60

%
) 

av
er

ag
es

, a
nd

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 (
87

%
).

 
 R

es
id

en
ts

 fr
om

 m
in

or
ity

 (
no

n-
w

hi
te

) 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 4
3%

 o
f t

he
 r

es
id

en
t p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s.

 T
hi

s 
fig

ur
e 

is
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
y 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

22
%

),
 L

on
do

n 
(2

9%
) 

an
d 

na
tio

na
l (

9%
) 

av
er

ag
es

. B
et

w
ee

n 
20

01
 

an
d 

20
09

, t
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 fr
om

 B
la

ck
 a

nd
 M

in
or

ity
 E

th
ni

c 
(B

M
E

) 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s 
ha

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
un

ch
an

ge
d 

on
 th

e 
es

ta
te

s.
 (

S
ou

rc
e:

 L
B

H
F

 iW
or

ld
.)

  
 T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
on

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
es

 w
ho

 a
re

 fr
om

 B
la

ck
 / 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s 
(2

7%
) 

gr
ea

tly
 e

xc
ee

ds
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

11
%

),
 L

on
do

n 
(1

1%
) 

an
d 

na
tio

na
l (

2%
) 

av
er

ag
es

. T
he

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

t e
th

ni
c 

m
in

or
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

ar
e 

B
la

ck
 A

fr
ic

an
 (

13
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

),
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 

S
om

al
ia

n 
an

d 
E

rit
re

an
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 B

la
ck

 C
ar

ib
be

an
 (

10
%

).
 T

he
se

 fi
gu

re
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
ly

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 
th

os
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 (
bo

th
 5

%
),

 L
on

do
n 

(b
ot

h 
5%

) 
an

d 
E

ng
la

nd
 (

bo
th

 1
%

).
 O

nl
y 

a 
sm

al
l p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
ar

e 
fr

om
 C

hi
ne

se
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 (

3%
).

 
 T

he
 C

en
su

s 
20

01
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t c

om
pl

et
e 

da
ta

se
t o

n 
th

e 
et

hn
ic

ity
 o

f t
he

 e
st

at
es

. 
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 e

th
ni

ci
ty

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 C

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

is
 in

co
m

pl
et

e,
 b

ut
 n

ev
er

th
el

es
s 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 th

e 
C

en
su

s 
20

01
 fi

gu
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
es

ta
te

s 
re

m
ai

n 
br

oa
dl

y 
ac

cu
ra

te
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 4

4%
 o

f 
te

na
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
e 

ar
e 

fr
om

 W
hi

te
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
, c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 3

9%
 o

n 
th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 

Page 395



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
30

es
ta

te
. 2

9%
 o

f t
en

an
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

es
ta

te
 a

re
 o

f B
la

ck
 / 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s;
 th

is
 c

om
pa

re
s 

to
 2

4%
 o

f t
en

an
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
e.

 
 R

el
ig

io
n

/b
el

ie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 n

o
n

 –
 b

el
ie

f)
 

T
he

 p
re

do
m

in
an

t r
el

ig
io

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
es

 is
 C

hr
is

tia
ni

ty
 (

60
%

),
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

64
%

).
 T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 M
us

lim
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s 

(1
3%

) 
ex

ce
ed

s 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

7%
),

 L
on

do
n 

(8
%

) 
an

d 
na

tio
na

l (
2%

) 
av

er
ag

es
, w

hi
le

 o
th

er
 r

el
ig

io
ns

 a
pp

ea
r 

in
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l 
pr

op
or

tio
ns

. P
er

so
ns

 s
ta

tin
g 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
no

 r
el

ig
io

n 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 1
6%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

es
ta

te
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 (
18

%
),

 L
on

do
n 

(1
6%

) 
an

d 
na

tio
na

l (
15

%
) 

av
er

ag
es

. 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
da

ta
se

ts
 w

hi
ch

 u
pd

at
e 

th
e 

re
lig

io
us

 m
ak

e-
up

 o
f t

he
 e

st
at

es
. C

en
su

s 
20

01
 d

at
a 

is
 th

e 
on

ly
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
da

ta
. 

 S
ex

 
T

he
re

 a
re

 m
or

e 
w

om
en

 in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 th

an
 m

en
, w

hi
ch

 is
 a

ls
o 

th
e 

ca
se

 in
 L

on
do

n 
an

d 
E

ng
la

nd
. T

he
 S

in
gl

e 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 S
ch

em
e 

(S
E

S
) 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
fe

m
al

e 
he

ad
ed

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 k

ey
 e

qu
al

ity
 g

ap
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
90

%
 o

f l
on

e 
pa

re
nt

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ar
e 

he
ad

ed
 b

y 
w

om
en

 (
20

01
 

C
en

su
s)

.  
 E

co
n

o
m

ic
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
ta

tis
tic

s 
fo

r 
E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 w

om
en

 a
re

 le
ss

 e
co

no
m

ic
al

ly
 a

ct
iv

e 
th

an
 m

en
. 6

5.
4%

 o
f w

om
en

 a
nd

 
80

.5
%

 o
f m

en
 a

re
 e

co
no

m
ic

al
ly

 a
ct

iv
e 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 T

hi
s 

is
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 w

id
e 

fig
ur

es
 o

f 6
6.

8%
 fo

r 
w

om
en

 a
nd

 8
3.

0%
 fo

r 
m

en
 (

S
ou

rc
e 

– 
N

om
is

 A
P

S
, 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
to

 J
un

e 
20

11
).

  
 T

he
 B

or
ou

gh
 h

as
 a

 m
ar

gi
na

lly
 h

ig
he

r 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 fu

ll 
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 m

al
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 (
87

.9
%

) 
th

an
 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

87
.0

%
),

 b
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
is

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 (
88

.4
).

 T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 h
as

 a
 

hi
gh

er
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 fu
ll 

tim
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 fe
m

al
es

 (
75

.6
%

) 
th

an
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 (
67

.0
%

) 
an

d 
na

tio
na

l (
57

.6
%

) 
av

er
ag

es
.  

 T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
on

 o
ut

-o
f-

w
or

k 
be

ne
fit

s 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 (
fo

r 
th

e 
lo

w
er

 la
ye

r 
su

pe
r 

ou
tp

ut
 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 th

e 
tw

o 
es

ta
te

s 
fa

ll 
w

ith
in

) 
st

an
ds

 a
t 2

3.
0%

 (
as

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 b
or

ou
gh

 a
nd

 L
on

do
n 

fig
ur

es
 o

f 1
3.

3%
 a

nd
 

12
.7

%
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y)

. (
S

ou
rc

e:
 D

W
P

, A
ug

 2
01

1)
. 

 T
he

 J
ob

 S
ee

ke
rs

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 (

JS
A

) 
cl

ai
m

an
t r

at
e 

is
 7

.8
%

, w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ea

rly
 d

ou
bl

e 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
av

er
ag

e 
(4

.3
%

) 
an

d 
Lo

nd
on

 a
ve

ra
ge

 (
4.

4%
).

 L
on

g-
te

rm
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t i
s 

a 
ke

y 
is

su
e 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ts

 fo
r 

42
.5

%
 o

f a
ll 

un
em

pl
oy

ed
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 is

 4
5.

6%
).

 Y
ou

th
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 n

ow
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
27

.0
%

 o
f a

ll 
JS

A
 c

la
im

an
ts

 (
fo

r 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
fig

ur
e 

is
 2

0.
7%

).
 (

S
ou

rc
e:

 D
W

P
, 

Page 396



 T
oo

l a
nd

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 P

S
E

D
 fr

om
 0

5.
04

.2
01

1 
31

F
eb

 2
01

2)
. 

 S
ex

u
al

 O
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

O
ffi

ci
al

 s
ta

tis
tic

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

en
su

s 
da

ta
, a

re
 n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 o
n 

se
xu

al
 o

rie
nt

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
O

N
S

’s
 m

os
t r

ec
en

t r
es

ea
rc

h 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 1
.5

%
 o

f t
he

 a
du

lt 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

id
en

tif
y 

as
 le

sb
ia

n,
 g

ay
, o

r 
bi

se
xu

al
 (

LG
B

).
 

T
hi

s 
fig

ur
e 

di
ffe

rs
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 fr

om
 th

e 
fig

ur
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f T
ra

de
 a

nd
 In

du
st

ry
 w

hi
ch

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
a 

fig
ur

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

6%
 L

G
B

T
 (

an
d 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r)

. T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

in
 L

on
do

n 
is

 th
ou

gh
t t

o 
be

 h
ig

he
r,

 p
er

ha
ps

 u
p 

to
 

10
%

. 
 P

le
as

e 
no

te
: T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

W
es

t K
en

si
ng

to
n 

an
d 

G
ib

bs
 G

re
en

 e
st

at
es

 w
ith

in
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

ns
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
lla

te
d 

fr
om

 v
ar

io
us

 s
ou

rc
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

H
F

 iW
or

ld
, D

W
P

 r
ec

or
ds

, S
ou

rc
e 

– 
N

om
is

 
A

P
S

, 2
00

1 
C

en
su

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 O

N
S

 S
LO

A
 M

id
-Y

ea
r 

E
st

im
at

e 
20

10
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

es
t K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
G

ib
bs

 G
re

en
 

E
st

at
es

 P
ro

fil
e 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

   S
ec

ti
o

n
 0

4 
A

g
re

em
en

t,
 p

u
b

lic
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
er

 s
ig

n
-o

ff
 

N
am

e:
 M

el
bo

ur
ne

 B
ar

re
tt 

P
os

iti
on

: E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 O

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
E

m
ai

l: 
M

el
bo

ur
ne

.b
ar

re
tt@

lb
hf

.g
ov

.u
k 

T
el

ep
ho

ne
 N

o:
 0

20
87

53
 4

22
8 

 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

 
D

at
e 

of
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

/C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r:

 3
rd

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

  
C

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

th
at

 k
ey

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 is

su
es

 fo
un

d 
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
cl

ud
ed

: Y
es

 
 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
fo

r 
ad

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

an
ce

 
o

n
ly

 

N
am

e:
 C

ar
ly

 F
ry

 
P

os
iti

on
: O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e 

ad
vi

ce
 / 

gu
id

an
ce

 g
iv

en
: 1

2th
 J

ul
y 

 2
01

2 
E

m
ai

l: 
 P

E
IA

@
lb

hf
.g

ov
.u

k 
T

el
ep

ho
ne

 N
o:

 0
20

 8
75

3 
34

30
 

 
  

Page 397



A
pp

en
di

x 
13

 –
 C

os
t R

an
ge

 

C
o

st
: 

C
o

st
s 

m
ar

ke
d

 *
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

sp
lit

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

H
R

A
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 

F
u

n
d

 
in

 
th

e 
ra

ti
o

 
84

.6
%

 
H

R
A

: 
15

.4
%

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
 

o
f 

la
n

d
 h

el
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
g

en
er

al
 f

u
n

d
, t

h
at

 
is

 t
h

e 
39

 f
re

eh
o

ld
er

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

, 
70

 L
ill

ie
 

R
o

ad
, 

G
ib

b
s 

G
re

en
 

S
ch

o
o

l 
an

d
 

F
ar

m
 

L
an

e 
 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 c
o

st
s 

at
 

cu
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
al

l 
L

ea
se

h
o

ld
er

s 
/ 

F
re

eh
o

ld
er

s 
ar

e 
b

o
u

g
h

t 
b

ac
k 

£ 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 
co

st
s 

at
 c

u
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
o

n
ly

 
n

o
n

 r
es

id
en

t 
le

as
eh

o
ld

er
s 

/ 
F

re
eh

o
ld

er
s 

ar
e 

b
o

u
g

h
t 

b
ac

k 
£ 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

ly
 

fu
n

d
ed

 o
n

 
an

 in
te

ri
m

 
b

as
is

 b
y 

C
ap

C
o

 if
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

o
o

k 
u

p
 t

h
ei

r 
o

ff
er

 
(s

ec
ti

o
n

 
12

.1
0)

 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

C
ap

it
al

1  / 
R

ev
en

u
e 

sp
lit

 
2  

P
er

io
d

 in
cu

rr
ed

 o
ve

r 
(e

st
im

at
ed

) 

B
uy

in
g 

ba
ck

 le
as

eh
ol

de
r 

an
d 

fr
ee

ho
ld

er
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
m

el
os

s 
an

d 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e3  

58
,6

39
,2

57
 

 
17

,9
40

,3
57

 
X

 
C

ap
ita

l 
20

12
 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 

da
te

 
of

 
la

st
 

la
nd

 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
to

 C
ap

C
o,

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
be

 fr
on

t l
oa

de
d 

H
om

el
os

s 
fo

r 
te

na
nt

s 
(in

cl
ud

es
 5

8 
R

S
L 

te
na

nt
s)

 
2,

76
8,

30
0 

2,
76

8,
30

0 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

T
rig

ge
r 

D
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 d
at

e 
of

 
la

st
 la

nd
 tr

an
sf

er
 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 fo
r 

te
na

nt
s 

1,
31

3,
44

6 
1,

31
3,

44
6 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
T

rig
ge

r 
D

at
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 d

at
e 

of
 

la
st

 la
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 
In

te
re

st
 C

os
ts

 
19

,9
77

,1
56

 
3,

50
7,

41
0 

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

20
12

 
to

 
w

he
n 

ne
t 

ca
sh

 
flo

w
 

be
co

m
es

 p
os

iti
ve

 
S

D
LT

 o
n 

le
as

eh
ol

d 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

(b
uy

ba
ck

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s)
 

19
,1

60
,2

96
 

18
,1

15
,1

27
 

 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

20
12

 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
da

te
 

of
 

la
st

 
la

nd
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

to
 C

ap
C

o,
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

be
 fr

on
t l

oa
de

d 
A

da
pt

at
io

ns
4  

16
0,

19
0 

21
7,

52
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
T

rig
ge

r 
D

at
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 d

at
e 

of
 

la
st

 la
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 
T

en
an

ts
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

26
5,

50
0 

32
4,

00
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
T

rig
ge

r 
D

at
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 d

at
e 

of
 

la
st

 la
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 
Lo

ss
 o

f G
ar

de
n 

51
0,

00
0 

51
0,

00
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
T

rig
ge

r 
D

at
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 d

at
e 

of
 

la
st

 la
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 
Lo

ss
 o

f P
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 g
ar

ag
es

5  
37

0,
00

0 
54

5,
00

0 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

T
rig

ge
r 

D
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 d
at

e 
of

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1  C
ap

ita
l i

nc
lu

de
s 

ite
m

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
of

fs
et

 a
s 

a 
co

st
 o

f d
is

po
sa

l, 
ca

pi
ta

l r
ev

en
ue

 s
pl

it 
is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fi

na
l r

ev
ie

w
. 

2  T
he

 p
re

ci
se

 s
pl

it 
w

ill
 d

ep
en

d 
on

 th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
it 

is
 in

cu
rr

ed
 

3  C
as

h 
pa

ym
en

ts
 o

nl
y,

 fo
r 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 w
ho

 o
pt

 to
 r

em
ai

n 
th

ei
r 

ho
m

el
os

s 
pa

ym
en

t i
s 

m
ad

e 
vi

a 
ad

di
tio

na
l e

qu
ity

 in
 th

ei
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

4  N
et

 o
f £

10
0k

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fr

om
 C

ap
C

o 
5  N

et
 o

f £
14

0k
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fr
om

 C
ap

C
o 

Page 398



A
pp

en
di

x 
13

 –
 C

os
t R

an
ge

 

C
o

st
: 

C
o

st
s 

m
ar

ke
d

 *
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

sp
lit

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

H
R

A
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 

F
u

n
d

 
in

 
th

e 
ra

ti
o

 
84

.6
%

 
H

R
A

: 
15

.4
%

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
 

o
f 

la
n

d
 h

el
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
g

en
er

al
 f

u
n

d
, t

h
at

 
is

 t
h

e 
39

 f
re

eh
o

ld
er

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

, 
70

 L
ill

ie
 

R
o

ad
, 

G
ib

b
s 

G
re

en
 

S
ch

o
o

l 
an

d
 

F
ar

m
 

L
an

e 
 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 c
o

st
s 

at
 

cu
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
al

l 
L

ea
se

h
o

ld
er

s 
/ 

F
re

eh
o

ld
er

s 
ar

e 
b

o
u

g
h

t 
b

ac
k 

£ 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 
co

st
s 

at
 c

u
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
o

n
ly

 
n

o
n

 r
es

id
en

t 
le

as
eh

o
ld

er
s 

/ 
F

re
eh

o
ld

er
s 

ar
e 

b
o

u
g

h
t 

b
ac

k 
£ 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

ly
 

fu
n

d
ed

 o
n

 
an

 in
te

ri
m

 
b

as
is

 b
y 

C
ap

C
o

 if
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

o
o

k 
u

p
 t

h
ei

r 
o

ff
er

 
(s

ec
ti

o
n

 
12

.1
0)

 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

C
ap

it
al

1  / 
R

ev
en

u
e 

sp
lit

 
2  

P
er

io
d

 in
cu

rr
ed

 o
ve

r 
(e

st
im

at
ed

) 

la
st

 la
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 
S

ec
ur

ity
 

3,
51

0,
00

0 
3,

51
0,

00
0 

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

20
12

 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
da

te
 

of
 

la
st

 
la

nd
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 C
ap

C
o.

 
E

ar
ly

 R
ed

em
pt

io
n 

C
os

ts
 

17
1,

00
0 

54
,0

00
 

X
 

C
ap

ita
l 

20
12

 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
da

te
 

of
 

la
st

 
la

nd
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

to
 C

ap
C

o,
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

be
 fr

on
t l

oa
de

d 
P

ro
je

ct
 T

ea
m

 C
os

ts
 to

 2
03

0 
as

 p
er

 s
ec

tio
n 

9 
of

 r
ep

or
t  

(a
ss

um
es

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 te

am
 fo

r 
th

e 
la

st
 4

 y
ea

rs
) 

* 

10
,0

42
,3

68
 

10
,0

42
,3

68
 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
20

12
 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 

da
te

 
of

 
la

st
 

la
nd

 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
to

 C
ap

C
o,

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

bi
an

nu
al

 r
ev

ie
w

,  

E
st

im
at

ed
 c

os
ts

 o
f c

ap
 o

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
ch

ar
ge

s 
fo

r 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

N
/A

, a
ll 

bo
ug

ht
 o

ut
 

36
8,

90
0 

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

5 
ye

ar
s 

fr
om

 l
an

d 
tr

an
sf

er
 f

or
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

,  
E

st
im

at
ed

 c
os

ts
 to

 s
ig

ni
ng

 th
e 

C
LS

A
 

(e
xc

lu
de

s 
of

fic
er

 ti
m

e)
 *

 
1,

80
1,

71
0 

1,
80

1,
71

0 
 

C
ap

ita
l: 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
de

fe
rr

ed
 c

os
t o

f 
di

sp
os

al
 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

au
di

to
r 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n)

 

20
09

-2
01

2 

C
os

ts
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

an
d 

of
fic

es
 

fo
r 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
 

2,
69

8,
29

0 
2,

69
8,

29
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l o
r 

R
ev

en
ue

 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
w

or
k 

20
12

 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
da

te
 

of
 

la
st

 
la

nd
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

to
 C

ap
C

o,
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
bi

an
nu

al
 r

ev
ie

w
, 

Page 399



A
pp

en
di

x 
13

 –
 C

os
t R

an
ge

 

C
o

st
: 

C
o

st
s 

m
ar

ke
d

 *
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

sp
lit

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

H
R

A
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 

F
u

n
d

 
in

 
th

e 
ra

ti
o

 
84

.6
%

 
H

R
A

: 
15

.4
%

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
 

o
f 

la
n

d
 h

el
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
g

en
er

al
 f

u
n

d
, t

h
at

 
is

 t
h

e 
39

 f
re

eh
o

ld
er

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

, 
70

 L
ill

ie
 

R
o

ad
, 

G
ib

b
s 

G
re

en
 

S
ch

o
o

l 
an

d
 

F
ar

m
 

L
an

e 
 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 c
o

st
s 

at
 

cu
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
al

l 
L

ea
se

h
o

ld
er

s 
/ 

F
re

eh
o

ld
er

s 
ar

e 
b

o
u

g
h

t 
b

ac
k 

£ 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 
co

st
s 

at
 c

u
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
o

n
ly

 
n

o
n

 r
es

id
en

t 
le

as
eh

o
ld

er
s 

/ 
F

re
eh

o
ld

er
s 

ar
e 

b
o

u
g

h
t 

b
ac

k 
£ 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

ly
 

fu
n

d
ed

 o
n

 
an

 in
te

ri
m

 
b

as
is

 b
y 

C
ap

C
o

 if
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

o
o

k 
u

p
 t

h
ei

r 
o

ff
er

 
(s

ec
ti

o
n

 
12

.1
0)

 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

C
ap

it
al

1  / 
R

ev
en

u
e 

sp
lit

 
2  

P
er

io
d

 in
cu

rr
ed

 o
ve

r 
(e

st
im

at
ed

) 

O
ng

oi
ng

 L
eg

al
 w

or
k 

on
 m

an
ag

in
g 

C
LS

A
 

2,
12

3,
22

2 
2,

12
3,

22
2 

 
C

ap
ita

l o
r 

R
ev

en
ue

 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
w

or
k 

20
12

-2
03

0 

Le
ga

l c
ha

lle
ng

es
 

4,
00

0,
00

0 
4,

00
0,

00
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l o
r 

re
ve

nu
e 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

ch
al

le
ng

e 

20
12

-2
01

5 

C
P

O
 In

qu
iri

es
 

50
0,

00
0 

50
0,

00
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
20

12
-2

01
5 

C
P

O
 R

ef
er

en
ce

r 
15

0,
00

0 
15

0,
00

0 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

20
12

-2
01

5 
C

P
O

 L
aw

ye
r 

10
0,

00
0 

10
0,

00
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
20

12
-2

01
5 

T
hi

rd
 P

ar
ty

 R
ig

ht
s 

2,
00

0,
00

0 
2,

00
0,

00
0 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
20

12
-2

01
5 

C
on

se
nt

s 
Le

ga
l a

dv
ic

e 
50

,0
00

 
50

,0
00

 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

20
12

-2
01

5 
S

to
pp

in
g 

U
p 

In
qu

iri
es

 
20

0,
00

0 
20

0,
00

0 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

20
12

-2
01

5 
D

am
ag

es
 

10
,0

00
,0

00
 

10
,0

00
,0

00
 

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

20
15

-2
03

0 
C

er
tif

yi
ng

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 G

ua
ra

nt
or

 
25

0,
00

0 
25

0,
00

0 
 

C
ap

ita
l 

20
12

 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
da

te
 

of
 

la
st

 
la

nd
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 C
ap

C
o.

 
D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

(a
ll 

le
as

eh
ol

de
r 

bu
yb

ac
ks

) 
23

8,
89

6 
23

8,
89

6 
 

C
ap

ita
l o

r 
re

ve
nu

e 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

20
12

-2
03

0 

Page 400



A
pp

en
di

x 
13

 –
 C

os
t R

an
ge

 

C
o

st
: 

C
o

st
s 

m
ar

ke
d

 *
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

sp
lit

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

H
R

A
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 

F
u

n
d

 
in

 
th

e 
ra

ti
o

 
84

.6
%

 
H

R
A

: 
15

.4
%

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
 

o
f 

la
n

d
 h

el
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
g

en
er

al
 f

u
n

d
, t

h
at

 
is

 t
h

e 
39

 f
re

eh
o

ld
er

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

, 
70

 L
ill

ie
 

R
o

ad
, 

G
ib

b
s 

G
re

en
 

S
ch

o
o

l 
an

d
 

F
ar

m
 

L
an

e 
 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 c
o

st
s 

at
 

cu
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
al

l 
L

ea
se

h
o

ld
er

s 
/ 

F
re

eh
o

ld
er

s 
ar

e 
b

o
u

g
h

t 
b

ac
k 

£ 

Ill
u

st
ra

ti
ve

 
co

st
s 

at
 c

u
rr

en
t 

va
lu

es
  i

f 
o

n
ly

 
n

o
n

 r
es

id
en

t 
le

as
eh

o
ld

er
s 

/ 
F

re
eh

o
ld

er
s 

ar
e 

b
o

u
g

h
t 

b
ac

k 
£ 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

ly
 

fu
n

d
ed

 o
n

 
an

 in
te

ri
m

 
b

as
is

 b
y 

C
ap

C
o

 if
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

o
o

k 
u

p
 t

h
ei

r 
o

ff
er

 
(s

ec
ti

o
n

 
12

.1
0)

 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

C
ap

it
al

1  / 
R

ev
en

u
e 

sp
lit

 
2  

P
er

io
d

 in
cu

rr
ed

 o
ve

r 
(e

st
im

at
ed

) 

S
ch

oo
l R

e-
pr

ov
is

io
n 

12
,0

00
,0

00
 

12
,0

00
,0

00
 

 
C

ap
ita

l 
20

12
-2

01
4 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

 
9,

18
3,

17
6 

9,
02

5,
95

8 
 

C
ap

ita
l o

r 
R

ev
en

ue
 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

w
or

k 

20
12

-2
03

5 

T
o

ta
l 

16
2,

18
2,

80
7 

10
4,

35
4,

50
4 

 
 

 

   N
ot

e 
th

e 
in

co
m

e 
to

 fu
nd

 th
es

e 
co

st
s 

co
m

es
 fr

om
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

£1
05

m
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

an
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

sa
le

 o
f p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
th

at
 r

ep
la

ce
 th

e 
bu

y 
ba

ck
s.

 If
 a

ll 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 w

er
e 

bo
ug

ht
 b

ac
k 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

17
1 

ne
w

 h
ig

he
r 

va
lu

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
el

l, 
if 

on
ly

 th
e 

no
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

bo
ug

ht
 b

ac
k 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

54
 n

ew
 h

ig
he

r 
va

lu
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 s

el
l. 

 N
on

e 
of

 th
es

e 
sa

le
s 

w
ou

ld
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
oc

ia
l f

or
 r

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
s.

 T
he

 s
en

si
tiv

ity
 o

f c
as

h 
flo

w
s 

to
 h

ou
se

 p
ric

e 
in

fla
tio

n 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
12

.1
1 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

re
po

rt
. 

  

Page 401



www.pwc.co.uk

London Borough
of Hammersmith
& Fulham
Earls Court
Redevelopment –
Tax implications

August 2012

Page 402



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 2 of 21

Table of Contents

Executive summary ...................................................................................................................................................... 3

Background and scope ................................................................................................................................................. 4

Summary of the arrangements .................................................................................................................................... 5

1. Sale of Gibbs Green School ................................................................................................................................. 5

2. Sale of Farm Lane ............................................................................................................................................... 6

3. Securing vacant possession on Council land ..................................................................................................... 6

4. Sale of Council’s Land......................................................................................................................................... 6

5. Replacement Homes transferred to the Council ................................................................................................7

6. Replacement Homes transferred to tenants.......................................................................................................7

Tax Implications ........................................................................................................................................................... 8

SDLT.............................................................................................................................................................................. 8

Overview .................................................................................................................................................................. 8

1. Securing vacant possession of Council land....................................................................................................... 9

2. Sale of Gibbs Green School................................................................................................................................. 9

3. Sale of Farm Lane................................................................................................................................................ 9

4. Sale of Council’s Land........................................................................................................................................10

5. Replacement Homes transferred to the Council ..............................................................................................10

6. Replacement homes transferred to tenants......................................................................................................10

VAT............................................................................................................................................................................... 11

Supplies of land under the CLSA........................................................................................................................... 11

The supplies of new homes....................................................................................................................................12

Corporation Tax...........................................................................................................................................................13

Appendix 1: SDLT Technical Notes ...........................................................................................................................14

Appendix 2: VAT Technical Notes............................................................................................................................ 20

Page 403



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 3 of 21

Executive summary
The Council’s direct exposure to SDLT is potentially limited provided:

! s106 obligations are put in place in respect of the Replacement Homes and car parking CapCo provide
to the Council and the land transactions take place in the 5 years following the creation of the planning
obligation (If this process is not managed correctly a very large liability could arise.);

! land acquisitions from the public are carried out in a manner which fulfils the criteria for CPO relief;
and

! the Council is not required to repurchase Gibbs Green School or Farm Lane following a termination of
the CLSA.

However the Council will have indirect SDLT liabilities (which we currently have insufficient information to
quantify) in respect of:

! land acquired directly by CapCo from the tenants and freeholders, and

! land re-acquired by tenants/freeholders.

We understand there is a “blight” agreement that we have not seen. SDLT costs may result from any land
acquisitions under these provisions, or any other acquisitions made outside of the CLSA as a result of this
project. We would recommend that any such acquisitions are reviewed from a SDLT perspective, especially
where the value of the land acquired is significant.

The Council will need to carefully monitor the VAT incurred in relation to the project.

VAT attributable to exempt supplies will need to be included in the partial exemption calculation. Preliminary
calculations suggest that this VAT can be managed within the Council’s partial exemption de minimis limit so
that no VAT will need to be repaid to HMRC. However, costs will need to be monitored carefully.

The Council will not incur any corporation tax as local authorities in the UK are not liable to corporation tax or
income tax.

Page 404



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 4 of 21

Background and scope
Capital and Counties Limited (“CapCo”), the leasehold owners of the Earl’s Court 1 and 2 exhibition centres and
Transport for London (“TfL”), freehold owners of Lillie Bridge Depot want to develop their land. The London
Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham (“the Council”), together with 39 freeholders who have exercised their
right to buy (“Freeholders”), own the freehold to two housing estates, at West Kensington and Gibbs Green that
sit adjacent to this potential development site. The Council and homeowner land represents approximately one
third of the total sixty six acre site at Earl’s Court.

CapCo have put forward an offer for the Council’s share of the land which comprises of:

! cash consideration of £105m,

! overage, and

! replacement social homes.

This report;

! outlines the direct tax, VAT and Stamp Duty Land Tax (“SDLT”) implications and liabilities for the
Council of the proposed Conditional Land Sale Agreement (“CLSA”); and

! includes the SDLT implications on the transfer of new properties to leaseholders / freeholders and also
on stair casing payments associated with the shared equity homes.

We have reviewed the following documentation:

! The draft CLSA, entitled version 5 and dated 27 January 2012, followed by

! the draft CLSA, entitled version 31 July 2012.

Certain terms of reference that have been defined in the CLSA have been used in our advice.

Page 405



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 5 of 21

Summary of the arrangements
We have summarised our understanding of the key elements of the arrangements below, based on the CLSA
and the information provided at meetings held with the Council and its representatives.

If our understanding of the arrangements is incorrect, or if any key aspects of the transaction are missing,
please let us know as this may affect our analysis.

The CLSA is a conditional contract for the sale of land dealing with a number of movements of land between
CapCo and the Council.

The simple diagram above shows the movements of land:

1. Sale of Gibbs Green School

2. Sale of Farm Lane

3. Securing vacant possession of Council land

4. Sale of Council’s land

5. Replacement Homes transferred to the Council

6. Replacement Homes transferred to tenants

1. Sale of Gibbs Green School
The Council currently own the freehold of Gibbs Green School which will be transferred to CapCo. The
consideration paid will be:

! cash of £9.3m,

! overage (if the CLSA is terminated).

Gibbs Green School is currently being used by the Council to temporarily house its secondary autistic provision.
The Council intends to relocate the school to a new facility in White City, following its construction. The cash
consideration will become payable by CapCo when the CLSA is entered into. Completion of the transfer is
scheduled for 31 August 2014 or such earlier time stipulated by the Council i.e. if the Council is able to vacate
the property earlier.

CapCoThe Council

1

4

5

2

Tenants

3

6
3

6

Page 406



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 6 of 21

In the event that the CLSA is terminated, the Council will acquire an option to repurchase Gibbs Green School
under the Repurchase and Overage Provisions.

2. Sale of Farm Lane
The Council also owns the freehold of 11 Farm Lane, which is to be sold to CapCo. The consideration paid will
be:

! £5.7m on completion of the sale, AND

! Overage (if the CLSA is terminated).

The property will be used to assist in the provision of Replacement Homes.

In the event that the CLSA is terminated, the Council will acquire an option to repurchase Farm Lane under the
Repurchase and Overage Provisions.

3. Securing vacant possession on Council land
The Council will be responsible for securing vacant possession of its land prior to the transfer to CapCo. This
will involve the acquisition of a number of interests from residents and occupying RSLs. The consideration paid
will be either in;

! cash, or

! the provision of alternative accommodation.

We understand:

! Following the signing of the CLSA, CapCo will make £7.5m available under a loan facility to fund the
Council’s acquisitions, and any other costs related with the securing of vacant possession. Following
the Council obtaining secure SOS Consent, this loan facility will increase to £15m. The Council does not
currently plan to use this loan facility. If the loan facility is used, any payments will in effect be an
advance on the cash consideration payable for transaction 4.

! The Council may require CapCo to acquire some of the units directly. Qualifying capital and revenue
costs incurred by CapCo in relation to these acquisitions will be refunded, net of any rents CapCo may
receive. These costs (including SDLT payable by CapCo) will be accrued and netted off the Advance
Payments.

Please note, we are yet to see details of any arrangements that the Council or CapCo has entered into with the
RSLs outside of the CLSA. It is understood that the RSLs own long leases in 58 properties within the two
Council estates. Negotiations will be taking place with these RSLs in terms of purchasing back their interests
and this may include providing sites elsewhere. These arrangements are beyond the scope of this report but
will need to be considered from a tax perspective.

4. Sale of Council’s Land
The sale of the Council’s land to CapCo will take place in Phases. The total cash consideration payable by CapCo
will be a combination of:

! £105,000,000 in cash (this includes the consideration paid for Gibbs Green School and Farm Lane);

! overage (its currently anticipated no overage will arise); and

! CapCo will also provide the Replacement Homes to the Council (see below).

Page 407



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 7 of 21

The CLSA will become unconditional upon satisfaction of the Conditions Precedent i.e. the SOS Consent
Condition (the satisfaction of certain consents under Local Government and Housing legislation) and the
Trigger Condition (the service of the Trigger Notice by CapCo following satisfaction of the SOS Consent
Condition).

Transfer of each Phase
The obligation on the Council to transfer each Phase of land is currently conditional on the satisfaction of the
Vacant Possession Condition for that Phase and the grant, by CapCo, of the necessary Replacement Home
Lease(s) or Replacement Accommodation Lease(s).

Advance Payments
Following the satisfaction of the Trigger Condition the balance of the consideration will be paid in five equal
annual instalments beginning on:

! 31 December 2015, if the Trigger Condition is satisfied before that date, or
! the date the Trigger Condition is satisfied, if later.

5. Replacement Homes transferred to the Council
It is anticipated that the majority of tenants and occupiers will want to relocate within the immediate locality.
CapCo is required to make a number of Replacement Homes available to the Council to facilitate agreement of
terms with occupiers and to secure vacant possession.

The Replacement Homes will be made available to the Council, as required, throughout the course of the
development, so that they can re-house tenants and Freeholders/leaseholders.

A total of 765 Replacement Homes will be provided by CapCo to the Council under 995 year leases. 171 of the
replacement homes are required to house existing resident Freeholders/leaseholders, who have acquired their
homes under the Right to Buy. The remaining 594 homes are for existing tenants.

6. Replacement Homes transferred to tenants
Freeholders/leaseholders from whom the Council acquire houses from will be able to take up their new homes
at no extra cost. Where Freeholders/leaseholders are to acquire a more valuable house than they gave up we
understand equity may be retained by the Council to create a shared ownership structure.

Page 408



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 8 of 21

Tax Implications
Local authorities are not liable to corporation tax or income tax. However, the project will have a number of
VAT and SDLT issues, which will need to be managed throughout the course of the development.

SDLT
Overview
i) The Councils liabilities
The Council is likely to have a SDLT liability in respect of:

! The acquisition of freehold interests from the public, and of leasehold interests where a new lease is not
granted, where CPO relief is not available.

! Reimbursement of tenants/freeholders for SDLT on Replacement Homes transferred to tenants and
owners. While this charge is prima facie a cost to the tenants we understand the Council are
underwriting it. Further information is required for us to quantify this charge.

! The reimbursement of CapCo for SDLT it suffers when acquiring land directly from tenants or
freeholders.

Care needs to be taken that:

! S106 obligations are put in place in respect of the Replacement Homes and car parking CapCo return to
the Council and the land transactions take place in 5 years following the creation of the planning
obligation. (If this process is not managed correctly a very large liability could arise);

! land acquisitions from the public are carried out in a manner which fulfils the criteria for CPO relief;
and

! the Council is not required to repurchase Gibbs Green School or Farm Lane following a termination of
the CLSA.

As a separate point, we understand there is a “blight” agreement that we have not seen. SDLT costs may result
from any land acquisitions under these provisions, or any other acquisitions made outside of the CLSA as a
result of this project. We would recommend that any such acquisitions are reviewed from a SDLT perspective,
especially where the value of the land acquired is significant.

ii) CapCo’s liabilities
CapCo will pay SDLT on land it acquires from the Council. We have not been asked to provide detailed advice
in this area.

We understand that CapCo will be able to recover SDLT it suffers on land acquired directly from tenants or
Freeholders from the Council.

When the CLSA is entered into, the £15m paid by CapCo under the Exclusivity Agreement will be held under
the terms of the CLSA. £10m will remain refundable. It will initially become payment for the option under the
CLSA. SDLT become due by CapCo on the full £15m when the Exclusivity Agreement was entered into. If the
£10m is eventually refunded under the CLSA, a refund of the associated SDLT paid will become due.

We have set out below the SDLT implications for the Council of each step in the CLSA.

Page 409



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 9 of 21

1. Securing vacant possession of Council land
The land will be secured by either the Council or CapCo:

i) The Council acquires the subordinate land interests
Unless property is acquired as part of a Compulsory Purchase Order “CPO” (see Appendix 1.4 for details) SDLT
will be payable by the Council. Depending on the chargeable consideration, and the type of property acquired,
SDLT could be payable at a rate between 1% and 4% (on the basis no single property is valued in excess of £1m,
see Appendix 1.1 for further details).

The chargeable consideration could be different depending upon the nature of the interest the Council acquires
and the consideration it provides:

! If a freehold is acquired it is likely to be an exchange with chargeable consideration being the higher of
market value or consideration paid.

! If leasehold is surrendered in return for the grant of a new lease to the same tenant, the surrender and
grant will not be seen as consideration for each other.

! If the only consideration provided for a leasehold or a freehold is cash, this would form the
consideration potentially chargeable to SDLT.

SDLT will need to be considered carefully when each land interest is acquired.

CPO Relief (see Appendix 1.8) should be used to mitigate any charge.

ii) Acquisitions by CapCo
SDLT will be payable by CapCo in respect of each interest it acquires directly. Depending on the cash
consideration paid, and the type of property acquired, SDLT will be payable at a rate between 1% and 4% (on
the basis no single property is valued in excess of £1m, see Appendix 1.1 for further details on rates).

It is worth noting here that SDLT incurred by CapCo on these acquisitions is included in the Allowable Capital
Expenditure, which is deducted from the total consideration paid to the Council.

We understand that the facility for CapCo to utilise sub-buyers is intended to allow them to substitute the
purchasing entity. Please note, any additional transfers of land (e.g. from a sub-buyer to CapCo or vice versa)
could create additional SDLT charges. However, we understand that any subsequent SDLT charges will not be
met by the Council.

2. Sale of Gibbs Green School
The acquisition of the freehold of Gibbs Green School by CapCo may be captured by the exchange provisions. If
so, CapCo’s SDLT liability will be based on the market value of the freehold transferred or, if higher, the
consideration actually given (i.e. a £9.3m payment by CapCo and any overage paid will also be subject to
SDLT).

If the Council chooses to repurchase Gibbs Green School following the termination of the CLSA, the acquisition
will be subject to SDLT.

It appears that the Council acquire an option to repurchase the property following the termination of the CLSA.
If that option were to have a value, its acquisition may trigger an SDLT charge. However, we understand that
the option will have little, if any, value.

3. Sale of Farm Lane
The acquisition of the freehold of Farm Lane by CapCo may also be captured by the exchange provisions.
Again, if so, SDLT suffered by CapCo will be payable on the market value or, if higher, the consideration
actually given (i.e. the £5.7m payment and any overage payment).

Page 410



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 10 of 21

If the Council chooses to repurchase Farm Lane following the termination of the CLSA, the acquisition will be
subject to SDLT.

It appears that the Council acquire an option to repurchase the property following the termination of the CLSA.
If that option were to have a value, its acquisition may trigger an SDLT charge. However, we understand that
the option will have little, if any, value.

4. Sale of Council’s Land
SDLT will be payable by CapCo on this transaction. As with the other acquisitions, this may be captured by the
exchange provisions. If so, the SDLT payable by CapCo will be calculated on the higher of:

! the market value of the interests acquired from the Council, which has been estimated to be between
£182m and £246m (there is subjectivity over if the land valuation and the amount it is depressed by
the s106 requirements) or;

! if higher, the consideration (directly or indirectly) given (likewise there is subjectivity over the value of
the total consideration paid by CapCo i.e. should this include the Replacement Homes?).

A significant SDLT saving could be achieved if an exchange can be avoided and the Replacement Homes can be
excluded from the calculation of the consideration given so that SDLT becomes due on the cash consideration
alone.

The rate at which CapCo would pay SDLT would be between 1% and 4% (on the basis no single property is
valued in excess of £1m, see Appendix 1.1 for further details), depending upon the split between residential and
commercial land and if it could be argued that Multiple Dwellings Relief is available (see Appendix 1.9 for
further details).

5. Replacement Homes transferred to the Council
If the transaction is seen as an exchange for SDLT purposes the chargeable consideration for the acquisitions by
the Council will be based on the market value or, if higher, the consideration actually paid. The CLSA ascribes a
value of approximately £105m to £169m to the Replacement Homes. It should be confirmed if this reflects
market value and is thus the potential chargeable consideration for SDLT purposes.

Reliefs
There is a relief for land transactions undertaken to fulfil a section 106 requirement. The duplication of the
obligation for CapCo to provide the Replacement Homes in the CLSA as well as in a section 106 agreement does
not necessarily preclude the possibility of this relief being claimed, however the position would be cleaner if the
obligation only existed in the s106 agreement. Appendix 1.4 provides the criteria for this relief.

If section 106 relief is not available, Multiple Dwellings Relief may be available (see Appendix 1.9 for further
details).

6. Replacement Homes transferred to tenants
It is understood that the Council has agreed to meet any SDLT costs of the Freeholders/tenants on their re-
acquisition of Replacement Homes.

i) Surrender and re-grant of a lease
The charge to SDLT in respect of any leases exchanged with tenants could be minimal as:

! there is a specific provision for the surrender of an existing lease in return for a grant of a new lease
deemed not to be consideration (see Appendix 1.5); and

! the net present value of rental payment may not breach the threshold for SDLT on the rents (see
Appendix 1.1).

Page 411



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 11 of 21

The position will however need to be considered on a case by case basis. In particular if a leasehold interest is
surrendered for a new shared equity leasehold interest further staircasing payments (see Appendix 1.9) could be
subject to SDLT.

ii) Sale of a freehold in return for shared equity long lease or freehold
Where there is an exchange of a freehold in return for a freehold or leasehold interest, the exchange is
potentially chargeable to SDLT. When someone acquires a share in a property through an approved shared
ownership scheme they may have to pay SDLT. The purchaser can either:

! make a one-off payment based on the total market value of the property, or
! pay any SDLT due in stages.

If the buyer opts to make a one-off payment up front this is known as making a 'market value election'.

If the buyer opts to pay SDLT in stages they are required to pay any amount due on the initial purchase amount
but will not have to make any further payments until they own more than an 80 per cent share of the property.
This is often referred to as staircasing. Given that we understand that the value of the properties in the
development will be in the region of £500k, staircasing may be the most attractive option.

Appendix 1.9 gives further details on the market value election and staircasing.

Further information will be required in respect of the interests that will be granted of the Replacement Homes
to calculate the total exposure.

VAT
The key issue for the Council in respect of VAT will be managing its partial exemption position (see technical
notes). If the Council breaches its partial exemption de minims limit in any given financial year, the cost is
likely to be in excess of £2m.

Therefore, it is important that the VAT on costs attributable to any exempt supplies is captured for the purpose
of the partial exemption calculation so that any issues are highlighted at an early stage and planning
opportunities can be considered.

The Council will make a number of supplies of land under the CLSA, followed by supplies of new homes to new
tenants and leaseholders. The supplies are considered in more detail below.

It will be important to consider the precise nature of the costs incurred in relation to the project to determine if
they are correctly attributable to the supplies of land under the CLSA, or the supplies of the new homes.

Supplies of land under the CLSA
The interests in land supplied by the Council under the CLSA will be exempt from VAT, subject to the Council’s
option to tax.

Please note, it is important that the Council checks to see if any options to tax have been made over any of the
land that will be sold to CapCo. If they have, those supplies will be subject to VAT (see notes on value of
supplies below). For the purpose of the note, we will assume there are no current options to tax in place.

Therefore, the Council will not be required to charge VAT on the supplies. However, VAT on costs attributable
to the supplies will be exempt input tax and will need to be included in the Council’s partial exemption
calculation.

Although the attributable VAT incurred to date in relation to the project may be minimal (perhaps limited to
the VAT incurred on professional fees) securing vacant possession of land and rehousing tenants can often be
costly.

Page 412



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 12 of 21

Preliminary calculations show that the attributable VAT that will be incurred (based on the forecasted costs)
can be managed within the Council’s partial exemption de minimis limit. This position could change if any
significant, unforeseen VATable costs for the project emerge or if exempt input tax generated from other
sources of income were to increase (following our detailed review of the Council’s calculations, for example).
One of the clauses recently added to the CLSA (clause 36.4) includes a warranty that the Council will not opt to
tax. The Council may want to consider removing/altering this clause if it feels that there is a risk that
significant additional VATable costs relating to the project could emerge, or the current partial exemption
calculations are not accurate, so that the option to tax is available as a last resort should the partial exemption
position be put at risk.

It is understood that CapCo’s intended use of the land will allow for CapCo to recover VAT charged by the
Council. However, since SDLT is payable on the VAT inclusive amount, an option to tax may result in
additional SDLT costs for CapCo so it will need to be considered carefully.

There may be scope to consider whether the supplies by the Council will qualify for zero rating (see technical
notes). Zero rating would allow for full VAT recovery on costs, with no partial exemption implications, and will
not lead to any additional SDLT costs for CapCo. This will only be applicable where the Council originally
constructed the dwellings and are yet to grant a major interest in them. The zero rate will therefore not apply to
any dwellings that have been sold under the Right to Buy, where the Council will have already granted a major
interest.

Value of supplies
In the event that the Council is required to opt to tax to protect its partial exemption position (or an option to
tax is already in place) then, to the extent that this will apply, the Council will need to ensure that it charges and
accounts for VAT on all of the associated consideration received from CapCo. The Council will need to value
any non monetary consideration associated with the standard rated supply.

Time of supplies
It will be important to carefully consider the time of supply for each Phase of land. If an option to tax is
required to protect the Council’s partial exemption position, it will need to be made before the time of supply.

The freehold interests supplied by the Council will be supplies of goods for VAT purposes. The time of supply
for goods is the date that they are made available or, if earlier, the date that payment is made or an invoice is
issued.

With the payment schedule as it stands, and with additional consideration being provided in the form of the
Replacement Homes, the date that the payment is made in respect of each supply of land is not currently clear.
Therefore, it is all the more important to consider what VATable costs will be incurred in relation to each supply
to ensure options to tax are made, where required.

The supplies of new homes
The supply of housing to (short term) Council tenants is a non business activity for the Council. As such, no
VAT will need to be charged on the rents and the VAT on any attributable costs will be fully recoverable under
section 33 of the VAT Act (see technical notes).

However, prima facie, the grant of the shared ownership leasehold interests in the Replacement Homes to the
current leaseholders/freeholders will be exempt from VAT. Therefore, VAT attributable to these supplies will
be exempt input tax and will need to be included in the Council’s partial exemption calculation.

The option to tax does not have effect in relation to dwellings. Therefore, if the VAT attributable to the new
leases will present a partial exemption issue, the option to tax will not be an effective solution.

The supply of the leases will not qualify for zero rating since the Council will not be constructing the new
homes.

Page 413



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 13 of 21

If the VAT attributable to the shared ownership leases will present a partial exemption issue, there may be
scope to consider if these supplies can also be treated as non business i.e. where the Council is operating under
a special legal regime and, in not charging VAT, there will be no significant distortion of competition. This
would allow for full VAT recovery on attributable costs, removing the partial exemption issue.

Nevertheless, since the supply of the Replacement Homes by CapCo should be zero rated, the VAT incurred by
the Council that will be attributable to the new leases should be minimal.

Corporation Tax
The Council will not incur any corporation tax as local authorities in the UK are not liable to corporation tax or
income tax.

Page 414



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 14 of 21

Appendix 1:
SDLT Technical Notes

1.1 Rates and thresholds – residential property
Freehold purchases and lease premiums
The rates below apply for freehold residential acquisitions and the premium paid for a new lease.

Chargeable consideration SDLT rate SDLT rate for first-time buyers

Up to £125,000 Zero Zero

Over £125,000 to £250,000 1% Zero

Over £250,000 to £500,000 3% 3%

Over £500,000 to £1 million 4% 4%

Over £1 million 5% 5%

Over £2 million from 22 March 2012 7% 7%

Over £2 million (purchased by certain persons,
including corporate bodies)
from 21 March 2012

15% 15%

£1 million threshold for wholly residential property
From 6 April 2011 SDLT on residential properties over £1 million is charged at 5%.

Purchasing six or more residential properties as part of a single transaction
If six or more properties form part of a single transaction the rules, rates and thresholds for non-residential
properties apply. The amounts paid for all the properties in the transaction must be added together in order to
establish the rate of tax payable. This is subject to the availability of Multiple Dwellings Relief.

SDLT on rent - new residential leasehold purchases
Where a new residential lease has a substantial annual rent, SDLT is payable on both of the following, which are
calculated separately and then added together:

! the lease premium - see the table above

! the 'net present value' (“NPV”) of the rent payable

The NPV is based on the value of the total rent over the life of the lease. The formula to calculate NPV is
complicated. It can be worked out using HMRC's online calculator, available on the website.

In practice SDLT only becomes payable on a fairly high rent - starting at around £4,500 a year for a 99-year
lease, for example, however the exact amount depends on the length of the lease.

Page 415



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 15 of 21

NPV SDLT rate (includes first-time buyers)

£0 - £125,000 Zero

Over £125,000 1% of the value that exceeds £125,000

1.2 Rates and thresholds – non residential property
Freehold purchases and lease premiums
The rates below apply for freehold non residential acquisitions and the premium paid for a new lease.

Chargeable consideration SDLT rate(includes first time buyers)

Up to £150,000 - annual rent is under £1,000 Zero

Up to £150,000 - annual rent is £1,000 or more 1%

Over £150,000 to £250,000 1%

Over £250,000 to £500,000 3%

Over £500,000 4%

SDLT on rent - new non-residential leasehold purchases
When a new non-residential or mixed use lease has a substantial annual rent, SDLT is payable on both of the
following which are calculated separately and then added together:

! the lease premium or purchase price - see the table above
! the NPV

NPV SDLT rate (includes first time buyers)

£0 - £150,000 Zero

Over £150,000 1% of the value that exceeds £150,000

1.3 Exchanges
Where a land transaction is entered into wholly or partly by the purchaser in consideration of another land
transaction being entered into by him as vendor, this is known as an “exchange” for SDLT purposes.

Each transaction is treated as a separate transaction and the chargeable consideration for both is deemed to be
the market value of the interest acquired or, if higher, the consideration actually given.

For completeness, although the term "exchange" is normally understood to be a transaction between two
people, the definition for SDLT purposes is widened to tri-partite transactions. This was clarified by HMRC in
the second SDLT Practitioners’ Newsletter. It uses an example (which is very relevant to this transaction) to
illustrate this principle, which I reproduce below:

“A purchase and onward lease (B purchases from A and onward leases to C) may be an exchange in
the meaning of the legislation if the onward lease is taken in consideration of the purchase. This will
frequently occur where A and C are connected persons.”

It goes on to state “If there is an exchange of land…there are two transactions and two ‘purchasers’.”

Page 416



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 16 of 21

A sale and leaseback, by its nature is always an exchange.

1.4 Section 106 relief - Compliance with planning
obligations
Where a land transaction is undertaken to comply with a planning obligation or a modification of a planning
obligation, the purchaser may claim relief from SDLT on that transaction, if the following conditions are
fulfilled.

1. The planning obligation or modification is enforceable against vendor

This means that there must be a planning obligation in place against the vendor before the transaction
is effected. Additionally that planning obligation must be capable of being enforced, whether through
the courts or by other means. It does not matter that no action has been taken to enforce the planning
order, it must just be capable of being enforced.

2. The purchaser is a public authority

3. The transaction takes place within a period of five years beginning with the date on which the planning
obligation was entered into or modified

It is the latest of these dates from which the time period runs.

1.5 Schedule 17A, Paragraph 16: Surrender of existing lease
in return for new lease
Where a lease (or more than one lease) is granted in consideration of the surrender of one or more existing
lease(s) (whether of the same or different premises) between the same parties, then:

! the grant of the new lease does not count as chargeable consideration for the surrender and

! the surrender does not count as chargeable consideration for the grant of the new lease.

under Finance Act 2003, Schedule 17A, Paragraph 16.

This applies even if other consideration is given for the surrender of the lease (such as a payment by the
landlord to the tenant to procure the surrender which is itself chargeable to stamp duty land tax). However the
release of any tenant’s obligation is not chargeable consideration in relation to the surrender of the lease.

Where part only of the subject-matter of a lease is surrendered, this is treated as the surrender of a lease for
these purposes.

1.6 Sale and leaseback relief
A sale and leaseback is an exchange. Therefore, both parts of the transaction are chargeable to SDLT on the
market value of the interest acquired or, if higher, the consideration actually given. However, the leaseback
element is exempt from the charge to SDLT if the following conditions are met:

1. The sale transaction is entered into wholly or partly in consideration of the leaseback transaction being
entered into.

2. The only other consideration (if any) for the sale is the payment of money (or the assumption of debt).

3. The transaction does not involve the transfer of certain rights (generally for assignment, subsale or
other transaction involving the subject matter) involved in the transaction.

4. Where the two parties are both bodies corporate, they are not part of the same corporate group.

Page 417



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 17 of 21

1.7 CPO Relief: Compulsory purchase facilitating
development
A compulsory purchase facilitating development is exempt from charge i.e. a purchase made under a
Compulsory Purchase Order for the purpose of facilitating a development by another person.

On occasion, a local authority will make a Compulsory Purchase Order on a property so that a development by
another party - typically a property developer - can proceed. Following the order, the owner of the property
sells it to the local authority and the local authority then sells it to the property developer. As there are two
purchases, there would normally be two lots of SDLT to pay. However, provided the development is being
carried out by the property developer, the local authority can get relief from SDLT on its acquisition of the
property. Any subsequent transfer of the chargeable interest to the third party is subject to SDLT in the normal
way.

This relief is only available where a party other than a local authority develops the land.

As long as the other conditions are fulfilled, it does not matter if the purchase is part of an agreement between
the vendor and a third party (i.e. the developer). So, if the vendor agrees to sell the land, and agrees a price
with the third party (i.e. the developer), as long as the subsequent sale, to the maker of the compulsory
purchase order, is the subject of a compulsory purchase order the fact that there is an agreement as to terms is
not a bar to obtaining the relief.

1.8 Multiple Dwellings Relief
Multiple dwellings relief was introduced in the 2011 Budget. It is a relief for transactions which include the
acquisition of interests in more than one dwelling.

Where the relief is claimed, the rate of SDLT which applies to the consideration attributable to interests in
dwellings is determined by reference to the amount of this consideration, divided by the number of dwellings
(i.e. the mean consideration attributable to the dwellings). This is subject to a minimum rate of 1%.

The rate of SDLT which applies to the consideration attributable to interests in land other than dwellings (if
any) is the rate which would apply in the absence of the relief. The consideration allocated to non-dwellings has
to be determined in a just and reasonable manner.

Superior freehold or leasehold interests in dwellings subject to leases granted for an initial period of 21 years or
more are not eligible for relief.

The relief includes provision for “off-plan” purchases where construction may not have commenced by the
effective date of the transaction. It also provides for the tax calculation to be adjusted if the number of
dwellings involved is reduced within three years of the effective date of the transaction.

1.9 Shared ownership / Staircasing
There are different options for paying SDLT when a shared ownership lease is granted by an approved
qualifying body (which includes a local authority).

These schemes are often known as New Build HomeBuy or Social Homebuy.

Market value election - one-off SDLT payment
If the buyer makes a market value election, a one-off SDLT payment becomes due in the same way as if they had
bought a freehold or leasehold property outright. The SDLT will be based on the market value of the property at
the time of the transaction, which will be stated in the lease.

No further SDLT will become due. It makes no difference if the buyer 'staircase' their ownership by buying a
bigger share in the property later on.

Page 418



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 18 of 21

It can be t beneficial to make an election when the total market value of the property is no more than the
threshold for paying SDLT. The threshold is currently £250,000 for first-time buyers (applies for purchases
made on or after 25 March 2010 and before 25 March 2012) and £125,000 for all other purchasers.

Right to acquire the freehold?
Where the lease allows the buyer to acquire the freehold to the property SDLT is charged on the market value of
the freehold. This is its value at the time of the initial purchase, as stated in the lease. This most commonly
applies to houses.

No right to acquire the freehold?
Where the lease doesn't allow the buyer to acquire the freehold to the property then SDLT is charged on the
'open market premium' - that is, the premium that would be payable at the time of purchase for the maximum
share of the property that can be acquired under the terms of the lease.

SDLT will also be due on the 'net present value' of the rent that would be payable under the lease if the
maximum share was purchased. This is based on the total amount of rent that would be payable over the term
of the lease. In practice, tax will only be due on the rent when it is a significant amount.

The deadline for making a market value election
A market value election should be made on the associated SDLT return but it can be made up to 12 months after
the deadline for sending in a return by amending the return.

Acquisition of the freehold
Following a market value election, and an initial payment of SDLT, no further SDLT will become due. However,
if the buyer acquires 100 per cent of the property by acquiring the freehold, a further SDLT return must be
submitted to inform HMRC of the acquisition.

Paying SDLT in stages – Staircasing
If a buyer opts to pay SDLT in stages the initial charge will be less but further payments will become due if they
later increase their share of the property. There are two ways of documenting such a transaction.

i) Staircasing payment as contingent consideration?
The basic rule is that SDLT is payable on the consideration paid (i.e. the discounted price).

If the staircasing payments amount to ‘contingent consideration’ for the initial lease, they will be included as
chargeable consideration. However, the leaseholder may apply to HMRC to defer the SDLT payment on the
contingent consideration (i.e. the staircasing payments potentially payable in the future) (s51 and 90 FA 2003).

If and when the staircasing payments are made, SDLT will be payable on those payments (without accruing
interest). However, the aggregate payments would be taken into account in deciding on the rate of SDLT.

The term ‘contingent’ is defined in s51 FA 2003 to mean payment on some ‘future event’ occurring. If the lease
were to state that the additional payment is due in the event of an assignment then this will look like contingent
consideration and the leaseholder will need to apply for postponement of SDLT. If on the other hand, these
arrangements were to be expressed as a restriction on assignment, then we think this should not be seen as
contingent consideration and the analysis in the next section should apply.

ii) Staircasing as a land transaction in its own right?
This analysis applies if the staircasing arrangements were to be expressed as a restriction on assignment, with
the option (contained in the lease itself) of permitting assignment on payment of the remaining equity. This
would be seen as a restriction embedded in the lease.

The term ‘chargeable interest’ for SDLT purposes includes ‘the benefit of an obligation, restriction or condition
affecting the value of any ... estate, interest, right or power in or over land in the United Kingdom’
(s48(1)FA2003).

Page 419



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 19 of 21

The release of such a restriction is an acquisition of that interest by the person whose interest is benefitted or
enlarged by the release (i.e. the leaseholder) and a disposal by the person ceasing to be entitled to that interest
(i.e. the council). Under this analysis, staircasing would amount to a land transaction as it would be a release of
a restriction on assigning the lease and the leaseholders, being the acquirers of this interest, would be liable to
pay SDLT the staircasing payments.

While the restriction will only be release when the last staircasing payment is made (i.e. when the leaseholder
acquires 100% of the equity), the payment of 80% of the total consideraiton would trigger the remaining SDLT
liability.

Because the initial lease the subsequent staircasing payments would be linked, the rate of SDLT should be
payable based on the cumulative consideration. However, in theory, SDLT would only be payable when the final
staircasing payment is made (apart from the payment on grant of the lease) because it is only at that stage that
the restriction is ‘released’.

Assuming we are correct in anticipating that these arrangements will be expressed as a restriction in the lease
then we think this analysis should apply and the benefit over the preceding ‘contingent consideration’ analysis
is that:

! The leaseholder does not need to apply for postponement of SDLT; and

! Additional SDLT would only be due when the final staircasing payment is made and the restriction is
release (but this might only be a theoretical advantage).

! The rents’ net present value is also taken into account when working how much SDLT is initial payable.

Lease Variations
For completeness, there are special rules for lease variations. Where any consideration is given by the lessee for
a variation of a lease that is deemed to be an acquisition of a chargeable interest by the lessee (Para 15A(1A),
Sch 17A, FA 2003). This should achieve the same result but we do not think this is relevant as the staircasing
arrangements should not be seen as lease variations.

Exchanges
The exchanges rules would apply if the contract to purchase the new lease is entered into by the leaseholder
wholly or partly in consideration of the sale by the Freeholder of his existing house to the council. (Note if a
leasehold was being surrendered the rules would differ). This is so even if the two transactions are completed
by 2 contracts. The key issue is whether one would not be entered into without the other and the favourable
conditions in the new lease (discounting and staircasing) are economic compensation for the other.

If the exchanges provision applies, SDLT will be chargeable on the market value of the new lease.

If the exchanges rule were to apply the market value of the new lease should reflect the staircasing restriction so
if only 50% of the value has been paid, the market value should only be 50% of the full market value of the
property

Page 420



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 20 of 21

Appendix 2:
VAT Technical Notes

2.1 Non business activities / Section 33 refund
A lot of the activities undertaken by local authorities are outside the scope of VAT. Generally speaking, goods
and services provided free of charge, or those provided by the authority under a special legal regime (applicable
to public authorities) where the exclusion from the charge to VAT will not significantly distort competition with
the private sector, are outside the scope of VAT.

This covers many of the activities undertaken by local authorities. In the UK, these activities are referred to as
“non business” activities.

Under normal rules, taxpayers cannot recover VAT incurred in relation to non business activities. However,
section 33 of the VAT Act provides a mechanism for local authorities to recover this VAT.

2.2 Partial exemption
Most of the VAT incurred by local authorities will be recoverable as either section 33 VAT, or normal business
input tax (VAT attributable to taxable supplies). In practice, a local authority will recover all of the VAT it
incurs, subject to its partial exemption position.

In principle, taxpayers cannot recover any VAT they incur that relates to its exempt supplies. This is known as
exempt input tax. However, subject to certain thresholds, local authorities can recover exempt input tax.

Each financial year, the Council undertakes a partial exemption calculation to compare its exempt input tax to
its total input tax i.e. all of the VAT incurred in the financial year. If the exempt input tax represents any more
than 5% of the total input tax, the Council must repay all of its exempt input tax back to HMRC. The 5%
threshold is known as the partial exemption de minimis limit.

Therefore, it is important for the Council to monitor any VAT it incurs in relation to exempt supplies each year
to ensure that this does not breach the limit.

2.3 Supplies of land
Subject to a number of exceptions, and the option to tax, the supply of land is exempt from VAT.

2.4 Option to tax
The VAT legislation allows taxpayers to opt to tax land. Following an option to tax, supplies of that land will be
liable to VAT at the standard rate. However, VAT incurred on attributable costs by the vendor is recoverable in
full, with no partial exemption implications. Also, purchasers are often in a position to recover any VAT
charged by the vendor.

Therefore, an option to tax is a tool that is often employed by local authorities when a supply of land will result
in its partial exemption de minimis limit being breached, or, when the purchaser can recover its VAT, if it
simply wants to reduce its exempt input tax and, therefore, reduce the risk that the de minimis limit will be
breached in future.

Dwellings
An option to tax has no effect in relation to the supply of a building, or part of a building, designed or adapted,
and intended for use as a dwelling or a number of dwellings.

Page 421



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Earls Court Redevelopment – Tax implications

Page 21 of 21

In a situation where dwellings are sold to a purchaser who will demolish them, the purchaser’s intended use of
the buildings is not use as a dwelling. So, even if following the demolition the purchaser will construct new
dwellings, the vendor’s option to tax should normally have effect.

2.5 Zero rating of supplies dwellings
The first grant of a major interest in a building, or part of a building, designed as a dwelling, by the person who
constructed that building, is zero rated.

A major interest for these purposes is a freehold interest or a leasehold interest exceeding 21 years.

The vendor will be the person responsible for determining the correct VAT liability of the supply.

This document has been prepared only for London Bourough of Hammersmith & Fulham and solely for the purpose and on the terms
agreed with them. We accept no liability (including for negligence) to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be
provided to anyone else.
© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a limited
liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm
of which is a separate legal entity.

Page 422



 1 

Earls Court Regeneration Project – Executive Risk Register – 
Conditional Land Sale Agreement 

  

Cabinet 3rd September 2012 

 

�
���
�

����� �	
����� ������������ ����
��

�� ����������	��
�����

������������

�������� ��������
������������

�������

�� ��������������������
������	�

�������� ��������
������������

�������

�� ����������������
�

����������
����

����
����������������

�������� ��������������
��	������	����	�

������

�������

�� ����������	��
�����
� ���
����������
�����

�������� ��������
������������

�������

�� !�����������
�
�
���������
��"�����
�
�������������	�

�������� �����������������
������������������
�����������������

�������

�� "��������������
�
�
����	�������	�����
�����������

�
���
�
�������������������
���������	���
����
#��������������

�������� �
���������������
������
$�
������������

��
�
���������������

�������

�� %������������������
��������������
	�����	���������
�
��������������	���
���	�����
�

�������� ������
�&�����	�
���'()�*���	����
�����������

�������

�� ����������
���
�
�����
�������������

Reputational �����������������
������

�������

�� �������	������
�������������

+����������� �����������������
������������

�������

��� ����������������
�

����������������
����������

������ �����������������
������������

�������

��� ,�����-�	������
�����
����

������
������������
������
�������

������ ����������������
	�����
�

�������

��� �����

����������
��������������������
��#��
��������������
���������

������ �����������������
������������

�������

��� �������������������
���
��������������	�
�����
��
��������

������ �����������������
������������

�������

��� �������
�����
������	��������

�������� ��������	��������
������������

�������

Page 423



 2 

�����������
����
��� �����������
����
�


����������
����

����
����������������

�������� ��������������
��	����
������������

�������

��� ������
���
���������
�
������
��������
�����

���������� �����
���	������
#�����������
�����
�

�������

��� �
����
�������������
�����������
-�	�	����
+�����������.����
�������	�����

���������� �
�����������
!�����
$�
������������

��
�
���������������

�������

��� ���������/��0
� ���������� �
���������������
!�����
1�
+�����������


��
������������

�������

��� �����
���
��������
�����

����
�������
���������

�

���

���������� �����
���	���
�����
�����������

�������

��� �����

��������23��
����������
���	��
����
����
���
	���
�

���������� �������������$�
��������������	����
�����������������

�������

��� %�
����	�	
�������
���
�	����
���
��������

������ +���������������
�������

�������

��� ��#�����������0���
���
�
�����
�������������	�����
� ���
�����������
���������

���������� �������������$�
	
�����������
������
$�
+���������������
�������

�������

��� %��	
����+�
	���
�
� ���	�����������
�
��������������
+�����������.���
�

�������� %�����+�4����	�	�
����
�����
�����#�
56)��
�����������
������	�

�������

 

 

 

Page 424



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

3 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 

 
CABINET MEMBER 
FOR TRANSPORT 
AND TECHNICAL 
SERVICES 
Councillor Victoria 
Brocklebank-Fowler 

MAYOR OF LONDON’S CYCLE HIRE 
SCHEME 
 
This report seeks authorisation to enter into an 
agreement with Transport for London (TfL) to 
extend the Mayor of London’s Cycle Hire 
Scheme into the borough and to make a 
contribution of £2 million to the extension as 
detailed in section 4 of the report 
 

Wards: All 
 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
Director for Transport 
and Highways 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations: 
 
1.  That authority be delegated to the Cabinet 
Member for Transport and Technical 
Services, in conjunction with the 
Executive Director for Transport and 
Technical Services, to enter into an 
agreement with Transport for London to 
extend the Mayor of London’s  Cycle Hire 
Scheme into the borough   

 
2.  That the Council makes a contribution of 
up to £2 million to the extension, to be 
recovered by developer contributions, as 
detailed in Section 4 of the report.  

 

 

HAS A EIA BEEN 
COMPLETED? 
YES 

HAS THE REPORT 
CONTENT BEEN RISK 
ASSESSED? 
YES 

Agenda Item 7

Page 425



 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1. In July 2010, the Mayor of London, Boris Johnson, introduced his  

automated cycle hire scheme to central London. Some 6000 bicycles 
have been provided at 400 docking stations. The bicycles are 
popularly known as “Borisbikes” and the scheme is sponsored by 
Barclays. The bikes are already an iconic addition to London’s 
streetscene.  

 
1.2.    Following on from the success of the scheme, in the spring of 2012 

the scheme was extended into its second phase. This consisted 
mainly of an eastwards extension to Tower Hamlets, but also included 
the provision of  four docking stations around the Westfield Shopping 
Centre at White City. These were paid for by Westfield as part of an 
agreement with the Mayor.  There are now 8333 bicycles at 587 
stations and at June 2012 there had been 13 million hires, of which 
95% were new cycling trips. There are currently 160,000 registered 
members of the scheme.   

 
1.3     TfL now plan to extend the scheme to the northern part of LB 

Wandsworth, the whole of Fulham, and Hammersmith eastwards from 
the town centre up to Shepherds Bush (see Fig 1). This is known as 
Phase 3 of the scheme. TfL require a contribution of £2 million from 
both LBHF and LB Wandsworth (together with a smaller contribution 
from the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, where some 
additional  stations are being provided) TfL believe that the scheme 
will attract large numbers of users from LBHF, firstly because a large 
number (some 3,900) of registered users of the existing scheme live 
in LBHF and secondly because TfL’s market research suggests that 
there is a large potential market in the borough.       
 

1.4     Safety concerns  are a key barrier to cycling take up. Rates of 
accidents resulting in deaths and serious injuries are generally higher 
than for public transport. In the first year of the scheme’s operation, 
there were 50% fewer serious accidents on the hire bikes than would 
have been expected if they had continued to walk or use public 
transport. A code of conduct has been developed to mitigate risks and 
the number of serious accidents between July 2010 and March 2011 
was 5, out of a total number of hires in the order of 4 million.   

 
  
 2.  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  The Mayor of London aims to effect a “Cycling Revolution” in the city, 

increasing cycling in London by 400% by 2026 compared with 2001. 
The Cycle Hire Scheme is one of the main elements of his strategy. 
Increasing cycling is also a key part of Hammersmith & Fulham’s 
transport Local Implementation Plan (LIP), which has a target of 
increasing the cycling share of 4% (one of the highest in London) to 
7% by 2031 . A large proportion of the respondents to the “Get H&F 
Moving” campaign last year asked for improved facilities for cycling 
and there were some 200 positive responses from residents to our 
request for suggestions for locations for cycle hire docking stations.  

Page 426



 
 
3.  LOCATION OF DOCKING STATIONS 
 
3.1.     TfL aim to provide a docking station every 300-400 metres, and are 

looking to provide 60-70 stations in the borough. In order to facilitate 
efficient servicing, they stipulate that each station should have spaces 
for a minimum of 25 bicycles. Possible sites suggested by the public 
(see para 2.1 above), TfL officers and Council officers have been 
evaluated against a range of criteria, including the effects on car 
parking, trees, crime prevention, waste, highways, parks, heritage 
and conservation and planning, with several sites eliminated where 
there are fundamental objections on one or more of these grounds. 
Sites which have survived this process are being designed in detail to 
TfL, who intend to hold a series of public exhibitions in the borough in 
the autumn to get the views of the public on them. They will then 
apply to the Council for planning permission for each site. Subject to 
the agreement of their board in September, TfL intend to implement 
Phase 3 of the scheme in May 2013.  The extent of Phase 3 and 
provisional location of docking stations in LBHF are shown in the 
attached diagrams  
 
 

4. FUNDING 
 
4.1 TfL have stipulated that they require a funding contribution of £2 

million from the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham in 
order to extend the cycle hire scheme into the borough. TfL require 
the £2million contribution to be paid by May/June 2015. TfL have 
stated that officer time spent on the project cannot be counted 
towards the Council’s contribution (even though this contribution is 
likely to be substantial). Other in-kind contribution, such as the 
provision of land, is acceptable in principle, but as a depot is not 
required in LBHF, opportunities for such provision are limited. 

 
4.2 Therefore the most appropriate source of funding is contributions from 

developers, either through Section 106 agreements or the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). High levels of cycling are necessary to 
enable large scale developments to take place without putting undue 
strain on the highway and public transport networks, and the Cycle 
Hire Scheme is an appropriate way of encouraging and facilitating 
cycling.  

 
4.3 Officers have been negotiating with developers on the provision of 

funding for the cycle hire scheme since the extension was mooted by 
TfL in the summer of 2011 .  A list of the developments from which 
contributions can be expected is provided in the exempt section of the 
report. There is a risk that not all the Section 106 and CIL funding will 
be in place by TfL’s deadline of January 2015. We will therefore seek 
to extend TfL’s deadline for payment until at least March 2016, while 
paying TfL instalments of what funds we have in advance of the 
deadline.  

 
 

Page 427



 
 
4.4 TfL will require the Council to enter into an agreement to permit them 

to undertake works on the Council’s highways (Section 8 agreement). 
The Director for Transport and Technical Services has delegated 
authority to enter into such an agreement.    

 
 
 5. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
5.1 The risks are included in the Transport and Technical Services 

Department risk register. The main risk is that some or all of the £2 
million contribution from the Section 106 funding is not delivered in time 
to meet TfL’s deadline of January 2015. In this eventually, the Council 
will have to cover any shortfall from its reserves until the funding is 
received, or find an alternative source for the funding. Officers consider 
that this risk is small to medium, and it can be significantly mitigated by 
an extension of the deadline to March 2016 as noted in para 4.3 above.  

 
5.2 There is also a risk that the scheme may not be delivered, e.g. if TfL 

decide it is no longer be viable for whatever reason. We should 
therefore incorporate into any agreement with TfL that any moneys paid 
by the Council to TfL will be refunded in these circumstances. 

 
5.3 Each docking station requires planning permission. It is possible that a 

large number of stations will be refused permission, so there are 
insufficient stations for a viable scheme. Given experience in Central 
London and the fact that the station sites will have been through a 
rigorous pre –planning application appraisal and public exhibitions, this 
risk is considered to be small.  

 
   
6. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS   
  
6.1 The EIA for this project is available electronically. A barrier to many 

residents of the borough taking up cycling is the lack of cycle parking 
space at their homes. The Mayor’s Cycle Hire Scheme is one means 
of overcoming this problem.  

 

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
7.1 The Head of Development Management states that sufficient funds 

have been identified from existing S106 contributions currently held 
and those due, which have been identified for transportation/highways 
purposes, and which would be appropriate to be used for the London 
Cycle Hire Scheme. Some contributions are anticipated explicitly for 
this purpose. Although the precise timing of receipt of the contributions 
due cannot be known, officers are confident that the amount required 
will be available within the timeframe set out by  TfL. Clearance for this 
spend against specific S106 funds will be sought from Cabinet in due 
course. 

 

Page 428



 
 
8.1 Should funds not be available in time there is some possibility that a 

call will be made on the Capital Reserve until such time as the funds 
have been received, although ultimately the project will be fully funded. 

 
 
9. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR FOR LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES  
 
9.1 The details of the contribution for TFL would need to be set out in the 

agreement to extend the Mayor of London’s Cycle Hire Scheme. 
Amongst other things, the agreement should set out: 
 
1. how the contribution to TFL has been calculated; 
2. what is to happen in the event of a dispute between the parties; 
3.  whether the contribution to TFL will include indexation which 

TFL are likely to request especially if the funds are not to be 
paid until 2015 (in which case the final sum may exceed £2 
million); and 

4.  a time period for repayment of the funds to the council if the 
TFL scheme is not delivered as the Council would not wish for 
the funds to be held indefinitely by TFL without being used.  

 
9.2 If the Council intends to use contributions from a variety of Section 106 

agreements, it is necessary to consider that from the earlier of the date 
that the Council adopts the charging schedule for CIL or 6 April 2014, 
there will be a limit  of 5 contributions which can be pooled together for 
a particular development, which in this case is the London Cycle Hire 
Scheme. The Council will therefore need to consider which 
developments contributions will be used to fund the payment to TFL 

 
9.3 When the contribution towards CIL is received, it will need to be used 

for different types of infrastructure in the borough and not just for 
transport. Depending on when the CIL charging schedule is adopted 
there may be a shortfall between the sums received and the sums 
which need to be paid to TFL.   

 
   
    LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of 
holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1.  
Mayor of London’s Second Transport 
Strategy (MTS2) 2010 

Chris Bainbridge, 
3354 

TTS 

2. Hammersmith & Fulham Second Local 
Implemntation Plan for Transport, 2011 
 

Chris Bainbridge 
3354 

TTS 

CONTACT OFFICER:  
 

NAME: Chris Bainbridge 
EXT. 3354 

 

Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



  

Tri-Borough Executive Decision Report 
 
Decision maker(s) at 
each authority and 
date of Cabinet 
meeting, Cabinet 
Member meeting or 
(in the case of 
individual Cabinet 
Member decisions) 
the earliest date the 
decision will be 
taken 

Full Cabinet 

 Date of decision: 3 September 2012 
 
Cabinet Member for Family and Children’s 
Services – Cllr Elizabeth Campbell 

 

 

 

Cabinet Member for Adult Services  - Cllr 
Rachael Robathan 
Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People and Community Protection – Cllr 
Nickie Aitken 

 
Date of decision: TBC 
Forward Plan reference: TBC 

Report title (decision 
subject) 

STRATEGY REPORT FOR THE PROVISION OF CARER 
SERVICES  ACROSS THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER, THE 
LONDON BOROUGH OF  HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM, 
AND THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON AND 
CHELSEA 

Reporting officer Andrew Webster, Tri-borough Executive Director, Adult Social 
Care 

Key decision Yes  
Access to 
information 
classification 

Public with exempt Appendix B. This Appendix is the subject of a 
separate report on the exempt Hammersmith and Fulham 
Cabinet agenda  

Cabinet Member or 
senior officer sign-
off details 

The Cabinet Members for Community Care and Children’s 
Services have approved this report.  
Date: 23 July 2012 

                 

Agenda Item 8

Page 432



  

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
1.1 The proposal is to re-let the contract for provision of carer services across the 

City of Westminster, the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, and the 
Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea. 

1.2 The tender will be comprised of three lots: 
 

Lot 1:  Carers’ Hub  - Advice, Information, Advocacy and Support Service  
Lot 2:  Young Carers’ Support Service 
Lot 3: Home support and short break service for adults, children with disabilities, 

and  their carers 
 

1.3 The total budget for this is £4,865,518 and the focus will be on building local, high 
quality services for carers that are coherent and comprehensive. 

1.4    Westminster City Council (WCC) will lead the procurement of a new Tri-Borough 
Carers’ Services Contract and award the contract, which will come into effect in 
October 2012 in replacement of the current carers’ services.   

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
2.1  That  approval be given to the re-let strategy for the contract for provision of 

 carer services across the three boroughs as set out in this report.  
 
2.3 That the tender be comprised of the following lots: 
 

• Lot 1 – A Carers’ Hub - Advice, Information, Advocacy and Support Service 
• Lot 2 – A Young Carers’ Support Service 
• Lot 3  - A Home Support and Short Breaks Service for Adults, and Children 
with Disabilities  

 
2.4 That Westminster City Council (WCC) lead the procurement of a new Tri-

Borough Carers’ Services Contract and award the contract, which will come into 
effect in October 2012 in replacement of the current carers’ services.   

  
 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
3.1 To seek approval for the proposals set out in the report and to proceed to the 

Pre-Qualification Stage of the tender process.  
 
 
 

Page 433



  

4. BACKGROUND, INCLUDING POLICY CONTEXT, AND ANALYSIS OF 
OPTIONS 

4.1  Carers undertake a significant amount of support to adults with social care 
needs. It is estimated that supporting carers to continue in their caring role 
reduces the cost of support for those they care for which would otherwise fall on 
health and social care services (CarersUK, 2011).  

4.2 According to the 2001 Census, 7% of Westminster residents provided one or 
more hours of unpaid care per week, equivalent now to around 17,700 people, 
including about 540 people under 18 years of age. Many of these carers are not 
in touch with services. Applying findings from the 2001 Census to the current 
population we estimate that there are about 5,200 adults in Westminster who are 
providing 20 or more hours care per week. This was the second lowest 
proportion in London and one of the lowest in England, reflecting in part 
Westminster’s atypical population in particular its younger than average age 
profile, high proportion of single person households, and high levels of 
geographical mobility. 

 
4.3 In Hammersmith and Fulham, according to the 2001 Census, there are 11,500 

carers. This represents 7% of the population, the third lowest percentage  in 
Greater London and nationally. But, as a recent review has highlighted, only a 
small minority of the total carers in the Borough are being identified and receiving 
services. The Borough has the fourth highest percentage of older  people living 
alone in the Greater London area which  means that we have a relatively low 
“supply” of carers. Based on the outcomes of the 2001 Census, an  estimate of 
the number of young carers in the Borough between the ages of 5 and 18, who 
provide between 1 and 50, or more hours of care, is about 425. 

 
4.4 In Kensington and Chelsea, according to the 2001 Census, there are 11,199 

carers or 9,400 households with at least one carer. This represents 7.1% of the 
local population and the Borough is ranked fifth lowest in both London and 
England. The Borough has the lowest proportion of residents providing 50 or 
more hours of unpaid care of any borough in England and the second lowest for 
20 to 49 hours. In relation to young carers, the 2001 Census identified 303 carers 
under the age of 18. 

 
4.5  The role of carers has been increasingly recognised in legislation. The Carers 

(Recognition and Services) Act 1995 established the right of carers who provided 
substantial care on a regular basis to request an assessment of their ability to 
care. The Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004, which came into effect in April 
2005, builds on legislation by placing a duty on Councils to inform carers of their 
right to request an assessment and to take into account their wishes regarding 
employment, leisure and life-long learning.  

 
4.6  The Government’s revised National Carers Strategy, Recognised, valued and 

supported; next steps for the Carers Strategy (HM Government, 2010), supports 
this and sets out how the Government will prioritise actions over the next four 

Page 434



  

years to ensure the best possible outcomes for carers and those they support. It 
is the Government’s ambition that by 2014: 

 

• Carers will be supported to identify themselves at an early stage, and that the 
value of their contribution will be recognised by involving them from the outset 
both in designing local service provision and in planning individual care 
packages.  

• Carers and those they support will receive personalised support, enabling 
them to have a community and family life. 

• Carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated with 
dignity. 

• Carers will be enabled to fulfil their educational and employment potential. 
 
4.7 Carers are also recognised as requiring particular attention in the Department of 
 Health’s Operating Framework for the NHS in England 2012/13. It acknowledges 
 that carers play a vital role in the health system and that they must receive help 
 and support from local organisations. Following a joint assessment of local 
 needs, which should be published with plans, PCT clusters will need to agree 
 policies, plans and  budgets with local authorities and voluntary groups to 
 support carers, where possible using direct payments or personal budgets. For 
 2012/13 this means plans should be in line with the National Carers Strategy 
 and:  
 

• be explicitly agreed and signed off by both local authorities and PCT clusters;  
• identify the financial contribution made to support carers by both local 

authorities and PCT clusters and that any transfer of funds from the NHS to 
local authorities is through a section 256 agreement;  

• identify how much of the total is being spent on carers’ breaks;  
• identify an indicative number of breaks that should be available within that 

funding; and  
• be published on the PCT or PCT cluster’s website by 30 September 2012 at 

the latest.  
 

4.8 Locally, each borough has a Carers Partnership Group which comprises of 
Council and INWL PCT representatives, and key stakeholders. These groups are 
responsible for overseeing the implementation of locally agreed joint 
commissioning strategies that set out the joint vision and action plan, between  
the INWL PCT and each council, to improve the lives of carers, and reduce the 
health, social and financial inequalities that they experience.  

  
4.9 Most recently, the three Councils have each developed a mandate for the 

provision and practice of Adult Social Services. These mandates acknowledge 
that many people with social care needs will have these met mainly through 
natural support networks, including the carers with whom they live. Each borough 
is committed to supporting carers and sharing the responsibility for delivering the 
care a person needs. 

 

Page 435



  

 Current service provision and opportunities arising from tri-borough 
working arrangements  

 
4.10 Support to carers living in Westminster is currently provided by two longstanding, 

local providers.  
 
4.11 Westminster Carers Service is a voluntary organisation (formed in 1988) that 

offers practical support to adult carers and vulnerable adults through a home 
support/domiciliary respite service. The organisation also runs an Arabic 
speakers support group and a number of specialist services for young people 
which include a: 

 
• Young Carers’ Service - providing advice, information and support to young 

people who have caring responsibilities. 
• Home support and short breaks services for carers (parents) of children with 

disabilities. 
 
4.12  The second organisation, Carers Network Westminster, is a charitable 

organisation (affiliated to the Princess Royal Trust for Carers and formed in 1991) 
which provides advice, information, signposting and support to carers.  In 
addition, they also run specialist support groups for carers of older people, 
people with mental health needs, learning disabilities, Bangladeshi Carers and 
end of life caring. Other services include an emergency card and short break 
grant scheme. 
 

4.13 In February 2009, the WCC Contracts Review Board (CRB) considered a report 
from the Strategic Director of Adult and Community Services. Officers were of the 
view that the City Council needed to be more efficient and effective when 
commissioning services from organisations such as Westminster Carers Service. 
Alongside this and in recognition of services related to children also delivered by 
Westminster Carers Service (as outlined above), the CRB required discussions 
be held with Children’s Services to seek to formalise the existing purchasing 
arrangements across Adult and Children’s Services.  

 
4.14 Collaboration has been underway since January 2011, with officers meeting 

regularly to explore potential opportunities to combine and develop carer services 
across Adult and Children’s services with both Hammersmith and Fulham 
(LBH&F), and the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea (RBKC). 

 
4.15 Both boroughs equally recognise, and value, the crucial and demanding role that 

carers (both adult and young) take on to support vulnerable adults and children 
with social care needs. Each has its own local arrangements, either in-house or 
with local/national organisations, to deliver support to enable carers to continue in 
their caring role: 

 
• H&F currently provides both its Adult, and Young Carer Support Service in-
house. This interim arrangement was the outcome of an unsuccessful 
procurement exercise, which concluded in July 2010. 

Page 436



  

• RBKC successfully awarded a three year contract to CarersUK to deliver its 
Carers’ Hub Service in 2010. It also awarded one year grants in the same year 
to third sector organisations to run specialist support groups and activities. In 
relation to young carers, the contract with the existing provider comes to an end 
on March 31st 2012. 

 
4.16 In addition to the need for WCC to formalise existing purchasing arrangements 

across Adult and Children’s Services, and for LBH&F to outsource its support 
services, a number of other factors have provided the impetus for officers 
responsible for carer services across the three boroughs to work together to 
jointly commission and procure carer support services. These include: 

 
• The bringing together of commissioning functions on a tri-borough level.   
• The need to develop outcome focused specialist services in line with the 
personalisation agenda. 

• The need to achieve the best possible value from available public funds (best 
value means considering the cost and quality of services). 

• The need to build local services for carers (including those whose cared-for 
are in transition) that are coherent and comprehensive. 

• The need to develop services that support the principles outlined in the 
mandate for the provision and practice of Adult Social Services. 

 
 Market testing/previous tenders 
 
4.17 Officers were aware that the market for carers’ services would be specialised and 

had not been tested in Westminster. Also when LBHF had attempted to let its 
Carers’ Hub contract for adult and young carers, there had been a poor response 
from the market. 

 
4.18 In light of this, officers were of the view that carrying out a market warming 

exercise would be necessary in order to establish whether a developed market 
existed for carers’ services, but also to seek feedback from providers in terms of 
how best contracts could be packaged to be attractive to providers in a 
competitive exercise.  

 
4.19 Following an advertisement on Competefor in addition to existing providers being 

contacted direct, 15 organisations expressed an interest in participating in the 
exercise in May 2011. Of these, 7 organisations were invited to attend a meeting 
with officers to discuss services and packaging. These were as follows:  

 
• Westminster Carers Services#  
• Carers Network Westminster #  
• Scope 
• The Westminster Society for People with Learning Disabilities* 
• Family Action  
• The Children’s Society 
• Crossroads Care 

Page 437



  

 
# Current Westminster carers’ services provider. 
*  Provides a small number of spot purchased personal care/short break services 
for individual children with disabilities. 

 
4.20 Providers participating in the exercise gave a clear indication that contracts 

packaged along service delivery lines i.e. by specific service type, would be more 
attractive to the market generally and avoid providers having to seek 
collaborative arrangements with other providers in order to fulfil the specified 
requirements of a larger package.  

 
4.21 At the market warming exercise the City Council was working on the basis that it 

would be procuring Advice, Information and Advocacy, Young Carers, and 
Domiciliary/ Respite services for adults and children. At this time, LBHF 
participated in the exercise on the basis that it was considering a partnership 
approach to the procurement of its Carers’ Hub and Young Carer Service in-
house.  

 
4.22 There is an expectation of value for money and efficiency savings from this 

exercise. There are savings built into the savings plans for LBH&F Adults (Lot 1) 
and it is also anticipated that a better price (hourly rate) may be secured for WCC 
Adults and Children’s Services, and LBH&F Children’s Services (Lot 3),. This 
information will be known following the submission of bids.    

 
 What is being proposed 
 
4.22 A range of support services will be available to specific groups, including children 

with disabilities and adult service users; adult carers (aged over 18); young 
carers (under the age of 18 years) and carers from black, minority and ethnic 
communities.   

 
4.22 Lot 1: Carers’ Hub  - Advice, Information, Advocacy and Support Service  
 

This service will be based on an outreach model and will provide support in the 
communities and facilities in which carers already spend their time. Support will 
be provided to a wide range of adult carers (including parent/carers of children 
with disabilities). 
 
The three main strands of the service will be: 
• Providing direct support to carers i.e. information, advice, signposting and 
 peer support to improve health and wellbeing 
• Facilitating access to carers’ grants and statutory provision 
• Facilitating networks and partnerships with other services for carers 

 
 This type of service will be required by: 
• Westminster City Council –   Adult Social Care Services  
• Hammersmith and Fulham Council - Adult Social Care Services 

 

Page 438



  

4.23    While the tender exercise for this service will cover provision for both boroughs, 
the service has been apportioned as 2 separate packages. This is due to both 
Councils recognising the need for the service to have a local focus. It is possible 
that one contract may be awarded to an organisation to both services, or two 
separate contracts if it provides the best option following our evaluation of the 
bids received.  

 
4.24   In addition, the successful provider(s) will also develop a hospital discharge link 

project to improve the experience of hospital discharge amongst carers. This 
project will cover the geographical areas of Hammersmith and Fulham, 
Kensington and Chelsea, and Westminster and will include Imperial NHS 
Healthcare Trust Hospitals (Charing Cross, Hammersmith and St Mary’s) and 
Chelsea and Westminster Hospital. 
 
The project will: 
• Identify carers at an early point of contact. 
• Involve carers in admission and discharge planning at the earliest stage 

possible. 
• Signpost carers to appropriate and effective information, advice and support 

services. 
• Support early discharge where appropriate. 
• Assist carers to navigate the discharge process. 
• Facilitate access to appropriate early intervention services. 
• Reduce the instances of unnecessary hospital admission and readmission. 
 

           A total of £49,900 will be made available from the INWL PCTs to fund the 
project, in year 1 of the contract. The work of the project will then be embedded 
within admission and discharge processes across the trusts, and into the work of 
the successful provider(s) of those services packaged as Lot 1. 
 

 
4.25   Lot 2: Young Carers’ Support Service 
 

This service will be based on an outreach model and will provide support in the 
communities and facilities in which young carers already spend their time. 
Support will be provided to young carers aged 18 and under.  
 
The three main strands of the service will be: 
• Providing direct support to young carers to achieve with respect to all five 

‘Every Child Matters’ outcomes.  
• Facilitating access to other support services for young carers and those 

being cared for to minimise the caring responsibility on the child/young 
person.  

• To facilitate a successful transition to adult carer services.  
 

This type of service will be required by: 

Page 439



  

• Westminster City Council  - Children’s Services 
• Hammersmith and Fulham Council - Children’s Services 
• Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea  - Children’s Services 

 
4.26  Officers involved in the project are aware that as the relative size of the young  
  carers’ services is small there is scope for a single contract to be let across  
  the tri-boroughs.   
 
 
4.27 Lot 3: Home support and short break service for adults, children with disabilities, 

and their carers. 
 
 This person-centred and flexible service will improve the quality of life for adult 

carers and parent/carers by enabling them to access short breaks (sometimes 
known as ‘respite’) from their caring role. By providing a ‘sitting service’, the 
service will give them the opportunity to spend the time as they wish and pursue 
activities according to their own preference. 

 
 It will support vulnerable adults with essential personal and practical tasks of 

daily living that they are unable to manage on their own, such as getting 
up/going to bed, getting washed and dressed, preparing meals etc. It will also 
enable them to access short breaks, by supporting them to access activities and 
interests. 
 
The service will also provide short breaks for children with disabilities (aged 0 -
18), enabling them to access activities and interests. This service will be one of a 
wide range of short breaks services available to children with disabilities and their 
families.  

 
This type of service will be required by: 

 
• Westminster City Council – Adult Social Care and Children’s Services 
• Hammersmith and Fulham  - Children’s Services 

 
 The proposed procurement process 
 
4.28 Carers services are defined as Part B services under EU Public Procurement 

Directives where only some of the EU procurement rules apply. There is no 
requirement for a Contract Notice to be published in the OJEU, but there is a 
requirement to send a Contract Award Notice to the Office of Publication of the 
OJEU. Additionally, the contracts will be advertised on Competefor and will be 
visible to all interested parties. 

 
4.29 The contract will be let using the restricted procedure where potential providers 

are invited to express an interest in the contract and are then shortlisted to be 
invited to tender on the basis of the Pre-Qualification Questionnaires that they 
complete.   

 

Page 440



  

 Proposals for the development of the contract documentation 
 

4.30 The specifications for each Lot have been drawn up by a tender project group. 
 The group includes representatives from commissioning from each service, 
 including Adult and Children’s representatives, procurement and supplier 
 relationship management. Carers and operational staff will also have input. 

 
4.31 Procurement and commissioning representatives from each of the Tri-boroughs 
 are also contributing to the service documents to ensure proposed services are 
 able to meet needs. 

 
4.32 Sharpe Pritchard are providing legal advice and drawing up the Tender pack. 

 
 Contract period  

 
4.33 Officers propose to award the contract(s) for 2 years; it is proposed that after 2 

years there is an option to extend for a further 18 months. This ensures that 
options remain open should the situation change. In addition an annual break 
clause will be added throughout the life of the contract. The standard terms and 
conditions will be used as approved by the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services or Sharpe Pritchard solicitors acting on the City Council’s behalf.  

 
 Letting process 
 
4.34 Assuming the Restricted Procedure route is followed as proposed, the key tasks 

in the project plan would be as follows: 
 

Key Tasks Date 
Tender Advertisement  Sept 12 
Deadline for receipt of PQQs and short-listing Oct 12 
Invitation to tender Oct 12 
Deadline for receipt of bids Dec 12 
Completion of evaluation of bids Jan 13 
Approval by Cabinet Members Feb 13 
Contract Implementation Mar 13 
Contract Start Date Apr 13 

 
 
4.35 The Tri-borough Contracts Board will also be informed of actions and intentions. 

 
 Proposed tender evaluation 
 
4.36 An initial assessment of potential providers will take place at the expression of 
 interest stage, using CompeteFor. Tenderers will be asked to complete a pre-
 qualification questionnaire which will be used to assess financial standing, 
 experience, technical capacity and organisation capability. 
 

Page 441



  

 
5. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
5.1 A Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to the re-letting of 

 carer support services. The impact assessments have been carried out with due  
 regard to the Councils’ general statutory duties under the Equality Act 2010. This 
paper is available as a background paper.  

5.2 The proposal to re-let carer support services will on the whole have a positive  
  impact on most of the protected groups.  It is not anticipated that the services  
  received by carers, children with disabilities, or vulnerable adults will vary   
  significantly from what is currently received as part of this exercise.  Eligibility for  
  access to these services is not affected under this process; rather, it is hoped  
  that by working collaboratively and focusing on outcomes across service areas  
  and the three boroughs (whilst ensuring local needs continue to be met),   
  residents will receive both better quality and value for money from the services  
  procured.  In addition, approved providers will be required to reach out and target 
  more carers i.e. those currently not known to/or accessing services. 
 
 
6. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR FOR LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES 
6.1 Carer services are Part B services under the Public contracts Regulations 2006 
 and accordingly are not subject to the full requirements of EU procedures.   

 
6.2 Sharpe Pritchard Solicitors, acting on behalf of the City Council, will provide the 

legal advice for the proposed contract documentation. 
 
6.3 The Chief Solicitor comments that the legal implications associated with the 
 procurement and the award of the contracts in relation to all three boroughs are 
 as set out in the body of the report. Legal Services for each borough will remain 
 on hand to provide ongoing contracts and procurement advice as required. 
 
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
7.1 The Financial implications are contained in Appendix B which is exempt from 

publication. The Tri-borough Director of Finance for Adult Social Care confirms 
that there is an expectation of efficiency savings from this tender exercise. The 
budgets quoted in Appendix B include savings where they were already planned. 

 
 
8. CONSULTATION 
8.1 There is no legal requirement to consult with the public as there is no significant 

 change to service delivery, only a reduced budget and a possible new 
provider(s). 

Page 442



  

 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – Background papers used in the 
preparation of this report 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Joint Adult and Children’s Peer Group 
Carers’ Services Contract Let Discussion 
Paper   - 26 January 2011 

14th Floor, City Hall Steven Falvey,  
0750 0953 918 

Joint Adult and Children’s Peer Group 
Carers’ Services Contract Let Discussion 
Paper  - 25 September 2011  
(Version 2) 

14th Floor, City Hall Steven Falvey,  
0750 0953 918 

Gate 1 Review Panel – Strategy report for 
the provision of carer services across 
WCC, LBHF, and RBKC 

14th Floor, City Hall Steven Falvey,  
0750 0953 918 

Tri-Borough Carers’ Services Re-let 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 

14th Floor, City Hall Steven Falvey,  
0750 0953 918 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 443



  

 
APPENDIX A 

 
Other Implications 

 
 

1. Risk Management 
1.1 The following risks have been identified, they are summarised below with 
 mitigating actions:  
 

Risk Mitigating Actions 
The budget for the contract will be 
at risk of further reduction and the 
contract term contains a break 
clause, as such there may not be 
sufficient interest from the  market.  

There is a developed market for the provision 
of these services, identified following the 
market testing exercise, and providers will be 
informed of the uncertainty of ongoing funding 
in the current financial climate 

There could be a risk that the 
LBH&F TUPE costs will push up 
the bid price. 

The impact depends on the value of the 
current in-house staffing costs; whether there 
is a difference and what the difference is 
between the staffing costs for the in-house 
team and the market rates; the proportion of a 
provider’s total costs that is made up of 
staffing costs; the size of the bidders and their 
ability to absorb the TUPE costs. TUPE costs 
will be apportioned to  LBH&F. 

 
2.  Health and Wellbeing, including Health and Safety Implications 
2.1  All known health and safety risks will be addressed in the specifications and 
 where appropriate conditions of contact. Providers will be required at PQQ and 
 Tender stage to demonstrate an understanding of health and safety issues 
 related to providing carer services. Any provider unable to suitably meet the 
 standards set will fail to pass the PQQ stage of the tender process.  
 
3.  Staffing 
3.1 There are no direct staffing implications for Westminster City Council or the 

Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea related to the re-letting strategy for 
the contract. 

 
3.2 There are direct staffing implications for Hammersmith and Fulham Council. 

Officers are of the view that TUPE will apply for two full time members of staff 
from Adult Services. Accordingly tenderers will be provided with the information 
to enable them to submit a TUPE based price.  

Page 444



  

 
3.3  The Director of HR agrees that this tender process will result in a TUPE transfer 

 and that this will be carried out taking into account all relevant, current 
 employment legislation. Tender documentation will instruct tenderers to take a 
 view under the provisions of TUPE legislation. Information on existing posts and 
 staff will be available to all tenderers.   

 
4.  Sustainability  
4.1 Tenderers will be required to demonstrate in their proposals that they are 

committed to sustainable procurement, current practice and proposals for using 
eco-friendly products, machinery, transport and for cleaning and disposing of 
waste in an environmentally sound way.    

 
5.  Communications 
5.1   Officers from both Adult and Children’s Services have kept all existing providers 

informed of progress with the project and for the future commissioning of carers 
services as well as timescales. The Carers Partnership Board has been made of 
aware of plans and greater detail will follow as decisions are made.   

 
5.2 A series of ‘Service User Input’ events have been held with existing service users 

and carers across the three boroughs. The purpose of this exercise has been to 
inform them of the tender process, seek input into the draft specifications and to 
encourage them to join the carer involvement project. 

 
5.3 A carer involvement project will be set up and carer representatives will be 

offered the chance to join an interview panel with the shortlisted providers. They 
will decide the questions to be asked based on their perception of important 
aspects of support and will feed findings back to the councils’ panel as to their 
views on the providers interviewed. Their views and scores will help inform the 
decision of the group, but they are clear that the councils retain the right and 
responsibility to make the final decision.   

 
6. Customer Services Initiative Implications 
 
6.1 There are no CSI implications arising from the re-let of these contracts. 

 
6.2 The contracts for carer services are specialised. There are no existing corporate 
 contracts and/or framework agreements under the Customer Service Initiative 
 appropriate to deliver the service.   

 
7. Supporting Local Businesses (paragraph 21 of the Procurement Code) 
 
7.1 Tender documents will stress the importance of supporting local businesses/area 
 and local organisations and this will be evaluated as part of the tender. The 
 existing providers will be encouraged to bid for the contracts. 
 

Page 445



  

7.2 Equalities and Diversity 
 
 Tenderers will be required to evidence that they comply with Equality 
 Legislation and actively promote and monitor equality on their workforce. The 
 specifications address expectations on service providers in terms of adhering to   
 equalities legislation and promoting equalities working, as well as the need to 
 consider a diverse workforce to meet the needs of a diverse service user group.   
 
7.3 Monitoring of provision will ensure providers offer services to all client groups and 

that this is reflective of the community they serve.   
 
8. ICT Implications (paragraph 14 of the Procurement Code) 

 
8.1 There are no ICT implications arising from this proposal. The successful 
 provider(s) will be expected to provide their own ICT and this will be made clear 
 in the tender documentation. 
 
9. Property Implications (paragraph 12 of the Procurement Code) 
 
9.1 The providers will operate from their own premises. There are no property 
 implications as a result of the tender. Tenderers submitting bids for Lot 1, the 
 Carers’ Hub Service, will be required to demonstrate a commitment to have a 
 local base in both WCC and H&F, if they do not already have one. This has been 
 shown to be essential in previous working relationships. 
 
   
 

Page 446



 
 

 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
Proposed to be made in the period September 2012 to 
December 2012 
 
 

The following is a list of Key Decisions, as far as is known at this stage, which the 
Authority proposes to take in the period from September 2012 to December 2012. 
 
KEY DECISIONS are those which are likely to result in one or more of the following: 
 
• Any expenditure or savings which are significant, regarding the Council’s budget 

for the service function to which the decision relates in excess of £100,000; 
 
• Anything affecting communities living or working in an area comprising of two or 

more wards in the borough; 
 
• Anything significantly affecting communities within one ward (where 

practicable); 
 
• Anything affecting the budget and policy framework set by the Council. 
 
The Forward Plan will be updated and published on the Council’s website on a 
monthly basis. (New entries are highlighted in yellow). 
 
NB: Key Decisions will generally be taken by the Executive at the Cabinet. The items 
on this Forward Plan are listed according to the date of the relevant decision-making 
meeting. 
 

If you have any queries on this Forward Plan, please contact 
Katia Richardson on 020 8753 2368  or by e-mail to katia.richardson@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 447



Consultation 
 

Each report carries a brief summary explaining its purpose, shows when the decision is 
expected to be made, background documents used to prepare the report, and the member 
of the executive responsible. Every effort has been made to identify target groups for 
consultation in each case. Any person/organisation not listed who would like to be consulted, 
or who would like more information on the proposed decision, is encouraged to get in touch 
with the relevant Councillor and contact details are provided at the end of this document. 
 

Reports 
 

Reports will be available on the Council’s website (www.lbhf.org.uk) a minimum of 5 working 
days before the relevant meeting. 
 

Decisions 
 

All decisions taken by Cabinet may be implemented 5 working days after the relevant 
Cabinet meeting, unless called in by Councillors. 
 

Making your Views Heard 
 
You can comment on any of the items in this Forward Plan by contacting the officer shown in 
column 6. You can also submit a deputation to the Cabinet. Full details of how to do this 
(and the date by which a deputation must be submitted) are on the front sheet of each 
Cabinet agenda. 
 
 
 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM: CABINET 2012/13 
 
Leader (+ Regeneration, Asset Management and IT):  Councillor Nicholas Botterill 
Deputy Leader (+ Residents Services): Councillor Greg Smith 
Cabinet Member for Children’s Services: Councillor Helen Binmore 
Cabinet member for Communications:                              Councillor Mark Loveday 
Cabinet Member for Community Care: Councillor Marcus Ginn 
Cabinet Member for Housing: Councillor Andrew Johnson 
Cabinet Member for Transport and Technical Services: Councillor Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler 
 
 
 
Forward Plan No 124 (published 15 August 2012) 

Page 448



 

LIST OF KEY DECISIONS PROPOSED SEPTEMBER 2012 TO DECEMBER 2012 
 

Where the title bears the suffix (Exempt), the report for 
this proposed decision is likely to be exempt and full details cannot be published. 

New entries are highlighted in yellow. 
* All these decisions may be called in by Councillors; If a decision is called in, it will not be 

capable of implementation until a final decision is made.  
 
 
Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason  

Proposed Key Decision 
 
 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

September 
Cabinet 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 

Tri-borough ICT strategy 
2012-2015 
 
The Vision for Tri-borough ICT 
- A Tri-borough ICT Strategy 
for 2012-2015  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 
Full 
Council 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 
24 Oct 2012 
 

Treasury Outturn Report 
 
This report provides 
information on the Council's 
debt, borrowing and 
investment activity for the 
financial year ending 31st 
March 2012  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 

Earl's Court Regeneration 
Project 
 
The further report will outline 
progress to date on the 
discussions on the key issues 
around the Earls Court 
Regeneration project.  
 

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Significant in 
1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
North End 
 

Cabinet 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 

Mayor of London's Cycle 
Hire Scheme 
 
Seeks authority to enter into 
an agreement with Transport 
for London to extend the 
Mayor of London's cycle hire 
scheme into the borough.  

Cabinet Member 
for Transport and 
Technical 
Services 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 449



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIOD 2 (May) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget.  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 

Release of Restrictive 
Covenant at 70-72 
Hammersmith Bridge Road 
 
The report seeks approval for 
the Council to release a 
restrictive covenant on this site 
for the benefit of the freeholder 
who has planning consent for 
a residential development on 
the site with a payment to the 
Council.  
 

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
Hammersmith 
Broadway 
 

Cabinet 
 

3 Sep 2012 
 

Strategy for the provision of 
carer services across the 
City of Westminster, the 
London Borough of 
Hammersmith and Fulham, 
and the Royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea 
 
Strategy for the provision of 
carer services across the City 
of Westminster, the London 
Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham, and the Royal 
Borough of Kensington and 
Chelsea  

Cabinet Member 
for Community 
Care 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

October 
Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Shepherds Bush Market - 
Land Assembly 
 
Report setting out progress to 
date on land assembly to 
facilitate regeneration of the 
market and next steps.  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Significant in 
1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
Shepherds Bush 
Green 
 
 
 

Page 450



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Looked After Children 
Social Care Report 
 
Looked After Children Social 
Care report. 

Cabinet Member 
for Children's 
Services 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Child Protection Social Care 
Report 
 
Child Protection Social Care 
report. 

Cabinet Member 
for Children's 
Services 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Local Safeguarding 
Children's Board  (LSCB) 
Social Care Report 
 
Local Safeguarding Children's 
Board (LSCB) Social Care 
report. 

Cabinet Member 
for Children's 
Services 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Measured Term Contract for 
Boroughwide Cyclical 
Planned Maintenance to 
Council-owned Housing 
Properties 2012 – 2015 
 
The term contract will include 
external and communal 
repairs and redecorations, 
plus works to communal 
services installations, to the 
borough’s housing portfolio.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Travel Assistance Policies 
 
Travel Assistance Policy – 
Special education needs 
(SEN) 

Cabinet Member 
for Children's 
Services 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Building a Housing Ladder 
of Opportunity 
 
Seeks adoption as housing 
policy following public 
consultation for four housing 
documents: housing strategy; 
housing allocation scheme; 
tenancy strategy; and 
homelessness strategy  

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 451



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Tri-borough ICT provision 
procurement - initiation 
 
This paper will seek approval 
for the H&F participation in the 
initation of the procurement of 
key ICT services tri-borough; 
for the consequent re-
organisation of the three 
Councils’ client side into one 
tri-borough; for the funding for 
the next stages of 
procurement. 
  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIODS 3 and 4 (June and 
July) 
 
Corporate Revenue Monitoring 
2012_13 : PERIODS 3 (June) 
and 4 (July). 

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Corporate Capital Budget 
Monitor - 1st Quarter 
2012/13 
 
To seek approval for changes 
to the Capital Programme - 
2012/13  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Economic Development 
priorities for S106 
contributions 
 
This report details current 
economic development 
workstreams and seeks 
members’ approval for the use 
of Section 106 funds to 
achieve key outcomes.  
 
The report also signals work 
commencing to establish new 
high-level economic 
development priorities which 
respond to the borough’s 
longer term regeneration 
vision and growth.  
 

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 452



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Troubled Families - 
Implementing a Tri-borough 
Approach 
 
In December 2011, the 
Government launched its 
programme to turn around the 
lives of the country’s 120,000 
most troubled families: those 
experiencing multiple 
problems and disadvantages 
such as unemployment, 
truancy and causing problems 
such as crime and anti-social 
behaviour at an annual 
estimated cost of £9 billion. 
The Government has 
estimated that there are 1720 
troubled families in the Tri-
borough at an estimated 
annual cost to the taxpayer of 
£150 million.  
 
The programme will run for 
three years funded by a 
combination of attachment 
fees and on a “payments by 
results” basis to incentivise 
local authorities and other 
partners to prioritise this work.  
 
This report:  
- Updates Members on the 
data and financial analysis of 
the Troubled Families cohort 
in the Tri-borough area  
- Proposes the 'wrap-around' 
service provision to deal with 
the complexity of issues faced 
by the Troubled Families 
cohort.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Children's 
Services 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Redevelopment of intranet 
 
Provision of a new resilient 
platform for intranet, with 
improved ease of use  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 453



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Microsoft academic licence 
rationalisation 
 
Inclusion of academic 
lincences within the Microsoft 
enterprise agreement to 
ensure consistency with 
upgrade to Office 2010  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Strategic review of sheltered 
housing stock and the 
provision of extra care - 
Phase 1 
 
The vision is to ensure that 
LBHF HRA stock is managed 
efficiently and profiled to meet 
changing aspirations and need 
in the Borough.  
 
A key driver is to provide 
sustainable, fit for purpose 
accommodation that meets the 
corporate objective of 
delivering high quality, value 
for money services.  
 
Whilst the outcome of the 
review of the Sheltered 
Housing Stock cannot be 
predetermined, a primary 
objective is to deliver an 
additional 105 units of Extra 
Care accommodation within 
our existing Sheltered housing 
stock to support the 
operational requirements of 
Adult Social Care. Current 
stock will be assessed for 
potential conversion as part of 
the Review.  

Cabinet Member 
for Housing, 
Cabinet Member 
for Community 
Care 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 15 Oct 2012 
 

Acton Care Centre Contract 
Extension 
 
To request Cabinet approval 
for an extension to the 
contract between the London 
Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham and Catalyst Housing 
Group for the provision of 
nursing home beds at Acton 
Care Centre for a period of 

Cabinet Member 
for Community 
Care 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 

Page 454



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

one year from 1 March 2013.  

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Housing Development: 
Appointment of Building 
Contractor 
 
To appoint a building 
contractor for the next phase 
of the 'hidden homes' sites to 
build affordable housing 
through the Housing 
Development Company.  

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 
 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Housing Development: 
Appointment of 
Development Management 
Services Agent 
 
Appointment of development 
management services agent to 
deliver affordable housing 
products built using innovative 
modern methods of 
construction through the 
Council's housing 
development company.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Housing Development: 
Procurement of Joint 
Venture Development 
Partner 
 
Procurement of a development 
partner to establish a housing 
joint venture vehicle in relation 
to Watermeadow Court and 
Edith Summerskill House 
sites.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Tri-Borough Integration of 
Health and Social Care 
Services 
 
Tri-Borough Integration of 
Health and Social Care 
Services  

Cabinet Member 
for Community 
Care 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Funding Request for 2012/13 
Tri-Borough Costs 
 
This report requests funding 
for the H&F share of the 
necessary additional staff 
costs, identified to date, that 
need to be incurred in order to 

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 

Page 455



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

more than 
£100,000 
 

secure the delivery of the Tri-
borough proposals and 
associated benefits. These 
include £17 million savings for 
H&F by 2015/16.  
 

 

Cabinet 
 

15 Oct 2012 
 

Removal of Automatic 
Public Conveniences 
 
To remove all 6 Automated 
Public Conveniences (APCs) 
in the borough with customers 
utilising alternative toilets such 
as those in the Mayor for 
London’s Toilet Scheme. Also 
to consider the future of the 
urinals at Shepherds Bush 
Green.  
 

Deputy Leader (+ 
Residents 
Services) 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

November 
Cabinet 
 

12 Nov 2012 
 

Hammersmith Town Hall - 
Smart Accommodation 
Programme - Phase 1 
 
Tender acceptance report to 
appoint contractor to carry out 
remodelling works on 1st and 
2nd floor offices at 
Hammersmith Town Hall to 
provide smart working, open 
plan accommodation to 
maximise occupancy.  
 

Deputy Leader (+ 
Residents 
Services) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
Hammersmith 
Broadway 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Nov 2012 
 

Reprocurement of 
frameworki Social Care IT 
system 
 
Confirmation of reprocurement 
of Frameworki social care 
system (or equivalent social 
care system) is requested for 
both Adult Social Care and 
Children's Services from 
January 2013.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Community 
Care, Cabinet 
Member for 
Children's 
Services 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Nov 2012 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIOD 5 (August) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 456



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

£100,000 

Cabinet 
 

12 Nov 2012 
 

SERCO Contract Review 
 
Description: Review and 
decision about whether to 
continue with SERCO Waste 
and Street Cleansing contract 
which expires in 2015.  

Deputy Leader (+ 
Residents 
Services) 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

December 
Cabinet 
 

10 Dec 2012 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 PERIOD 
6 (September) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

10 Dec 2012 
 

Council Housing Tenancy 
Agreement 
 
Cabinet will be asked to agree 
a new tenancy agreement 
following consultation, which 
will include reference to new 
flexible fixed term tenancies; 
basis for tenants to operate a 
business from home; clarify 
tenancy succession issues; 
highlight the consequences of 
tenancy fraud and attempts at 
tenancy fraud; general 
updating and presentational 
improvements to current 
document.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

10 Dec 2012 
 

Capital Budget Monitor - 2nd 
Quarter Amendments 
2012/13 
 
To seek approval for changes 
to the Capital Programme - 
2012/13  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 457



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 
Full 
Council 
 

10 Dec 2012 
 
30 Jan 2013 
 

Treasury Management Mid 
Year Review 
 
This reports covers Quarter 1 
and 2 for 2012/13 and 
provides information on the 
Council's debt, borrowing and 
investment activity up to the 
30th September 2012  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 
 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

January 
Cabinet 
 

14 Jan 2013 
 

Elevator Monitoring Unit 
Installation - Various Sites 
 
The works consist of the 
supply and installation of 
elevator Monitoring Units and 
Auto Diallers to be fitted to 
each lift in providing automatic 
reporting of lift breakdowns 
and two communication 
between each lift car and 
operators at a manned call 
centre in dealing with lift 
entrapment.  

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

14 Jan 2013 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIOD 7(October) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

14 Jan 2013 
 

Supply of tickets for pay and 
display machines 
 
This is a bi-borough 
framework agreement with 
RBKC for the supply of tickets 
for pay and display machines.  

Cabinet Member 
for Transport and 
Technical 
Services 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 
 
 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 458



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

14 Jan 2013 
 

Provision of a blue badge 
investigation and 
enforcement service 
 
The Council has piloted a 
scheme to tackle the abuse of 
Disabled Parking Permits 
(blue badges). The pilot has 
proved to be successful and 
the Council now wants to enter 
into a long-term contractual 
arrangement for a minimum of 
3 years and a maximum of 7.  
 

Cabinet Member 
for Transport and 
Technical 
Services 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

14 Jan 2013 
 

Contract for the 
maintenance of pay and 
display machines 
 
This is a bi-borough contract 
with RBKC for the 
maintenance of pay and 
display machines. 
 
 
  

Cabinet Member 
for Transport and 
Technical 
Services 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

February 
Cabinet 
 

11 Feb 2013 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIOD 8 (November) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

March 
Cabinet 
 

4 Mar 2013 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIOD 9 (December) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 459



 
 Decision 
to be 
Made by: 
(ie Council 
or Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting 
and Reason 

Proposed Key Decision Lead Executive 
Councillor(s) and 
Wards Affected 

Cabinet 
 

4 Mar 2013 
 

Capital Budget Monitor - 3rd 
Quarter Amendments 
2012/13 
 
To seek approval for changes 
to the Capital Programme 
2012/13  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

April 
Cabinet 
 

8 Apr 2013 
 

Corporate Revenue 
Monitoring 2012_13 : 
PERIOD 10 (January) 
 
Report seeks approval for 
changes to the Revenue 
Budget  

Leader of the 
Council 
(+Regeneration, 
Asset 
Management and 
IT) 

Reason: 
Expenditure 
more than 
£100,000 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Cabinet 
 

8 Apr 2013 
 

Letting of concession of  Wi-
Fi on lamp posts 
 
Letting of a concession to 
allow mobile data devices to 
be fitted to lamp posts.  

Deputy Leader (+ 
Residents 
Services) 

Reason: 
Affects more 
than 1 ward 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 460



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

3 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
 

 
SUMMARY OF OPEN DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER AND CABINET 

MEMBERS REPORTED TO CABINET FOR INFORMATION 
 

CABINET MEMBER  
 

CABINET MEMBER 
FOR TRANSPORT 
AND TECHNICAL 
SERVICES 
Councillor Victoria 
Brocklebank-Fowler 

10.1  THAMES TUNNEL EXAMINATION COSTS 
 

Thames Water’s development consent application for the works 
associated with the Thames Tunnel will not be determined by the 
affected local authorities or by the Mayor of London.  It has been 
designated a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project and the 
application will be examined by the Major Infrastructure Planning Unit 
of the Planning Inspectorate.  The final decision will be by the 
Secretaries of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and for 
Communities and Local Government. 
 
The Council has the opportunity to submit evidence to the 
Examination in the form of a Local Impact Report (LIR).  The LIR and 
the documentation included in it will enable the council to bring 
evidence before the Inspector and finally the Secretaries of State of 
the impact of the proposed Thames Tunnel on this borough and 
particularly on the South Fulham area. 
 
In order to draw together the required information and to assess the 
accuracy of the evidence submitted by TW, there will be a need for 
additional resources in a number of different work areas.  There is 
also likely to be a requirement for legal advice and possibly legal 
representation at the Examination. 
 
Approval is sought for additional expenditure of up to £35,000 to fund 
the additional staff resources and up to £50,000 to fund additional 
legal costs in 2012/13.  The costs for 2013/14 will be estimated after 
TW has submitted the Development Consent Application. 

  
 Decision made by Cabinet Member on: 11 July 2012 

 
That  approval is given to expenditure of up to £85,000 in 
2012/13 to fund the costs associated with the examination into 
the application by Thames Water for Thames Tunnel works in 
this borough. 
 
Ward: Sands End 
 

  
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 461



 

CABINET MEMBER 
FOR TRANSPORT 
AND TECHNICAL 
SERVICES 
Councillor Victoria 
Brocklebank-Fowler 

10.2 SWMP & SFRA UPDATE COMMISSION 
 
This report presents a proposal to work jointly with the Royal  
Borough of Kensington and Chelsea (K&C) to commission a review 
and update our Surface Water Management Plan and the joint 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. 
 

 Decision made by Cabinet Member on: 11 July 2012 
 
1. To approve joint working with RB Kensington and Chelsea 

to commission an update, as out lined in the report, to the 
Council’s Surface Water Management Plan and the joint  
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment with Kensington and 
Chelsea acting as lead authority  for the project. 

2. To delegate authority to the Executive Director for 
Transport and Technical Services to authorise access to 
the Kensington and Chelsea commission with a ceiling of 
£70,000 for this Council’s  share of the winning 
consultants costs.   

Wards: All 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

Page 462



SUMMARY OF URGENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER REPORTED TO  
CABINET FOR INFORMATION  
 
The following reports were considered in accordance with paragraph 1.21 of the 
Leader’s Portfolio. 
 
ITEM 
 
11.1 CONSULTATION ON THE COUNCIL’S COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 
 

From April 2013, and as part of its general Resource Review, the Government is abolishing 
the council tax benefit scheme and requiring each local authority to implement a local 
scheme which will receive 10% less funding than currently. 
 

The new schemes will provide support for council tax by way of a discount rather than a 
benefit, but local authorities will have to protect pensioners and vulnerable groups.   
It is the intention of the council to absorb this 10% reduction and implement a local scheme 
that mirrors the current council tax benefit scheme.  
 
Reasons for Urgency: 
 

We must have any scheme in place by 31 January 2013, but are also required to consult 
with the GLA (as precepting authority) and the public on this approach. 
 

In order that we can meet the timescales (which includes the implementation of new IT 
systems) we seek approval to commence this consultation immediately. 
 
Decision taken by the Leader on: 9 August 2012 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1.  That approval is given to start public consultation on the Council’s proposed 
scheme (to absorb the 10% reduction in grant) which will ensure no residents are 
worse off in 2013/14. 

 

2. That this approach is revisited for 2014/15 and a further report is submitted on 
future options.  

 
Wards: All 
 
11.2 EARL’S COURT REDEVELOPMENT 
 
This report seeks authority for the Council to enter into a supplemental agreement with 
Capital & Counties plc which extends the period of negotiations for a potential Land Sale 
Agreement for a further period of six months beyond 29 July 2012. 
 
Reasons for Urgency: 
 
The Exclusivity Agreement which was entered into on 29 July 2011 will expire at the end of 
July. It had been hoped that a final form of Agreement would have been settled by this stage 
which could be considered by the Cabinet before the end of July. However, whilst progress 
has been made with the negotiations, these have still to be finalised. It is anticipated that 
they will be completed within the next few weeks and therefore an additional six month 

 Agenda Item 11

Page 463



period for negotiations is required 
 
Decision taken by the Leader on: 10 July 2012 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That  approval be given to enter into a Supplemental Agreement with Capital and 
Counties plc extending the period of the original Exclusivity Agreement dated 29 July 
2011 by a further six months until 29 January 2013 to allow further negotiations 
between the parties concerning the terms of a possible Land Sale Agreement for the 
inclusion of the West Kensington and Gibbs Green estates in the proposed 
comprehensive redevelopment scheme.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 464


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held on 23 July 2012
	4 The General Fund Revenue Budget 2012/2013 - Month 2 amendments
	5 Treasury Management Outturn Report
	6 Earl's Court Redevelopment and statutory and wider consultation
	Appendix 1 - Land Ownership Plan Final
	Appendix 2 - Economic Appraisal
	Appendix 3 - Consultation History
	Appendix 4 - Information Pack
	Appendix 5 - Analysis of responses to consultation Report
	Annex 1 - Feedback Form
	Annex 2- Pre-typed feedback form produced by the TRAs
	Annex 3 - TRAs' lefalet with suggested response text
	Annex 4
	Annex 5.1 - TRAs' response to consultation p1-10
	Annex 5.2 - TRAs' response to consultation p11-20
	Annex 5.3 - TRA's response to consultation p21-30
	Annex 5.4 - TRA's response to consultation p31-40
	Annex 5.5 - TRA's response to consultation p41-50
	Annex 5.6 - TRA's response to consultation p51-54
	Annex 6 - Economic Appraisal Response to Comments
	Annex 7 - Mr Slaughter's response to consultation 12th March 2012
	Annex 8 - Mr Slaughter letter to residents
	Annex 9.1 - Letter from TRA to 7th December 2011
	Annex 9.2 - LBHF Letter - 22nd December 2011 to Sally Taylor
	Annex 9.3 - LBHF letter dated 22nd December 2011 to Diane Belshaw
	Annex 9.4 - LBHF letter - 23rd December 2011
	Annex 9.5 - TRA  letter dated 10th January 2012
	Annex 9.6 - TRA letter dated 13th January 2012
	Annex  9.7 - LBHF letter dated 19th January 2012
	Annex 9.10 -LBHF Letter - 3rd February 2012
	Annex 9.11 - LBHF letter dated 14th May 2012
	Annex 9.12 - TRA letter dated 29th May 2012
	Annex 9.13 - LBHF Letter dated -1st June 2012
	Annex 9.14 - TRA letter dated 7th June 2012
	Annex 9.15 - LBHF letter dated 8th June 2012
	Annex 9.16 - TRA Letter dated 10th June 2012
	Annex 9.17 - LBHF letter dated 21st June 2012
	Annex 9.18 - TRA letter dated 26th June 2012
	Annex 9.19 - LBHF Letter dated 24th July 2012
	annex 9.20 - letter from TRA 27th July plus report
	Annex 9.21 - LBHF letter dated 21st August 2012
	Annex 10 - letter from non res leaseholder
	Appendix 6 Summary of CLSA terms prepared by SNR Denton
	Appendix 7 - Earls Court, West Kensington Local Lettings Interim Statement
	Appendix 8 - Size Comparator
	Appendix 9 - Initial Phasing Plan - April 2012
	Appendix 10 JLL best consideration letter
	Appendix 11- PWC letter
	Appendix 12 - EQIA
	Appendix 13 - Cost range Final
	Appendix 14 PWC tax report
	Appendix 15 Earls Court Regeneration Project Risk Register CLSA

	7 Mayor of London's Cycle Hire Scheme
	Borisbikes App1 - CH Phase 3 indicative area_22Jul11_DRAFT for borough consultation
	Borisbikes App 2 2012_06_27 (A1)

	8 Strategy for the provision of carer services across the City of Westminster, the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, and the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea
	9 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	10 Summary of Open Decisions taken by the Leader and Cabinet Members, and Reported to Cabinet for Information
	11 Summary of Urgent Decisions taken by the Leader, Reported to the Cabinet for Information

